
November 2, 2023 

9:00 AM 

Welcome to the City of St. Petersburg City Council meeting. The public may address City 
Council in person.  

The public must attend the meeting in person to speak during public hearings or quasi-
judicial hearings.  If you are a person with a disability who needs an accommodation in 
order to participate in this meeting or have any questions, please contact the City Clerk’s 
Office at 893-7448. If you are deaf/hard of hearing and require the services of an interpreter, 
please call our TDD number, 892-5259, or the Florida Relay Service at 711, as soon as 
possible. The City requests at least 72 hours advance notice, prior to the scheduled meeting, 
for accommodations.

To assist the City Council in conducting the City’s business, we ask that you observe the 
following:

1. If you are speaking under the Public Hearings, Appeals or Open Forum sections of 
the agenda, please observe the time limits indicated on the agenda.

2. Placards and posters are not permitted in the Chamber. Applause is not permitted 
except in connection with Awards and Presentations.

3. Please do not address Council from your seat. If asked by Council to speak to an 
issue, please do so from the podium.

4. Please do not pass notes to Council during the meeting.

5. Please be courteous to other members of the audience by keeping side conversations 
to a minimum.

6. The Fire Code prohibits anyone from standing in the aisles or in the back of the 
room.

7. If other seating is available, please do not occupy the seats reserved for individuals 
who are deaf/hard of hearing.

The public can also attend the meeting in the following ways:
• Watch live on Channel 15 WOW!/Channel 641 Spectrum/Channel 20 Frontier FiOS 
• Watch live online at www.stpete.org/TV
• Listen and participate by dialing one of the following phone numbers 
 +1 312 626 6799 or 
 +1 646 876 9923 or 
 +1 253 215 8782 or 
 +1 301 715 8592 or 
 +1 346 248 7799 or 



2 

 +1 669 900 6833 and entering webinar ID: 984 8719 3715#
• Watch, listen, and participate on your computer, mobile phone, or other device 
 by visiting the following link: https://zoom.us/j/98487193715

The public can participate in the meeting by providing public comment for agenda items other 
than public hearings and quasi-judicial hearings in the following ways:

• If attending the Zoom meeting by computer or other device, use the “raise hand” 
button in the Zoom app.  
• If attending the Zoom meeting by phone only, enter *9 on the phone to use the “raise 
hand” feature.

The “raise hand” feature in the Zoom meeting indicates your desire to speak but does not 
allow you to speak immediately.  You must use the “raise hand” feature at the time the 
agenda item is addressed.  All “raised hands” will be lowered after each agenda item.  When 
it is your turn to speak, your microphone will be unmuted. At the conclusion of your 
comments or when you reach the three-minute limit, you will be muted.  Please be advised 
that at all times the chair has the authority and discretion to re-order agenda items, and in the 
event the meeting is disrupted by violations of the rules of decorum, to accept public 
comment by alternate means, including by email only.

Regardless of the method of participation used, normal rules for participation apply, including 
the three-minute limit on comments, the requirement that any presentation materials must be 
submitted to the City Clerk in advance of the meeting, and the rules of decorum. Public 
comments must be submitted before the public comment period has closed.



3 

November 2, 2023 

9:00 AM A. Meeting Called to Order and Roll Call.

Invocation and Pledge to the Flag of the United States of America.

A moment of silence will be observed to remember fallen Firefighters and Police Officers

of the City of St. Petersburg that lost their lives in the line of duty during this month:

Officer Gene A. Bessette- November 10, 1961 

B. Approval of Agenda with Additions and Deletions.

C. Consent Agenda (see attached)

Open Forum

The City Council receives public comment during Open Forum and on agenda items with 
limited exceptions consistent with Florida law.  All issues discussed under Open Forum must 
be limited to issues related to the City of St. Petersburg government. If you wish to address 
City Council on subjects other than public hearing or quasi-judicial items listed on the 
agenda, please sign up with the Clerk. Only City residents, owners of property in the City, 
owners of businesses in the City or their employees may speak during Open Forum.

If you wish to address City Council through the Zoom meeting, you must use the “raise 
hand” feature button in the Zoom app or enter *9 on your phone at the time the agenda item 
is addressed.   When it is your turn to speak, you will be unmuted and asked to state your 
name and address.  At the conclusion of your comments or when you reach the three-minute 
time limit, you will be muted.  All “raised hands” will be lowered after each agenda item.

Regardless of the method of participation used, normal rules apply, including the three-
minute time limit on comments, the requirement that any presentation materials must be 
submitted in advance of the meeting and the rules of decorum.  If live public comment is 
disrupted by violations of the rules of decorum, the chair is authorized to accept public 
comment by alternate means, including by email only.

D. Awards and Presentations

E. Public Hearings and Quasi-Judicial Proceedings - 9:30 A.M.

Public Hearings

1. Confirming Preliminary Assessment for Building Securing Number LCA 1650

2. Confirming Preliminary Assessment for Building Securing Number LCA 1651

3. Confirming Preliminary Assessment for Building Securing SEC 1286

4. Ordinance 561-H. Ordinance to Create Chapter 28 & Provide Tax Abatement for Certain

Affordable Housing Projects Allowed through Senate Bill 102 (AKA Live Local Act)

F. Reports

1. Resolution Endorsing the Advantage Pinellas Housing Action Plan

2. A resolution authorizing the Mayor, or his designee to execute (I) an agreement with the

Board of Trustees of St. Petersburg College for the purchase of a property located at 7045



4 

Burlington Avenue North for the contract price of $4,200,000; (II) execute an agreement 

with the Board of Trustees of St. Petersburg College to give Specific rights to the 

purchase of certain affordable housing units to be built on such property; (III) execute all 

other documents necessary to effectuate this transaction; (IV) pay for survey(s), 

inspections, environmental audit(s), title policy, and other acquisition/closing related 

costs, including the payment of state documentary stamps on the deed, all not to exceed 

$100,000; approving a transfer in the amount of $4,300,000 from the unappropriated 

balance of the Parking Revenue Fund (1021), to the Housing Capital Improvement Fund 

(3000); approving a supplemental appropriation in the amount of $4,300,000 from the 

increase in the unappropriated balance of the Housing Capital Improvement Fund (3000), 

resulting from the above transfer, to the St. Pete College Acquisition Project (20095); and 

providing an effective date. 

3. Requesting permission to accept the awarded Florida Department of Agriculture and

Consumer Services (FDACS) Division of Administration (Contract #29916) for tree

planting in the Childs Park Neighborhood. The awarded grant total is $49,617 with a 1:1

match of $49,617 that will be funded through the Office of Sustainability and Resilience

Urban Forestry Budget. The total Childs Park tree planting and maintenance project cost

will be up to $100,000.

4. A Resolution approving the plat of YMCA - Riviera, generally located at 501 62nd

Avenue Northeast; setting forth conditions; and providing an effective date. (City File

No.: DRC 22-20000013)

G. New Ordinances - (First Reading of Title and Setting of Public Hearing)

Setting November 30, 2023 as the public hearing date for the following proposed Ordinance(s):

1. Proposed text amendments to the City Code of Ordinances Chapter 16 (Land

Development Regulations) and Chapter 17.5 (Housing Assistance) pertaining to an update

to the existing alternative housing affordability site plan review process related to SB 102

known as the “Live Local Act”. (City File: LDR 2023-03 and Chapter 17.5 Amendments)

(a) Ordinance 565-H, an ordinance of the City of St. Petersburg, Florida amending the

City's Land Development Regulations; amending Section 16.01.040. to preclude

application of the Land Development Regulations to certain affordable housing

projects approved pursuant to Section 166.04151(6) or pursuant to 166.04151(7)(a),

Florida Statutes; and providing an effective date.

(b) Ordinance 564-H, an ordinance of the City of St. Petersburg, Florida amending

Chapter 17.5 of the City code related to housing assistance; amending the existing

process pursuant to Sections 166.04151(6) and 166.04151(7(a), Florida Statutes,

wherein the City may administratively approve the development of housing that is

affordable in designated zoning categories subject to procedural and site compatibility

requirements; providing for severability; and providing an effective date.

H. New Business

1. Respectfully requesting a referral to a Committee of the Whole meeting to be scheduled

on November 9, 2023 a discussion regarding a potential straw poll on the Tampa Bay

Rays stadium agreement, to be included on the March 19, 2024 presidential preference

primary election ballots. (Councilmember Floyd)



5 

2. Respectfully requesting a joint Community Benefit Advisory Committee and City Council

meeting at a Committee of the Whole for discussion on the Community Benefit Program

(Vice-Chair Figgs-Sanders)

3. Respectfully requesting a referral to a Committee of the Whole no later than the end of the

first quarter of 2024 for a discussion on flood mitigation strategies for the coastal high

hazard and repetitive loss areas of our city. Topics to include current permitting process

and requirements for infill residential development, current FEMA application &

acceptance procedures for mitigation grants, exploration of methods to improve our

Community Rating System (CRS) score to reduce the impact of rising flood insurance

rates, and a discussion on funding a study examining the fiscal impact of climate informed

zoning such as the study prepared by the Lincoln Institute of Land Policy attached. This

conversation is relevant to a New Business Item approved in a City Council Meeting on

July 12, 2018 to “explore options for, and provide a presentation on, creating a grant or

incentive program for homeowner hurricane mitigation efforts in repetitive loss

neighborhoods as determined by FEMA.” that is on the Health, Energy, Resilience, and

Sustainability (HERS) Committee Referral List. (Chair Gabbard)

I. Council Committee Reports

J. Legal

K. Open Forum

L. Adjournment

A



6 

Consent Agenda A 

November 2, 2023 

NOTE: Business items listed on the yellow Consent Agenda cost more than one-half million dollars while 

the blue Consent Agenda includes routine business items costing less than that amount. 

(Procurement) 

1. Approving a blanket purchase agreement with Odyssey Manufacturing Co. for sodium

hypochlorite supply services, for the Water Resources Department, for a total contract

amount of $2,171,000.

2. Accepting a proposal from Daniel Company, dba Daniel Mechanical LLC, a sole source

supplier, for a Bio-trickling Filter and Carbon Adsorber Odor Control System, for the

Southwest Water Reclamation Facility, for a total cost of $1,315,000.

3. Accepting Statements of Qualifications (SOQs) from CivilSurv Design Group, Inc.,

Colliers Engineering & Design, Inc., Hyatt Survey Services, Inc., Survtech Solutions, Inc.,

and T2 UES. Inc. for Consulting Services, Professional Surveying, for the Engineering

and Capital Improvements Department, for a four-year contract.

4. Accepting a bid from Ajax Paving Industries of Florida LLC, for Citywide Annual

Resurfacing, for the Engineering and Capital Improvements Department, in the amount of

$5,049,379 (ECID Project No. 23003-130; Oracle No. 19196).

5. Approving a three-year blanket purchase agreement with FirstOnsite Restoration, Inc dba

Interstate Restoration and Paul Davis Restoration, Inc for as-needed disaster restoration

services for the Pier.

6. Approving the renewal and an increase in allocation of a two-year blanket purchase

agreement with Parkmobile LLC, for pay-by-connected-device parking services, for a

total contract amount of $2,290,000.

(City Development) 

(Community Enrichment) 

(Public Works) 

7. A Resolution accepting a guaranteed maximum price proposal dated June 26, 2023 in the

amount of $613,682 from Archer Western Construction, LLC (“Archer Western”) for

construction phase services for the Sanitation Building Fiber Optic Network Expansion

Project; authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute all documents necessary to

effectuate this transaction; and providing an effective date (ECID Project No. 22100-124;

Oracle Project Nos. 19071, 17971).

(Appointments) 



7 

(Miscellaneous) 



8 

Consent Agenda B 

November 2, 2023 

NOTE:  The Consent Agenda contains normal, routine business items that are very likely to be approved by 

the City Council by a single motion.  Council questions on these items were answered prior to the meeting.  

Each Councilmember may, however, defer any item for added discussion at a later time. 

(Procurement) 

1. Approving a blanket purchase agreement with Allied Universal Corp. for sodium

hydroxide, for the Water Resources Department, for a total contract amount of $350,000

2. Approving the reinstatement and an increase in allocation for shuttle bus services, with SP

Plus Corporation for the Municipal Pier District, in the amount of $56,050, for a total

contract amount of $2,019,050.

3. Approving the renewal and an increase in allocation of a contract purchase agreement

with Econolite Control Products, Inc., a sole source supplier, for the purchase of traffic

controllers for the Stormwater Traffic and Pavement Operations Department in the

amount of $320,000.

4. Approving the renewal a blanket purchase agreement with Portable Sanitation of Tampa,

Inc. for the rental of portable toilets, in the amount of $40,000.

5. Accepting a bid from Jantech Services, Inc for battery replacement services for the Police

Department, in the amount of 265,148.16.

(City Development) 

6. A Resolution approving the plat of YMCA - Riviera, generally located at 501 62nd

Avenue Northeast; setting forth conditions; and providing an effective date. (City File

No.: DRC 22-20000013) (Moved to Reports as F-4)

7. Authorizing the Mayor, or his designee, to execute a License Agreement with the Civil

Air Patrol, a Congressionally chartered non-profit federal corporation and the civilian

Auxiliary of the United States Air Force, for continued use of property to maintain a

building and other ancillary improvements for its base operations within City-owned

Albert Whitted Airport, for a period of three (3) years at an aggregate fee of $36.00; and

providing an effective date. (Requires affirmative vote of at least six (6) members of City

Council.)

8. Authorizing the Mayor, or his designee, to execute a First Amendment to the License

Agreement with the Salvador Dali Museum, Inc., a Florida not-for-profit corporation, to

continue the non-exclusive right to use up to fifty (50) numbered vehicular parking spaces

in the overflow parking area at Albert Whitted Airport for an additional three (3) year

term; and providing an effective date.



9 

9. Authorizing the Mayor, or his designee, to execute License Agreement with the Childs

Park Rattlers Youth Athletic Organization, Inc., a Florida not-for-profit corporation, for

the use of the concession stand, equipment/storage, and press box/storage buildings within

a portion of City-owned Childs Park Athletic Complex located at 601 – 45th Street South,

St. Petersburg, for a period of three (3) years at an aggregate fee of $36.00; and waiving

the reserve for replacement requirement of City Council Resolution No. 79-740A; and

providing an effective date. (Requires affirmative vote of at least six (6) members of City

Council.)

10. A Resolution to execute the first amendment to the agreement with Volkan Alkanoglu

Design, LLC for two artistic sculptures for the Grand Central District Entryway Project to

increase the total contract amount by $219,000, including a $38,000 contingency, for a

total contract amount not to exceed $418,000.

(Community Enrichment) 

11. Approving a resolution authorizing the Mayor or his designee to accept additional grant

funds from the State of Florida Department of Health, Bureau of Childcare Food

Programs (“Department”) in an amount not to exceed $14,625.96 as an additional

reimbursement for the City of St. Petersburg 2023 Childcare Food Program for a total

amount of $241,295.96; to execute a grant agreement and all other documents necessary

to effectuate this transaction; and providing an effective date.

12. Approval of Co-Sponsored Event Applications and Associated Resolutions

(a) A resolution approving events for co-sponsorship by the City in name only for

FY2024; authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute all documents necessary to

effectuate this resolution; and providing an effective date.

(b) A resolution in accordance with City Code Section 21-38(c) Exempting St. Pete Tacos

And Tequila (Vinoy Park) from the beer and wine only restrictions in City Code

Section 21-38(c) upon the issuance of a permit for alcoholic beverages to be sold,

served, or dispensed at the venue (for on premises consumption only) during the times

and dates of the event as set forth herein; and providing an effective date.

(c) A resolution in accordance with City Code Section 21-38(c) exempting St. Pete Pride

LGBTQ+ Youth and Family Day (North Straub Park) from the beer and wine only

restrictions in city code section 21-38(c) upon the issuance of a permit for alcoholic

beverages to be sold, served, or dispensed at the venue (for on premises consumption

only) during the times and dates of the event as set forth herein; and providing an

effective date.

(d) A resolution in accordance with City Code Section 21-38(c) exempting St. Pete Pride

Weekend (Vinoy Park, North and South Straub Parks) from the beer and wine only

restrictions in City Code Section 21-38(c) upon the issuance of a permit for alcoholic

beverages to be sold, served, or dispensed at the venue (for on premises consumption

only) during the times and dates of the event as set forth herein; and providing an

effective date.

(e) A resolution in accordance with City Code Section 21-38(d) exempting Derby At The

Pier (Spa Beach Park) from the beer and wine only restrictions in City Code Section

21-38(d) upon the issuance of a permit for alcoholic beverages to be sold, served, or



10 

dispensed at the venue (for on premises consumption only) during the times and dates 

of the event as set forth herein; and providing an effective date.  

(f) A resolution in accordance with City Code Section 21-38(d) exempting Spring Fest

and Easter Egg Hunt (Spa Beach Park) from the beer and wine only restrictions in City

Code Section 21- 38(d) upon the issuance of a permit for alcoholic beverages to be

sold, served, or dispensed at the venue (for on premises consumption only) during the

times and dates of the event as set forth herein; and providing an effective date.

(g) A resolution in accordance with City Code Section 21-38(d) exempting The Fourth

(Spa Beach Park) from the beer and wine only restrictions in City Code Section 21-

38(d) upon the issuance of a permit for alcoholic beverages to be sold, served, or

dispensed at the venue (for on premises consumption only) during the times and dates

of the event as set forth herein; and providing an effective date.

(h) A resolution in accordance with City Code Section 21-38(d) exempting St. Pete Pier

Run (Spa Beach Park) from the beer and wine only restrictions in City Code Section

21-38(d) upon the issuance of a permit for alcoholic beverages to be sold, served, or

dispensed at the venue (for on premises consumption only) during the times and dates

of the event as set forth herein; and providing an effective date.

(i) A resolution in accordance with City Code Section 21-38(d) exempting St. Pete Pier

Live Oliver Tree (Spa Beach Park) from the beer and wine only restrictions in City

Code Section 21- 38(d) upon the issuance of a permit for alcoholic beverages to be

sold, served, or dispensed at the venue (for on premises consumption only) during the

times and dates of the event as set forth herein; and providing an effective date.

(j) A resolution in accordance with City Code Section 21-38(d) exempting Mini Country

Concert Series (Spa Beach Park) from the beer and wine only restrictions in City Code

Section 21-38(d) upon the issuance of a permit for alcoholic beverages to be sold,

served, or dispensed at the venue (for on premises consumption only) during the times

and dates of the event as set forth herein; and providing an effective date.

(k) A resolution in accordance with City Code Section 21-38(d) exempting St. Pete Pier

Live  Atmosphere and RJD2 (Spa Beach Park) from the beer and wine only

restrictions in City Code Section 21-38(d) upon the issuance of a permit for alcoholic

beverages to be sold, served, or dispensed at the venue (for on premises consumption

only) during the times and dates of the event as set forth herein; and providing an

effective date.

(Public Works) 

13. Requesting permission to accept the awarded Florida Department of Agriculture and

Consumer Services (FDACS) Division of Administration (Contract #29916) for tree

planting in the Childs Park Neighborhood. The awarded grant total is $49,617 with a 1:1

match of $49,617 that will be funded through the Office of Sustainability and Resilience

Urban Forestry Budget. The total Childs Park tree planting and maintenance project cost

will be up to $100,000. (Moved to Reports as F-3 Good News)

14. A Resolution authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute Task Order No. 21-04-

FN/W(S) to the architect/engineering agreement dated July 15, 2021 between the City of

St. Petersburg, Florida and Freese and Nichols, Inc. (“A/E”) for A/E to provide project

management, data collection and review, site visits, a technical memorandum, and cost



11 

benefit analysis related to the SWWRF Climate Vulnerability Assessment Project in an 

amount not to exceed $137,978.89 (ECID Project No. 23153-100; Oracle No. 19677); and 

providing an effective date. 

15. A Resolution approving the First Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement

between the City of St. Petersburg, Florida and Wright-Pierce, Inc. (“A/E”) dated June 21,

2023 to supplement the scope of services and modify the payment schedule and project

schedule related to the CCTV Program Management Project; authorizing the Mayor or his

designee to execute the First Amendment; and providing an effective date. (ECID Project

No. 22042-111; Oracle Project No. 19353)

(Appointments) 

(Miscellaneous) 

16. Housing. Land Use, & Transportation Committee Meeting Minutes (September 14, 2023)

17. Youth and Family Services Committee Meeting Minutes (June 8, 2023)

18. A resolution accepting a Mobile Command Center purchased by the City of Tampa for the

City of St. Petersburg through federal grant funds from the Urban Areas Security

Initiative; authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute all documents necessary to

effectuate this transaction; and providing an effective date.

19. Legislative Affairs and Intergovernmental Relations Committee Meeting Minutes

(September 21, 2023)



12 

Note:  An Meeting Agendalisting of upcoming City Council meetings. 

Housing, Land Use & Transportation Committee 

Thursday, November 9, 2023, 8:00 a.m., Conference Room 100 

Public Services & Infrastructure Committee 

Thursday, November 9, 2023, 9:25 a.m., Conference Room 100 

Budget, Finance & Taxation Committee 

Thursday, November 9, 2023, 10:50 a.m., Conference Room 100 

City Council Meeting 

Thursday, November 9, 2023, 3:00 p.m., City Council Chambers 



13 

Board and Commission Vacancies 

Nuisance Abatement Board 

2 Regular Members 

((Term expires 12/31/24 and 12/31/25)) 

Nuisance Abatement Board 

2 Alternate Members 

((Term expires 8/31/24 and 12/31/24)) 



14 

PROCEDURES TO BE FOLLOWED FOR QUASI-JUDICIAL PROCEEDINGS: 

1.  Anyone wishing to speak must fill out a yellow card and present the card to the Clerk. 
All speakers must be sworn prior to presenting testimony. No cards may be submitted after the 
close of Public Comment. Each party and speaker is limited to the time limits set forth herein 
and may not give their time to another speaker or party. Each party and speaker wishing to 
present handouts, photographs, presentation slides or any other materials (collectively, “Materials”) 
during a quasi-judicial proceeding must submit such Materials to the City Clerk no later than 24 
hours in advance of the applicable public hearing. Materials submitted after the deadline will not 
be accepted and may not be used.

2.  At any time during the proceeding, City Council members may ask questions of any speaker 
or party. The time consumed by Council Member questions and answers to such questions shall not 
count against the time frames allowed herein. Burden of proof: in all appeals, the Appellant bears the 
burden of proof; in rezoning and land use cases, the Property Owner or Applicant bears the burden of 
proof except in cases initiated by the City, in which event the City Administration bears the burden of 
proof; for all other applications, the Applicant bears the burden of proof. Waiver of Objection: at any 
time during the proceeding Council Members may leave the Council Chamber for short periods of 
time provided they continue to hear testimony by audio. If any party has an objection to a Council 
Member leaving the Chamber during the hearing, such objection must be made at the start of the 
hearing. If an objection is not made as required herein it shall be deemed to have been waived. 

3.  Reading of the Title of the Ordinance(s), if applicable. 

4.  Initial Presentation. Each party shall be allowed ten (10) minutes for their initial presentation. 
The order of initial presentations shall be:

 a. Presentation by City Administration. 
 b. Presentation by the Appellant followed by the Applicant, if different. If Appellant and 
Applicant are different entities, then each is allowed the allotted time for each part of these 
procedures. 
 c. Presentation by Opponent. If anyone wishes to utilize the initial presentation time provided 
for an Opponent, said person shall register as an Opponent with the City Clerk at least one week prior 
to the scheduled public hearing or within 48 hours after the City staff report for the public hearing 
has been published (whichever is later). If more than one person registers to utilize the initial 
presentation time provided for an Opponent, the registered persons shall attempt to agree on a single 
representative to participate as the Opponent in the proceeding. If the persons cannot agree on a 
single representative, then each person (or person’s representative) shall share equally the time 
allotted to the Opponent for each part of these procedures. If there is an Appellant who is not the 
Applicant or Property Owner, then no Opponent is allowed. If a Property Owner who is not the 
Appellant or the Applicant opposes the Application and utilizes any part of the time available to the 
Property Owner to make an initial presentation, the Opponent shall not be permitted to make an 
initial presentation (but shall be provided an opportunity for cross-examination and rebuttal/closing).
 d. If the Property Owner is neither the Appellant nor the Applicant, they shall be allowed the 
allotted time for each part of these procedures and shall have the opportunity to speak last in each 
part of these procedures so that they have the opportunity to address what all the interested parties 
have presented.



5.  Public Comment. Upon conclusion of the initial presentations, members of the public may speak for 
not more than three (3) minutes each. Speakers shall limit their testimony to information relevant to the 
ordinance or application and criteria for review.

6.  Cross Examination. Each party shall be allowed a total of five (5) minutes for cross examination, 
which includes the time consumed by both questions and answers. Each party who opposes the application 
may only cross examine any witness who previously testified in support of the application. Each party who 
supports the application may only cross examine any witness who previously testified in opposition to the 
application. The questioning party is not permitted to make any statements, only to ask questions that are 
directly related to the testimony or evidence presented. All questions shall be addressed to the Chair and then 
(at the discretion of the Chair) asked either by the Chair or by the party conducting the cross examination of 
the appropriate witness. One (1) representative of each party shall conduct the cross examination.  If anyone 
wishes to utilize the time provided for cross examination and rebuttal as an Opponent, and no one has 
previously registered with the City Clerk as an Opponent, said individual shall notify the City Clerk prior to 
the beginning of initial presentations for the applicable public hearing.  If no one gives such notice, there shall 
be no cross examination or rebuttal by Opponent(s).  The order of cross examination shall be:

a. Cross examination by City Administration. 
b. Cross examination by Opponents, if applicable. 
c. Cross examination by Appellant followed by Applicant, followed by Property Owner, if different. 

7.  Rebuttal/Closing. Each party shall have five (5) minutes to provide a closing argument and/or rebuttal. 
The order of rebuttal/closing shall be: 

a. Rebuttal/Closing by City Administration. 
b. Rebuttal/Closing by Opponent, if applicable. 
c. Rebuttal/Closing by Applicant followed by the Appellant, if different, followed by Property Owner, 

if different. 

00630194.doc - revised 7/7/2022

15 



16 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Confirming Preliminary 

Assessment for Building Securing Number LCA 1650 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



E-1

E-1



ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL

MEETING OF: NOVEMBER 2, 2023

TO: COUNCIL CHAIR AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL

SUBJECT: Confirming Preliminary Assessment for
Building Securing Number LCA 1650

EXPLANATION: Codes Compliance Assistance has secured the
attached structures which were found to be
unfit or unsafe under Chapter 8 of the
St. Petersburg City Code. The interest
rate is 8% per annum on the unpaid balance.

LCA: 1650

NUMBER OF STRUCTURES

ASSESSABLE AMOUNT: $12,554.42

According to the City Code, these assessments constitute a
lien on each property. It is recommended that the assessments
be confirmed.

COST/FUNDING/ASSESSMENT INFORMATION:
The total assessable amount of $12,554.42 will be fully assessable
to the property owners.

ATTACHMENTS:

MAYOR:________________

COUNCIL ACTION:_________

FOLLOW-UP: AGENDA NO.



ci ci ci ci ci ci ci zto
o 0 0 0 0 0 0 CtI) 0
to to to to to to to toto

toto H
H H H H H H H toO) N)
CD CD CD CD CD CD CD toO)
to to to to to to to N)
o 0 0 0 0 0 0 to to

to
CD CD CD CD CD CD CD A H
o o 0 0 0 0 0 to
CD CD 0) CD CD CD CD
to to to to CD CD CD 0
to N) H 0 to CD -J CD

(I) H to to to to to H to to N) U to N) to CD to to to to -O N)
to HO to —) A to to A to to C to to H to CD ‘- 0 Cl CD
to to to C-I CD H N) to H to 4 to to ci H toO to toto

to A to to H to CD to to to ci to 0 to to to Hto
O toO’-] to A I-] H q to H A to to 0 to cito
H to to to CD to to toO to 0 i-] >< H H
to to to to 0 to 0 to A to to H Z to to to to to totoo ci to to H to to A to to to ,0 to to to CD to 0o to A to - A toO A to to A- A A to to CD

o to to 0 to to to <on to to to ci to CD n otoo to to to A to to to to to to A to to to to to to to HO
to to to to 0 to to A H to to to to ci Un 0 AU

H A to to Oto tow to ‘ito A C to to A to
to to ci to to A ci ci to no to ci to
N) 0 to to to ci to 0 to OH Cl to to <ci to ci to
H toO <toO toO to H to 0 to ci ci ci to
to to to to to H N) H to 0
o to ci to to to to 0 CD A to to to
N) to ci to ci to ci to N) ci A to
to ci to 0 CD to
to to to to to ci .0 H to 0
to A to to to ci 0 to 0 CD

to -a -a 0 -a
A H 0 0 0
to H —) H -J

to to to H
o to N) to N)
O H 0 0 0

to to CD CD

*
to *
to to
to ‘0*
CD a
0 on
to toHH
to HOrt

to H’<

to.OtoH totototo totoH totototo tototo totoN) H AOtoN) -to HU)
O’AOto ci0to.0 citoto ciC90 toCD ciciCD N) tototo.0 cito Hto(Dto
tototo NAA toA H74< -ito toci to 00 toto itotJ)Ct

Ato <to toto toto tototo toto to toA to On otoø•
HtoOO .OtoHH N)toO totoOH toClH totoH A HtoH toto N)toO
-Ato -nto H A-to Ato - I HtoA L-’ci ‘toa’o

to H OEH OH OH toH OH A to H N)Z0
citon-a ciA CD t-’O--i Oci -a OACD ciCD 0 to -toCD OH otortlt
Ototo OAA oto too to o< tototo toO N)toraa
AAHH Atotoo A C A 0 0 A 0 to A 0 to toA 0

no toto tototo ito to to H toO 0 tono n Ucn
N)tototo N) toto toto 0 N) H HC.0 to ACOo to toH0

Cto.0 to toN) N)H,0 AH to N) to toto toWtoO H
totoCD OCD toQCD .0 .0 N) N) N) 0 to ci•ti

- to to H to totoO A ciUIlO
too - 0 toAo to 0 to 0 0 citoN) H H-

o o totoo H 0 A 0 0 N)to to 0 0*
H .0 0 N) to to 0 N) to cio to 11*

- 0 totoO *
o 0 N) 0 0 to 0 0 A Ao *
o N) .0 N) H H N) 0 N) N)
N) to to CD .0 A 0 H AtoH0
o o 0 0 to N) 0 toto 0

to AO
to to to to
0

to to .0 H N) to N) to
to -a H to 0 0 to
to CD to 0 .0 0 0 0
to to 0 0 0 0 to

to to
.0 to N) .0 H H to to
A to to A CD to CIA
to H 0 to A A to A

to to to ci
to 0 to to H
A A A A to to to

0 to A A 00
to to to to A to

to to 0 to
to to to to
A to
to to

A
to to

to

to
to to
too 0
toto

H toH
- too

N) H to to H N) H ZH
CD CD 0 0 CD N) CD toto H
.0 .0 .0 CD .0 .0 .0 to• A
to to CD N) to .0 to
CD CD to to CD CD



1
0
/1

2
/2

3
l5

0
6
:2

8
:

C
ity

o
f

S
t.

P
e
te

rs
b
u
rg

*
*

*
*

P
a
g
e

2
S

p
e
c
ia

l
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

D
iv

is
io

n
F

IN
A

L
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
R

O
L

L
1
1
-0

2
-2

0
2
3

A
S

S
E

S
S

M
E

N
T

O
W

N
E

R
N

A
M

E
P

A
R

C
E

L
ID

O
R

IG
IN

A
L

N
U

N
B

E
R

/M
A

IL
IN

G
A

D
D

R
E

S
S

/L
E

G
A

L
D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T

L
C

A
1
6
5
0

8
0
8
9
4

B
E

A
C

H
U

M
,

B
E

A
T

R
IC

E
W

2
5

3
1

1
6

1
0
6
5
6

0
0
0

0
0

5
0

1
3

6
3

1
4
T

H
S

T
S

2
2
4

.4
7

B
O

Z
E

M
A

N
’S

SU
B

9
3
5

P
O

S
T

A
V

E
S

5O
F

T
O

F
L

O
T

5

R
O

C
H

E
S

T
E

R
N

Y
1

4
6

1
9

2
3

1
3

L
C

A
1
6
5
0

8
0
8
9
5

P
E

R
E

Z
,

K
E

N
N

E
T

H
0

7
3

1
1
7

1
1
3
7
6

0
0
8

0
1
6
0

6
3
9

3
7

T
H

A
V

E
N

1
8
4

.3
8

B
R

ID
G

E
W

A
Y

A
D

D
6
3
9

3
7

T
H

A
V

E
N

B
L

K
H

,
L

O
T

1
6

S
A

IN
T

P
E

T
E

R
S

B
U

R
G

F
L

3
3
7
0
4
1
2
4
9

L
C

A
1
6
5
0

8
0
8
9
6

3
9
7
8

43R
D

S
T

R
E

E
T

L
L

C
03

3
2

16
1
1
6
6
9

0
0
0

0
1

7
0

4
0
0
0

43R
D

S
T

S
1
8

4
.3

8
B

R
O

A
D

W
A

T
E

R
B

A
Y

V
IE

W
E

S
T

3
4

3
3

L
IT

IH
IA

P
IN

E
C

R
E

S
T

R
D

S
T

E
3
1
4

L
O

T
1
7

V
A

L
R

IC
O

F
L

3
3

5
9

6
6

3
0

2

L
C

A
1
6
5
0

8
0
8
9
7

F
L

IP
IT

2
U

L
L

C
1

4
3
1

1
6

1
2
4
9
2

0
0
0

0
2

2
0

2
3
1
1

8T
H

A
V

E
N

1
8
4

.3
8

B
R

U
N

SO
N

SU
B

1
2
0
1
1

FO
X

H
IL

L
C

IR
L

O
T

2
2

B
O

Y
N

T
O

N
B

E
A

C
H

F
L

3
3

4
7

3
7

8
3

3

L
C

A
1
6
5
0

8
0
8
9
8

A
Z

Z
A

M
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

IE
S

C
O

R
P

2
1

3
1

1
6

1
4
4
5
4

0
0
5

0
0
6
0

5
3
4

0
C

E
N

T
R

A
L

A
V

E
2
2

4
.4

7
C

E
N

T
R

A
L

A
V

E
N

U
E

H
O

M
E

S
1
0
8

W
1

3
T

H
S

T
B

L
K

5
,

L
O

T
6

&
W

lO
F

T
O

F
L

O
T

5

W
IL

M
IN

G
T

O
N

D
E

1
9

8
0

1
1

1
4

5

L
C

A
1

6
5

0
8
0
8
9
9

H
O

L
M

E
S

,
E

D
W

A
R

D
R

JR
2
5

3
1

1
6

1
4
7
4
2

0
0
0

0
1

1
1

1
5
0
0

1
3
T

H
S

T
5

2
2
4

.4
7

C
H

A
M

B
E

R
’S

1
S

T
A

D
D

1
1
3
0

Q
U

E
E

N
S

S
T

N
T

O
H

O
L

L
Y

W
O

O
D

W
7
9
F

T
O

F
L

O
T

1
1

S
A

IN
T

P
E

T
E

R
S

B
U

R
G

F
L

3
3

7
1

3
5

7
3

3

L
C

A
1

6
5

0
8
0
9
0
0

IM
H

4
L

L
C

2
5

3
1

1
6

1
5
0
1
2

0
0
0

0
2

8
0

1
1

2
5

1
3
T

H
A

V
E

S
1
8
4
.3

8
C

H
E

R
O

K
E

E
SU

B
1
9
2
2

F
O

R
E

S
T

V
IE

W
D

R
L

O
T

2
8

&
S

1
/2

O
F

L
O

T
2
9

(P
E

R
O

.R
.

1
2
5
6
7
/7

6
0

&
O

.R
.

PA
L

M
H

A
R

B
O

R
F

L
3

4
6

8
3

6
6

0
8

1
3
0
7
5
/1

7
4
2
)

S
A

S
8

O
5

R



Li Li Li Li Li Li Li N> H
C_I 0 0 0 0 0 0 OW 0
> > > P > > > NW

ZN H
H H H H H H H NW to
N N N N N N N NW
Ui Ui In In Ui In In N to
o 0 0 0 0 0 0 N W

NN N N N N N N A H
o o 0 0 0 0 0 Ui
CD CD CD CD CD CD CD
o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
-0 N In P U) to H N

W to N N N W N P A W to 0 Li H 0 W InNN CD 3 xj Q to
> N N WA N W N> ‘P A N HO> toNN > PC ZN N
H In R’ > In C) P 0 cl to N N ‘ci I-I ONN H 0 N >NN In U ‘tiC A> H W N N NOC N N HN
A Q N H N N 0 NW CD NW N Li A -- A ‘P > LiN

N N MA Li N >0 A C H> 0 A N H
‘ci A U A CD N ‘-< > N A N N > U N ‘ci >Q0 ‘ci N - ZNN N NO ANN N- > > CD 0 U UN NO> N 0A N N NW U WA Li A WNN A W >N > > N N A N N NO N N > N N A U >N
N <N N InCA > H Li H N> ON ciH N >UCD NW Li A N A A NN N NW NW NN UN OH N H U) OAt.) U NW NC4 N NC CD Li W N H N ‘P A CD H >C >NN C C N
N Li .P N N to N to 0 —J N Li N A N N CD
O 0 to Li U) N U) NON U 0 0 H CD

H N N N N U) H W A
N to H to N N U) N N N
Li to 0 .P Li CD Li N -J N Li Li to

N to —3 P A Li 0 to
to a to U) U 0 0 0 U) U) CD
U) U) Li N U) U)
-3 Li CD H -J -3
H 0 A U H 0
to N > to H
H P to
N U) Li to U)
In P Li In to
U) 0 0 -3 to

*
CD *> CD*
CD
N a0 00In NH-F--
N Hart

N HA

Li>O
CD hh

LiNW NNto NNto LiNto NNto LiUto LiOto —‘J H>CC
O>H LiC,P LiNIn OOIn <In O0In 0LiIn Li> HWaW
A> ZLi NC AN H> AC A> N> Wart

NW LiW HU) NW —N WOW AU) 00 ONC!).
HOH NNH HAH HWH toWH LiH HOH >N toCD
oN -N -Li CDA .P> - LiLi ‘Wa’ci
NUH -H >H H 0 H CDWH CDH toNia

>0 LiWN LiNN ZN NqN - N ON UH oNrtrt
Li 0 00 H > In’ci N NO towa
NW ACDto A to Lito LiCDto 0>to H CD WA 1N CCD Nto LiN 0N -Nto InO Cia
WN HN-J HNN CD A .P InNW N N NH-b
ON N H InHN 0 U.P H to 0 H
N.P N Oto N N• to 0 .P ‘ci LiF’-I-l

N > A LiDitci
O 0 Ao 0 WO N 0 0 H I-’-
O 0 WO 0 Co U 0 0 0 0 *
O N CD 0 NO 0 0 N

‘ci In *
H 0 Lio 0 0 to 0 0 *
O H >H H 0 P H
N N AIn CD N CD —3
O 0 0 0 0 0 0

N

N to H H H H N ‘cito 0 N to N to to N
In 0 U) H N to H 0

P —3 H U) ‘ci
to H H N
In - H H H to N NA A CD CD P H AA
O 0 A A A CD NA

N 0 N A
> CD CD
A A CD CD CD W A
N A A A A UN CD N
CD CD CD CD W N

W
CD

‘ci
> a
W 10
WO a
NN
WH
WO

H to H H to H H NH
N to N N to N N NN U)
‘P P P ,p P p P N>

ALi
U) ,P U) U) ,P U) U)
N —3 N N -3 N N



M M M M M M U)U) H
n 0 0 0 0 0 0 CU) 0
U) U) U) > U) U) > U)>)

WU) H
H H H H H H H U)>) N)
a. U) U) U) U) U) U) U)U)
U) U) U) U) U) U) U) U) N)
o o 0 0 0 0 0 U) W

U)
U) U) U) U) U) U) U) A H
o 0 0 0 0 0 0 U)
to to to to to to to
H H H H H 0 0 0

U) N) H 0 tO U) U)

o U) An H U) 0 -) Q C4 U) U) U)> U) ‘>0 U) N) M C N)
M CC M W U) H -J U) MO C 0 U) .>CU) U) U) U)U) U)
U) U) U) U) U) U) 0 C Q U) 0 U) H 0 U) H N) U) U)U)
U) U) NU) U) H U) .> U) U) C A H U) U) 0 U) U) 0 I-lU)
U) C A U) U) A C 0 U) U) H U) A MA U) MU)
U) U) U) U) U) U) A U) U) U) U) U) U) H - C U) H
U) U) U) .> A A U) - U) U) MA U) U) U) U) C U)U)
A U) U) A to C U) U) A U) U) A C U) U) Q
U) -J H U) A U) U) 00 0 U) N CA U) A C U)
U) - - U) U) C MU) U) U) U) U) U) U) U) A C U)U)

U) U) U) < C U) —) C U) <H U) C C Li
U) U) U) U) M H A A U) C C U) U) U) U) C
M U) M A U) U) C U) A-) U) U) U) U) U) U) U)

U) C U) U) U) U).> C U) C U) C U)
U) U) U) U) U) U) C U) U) U) A U) U) U) A MU)
U) t. U) U) C U) H U) U) 0 0 C U)
-) -) U) U) U) U) U) 0 U) C U) H
U) U) A H .> C4 U) U) U) U) U)

N) U) A U) U) U) U) M U) M M 0
0 A U) M C U) U) U)
U) U) N) < A U) U)
-) C to Li U) U) H U) U) M
—3 U) N) A U) —3 - M

U) U) U) H H 0
U) U) N)
H N) U)
U) 0 N) H
U) 0 0
M U) U)
M
U)
U)

0
U)
A *

U) A *
U)
U) H ‘0*
U) U) a
0 0 on

“lI--H
U) Hart

U) H’<

MMH CU)MU) MMU) U)U)U) N) U)MCU) MU)HN) MU)N) —U) HU)t))
CU)U) U) U)U) CU)U) MU)0 0 MU)U)H CMU)N) CU)U) MU) HU)aU)
AU) U)C AU) U)U) U) U)U)U) AU)A AU) U)U) IU)Cflrt

HU) M00U) U)U)U) U)U) A U)HU) U)U) U)U) On 0U)W•
U)U)H CU)U)H <H U) H U)<U)H HHU)H .>HH U)U) N)U)
0 AAU) HH -U) C H 0-) U) MM ‘U)OU)

R’H U)H U)H CH U) U)R’H -U)H -H N)U)0(D
U) —)CU)U) U)U)U) MC—) U)U) -J U)U) -U) OH OU)rtrt

U) tOU)- U) C M C MA NC N)U)aa
CU) U)U) CU).> A .> C N)U)U).> C .> U)U) U) A II
U)H Mo U)to U) A U)CU)U) A U) •—3 0 Ca
U)U) CM.> N)U)o N) ‘U U)U)U)U) H OH U) U)I-’-0

AU)H CH H 0 H A HU) tO 0 •—) H C<C
U)o U)U) U).> .U 0 U)0 U) 0 U) MI--I-L
U) -JU) C U) R’ U) A MaID
Co U)<0 0 0 U) -O 0 CO H H-

O HO 0 0 0 U) H U)o C 0*o R’U)O 0 U) M H —3 0 U)
U) C H U) *

0 U) 0 0 0 A 0 > 0 NO *
U) U)—) 0 N) 0 U) 0 <0
0 HIJU) H H to to A to
0 000 0 0 H 0 0

U) Ri 0
A U)

U)
to N) tO U) N) ‘U —3 U)
N) U) U) )> N) )> N) U)
U) H 0 U) U) 0 -J C

0 U) 0 U)
C N) H H U)
C H N) -J U) H to U)
U) 0 U) A A U) A A
U) A Li U) U) A U) A
U) U)

U) U) U) U) U)
U) U) < < A < A
A A U) U) U) C

U) U) U)
U) U) U) U) U) U)

U)
U)

U)
U) a
U) ID
U)0 a

U)O
H H N) N) N) N) H ZH
U) U) U) N) N) N) U) U)U) ‘U

‘U ‘U ‘U ‘U ‘U U)U)• • • AM
U) U) U) ‘U ‘U ‘U U)
U) U) U) —3 --3 -J U)



CD
CD
H
El
El
CD

-J
CD
CD

N)
0
CD
N)
0
N)
CD

CD
to
CD
CD
0
Ui
to

El El El El El El El CDto H
t’ 0 0 0 0 n n ciCD 0
to to to to to to to CDCD

CDLII H
H H H H H H H CDCD N)
CD CD CD CD CD CD CD toCD
CD Ui Ui CD Ui CD CD CD N)
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 CD CD

CDCD CD CD CD CD CD CD H H
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Ui
to to to to to to to
N) N) H H H H H 0
H 0 to CD -J CD CD CD

HCDCD CD H H to H CD CD -) 00 H CD CD CDCDH CD CD to —0 N)
CDCDCD 0 00 CD —i to to P to CD N) to to CDHto to N) H Z CD
HHH to CD 0 0 0 H -J < H 0 0’ H HCD’-J H 0 to toCDCDCDCD to CD CD CD El CD P H 0 CD HQCD CD 0 CD HCDNN to toO CD El H CD to CD H H El— H CD Elto
to” El 0 H CD 0 0- 0 H CDCD CD H
to 0 CD to to to 0 to to HHEl to 0 CDCDHCDCD to El CD CD 00 H CD CD CDo CD H tooCDtoto CD Oto CD H to CD H <0 H OCDto H CD H
CDHH H toO N H CD CD to El CD to CD CD-to CD 0 toCDtoCDH < H to C) H to to to CD Cl to CD It El
ElElCD H CD CD CD to CD HCD CD CD 0 CD OnEl CD H to 0
toHCD ‘P CD CD CD CD 0 H CD CD OCD CD to toCDCDCD N) 0 H C U CD U CD Cj 00 C CD El CDEl H CD H to to 0 CD to to CD to CD

ton CD CD CD CD 0 CD 0 UEl 0 to CDCD CD H N) 0 CD CD to N) toH
H CD CD CD to to El 0 to to to

CD H CD El to N N) El CD El
to CD CD H 0

to CD CD I CD CD
El CD H H CD CD

—2 CD —) —I
0 El 0 H
N) N) El N) 0
Ui 0 0 -J H
0 0 ,P —1
‘P 0 CD N)
‘P CD CD

*
*

CD*
‘0*

CD
on

to I-’- H
HJ ft
CD H<

EltoO
0) I-f,

CDOH ElCDN) CDCDH CDCDN) CDCDN) CDCDCD CDCDN) —to HtoCD
EltoCD OCDCD ElOCD ElCDCD ElCDCD ElCDCD EltoH Elto HCDQCD
ZIto HCD ItO Itto Itto Itto Itto CDto ICDCflrt

CDCD CDtoCD CDCD OCD UCD UCD CDCD on OCDCn
ndH toH OHH CD00 N)00 CDQo CDCDH toCD N)CDS-to ‘PCD - CDCD oto -CD ElEl ‘CDCDtoCDH N)CDH CDH H H H toH N)CD:iCDElHCD toCD EltoCD ElCD ElCD ElElCD ElCDCD OH OCDrtrt
0 to OCD Elto Elto Oto Oto CD0 N)CDrn(D
H CD CDHCD HCDCD 0$CD OCDCD HCD HElCD CD CDH I-)N) UCDkO CDHto HCDCD HCDCD CDCD to’P 0 00)
H CD toCD CDCD -J CD H CD CDHto to toH-CY
0 N) .PtoCD HQ.P N)CD0 HN).P H H —I H 0<CN) CDCD -HCD ‘PHO CDCD 0 N) to Elf-’--i

0 N)0 CD U H ElCOtO
0 CD0 CDo 0 0 0 0 H
0 0 to 0 toCD toN) 0 0 0 0*
CD 0 CDHCD OCD too CD CD CD *

ElCD U U *
0 0 HO 0 0 0 0 *
H .P CD 0 N) 0 H 0
0 N) CDH ‘P H H CD
0 0 CD0 0 0 0 0

n

‘P H P -3 -J CD CD to
CD CD to P 0 CD CD toN) CD CD —) 0 H N) 0
H P P P H H 0 to

CD
to H N) 0 0 CD to
H N) N) to CD H to HCD H CD 0 H CD U HCD U CD 0to CD to toH to to U U CD <0
CD H H H to 0 CD U

CD CD 0 toCD U CD U CD CD
CD CD to CD

U CD
CD to

CD

H N) N) N) H N) H
CD N) CD N) CD N) CD
IP IP IP ,P ,P ,P

CD ,P CD P CD P CD
CD —I CD —) CD -.J CD

to
CD to
CD0 CD
CDto
CDH
CD0
CDH
CDCD CD
CDto
HEl



A
S

S
E

S
S

M
E

N
T

N
U

M
B

E
R

L
C

A
1
6
5
0

8
0
9
2
2

O
W

N
E

R
N

A
M

E
/M

A
IL

IN
G

A
D

D
R

E
S

S

A
Z

Z
A

M
P

R
O

P
E

R
T

IE
S

C
O

R
P

T
R

E
5
1
0
0

3R
D

A
V

E
N

L
A

N
D

T
R

U
S

T
1
0
0
0

N
W

E
ST

S
T

C
ity

o
f

S
t.

P
e
te

rs
b

u
rg

S
p
e
c
ia

l
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

D
iv

is
io

n
F

IN
A

L
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
R

O
L

L
1
1
-0

2
-2

0
2
3

P
A

R
C

E
L

ID
/L

E
G

A
L

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

2
1

3
1

1
6

6
3
5
0
4

0
0
9

0
0
8
0

O
A

K
R

ID
G

E
N

O
.

2
B

L
K

9
,

L
O

T
8

O
R

IG
IN

A
L

A
S

S
E

S
S

M
E

N
T

2
6
4
.5

6

L
C

A
1
6
5
0

8
0
9
2
4

W
IL

M
IN

G
T

O
N

D
E

1
9

8
0

1
1

0
5

0

K
A

S
S

IS
,

JO
H

N

2
7

0
83R

D
A

V
E

N

2
5

3
1

1
6

6
4
8
5
4

0
0
0

0
2

4
0

O
S

B
O

R
N

E
P

L
A

C
E

L
O

T
2
4

1
0

5
4

1
6
T

H
A

V
E

S
1
8
4
.3

8

L
C

A
1
6
5
0

8
0
9
2
5

S
A

IN
T

P
E

T
E

R
S

B
U

R
G

F
L

3
3
7
0
2
3
7
3
6

C
L

S
I

G
L

O
B

A
L

L
L

C

4
9
0
5

3
4

T
H

S
T

S
S

T
E

1
2

2

2
5

3
1

1
6

6
6
5
6
4

0
0
].

0
2

0
0

P
A

R
K

E
SU

B
B

L
K

A
,

L
O

T
2

0

2
1
3
7

Q
U

E
E

N
S

B
O

R
O

A
V

E
S

1
8
4
.3

8

L
C

A
1

6
5

0
8
0
9
2
6

L
C

A
1
6
5
0

8
0
9
2
7

L
C

A
1
6
5
0

8
0
9
2
8

S
A

IN
T

P
E

T
E

R
S

B
U

R
G

F
L

3
3
7
1
1
4
5
1
1

N
G

U
Y

E
N

,
H

U
N

G
P

2
5
1
2
6

8T
H

P
L

S

D
E

S
M

O
IN

E
S

W
A

9
8

1
9

8
8

5
2

8

H
E

R
S

E
Y

-JA
M

E
S

,
C

L
A

R
IS

S
A

E
S

T

1
7
9
5

1
7

T
H

S
T

S

S
A

IN
T

P
E

T
E

R
S

B
U

R
G

F
L

3
3
7
1
2

T
R

B
D

E
V

E
L

O
P

M
E

N
T

E
N

G
L

E
W

000
L

L
C

4
0

0
6T

H
S

T
S

3
4

3
1

1
6

6
8
4
9
0

0
0
3

0
1

0
0

P
E

R
R

Y
’S

S
K

Y
V

IE
W

SU
B

B
L

K
C

,
L

O
T

S
1

0
&

1
1

(P
E

R
O

R
6

6
1

6
/1

5
2

2
&

1
3
4
1
4
/2

1
4
5
)

2
5

3
1

1
6

6
8
7
6
0

0
0
0

0
0
1
0

P
H

O
E

N
IX

PA
R

K
N

8
3
F

T
O

F
L

O
T

1
&

E
7
S

F
T

O
F

L
O

T
2

&
E

7
S

F
T

O
F

N
5

5

F
T

O
F

U
N

N
U

M
B

E
R

E
D

T
R

A
C

T

0
7

3
1

1
7

6
8
8
1
4

0
0
0

0
7
8
0

P
IE

D
M

O
N

T
P

L
A

C
E

L
O

T
7

8

3
5
0
].

3
0

T
H

A
V

E
S

1
7

9
5

1
7
T

H
S

T
S

7
3
7

2
6

T
H

A
V

E
N

1
8
4
.3

8

2
2
4

.4
7

1
8
4

.3
8

L
C

A
1
6
5
0

8
0
9
2
9

S
A

IN
T

P
E

T
E

R
S

B
U

R
G

F
L

3
3
7
0
1
4
4
3
7

B
&

D
IN

V
E

S
T

M
E

N
T

G
R

O
U

P
L

L
C

3
5
8
6

53R
D

A
V

E
N

1
9

3
1

1
7

7
4
4
6
6

0
6
2

0
0

8
1

R
E

V
M

A
P

O
F

S
T

P
E

T
E

R
S

B
U

R
G

B
L

K
6
2
,

N
1
/2

O
F

L
O

T
8

6
6
0

3R
D

A
V

E
S

1
8
4
.3

8

S
A

IN
T

P
E

T
E

R
S

B
U

R
G

F
L

3
3

7
1

4
2

4
1

2

1
0
/1

2
/2

3
1
S

:0
6
:2

8
P

a
g

e
6

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

A
D

D
R

E
S

S

5
1

1
2

3R
D

A
V

E
N

S
A

S
8

O
5

R



U)
U)
H
U)
-J

it)
U)
i-3
U)
U)
U)
U)
C
U)
0

U)
Ii

(.3
U)
-3
F’
0
—3
U)
M
a’

U)

U)
U)
0
U)
U)

E Ii Ii t’ zU) F’
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 CU) 0
U) U) U) U) U) U) ZU)

WU) F’
F’ F’ I-’ F’ I-’ F’ F’ P3(I) M
U) (P U) U) U) (P (Ti P3(I)
Ui Ui U) Ui U) Ui U) U) M
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 P3 (.3

U)CD (Xi U) U) U) U) U) -3 F’
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 U)
to to to to to to to
(.3 U) (I) U) U) U) U) 0
U) U) IP U) k) F’ 0 U)

U)ii3U) -3 U) (3 U) it) it) U) U) 0 U) M U) U) it)U)U) U) U) U) -0 I’)
F’U)C U) 0 R’ U) 0 U) C ic) it) U) U) U) U) •CC U) 4s i-3 U)3) U)
toU)-3 U) J 0 H 0 U) OHS U) U H 0U)U) H —30 U)U)

0 t) U) U) it) -3 F’ - 0 U) •00 U) ‘P U HU)
U)MU) U) U) 0-3 0 Ii H U) U) U) U-I U)U) i-i U tiU)
F’U)- C U) U) U) ‘t) U) U) H WU)U) F’ U) H
U)U) U) U U) it) Ii U) it) 0< it) QU)U) it) U) U) U)U)
‘-3 U (I’ U) lj U) U) OS U) U) U) t U) U) U)-- U) -3 U 0

‘-IF’ H ‘-3 U) U) U) N U) U) U) -3 i-I U) -
U)U)fl U) U) ‘-3 U) P U) U) F’ 5 U) U) U)UU) U) U)U)-3cU) u U) 5 U) iPfl3 5 to H H U) U)U)(Ii U) U) 0 U

U) U) U) U) ‘P U) U) 0 U) U) U) U) 0U)H U) 5 U) U
U)’-3i-3 0 S U) U) U)-3 U) U) ‘P U) H U) —)U)N U) U) U) U)

U) U) HO C H ‘P U) F’ U) U)QU) C U) U)
U) U) U) U) U) U) U) 5 U) U) U U) MU) U) U) t-P U) 0 ‘-1 F’ U) (I’ 0 U 0 U U)

U) (I’ U) (3 U) it) 5 U)
0 C U) 0 U) U) U U) U) U) U) U)

S H M U) U) Ii 0 H M U)
U) U) U) 0 it ‘-3 5
U) 0 U) U) U) U) U)
U) U) (3 U) U) F’ H U) U)

-3 U) S U) U) U) —3 -3
U) 0 U) P 0 P F’
H U) H H -J F’
U) 0 U) M H 0 K)
0 U) (3 0 -3 U)

0 0 0 U) F’
q U) K) F’
U) U)

U)
U) U)
ti
A ti
U Ii

0 *
*

U)*
‘tI*
(3
00

U) I-’- H-
H3) ft
U) F”5

t’U)o
U) i-li

Wi-IF’ P U)WU)o t’U)M U)OU)O U)CU)O WU)U) t’U)M —it) F’U)U)
t-’U)U) F’ U)U)U) OZU) MOU).P r-’U)U)U) (jOb OF’—) t-’U) F’U)(DU)
P30 F’ F’HU) 5H U)U)O U)HU) U)U) AU U)U) lU)U)rtU)U) ‘—Qt’U) 5U) U)U)W 5U)U) QU) OW 00 OU)m•
O’t)F’ M MU)t’F’ UJU)F’ WU)U)F’ U) <F’ F’QF’ F’U)F’ U)U) MU)

U) U) S F’- F’fl -U)(j -(I’ MU) (1(j IU)(3it)
OF’ U) OU)HF’ U)F’ - SU)F’ F’ U)F’ U)QF’ MU)P(ti(jU)U) U) U)U)U)a - U) H0-J LjMU)U) (ji-<--J QU) OH OU)rtrt

0 At-4 t0U) OzU) 0- U U)U MU)(naiSSto U) (j U)U) U)U) OCU)U) SUU)w AU)—) -) U) U)5 IIU)o - 00 U) -C,) i-Jt-3U)F’ 00 to AU) 0 UP)toU)U) Li AU) U) <F’ ‘P MU)U)U) -JU)o U).P U) U)H-b
U)Ui 5 H —3 -‘P U)U) U) OU to QU) U)o HU)w ‘Pt-] ,P K) A U) U K) U)U) U)M it)
0 F’ F’ U) U) U) U) S t’UHQ
U)O 0 OW 0 P30 0 0 <0 00 H H-

0 U) o <o U) U) 0 HO U)O 0
U) 5 R 0 HO U) F’ U) LiF’ 0 U)

U) to Li *
0 (j P U)0 Li 0 0 U)0 F’ *
0 0 F’ UK) U) 0 K) 0 K)
to ‘-3 F’ F’ ‘-3 U) 0 U)-) U)
0 0 0 0 0 00 0

U) F’ -3 P U) U) U) it)
F’ 0 K) 0 to —3 P U)
to P —3 U) U) -3 -3 0

U) U) 0 iP it)
U) K) K) U)
F’ U) F’ 0 U) K) F’ U)U) U) U) 5 K) U) U) I-]
I-] U) S U) U) U ‘-35

Li U) U U)
U) Li U) Li U) U)S 5 0 U) S U) U

H 0 A U) A U
U) U) U) U) U) U) U)

Li U) U)
U) U U) U) U)

U) U)
U)
Li U)

U)

U)
U)

F’ K) K) K) K) F’ F’
U) K) U) K) K) U) U)
IP IP ‘P ,p ‘P iP iP

U) P U) P ‘P U) U)
U) -3 U) -3 -3 U) U)

it)
U) 3)
U) in
U)0 CD
U)U)
U)H
U)0

U)U) -3
U)U)
St-’



C
ity

o
f

S
t.

P
e
te

rs
b
u
rg

*
*

*
*

S
p
e
c
ia

l
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

D
iv

is
io

n
F

IN
A

L
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
R

O
L

L
1

1
-0

2
-2

0
2

3

P
A

R
C

E
L

ID
/L

E
G

A
L

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N

2
1

3
1

1
6

9
6
5
8
8

0
0
1

0
0

8
0

W
E

S
T

M
IN

S
T

E
R

P
L

A
C

E
B

L
K

1
,

L
O

T
8

L
C

A
1

6
5

0
8
0
9
3
8

C
L

E
A

R
W

A
T

E
R

F
L

3
3
7
6
2
4
9
0
5

W
A

D
E

,
JA

M
E

S
M

1
8
3
8

2
4

T
H

A
V

E
N

12
3

1
1

6
9

8
7

4
8

0
0
0

0
9
0
0

W
O

O
D

H
U

R
ST

E
X

T
L

O
T

9
0

1
8

2
8

2
4
T

H
A

V
E

N
1
8
4
.3

8

L
C

A
1
6
5
0

8
0
9
3
9

S
A

IN
T

P
E

T
E

R
S

B
U

R
G

F
L

3
3
7
1
3
4
4
4
0

W
A

D
E

,
JA

M
E

S
M

1
8
3
8

2
4

T
H

A
V

E
N

12
3
1

1
6

9
8
7
4
8

0
0
0

0
9

1
0

W
000H

U
R

S
T

E
X

T
L

O
T

9
1

1
8
3

8
2

4
T

H
A

V
E

N
2
2
4
.4

7

S
A

IN
T

P
E

T
E

R
S

B
U

R
G

F
L

3
3
7
1
3
4
4
4
0

T
O

T
A

L
N

U
M

B
E

R
O

F
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
S

:
52

T
O

T
A

L
A

S
S

E
S

S
M

E
N

T
A

M
O

U
N

T
:

1
2

,5
5

4
.4

2

1
0
/1

2
/2

3
1
5
:0

6
:2

8
:

A
S

S
E

S
S

M
E

N
T

N
U

M
B

E
R

L
C

A
1
6
5
0

8
0
9
3
7

O
W

N
E

R
N

A
M

E
/M

A
IL

IN
G

A
D

D
R

E
S

S

D
IR

E
C

T
M

G
M

T
O

P
E

R
A

T
IO

N
S

L
L

C

4
2
0
0

1
1

4
T

H
T

E
R

N

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

A
D

D
R

E
S

S

5
2
6
0

1
S

T
A

V
E

S

P
a
g
e

8

O
R

IG
IN

A
L

A
S

S
E

S
S

M
E

N
T

2
2
4
.4

7

S
A

S
8
O

S
R



LOT CLEARING NUMBER 1650
COST I FUNDING I ASSESSMENT INFORMATION

CATEGORY ASSESSED AMOUNT TO BE ASSESSED

LOT CLEARING COST $9,174.42

ADMINISTRATIVE FEE $ 3,380.00

TOTAL: $12,554.42



A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING PRELIMINARY
ASSESSMENT ROLLS FOR LOT CLEARING
NO. 1650 (“LCA 1650”) AS LIENS AGAINST
THE RESPECTIVE REAL PROPERTY UPON
WHICH SUCH COSTS WERE INCURRED;
PROVIDING THAT SAID LIENS HAVE A
PRIORITY AS ESTABLISHED BY CITY CODE
SECTION 16.40.060.4.4; PROVIDING FOR
INTEREST RATE(S) ON UNPAID BALANCES;
ACKNOWLEDGING THAT NOTICE(S) OF
LIEN(S) WILL BE FILED BY THE POD IN THE
OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK AND MAY BE
RECORDED IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF
THE COUNTY; AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, preliminary assessment rolls for Lot Clearing No.1650 (“LCA 1650”)
have been submitted by the POD (i.e., person officially designated) to the City Council pursuant
to St. Petersburg Code Section 16.40.060.4.4; and

WHEREAS, notice of the public hearing was duly published in accordance with St.
Petersburg City Code Section 16.40.060.4.4; and

WHEREAS, City Council met at the time and place specified in the notice and
heard any and all objections that any affected party wished to offer as to why said assessments
should not be made final.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
St. Petersburg, Florida, that this Council confirms the preliminary assessment rolls for Lot
Clearing No.1650 (“LCA 1650”) as liens against the respective real property upon which such
costs were incurred and that pursuant to Section 16.40.060.4.4 of the St. Petersburg City Code said
liens shall be superior in dignity to all other liens except taxes.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the unpaid balance of the principal amount of
any liens against the respective real property listed on LCA 1650 shall bear interest at the rate of
(i) 8% per annum beginning 30 days after the effective date of this Resolution and (ii) 12% per
annum beginning one year after the effective date of this Resolution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Council acknowledges that notice(s) of
the lien(s) will be filed by the POD in the office of the City Clerk and may be recorded in the
public records of the County.

This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

LE AL: DEPARTMENT:

007043 18 .



28 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Confirming Preliminary 

Assessment for Building Securing Number LCA 1651 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



E-2

E-2



ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL

MEETING OF: NOVEMBER 2, 2023

TO: COUNCIL CHAIR AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL

SUBJECT: Confirming Preliminary Assessment for
Building Securing Number LCA 1651

EXPLANATION: Codes Compliance Assistance has secured the
attached structures which were found to be
unfit or unsafe under Chapter 8 of the
St. Petersburg City Code. The interest
rate is 8% per annum on the unpaid balance.

LCA: 1651

NUMBER OF STRUCTURES 22

ASSESSABLE AMOUNT: $5,018.52

According to the City Code, these assessments constitute a
lien on each property. It is recommended that the assessments
be confirmed.

COST/FUNDING/ASSESSMENT INFORMATION:
The total assessable amount of $5,018.52 will be fully assessable
to the property owners.

ATTACHMENTS:

MAYOR:________________________

COUNCIL ACTION:_________________

FOLLOW-UP: AGENDA NO.



C-’ Li Li Li Li Li Zii H
n n n 0 C) 0 (3 CU) C
ii ii ii ii ii ii r-’ ZCn

Will H
H H H H H H H P11/I tO
GD 01 oi 01 01 01 CD tCfl
Ui U) Ui U) U) Ui (71 N
H H H H H H H (‘1 CD

Z
01 It 0) It 01 0) A

o o C 0 0 0 0 to
to to to to to to to
10 iP 10 .0 iO iO .0 CD

GD Ui 0 CD M H CD

CD Li CD .0 (/1 (/1 HO A CD li CD ME t HiPii 0 .00 0 (11
1-] o ii 0 CD (‘1 G U) Li . . ill G Mliii H 0-JN (V H Li N —1
Li CD H .0 0 H C ((9 Li CD Li H .OCJiCD Li 01101’] (‘1 H ii iiz

inC Z - N 2 U (V CD t/i.-]A N OP (‘1 U Hill
2 (OS ((-1 (Dill H Ill A 00 H (D N 2 t Ii Li(O
A (CCL Ui 2 (0 C) Li (V H22 2 H ((9 H

0 N ‘0 A CD ‘0 H “1 0 H ‘0 10” 0 Hint 0 Li “I 22
CD (‘1 (11- ii 00 ‘-3M 1’] ‘-3 -3 CDi-3(V 0 200

0 201-3 i-3 (i) (V “3 (D w’-3 Nuii 0 AC-] C (V
((9 liii (‘I ((9 Al’] AL’] Li H I 1’] LiLi 2 (tLii’O ill -3 (‘1 iili

Li Cli <liii N CD ii CD (0 mW <N (nO
CD Li CL CD (‘1 0(0 ((9 ‘-3W HID <liii U (Dlxiii CD IDA U
o ‘Ow NW A CD ‘0 10 (‘1(0(0 (‘1 AA ‘0 A (V
CD (V C CD ((0 Li (001 H Li CL ‘-IA ZH (0 (0 (‘1
M U Li (0 (Dii (Vii to 2 Li (0 (0 H N H C N U)
It Li 0 0 01>01 P100 LiLi to LiCO 2 2>10
.0 C 0 ii Li CD 0 L’IL7I 0) ii 0 H Li
o 2 ‘xl “I 10 A CD ((I ‘xl Liii C Zn 01 A A
H H Li H Li Li A C (‘1 Li H CO -i
H A H M CD 3A H (V ‘xl H

CD H CD Lj Li A CD (V(V H A’O Li M Li
10 CD CD Li CD Cli .0 (00 Ui Li
Ui -J —I 2 0 (0 -J CD Ui CLV CD Ui 0
C H C (‘1 U H A (0> M C

H .0 M AA C
H (I) M H .0
U) A H 0 CD
M lxi CD 2
.0 CD

CD A
H IV
IS (xl

*
CD *

(/1*
(11 ‘0*
01 (II
o on
Ui

HP)Ct
2 HA

Liii0
(I) hi

WNM (DWNM LilxlM Wl’IH LinM WOM 0 ZAZM —‘O H((9U1
LL’IUi NLi((9H CCUi LiLiUi 00-J LNH ‘xl 2(0 CD Liii Hill/DIll
liii li(VLi An (V A’O LiZ (PH (‘3(0 iwIort

UCD LiCD LiCD UCD (‘lCD ACD (31 QnCD on CIiDI.
HOC 1DM -H HHH UJCH HLiH 0)(0H (‘I CACH ((xlxj M(J10
ODE CU) HU -ii Cii -ii 0 (V “I LiLi ‘CDID’O
- H H- H H (PH ZH LiH UAH MNLi(D

LiCD - ()CD (li/Il LitI0D COD Li 01 M Cli CD UH Cl’lrtrt
Liii MLi(’1 I’l CO - Clii CD “1(00 Liti MZIO/D
O2Ui CZCD HM A M (OH A((9H I fl’1C (II CDA ‘]
Aiim MAAUi 001 (001 --1 (0(010 CD CD C 0 CDI

01 M (OM (0M HH10 to (VU) H l’iWNC (0
HM10 IH(PiIS Ato toLiw (010 Ui CD I N C H
U)ZCD CDHLi10 (jilt Lilt 01 (VM H HOtoC ‘C Lit-’.’]

U H CD (IxIxi CD— to A LiDItO
C I >0 C C C/C ZAC .lSUi”jiP H I-’

iiH H AM C ((IC •C U C A CDA10 0 0*
dOD 01 PlC C NM C It (II CC C 2
C ‘0 (II 01 ‘,j”IC *

C ZC C LiC CC C Ill A”IC *
H OH H iiH WH C CD CD
U) H H Ato C U) M l’ll’IAC
C C C C C C C

CD C HO>
‘xl —“IA
A .0

-3 ,IS H .0 CD ,IS M ‘0
M CD to 01 U) -1 CD (V
01 ,0 H .0 C 10 CD 0
Ui —I Ui C C C C ‘0

(xl
H U) H H H H H (V
U) A .0 H M (11 A
A N A A A A A A
N N N N N

(0 0) ii ii ii
A N A A A N A U

(‘I (‘1 lxi N
2 CD CD 2 (‘1

2 CD CD CD
CD

‘0
(P 51)
(/1 tO
(nO ID
(xlii
CJIH
Coo

H M M M M M M NH
It CD M M M M M l’l( H
.0 .0 .0 .0 .1/ .0 .o Z>

ALi
CD Ui .0 .0 .1/ .0 .0
It CD -3 -1 - -J -3



*
CD *
01 10*
CD 111*
CD a
0 00
to
01 Hart

1-1>0
CD H,

11’Oto U1’OW W’OH
O>CD 1-’Fri. 1-’>to Hw(Dw

0101 01Cf iWmrt
SW FIW >W OwEn.

.OZH UI<H CDOH tows
tool - - -W ‘wa’o

UIH ZH toZsa
-a. r- a. 1-1>oi ol’Irtrt

CD OC1 0 toZma
—1 5111CD <<CD W.-l 1

“Ito <CD H-.) UW
Hto .11<10 tolD-.)

Hto <Ui 0<C
<CD 1110 >to
01 01 ti’MtO

0 0 0 H-
010 (00 0 0*
00 CD
1< 01 *
>0 0 0 *
1-1.0 0 0

to .0 to
0 0 0

Ui H ‘0
CD to>
to .110
0 to ‘0

(‘1
“1 to It

.o <
H
01 01
“I
H CD
111 i-g U
1- (t
U 01111

UI
01 U)
S
F’I

U)

1-
(I
01

H
a’
Ui
H

CD
0
to
Ui
iO

.0>
Ui ‘0
W ‘0
to1-4

1’l
H “1
W H
‘-111
01

U-
01

01
0101
FrI 1’)

I-i

01>
CU)
010)
ZN
01(1)
1001

01
Fri
01
S

1-
C)
01

H
CD
Ui
H

CD
0
to
Ui
H

1-1
01

It
01
Ct)

tr1
(-I
01
H
CD
Ui
H

CD
0
to
.0
CD

1-’
o o
01 01

H H
CD CD
Ui Ui
H H

CD CD
0 0
to to
Ui Ui
UI to

01 to<< UI 0101 Ui
> CD 01> -.1>> CD
01 to 0101 HIt H to
01 0> ‘0 CD> 01 0
U) S 01 0-1
C.) Ii> 01 H 1-ri
01 HZ 01 01 ‘0 01
C.) 0101 ZZ Fri H

1’I 001< 10
5 11) 1 W 01 H Fri 01
> H t UI >0111) H

01 0 CD <- U) Iri
to 0 01
0 > to 10 ‘00 U
H 5 .P <>10
H Fri Ui 111010 01
0 UI > S
Ui to > 5 1) Fri
CD ‘00 t
UI ‘-1 -1 U)
CD 01W

H UI
0 -0
H 0

-.1
to
.0
UI
Ui

Cl)
01
H
01
-1

‘0
Fri
‘-1
Fri
It
U)
01

It
0

‘ri

UI
UI
-3
0
UI
Ui
UI
H
to

H
0

H
to

to
UI

to

UI
UI

Ui
-.1

0
01
H
CD
Ui
H

CD
0
to
4s
to

‘00101
0>111

010110
01110

H>

0>01
01111
1110
11101
UU)
>1’)

0101

01
0
01
It
0
Fri

0
I-I

0
CD
.11
CD
CD
0
H
10
0

0
10

U
0

‘ri

UI
to
CD
H
CD
to
to
to
0

H01;

C.1
0
01
H
CD
to
H

CD
0
to
Ui
0

01 HZ
01 - 0
Cl) UI 01
10 CD 1’)

01 (‘1>

!

UOUI
0>H
<01

UI

Ui>
IOH
01-)
0
OCD

to
‘p
CD
0

0
0
0

0
-.1
Ui
0

W’Oto
1-1>0
01(11

01W
10UH
-Fri

ZH
1’>CD
0
.-1’OCD

10-3
H’0CD

Zto
CD

0
0
.11

0
0
H
0

FOZH tiZto -‘0
jQCD OHCD 1-’>
010 -1Z 11101

01W 01W Qfl
tol’IH >01

- toW t’1-’
<H OH

LilriCD <CD UH
OIO :11 CriU
<ZEn Ui U)

Oto QCD ()
HZUI OH 10
UI H 010 H

0 010 ‘U
‘-1 -1

0 0 H
H 01° 0
H 111° 01

S
0 0
H to
UI to
0 0

to UI CD CD P
Ui CD CD to -J
Ui to H -.1 UI
H -J 0 Ui

UI
Ii to UI 0 H

to ‘-1 Ui
.-1 U 111 5

0 01 01
U 01 01
0 01 5 5 01
01 5 01 111 5

01 Fri

Ct
01

01
Fri

CD

‘0
01 pi

U) 10
wo a
11101
11tH
(DQ

to to to H H to to ZH
to to CD CD CD to to 11101 to
10 .0 .0 .0 .0 .0 P 01>
. . . . . . . <Ii
.0 .0 Ui UI UI .0 .11
-3 -1 CD CD CD -J -1



0

H
cm

to
H

cm

0
to
cm

H

to tonito
A tot-1cm

oCto
to

Ft OH
I-] CUH
Ft Ft>to

Ft A
W At1j
Ft
> >0<
O <tuFt
Ft FtFt

Ftto
A

Ft A

to A
to FtU
- C
o toA
cm AFt
H FtC
cm FtC))
H A
-J 0

C

A
Ft
Ft

El

0

H
cm
to
H

cm
0
to
to
-I

to Ft A
to C
to ftJ
H nj Fj

E >
cm
to Ft nj
A - Ft
Ft

to to
> c to
A to cm
Ft >0

Ft-i
to- to

.0
Ft cm
to to
A

Ft
0

H
cm
to
H

0
to
to
cm

IC).

H
H
to

U
Ft H

to Ft
Ft Ft
Ft to
C H
O
Ft H

Ft
to U
A

Ft
to Ft
A H
Ft A

to H
o Ft
to 0

r1 H
0 Cto 0
> Ftto

WFt H
H Ftto to
cm Ftto
to Ft to
H Ft to

Ft
cm A
0
to
to
to

to —0
0
0

HFt
to FtFt
to H
Ft FtFt
U 9
to >Ft
AU
Ft U
Ft Ft
Ft Ft
A to

to
C-I

Ft
0

cm
0

to
Ft
cm
A
Ft

to
A

to
A
Ft

to
H
0
0

Ft Ft Ft
0 0 0
> > >

H H H
cm cm cm
to to to
H H H

cm cm cm
0 0 0
to to to
cm to to
0 to cm

to to’ijH Ft to U) to .0hJnj C))
A toE4to Ft to Ft > HFt> >

0CA > to Ft H OAFt H
Ft Ft U . Ft Ft °FtFt Ft
Ft OH> Ft > A FtFt A
A CUFt Ft Ft to HFt>
Ft flU A > Ft cm-Ft Ft

Ft C Ft Ft Ft A - Ft
U) AFtFt Ft Ft C A FtQ A
Ft FtFt Ft 0 Ft Ftq Ft
> >CFt l Ft Ft Ft >to> Ft
0 <FtFt Ft to to to <toFt to
Ft FtFtto U) FtHFt U)

FtC to H Ft C Oto
nj AFt P to Ft Ft to>
Ft A to 0 Q 00

Ft 0 ZFt
to A> cm >> Fl)

to FtFt to Ft FtFt Ft
—I CU 0 HFt
0 to 0 to FtFt to
cm AA H to 0 to
H FtFt Ft -)
cm FtC H H
H to H to
—I OA to to

C -1 cm
0 .0

A .0 to
Ft
Ft

WFtto WFtto FtAto Wtoto WtoH
MFtto FtFtto C>H FtC-i FtAH
Ftto Ftto AA FtFt FtFt

Ato Ato Ftto Ftto toto
0 H 0 H .0CH >AH UFtto
-0 -O cmFt - Ft

FtH FtH -H toH FtH
FtFtcm FtFtcm to—i FtFtcm Fttocm
CA CA CC CC
AFtto AFtto toto AFtcm AFtcm

>cm >cm Co Ft—i -to
HLE1H HFtH toO to H Htoto
H to 0 to -0 toto to .0

>to >to to Ccm tocm
MA MA U) C
FtFt0 FtFt0 0 0 too
to 0 to 0 0 0 0
tototo tototo 0 H FtP

C C C
towo totoo o o .0
A H A H .0 0 H

H 0 cm to toto
0 0 0 0 0

to
>
to
cm
0
to
Ft

to

to
to

to
—I

*
*

to*
0*
a
00

txj H- H
HØ) rt
Ft HA

no
Ct) H.

H>tn
HtoO to

I tocnrt

OFta
totoo

toa Ft
toFt1 a
0 Ft rt rt
toFtcn a
toA Il

Uw
Ft H- 0
Cl C
Ft H-Il
t-1ciitij

H-
0*
0*

*
*

U FtWtoO U)Htoto —Ft
Ft CFtFtcm FtZAto Ft>
to AHFt Ft< FtFt
O OFtto FtFtto DO

toFtC-’H totoFtH >Ft
U) oA HAA MFt
Ft cmWHH - ZFtH
o >to-i FtFtcm UH

C-AM FtFtto FtU
Ft Ft Ftcm CAU)—i to
C toC to A Ccm 0
to toFt to toOFtto Ft
A H —I COto H

AA P -0 0 Ft
Ft Ft to A
- >to 0 >C 0 H

Ft A 0 U) to C
A 0 U H Ft

Ft
O > to CO 0
C Ft 0 0
Ft A cm -0

0 0
C
F.’

to
cm
to
H

H
to
A

Ft

to

to
cm
.0

to
cm

to
cm
to
to

H
to
A

Ft

to

to
cm
.0

to
cm

to
to
to

to
-j

A
Ft

>
A
Ft

to

H
cm
.0

to
cm

.0
H
0
0

H
cm
A
Ft

>
A
Ft

to

to
cm
.0

to
cm

to
to
to
H

cm
to
A
Ft

>
A
Ft

to

to
to
.0

P
—I

H
cm
H
.0

U)
Ft
H
0
Ft
A
Ft

A
Ft
Ft
to

U)
Ft

Ft
Ft

to
to
P

.0
—I

to Ft
OFt
0 C

Ft
to Ft
to Ft
Ft A
U A

to
A

U
to Ft

Ft
to
to

Ft
a

to Co
toC a
FtFt
toH
too

to ZH
to FtFt to
P Ft

A
.0
-0



‘-3 C-’ z> H
0 0 cIto 0
S > NW

WN H
C-’ H NW

01 NO)
01 Z NJ
H N W

N z
W 0) 5
N 0 01
N 01

01 Wo N) 0)
‘Ii

CD W’tjW —.Q 01
- WLi NE

CD oQio >!
CD ‘0 N-) HN
N N OH tiN
CD ‘-3 00H H
CD N Nfl ZZ
N N ‘-30
N CD ‘-<‘0
Li N N> >N
-J N >0< 0
CD 0 <‘ON U

N NN N
NW N

“1 ‘-3 CD
C-’ ‘-<C-1 CD

N)
N) 0) 5

W NO
C

0 WA
01 AN
H NC
CX) NCD
H ‘-3

0
0

‘-3
N
N

*
CD *
N CD*
CD ‘0*
01 (D
0 00
CD
N Hart

Li H’<

0) Nh
CDWEN) —‘O H>0)
StiNN) Li> HWØW
CDNCD NN ‘ Wart

<0) 00 ONCO•
0 H NC’) CD0

0 Lit-’ IWCL’’O
NH

LizOl OH ONrtrt
0’--] Nd MZCD(D
<NW CD 0)5
CDNG1 0 00)

C-’H N NH-0
H 01 H 0<C

‘C) LiH-M
< ‘-3 MaCC)

>N0 H H
CD 0 0 0*
UCDW Li

C *
HWO *
0) H

N)
tic
N
CD
CD

W ‘ti
01 N

‘0
N

S H N
0 WA
-3 -3’--]

C-’ N
-3

N N Li
CD N
CD CD N
N CD
CD CD
CD
N
N
Li
-3

0

-3

‘0
N a
0) CC)

01 0)0 CD
NN

o CDH
H CD0
CD N) NH
• 01 NZ
01 0 CD>
N) ‘-iii

01
01



LOT CLEARING NUMBER 1651
COST I FUNDING I ASSESSMENT INFORMATION

CATEGORY ASSESSED AMOUNT TO BE ASSESSED

LOT CLEARING COST $3,588.52

ADMINISTRATIVE FEE $ 1,430.00

TOTAL: $ 5,018.52



A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING PRELIMINARY
ASSESSMENT ROLLS FOR LOT CLEARING
NO. 1651 (“LCA 1651”) AS LIENS AGAINST
THE RESPECTIVE REAL PROPERTY UPON
WHICH SUCH COSTS WERE INCURRED;
PROVIDING THAT SAID LIENS HAVE A
PRIORITY AS ESTABLISHED BY CITY CODE
SECTION 16.40.060.4.4; PROVIDING FOR
INTEREST RATE(S) ON UNPAID BALANCES;
ACKNOWLEDGING THAT NOTICE(S) OF
LIEN(S) WILL BE FILED BY THE POD IN THE
OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK AND MAY BE
RECORDED IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF
THE COUNTY; AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, preliminary assessment rolls for Lot Clearing No.1651 (“LCA 1651”)
have been submitted by the POD (i.e., person officially designated) to the City Council pursuant
to St. Petersburg Code Section 16.40.060.4.4; and

WHEREAS, notice of the public hearing was duly published in accordance with St.
Petersburg City Code Section 16.40.060.4.4; and

WHEREAS, City Council met at the time and place specified in the notice and
heard any and all objections that any affected party wished to offer as to why said assessments
should not be made final.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
St. Petersburg, Florida, that this Council confirms the preliminary assessment rolls for Lot
Clearing No.1651 (“LCA 1651”) as liens against the respective real property upon which such
costs were incurred and that pursuant to Section 16.40.060.4.4 of the St. Petersburg City Code said
liens shall be superior in dignity to all other liens except taxes.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the unpaid balance of the principal amount of
any liens against the respective real property listed on LCA 1651 shall bear interest at the rate of
(i) 8% per annum beginning 30 days after the effective date of this Resolution and (ii) 12% per
annum beginning one year after the effective date of this Resolution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Council acknowledges that notice(s) of
the lien(s) will be filed by the POD in the office of the City Clerk and may be recorded in the
public records of the County.

This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

L AL: DEPARTMENT:

00704319



37 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Confirming Preliminary 

Assessment for Building Securing SEC 1286 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



E-3

E-3



ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL

MEETING OF: NOVEMBER 2, 2023

TO: COUNCIL CHAIR AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL

SUBJECT: Confirming Preliminary Assessment for
Building Securing Number SEC 1286

EXPLANATION: Codes Compliance Assistance has secured the
attached structures which were found to be
unfit or unsafe under Chapter 8 of the
St. Petersburg City Code. The interest
rate is 8% per annum on the unpaid balance.

SEC: 1286

NUMBER OF STRUCTURES 11

ASSESSABLE AMOUNT: $4,947.68

According to the City Code, these assessments constitute a
lien on each property. It is recommended that the assessments
be confirmed.

COST/FUNDING/ASSESSMENT INFORMATION:
The total assessable amount of $4,947.68 will be fully assessable
to the property owners.

ATTACHMENTS:

MAYOR:_______________

COUNCIL ACTION:________

FOLLOW-UP: AGENDA NO.



Cl) CD CD CD CD
N N N N N
n n n n n

H H H H H
CO CO CO CO CO
a) a) a) a) a)
a) a) a) a) a)

0 0 0 0 0
a) a) a) a) a)
CO CO CO CO CO
W W W W
—i a) CD .0 W

CD CO N CD CO N CD H CD CD W U fl H N N
N a) N a) 0 N W ‘-3 A a) N N H M H
H CD I> H CO A H CO N 0 < H H
N CD N CO N N a) N N Nfl A
-3 C A N A N N n N N N> H

a) CD - a) N A N N Q
N AU N .0 N 0 - N N 0 N N
N N N N AM N A N A CD N U M
A N A NO A Nn CD N N H CD N
N N N N N N NW N AM N NW
N A N N N N N CD N C M HOW
CD N CD CD < H CD A H N CD a) N CD H
W W N N W CD 0 N A 0 0
C CD M C C CD A A a) AM -a
N M N CD N 0 N N NO CM .0
o nO 0 NM N CO Zn

M N CD AW CD
N N 0 N N W A N .0 CD
M M A M NW N —a A

—I MCD
W W CO W 0 a) M CD
W W W W H 0 n A
-1 —3 0 —3 W 0 N
H H o Cl)
CO CO -J a) H
H .0 W .0 CO
a) a) CO —a
CD H 0 0
W 0 CD

CD
N
n

H
CO
a)
a)

0
a)
CO
W
CO

N
W
N
CD

N
M
H
N

N

0

I:-’
M
n

CD
N
n

H
CO
a)
a)

0
a)
CO
W
H

H CD
WA
CO >
a) N

N
a) N
0 -

A
N n

N
CD N
A H

CD
CD A

0
N
N
N
N

ZN H
CCD 0
NCD
WN H
NCD CO
NCD

N CO
N
N
A H

.0

CD
a)

CO

HN
MN
H
ZN

9
U
N
N
CD
CD

H
CO
CD

N
N

W

CD
A

CD

H
N
A

N
N
A
N
N
CD
N
C
N
0

N
M

W
W
—a
0
—a
W
CO
0
CD

CD
N
CD
a)
0
CD
N

*
*

CD*
‘0*

CD
on

N H- H
H3) rt
N H’<

N0
CD h

MNW MNW WNCO W’xjCO WNH COMNH WWH —N HNDi
ONH ONH ‘NW MC.0 MHCO OONCO t-’NCD t-’N HCDCDCD
AN AN NM NM ZN NAH NA NN .CDCIIrF

NW NW MW MW CDW A NW NW On ONCI)
HOH WOH H -H —JNH COAH a)NH CONO NN COCDS
ON a)N CDCD -N - HH H MM ‘CD(DN
a)tiH OH H -H QH NH OH COiCD

na) MCDa) MOa) R’Ma) MO—i UH ONrtrt
M M MN C ON 0 ON NO CONWCD
NW NW ONW ACDCO AOCO M CO A o CD WA h

a) a) AACD Ca) A—a O<a) CDNW n UCD
CDa) CDa) NO —IN--i W a) AHa) NW N NH-0
Ca) Ca) WNa) H CD.> N.> COH,> H
N.> N.> MCO a) Ca) a)NO WQa) N MH-’l

N CO N A MCDCO
O o No o 0 )“o NAO H H-
O 0 <H 0 0 MU0 NCDO 0 0*
O 0 NIl) —a CO NOO U CO N 0 *

CD *
H 0 NO 0 0 CD 0 CO 0 *
O W 00 0 0 a) .0 CO
a) a) W -3 W N H W
O 0 0 0 0 0 0

H

a) CO CO H H H .0 N
CO CO CD a) a) -J H N
CD CO CO .0 H 0 CD 0

CO 0 a) a) H N
CO CD >1
CD CD H N W W CO N
A A CD C H H NA
N N A N CD CD U A

M A A
N CD N H N
A A A N N N A
N N 0 A A NO

CD A N N N
CD N 0 ZN

N N N CD
CD

N
A
N

N

N
N
CD CO
CD0 CD
NN

H CDH
- CDO

W H CO W W a) H NH
W a) -J 0 W a) CD NN H
a) a) CO a) a) CD CD N

•
• A

ta 0 -i -J a) - 0
a) H CD CD .0 .0 CD



i-i U) U) U) U) Z I-’
0 U) U) U) U) CU) 0
F] 0 0 0 0 U)C/)

WU) I-’
I:-’ F’ F’ F’ F’ U)U) to

to to to to U)U)
U) a) a) CD 0) U) to
C a) a) a) a) U) to

U)
U) 0 0 0 0 F] F’
U) CD CD a) a)
U) to to to to

IP ,P to to Ino F’ 0 to a) a)
‘ri

U) to U) F] to U) C) F’ U) U) In H ‘.0 P
c’ to c’ > to Fri U) to ci p to U) to

U) H to U) F’ U) H 0 t H P F] U)
U) U) 0 U) ‘ci to U) 0 U) 0 U) HU)
U) F] 1” ‘r] 0 U) C) F] U) MU)
U) F’ C U) F’ 0 M 0 F] H
U) ‘ci a)- i] 0 0 U) F’ ‘ci U) U)U)
U) U) F] Ii U) M H U) U) 00
U) F] U) F] CM H F] M F] CU)
U) U) to CO M U) MU) MU) FrU)
F] U) U) to U) U) flU) CU) C
U) U) F] H a) a) U) U) U) C

U) U) K) F’ 1) 0 H U) U) U)
C to U) a) C C CU)
U) U) F] In U) 0 U) U) U) MU)
C) F’ U) a) C) CU)

F’ a) N a) ‘ci F] F]
F’ U) 0 tO M U) H

M 0 to N M U) 0
H In U)

to U) U) to U)
to F] to
-0 C U) 0 ii
F’ U) F’ M
to H to to C)
to F] 0 P
In 0 10
In to 0 to
to 0 to

to

*
U) *

U) ‘0*
a) a
0 00
In ‘rIFE’-
U) Hart

U) F’F]

M>0
C!) h

U)F]to tjU)to Wt-’o U)Ot-’o -‘ci F’0W
Ma) CO—i E-’U)a) -‘MU’F’ t-p F’U)OU)
NU) F]0 NU) U)CU) U)U) ,U)cnrt

Qto jto Hto WU)to 00 0U)’J)•
U)U)F’ a)PF’ F’U)to to U)to p’U) toU)0
-U) F] to U)C ME-’ ‘U)a’ci

HF’ —F’ HF’ U)CF’ toU)ja
MU)a) U)a) U)-o MF]Ca) OH oU)rtrt
CU) - Mt C U)C toU)cna
F] 0) In CIn F]F]fl.P U) tor-] C-I

U)to qto F]U)F’ U)Cto 0 CC!)
toHa) . In C.P a)U)Cto U) U)F-b’

Q.P Oto F’ P ZiP H C<Ci
.to -0U).P F]a) ‘ci

M U) U) F] MWU)
U)0 00 F]o H I-’

U)0 Co F’ 0 C 0*
CIn WO F’to to U) 1 *
U) *

o 0 0 0 *
o 0 F’ 0
to a) -0 a)
o o 0 0

to P In ‘ci
to 0 0 to U)
to to a) iP C
o to In 0 ‘0

U)
F] F’ F’ U) flU)o a) to U) p F]
F] F] F] ‘0 U) F]

U) U) F] C
M C C

U) C
:1) F] F] U) U) C
U) U) U) t U)
U) C U)
U) U) U) U) U) U)
U) p U)
U) U) F]
U) U)
U) U)
U)
F]

U)
C

F]

‘ci
a

U) tOwo a
U)U)

to U)H
‘P U)0
-J to to to ‘P U)H
• F’ In F’ a) U)U) to
a) F’ a) to to U)
a) . • . F]

to to to to
-J F’ F’ F’



BUILDING SECURING NUMBER SEC 1286

COST/FUNDING!ASSESSMENT INFORMATION

CATEGORY AMOUNT TO BE ASSESSED

SECURING COST $ 3,052.50

MATERIAL COST $ 858.71

LEGAL AD $ 631.47

ADMIN. FEE 405.00

TOTAL: $ 4,947.68



A RESOLUTION ASSESSING THE COSTS OF
SECURING LISTED ON SECURING BUILDING
NO. 1286 (‘SEC 1286”) AS LIENS AGAINST THE
RESPECTIVE REAL PROPERTY UPON WHICH
SUCH COSTS WERE INCURRED; PROVIDING
THAT SAID LIENS HAVE A PRIORITY AS
ESTABLISHED BY CITY CODE SECTION
8-270; PROVIDING FOR INTEREST RATE(S)
ON UNPAID BALANCES; ACKNOWLEDGING
THAT A NOTICE(S) OF LIEN(S) SHALL BE
RECORDED IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF
THE COUNTY; AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, in accordance with the requirements set forth in Chapter 8 of the St.
Petersburg City Code, the City has secured certain properties; and

WHEREAS, the structures so secured are listed on Securing Building No. 1286
(“SEC 1286”); and

WHEREAS, Section 8-270 of the St. Petersburg City Code provides that City
Council shall assess the entire cost of such securing against the property upon which such costs
were incurred and that such costs when assessed shall become a lien upon the property superior to
all other liens, except taxes; and

WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on November 2, 2023, to hear
all persons who wished to be heard concerning this matter.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of
St. Petersburg, Florida, that this Council assesses the costs of securing listed on Securing Building
No. 1286 (“SEC 1286”) as liens against the respective real property upon which the costs were
incurred and that pursuant to Section 8-270 of the St. Petersburg City Code said liens shall be
superior in dignity to all other liens except taxes.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the unpaid balance of the principal amount of
any liens against the respective real property listed on SEC 1286 shall bear interest at the rate of
(1) 8% per annum beginning 30 days after the effective date of this Resolution and (ii) 12% per
annum beginning one year after the effective date of this Resolution.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Council acknowledges that a notice(s) of
lien(s) shall be recorded in the public records of the County.

This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

DEPARTMENT:



44 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Ordinance 561-H. Ordinance to 

Create Chapter 28 & Provide Tax Abatement for Certain Affordable Housing Projects Allowed 

through Senate Bill 102 (AKA Live Local Act) 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



E-4

E-4



St. Petersburg City Council

Meeting of November 2, 2023

TO: Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair and Members of City Council

FROM: Amy E Foster, Housing and Neighborhood Services Administrator

RE: Ordinance to Create Chapter 28 & Provide Tax Abatement for Certain Affordable Housing 
Projects Allowed through Senate Bill 102 (AKA Live Local Act)

Explanation:
The Budget, Finance, and Taxation Committee (BFT) met on August 24, 2023 to discuss creating 
a new section of city code to allow granting ad valorem tax exemptions for certain properties used 
to provide affordable housing. The attached ordinance is presented following the feedback and 
discussion from the BFT and the Affordable Housing Advisory Committee. First reading was held 
on October 19, 2023.

Administration recommends approval. 

 

Attachments:
Ordinance
Business Impact Statement



Page 1 of 7 
 

  
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG 
AMENDING THE CITY CODE TO CREATE A NEW CHAPTER 28 
– HOUSING; CREATING CHAPTER 28, ARTICLE I. IN 
GENERAL; PROVIDING DEFINITIONS; CREATING CHAPTER 
28 ARTICLE II.  AFFORDABLE HOUSING TAX RELIEF;  
PROVIDING AUTHORITY; PROVIDING APPLICABILITY;  
PROVIDING A PROCESS FOR USE; PROVIDING PENALTIES;  
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 
 

WHEREAS, in 2023, SB 102, also known as the Live Local Act, was passed by the Florida 
Legislature and signed by the Governor; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Live Local Act created a new law, Section 196.1979 Fla. Stat., which 
allows local governments to provide certain tax relief to facilitate affordable housing; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of St. Petersburg is enacting this ordinance, in compliance with the 

Live Local Act and under the procedures for adoption of a nonemergency ordinance by a municipal 
governing body specified in Chapter 166, Florida Statutes, in order to help the continued 
development and retention of affordable housing in the City. 
 
 

THE CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG, FLORIDA DOES ORDAIN: 
 
 SECTION ONE.  The St. Petersburg City Code is hereby amended to create a new Chapter 
28 be titled “Housing”. 
 
 SECTION TWO.  Chapter 28 of the St. Petersburg City Code is hereby amended to add a 
new Article I. In General to read as follows: 
 

Article I.  IN GENERAL 
 
 Section 28-200 – Definitions 
For the purpose of this Chapter 28 only, the following words shall have the following meanings:  

Affordable Unit means a single “dwelling unit” as defined by Section 83.43(2), Florida Statutes, 
which is used by natural persons or families whose annual household income is not more than 60 
percent AMI.   



Page 2 of 7 
 

Affordable Property means all of the Affordable Units which are eligible for an Exemption in a 
single Development combined. The Affordable Property may be the entire Development or a 
portion thereof.  

Application means a written submittal to the City for consideration for an Exemption under this 
Article II, in a form prescribed by either the POD or FHFC. 

Area median income or AMI means the median income for the Tampa/St. Petersburg/Clearwater 
metropolitan statistical area (MSA) which is adjusted for the household size as calculated and 
published annually by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development.  

City Taxes means all municipal ad valorum taxes, as levied by the City under Chapter 166, Florida 
Statutes, levied on real property for which an Application is made. 

Code Violations means either (i) a Municipal Ordinance Violation that is disposed of in any 
manner other than a dismissal or finding of not guilty by a court, or (ii) a finding of violation by 
the City’s Code Enforcement Board.  

Development means the entirety of the contiguous real property owned by the Owner which 
contains Affordable Housing for which an Application is made.   

Exemption means relief from City Taxes, as provided in a written document sent to the Owner, 
after its execution by the POD. 

Existing Construction means all Affordable Housing that is not New Construction. 

FHFC means the Florida Housing Finance Corporation. 

New Construction means Affordable Housing that is first occupied in the calendar year in which 
an Application was made.  

Ongoing Certification means the requirement to provide information, determined appropriate by 
the POD, to the POD for the duration of the Exemption to ensure compliance with the Exemption.  

Owner means the legal owner of the real property for which an Exemption is sought. 

Rent means consideration given in exchange for any non-permanent possession of a Unit, or is 
“Rent”, as defined in Florida Statute § 83.43, as amended from time to time. 

Rent Limit means (i) the multifamily rental programs income and rent limit chart posted by the 
Florida Housing Finance Corporation and derived from the Multifamily Tax Subsidy Projects 
Income Limits published by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development, 



Page 3 of 7 
 

or (ii) ninety (90) percent of the fair market value rent as determined by a rental market study 
meeting the requirements of this Article II, whichever is less. 

Rental Market Study means a study, made not more than three (3) years before submission of the 
Application, which identifies the fair market value rent of each unit for which a property owner 
seeks an exemption, made by a certified general appraiser, as defined in s. 475.611, who is 
independent of the property owner who requests a rental market study. Such Rental Market Study 
and the appraiser providing such must comply with the standards of professional practice pursuant 
to part II of chapter 475 and use comparable property within the same geographic area and of the 
same type as the property for which the exemption is sought.  

Renters means those who occupy a Unit, which they do not own, in exchange for consideration 
and by virtue of an agreement with the owner of such residential property or are a “Tenant” as 
defined in Florida Statute § 83.43, as amended from time to time. 

Special Circumstance means an owner can demonstrate, to the sole and absolute satisfaction of 
the POD, it has at least two of the following circumstances: (i) extended the period of affordability 
period of the Affordable Housing by the addition of a minimum of fifteen (15) years of 
affordability, (ii) have made considerable and substantial renovations to the Affordable Housing 
such that the renovations would qualify as a “Substantial Rehabilitation” under the definition in 
Fla. Admin. Code 67-48.002, or (iii) can demonstrate an increase of insurance rates of more than 
50% over the average rate of the immediately preceding three (3) years.   

Unit means any portion of a multifamily development which serves as a residential dwelling for 
an individual person or single family, or is a “Dwelling Unit”, as defined in Florida Statute § 83.43, 
as amended from time to time. 

 SECTION THREE.  Sections 28-2 through 28-199 of the St. Petersburg City Code shall 
be marked as Reserved . 
 

SECTION FOUR. Chapter 28 of the St. Petersburg City Code is hereby amended to add 
a new Article II. Affordable Housing Tax Relief to read as follows: 
 
 Article II.  AFFORDABLE HOUSING TAX RELIEF 
 
 Section 28-200 – Authority 
This Article has been enacted pursuant to Section 196.1979, Florida Statutes and the Home Rule 
powers of the City and authority of F.S. Ch. 162, Pt. II.   

 Section 28-201.  Findings  

The City Council hereby makes the following findings:  



Page 4 of 7 
 

(a) Affordable Housing is an essential component of individual and community well-being, yet 
thousands of Pinellas County residents remain unhoused. 

(b) Rental units are an important part of the City’s available housing stock and renting continues 
to grow in popularity among City residents. 

(c) Providing tax relief, as authorized by statute, will help facilitate the construction of more 
affordable rental units and the retention of existing units that may otherwise be converted to market 
rate.  
 
(d) The provisions of this ordinance will help to further the goals of promoting the health, safety, 
and welfare of all citizens in St. Petersburg. 
 
 

 Section 28-202.  Applicability; non-applicability 

Unless specifically enumerated, the provisions of this Article shall apply to multifamily projects 
in which all the following apply:  

(a) the Development contains 50 or more Units, at least twenty percent (20%) of which are used 
by natural persons or families whose annual household income is not more than 60 percent AMI;  

(b) such Affordable Units are rented for an amount no greater than the amount as specified by the 
most recent Rent Limit;  

(c) the Development has not been cited for code violations on three or more occasions in the 24 
months before the submission of an Application; 

(d) any cited code violations related to the Development have been properly remedied and closed 
to compliance by the Owner before the submission of an Application; and 

(e) the Development has no unpaid fines or charges relating to cited code violations at the time the 
Exemption is granted by the City. 

 Section  28-204. Application  

(a) The POD shall determine the yearly deadline for Applications, for each calendar year, and 
publish such date on the City’s website, as well as information on how to apply.   

(b) The POD shall accept and review Applications, determine whether or not the Affordable 
Property is eligible for an Exemption, and determine the terms of the Exemption based on the 
following 



Page 5 of 7 
 

(1) For Affordable Housing in New Construction: 

(i) if all of the Units in a Development are Affordable Units, the portions of the 
Development that are Affordable Housing are eligible for an Exemption relieving 
the Affordable Housing of all City Taxes. 

(ii) if all of the Units in a Development are not Affordable Units, the portions of 
the Development that are Affordable Housing are eligible for an Exemption 
relieving such Affordable Housing of 75% of all City Taxes. 

 (2) For Affordable Housing in Existing Construction, if the Owner proves to the POD it 
has Special Circumstances, as set forth herein, the portions of the Development that are 
Affordable Housing are eligible for an Exemption relieving it of 50% of City Taxes. 

(c) The POD may prescribe the form of the Application, provided the FCFC has not already done 
so. Notwithstanding as much, the Application shall, at a minimum, include a requirement that the 
Owner provide (i) the most recently completed Rental Market Study, (ii) a list of the units for 
which the property owner seeks an Exemption, (iii) the rent amount received by the Owner for 
each unit for which the Owner seeks an Exemption and, if a unit is vacant and qualifies for an 
exemption under Section 196.1979, Florida Statutes, the Owner must provide evidence of the 
published rent amount for the vacant unit.(d) The POD may prescribe the terms of the Exemption. 
Notwithstanding as much, the Exemption shall, at a minimum, (i) include a requirement that the 
Affordable Property continue to maintain the criteria outlined in this Article II, (ii) include a 
requirement that the Owner submit a copy of the Application and Exemption to the Pinellas County 
Property Appraiser  on or before March 1st of each year, (iii) identify the percentage of the assessed 
value which is exempted from municipal ad valorum taxes, (iv) identify that the exemption applies 
to natural persons or families meeting the income limits described in this Section, and (v) include 
a requirement to provide documents for Ongoing Certification. 

(e) The POD shall publish a list of all Affordable Property granted an Exemption on the City’s 
website.  

Section  28-205. Determination and Appeal 

(a) The POD, after review of an Application, shall (i) deny an Exemption for a Affordable Property 
that does not meet the criteria outlined in this Article II, (ii) grant and execute an Exemption for 
an Affordable Property that meets the criteria outlined in this Article II, or (iii) request further 
information from an Owner to make a determination if the Application meets the criteria outlined 
in this Article II.  



Page 6 of 7 
 

(1) If the POD denies an Exemption, it shall provide the Owner with written notice of the 
denial, including the reason for such determination. 

(2) If the POD grants an Exemption, it shall provide a copy of the executed Exemption to 
both the (i) Owner and (ii) Pinellas County Property Appraiser. 

(b) A decision by the POD to grant, deny, or revoke an Exemption may be appealed, by the 
applicant, to the City Administrator, or their designee, within thirty (30) days.   

Section  28-205. Penalties 

If the POD determines (i) an Owner is found to submitted false documents to the POD related to 
either an Application or Ongoing Certification this Article II, (ii) the Development had three or 
more code violations in a 24-month span after being granted an Exemption, (iii) has a unpaid fine 
or charge for a code violation for more than ninety (90) consecutive days, or (iv) fails to comply 
with the terms of the Exemption, the POD may provide written notice to the address of the Owner, 
set forth in their Application, of an intent to revoke an Exemption and the actions that the Owner 
can take to correct any deficiencies outlined in the notice. If the Owner does not take the actions 
outlined by the POD in such notice within 15 days, the POD may revoke the Exemption and notify 
the Pinellas County Property Appraiser of such revocation. Any owner who has an Exemption 
revoked is subject to having all Exemptions revoked by the POD, including those of related 
entities, as determined by the POD in their sole and absolute discretion, and be barred from making 
further Applications under this Article II for a period of three years.  

Section  28-206. Expiration 

This Article II shall expire December 30, 2026, unless renewed pursuant to Section 196.1979, 
Florida Statutes. Any Exemption granted pursuant to this Article II shall expire after expiration or 
repeal of either (i) this Article II or (ii) the enacting ordinance. 

 SECTION FIVE. The provisions of this ordinance shall be deemed to be severable. If any 
provision of this ordinance is deemed unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, such determination 
shall not affect the validity of any other provision of this ordinance. 

 SECTION SIX. Compliance with §166.041(4), Florida Statutes.  A business impact 
estimate was prepared for this ordinance and posted on the City’s website no later than the date 
the notice of the proposed ordinance was published. 

 SECTION SEVEN.  In the event this ordinance is not vetoed by the Mayor in accordance 
with the City Charter, it shall become effective on November 1, 2023.  In the event this ordinance 
is vetoed by the Mayor in accordance with the City Charter, it shall not become effective unless 
and until the City Council overrides the veto in accordance with the City Charter, in which case it 



Page 7 of 7 
 

shall become effective five (5) days after the day on which a successful vote to override the veto 
is taken or November 1, 2023, whichever occurs later. 
 
Approved as to form and content: 
 
 
____    _______ 
City Attorney (designee) 
00701865 



 1 of 3 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH  
SECTION 166.041(4), FLORIDA STATUTES 

This certificate of compliance with Section 166.041(4), Florida Statutes, concerns the proposed 
ordinance of the City of St. Petersburg, Florida, that can be described as follows: 

Affordable Housing Tax Relief 

Based on a review of that proposed ordinance: 

☐ The City has determined that the statutory exemption(s) identified below apply to the pro-
posed ordinance, and no Business Impact Estimate has been prepared.  

☐ The City has determined that the statutory exemption(s) identified below apply to the pro-
posed ordinance.  The City is, nevertheless, providing the Business Impact Estimate below 
as a courtesy and to avoid any procedural issues that could impact the enactment of the 
proposed ordinance.  

☒ The City has prepared a Business Impact Estimate Pursuant to Section 166.041(4), Florida 
Statutes.  

EXEMPTIONS 

If one or more boxes are checked below, this means the City is of the view that a business impact 
estimate is not required by state law for the proposed ordinance: 

☐ The proposed ordinance is required for compliance with Federal or State law or regulation; 

☐ The proposed ordinance relates to the issuance or refinancing of debt; 

☐ The proposed ordinance relates to the adoption of budgets or budget amendments, includ-
ing revenue sources necessary to fund the budget; 

☐ The proposed ordinance is required to implement a contract or an agreement, including, 
but not limited to, any Federal, State, local, or private grant or other financial assistance 
accepted by the municipal government; 

☐ The proposed ordinance is an emergency ordinance; 

☐ The ordinance relates to procurement; or 



 2 of 3 

☐  The proposed ordinance is enacted to implement the following: 

☐ Part II of Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, relating to growth policy, county and mu-
nicipal planning, and land development regulation, including zoning, development 
orders, development agreements and development permits; 

☐ Sections 190.005 and 190.046, Florida Statutes, regarding community development 
districts; 

☐ Section 553.73, Florida Statutes, relating to the Florida Building Code; or 

☐ Section 633.202, Florida Statutes, relating to the Florida Fire Prevention Code. 

BUSINESS IMPACT ESTIMATE 

The City provides the following Business Impact Estimate, which may be revised following its 
initial posting: 

1. Summary of the proposed ordinance (must include a statement of the public pur-
pose, such as serving the public health, safety, morals and welfare): 

In 2023, SB 102, also known as the Live Local Act, was passed by the  
Florida Legislature and signed by the Governor. The Live Local Act created 
a new law, Section 196.1979 Fla. Stat., which allows local governments to 
provide certain tax relief to facilitate affordable housing. The City of              
St. Petersburg is enacting this ordinance, in compliance with the Live Local 
Act and under the procedures for adoption of a nonemergency ordinance 
by a municipal governing body specified in Chapter 166, Florida Statutes, 
in order to help the continued development and retention of affordable hous-
ing in the City. 

2. An estimate of the direct economic impact of the proposed ordinance on private, 
for-profit businesses in the City, if any: 

(a) An estimate of direct compliance costs that businesses may reasonably incur; 

Business will have time and effort expense to provide evidence that 
the housing units meet the minimum requirements of the Ordinance.  
This will include but is not limited to providing the City and the Pinel-
las County Property Appraiser with proof of rents, in some cases the 
costs of renovations to the property or increases in insurance costs. 



 3 of 3 

(b) Any new charge or fee imposed by the proposed ordinance or for which busi-
nesses will be financially responsible; and 

None.  In fact, qualifying businesses will benefit from a reduction in 
the City portion of their ad valorem taxes. 

(c) An estimate of the City’s regulatory costs, including estimated revenues from 
any new charges or fees to cover such costs. 

No additional charges to businesses or revenue to the city is con-
templated.  There will be additional staff time to review the 
information provided by the business to determine eligilblity.  

3. Good faith estimate of the number of businesses likely to be impacted by the pro-
posed ordinance: 

Currently, 36 Affordable Housing Apartments (Complexes/Projects). 

4. Additional information the governing body deems useful (if any): 

The city has been aggressive in the creation of tools to increase the stock 
of affordable housing.  This ordinance is another effort to address the          
affordable housing issues in our city. 

 



57 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Resolution Endorsing the 

Advantage Pinellas Housing Action Plan 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



F-1

F-1



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
PRESENTATION ITEM 

 
 
DATE:   October 19, 2023 
 
TO:   The Honorable Members of City Council 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution Endorsing the Advantage Pinellas Housing Action 

Plan 
 
PRESENTER: Council Member Richie Floyd 

 

SCHEDULE FOR COUNCIL ON:  November 2, 2023 
 
 
 

Richie Floyd 
Council Member, District 8 

 
 
 
 
 
 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ____ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF ST. 
PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL ENDORSING 
THE ADVANTAGE PINELLAS HOUSING 
ACTION PLAN; INSTRUCTING THE CITY 
CLERK TO TRANSMIT THIS RESOLUTION TO 
CERTAIN PERSONS AND ENTITIES; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, on August 5, 2021, City Council approved Resolution 2021-357, 

authorizing the Mayor to sign the Countywide Housing Compact (“Housing Compact”), an 
agreement among local governments across Pinellas County to work together to address the critical 
need for housing affordability coordinated with jobs and transportation; and 
   

WHEREAS, the Pinellas County, Forward Pinellas, and five other local 
governments have also signed the Housing Compact; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Housing Compact provides for implementation of its goals 
through the “Housing Action Plan”, which will serve as a long-term policy framework to guide 
countywide and local government decision-making; and  

 
WHEREAS, on April 11, 2023, Forward Pinellas and the Board of County 

Commissioners, acting in its capacity as the Countywide Planning Authority, both executed Joint 
Resolution 23-25, designating Forward Pinellas as the forum to guide implementation of the 
Housing Action Plan; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Housing Action Plan was drafted by Pinellas County staff, with 

input from Forward Pinellas and other Housing Compact partners, and was introduced at the 
Homes for Pinellas Summit on April 28, 2023; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Housing Action Plan and Joint Resolution 23-25 need to be 

formally endorsed by each Housing Compact partner and City Council desires to make such 
endorsement through this Resolution.  

          NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. 
Petersburg, Florida, that City Council hereby endorses the Housing Action Plan and Joint 
Resolution 23-25. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Council hereby instructs the City Clerk to 

transmit a copy of this Resolution to Forward Pinellas.                     

This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

LEGAL:  

   
00704388 



61 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: A resolution authorizing the 

Mayor, or his designee to execute (I) an agreement with the Board of Trustees of St. Petersburg 

College for the purchase of a property located at 7045 Burlington Avenue North for the contract 

price of $4,200,000; (II) execute an agreement with the Board of Trustees of St. Petersburg College 

to give Specific rights to the purchase of certain affordable housing units to be built on such 

property; (III) execute all other documents necessary to effectuate this transaction; (IV) pay for 

survey(s), inspections, environmental audit(s), title policy, and other acquisition/closing related 

costs, including the payment of state documentary stamps on the deed, all not to exceed $100,000; 

approving a transfer in the amount of $4,300,000 from the unappropriated balance of the Parking 

Revenue Fund (1021), to the Housing Capital Improvement Fund (3000); approving a supplemental 

appropriation in the amount of $4,300,000 from the increase in the unappropriated balance of the 

Housing Capital Improvement Fund (3000), resulting from the above transfer, to the St. Pete College 

Acquisition Project (20095); and providing an effective date. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



F-2

F-2



CM 231102 St Petersburg College to City - 7045 Burlington Avenue North 1 

ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 

Meeting of November 2, 2023 

TO: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair and Members of City Council 

SUBJECT: A resolution authorizing the Mayor, or his designee to execute (I) an 
agreement with the Board of Trustees of St. Petersburg College for the purchase of a 
property located at 7045 Burlington Avenue North for the contract price of $4,200,000; 
(II) execute an agreement with the Board of Trustees of St. Petersburg College to give 
specific rights to the purchase of certain affordable housing units to be built on such 
property; (III) execute all other documents necessary to effectuate this transaction; (IV) 
pay for survey(s), inspections, environmental audit(s), title policy, and other 
acquisition/closing related costs, including the payment of state documentary stamps 
on the deed, all not to exceed $100,000; approving a transfer in the amount of
$4,300,000 from the unappropriated balance of the Parking Revenue Fund (1021), to 
the Housing Capital Improvement Fund (3000); approving a supplemental appropriation 
in the amount of $4,300,000 from the increase in the unappropriated balance of the 
Housing Capital Improvement Fund (3000), resulting from the above transfer, to the St. 
Pete College Acquisition Project (20095); and providing an effective date.

BACKGROUND: In 2022, St. Petersburg College ("SPC") made available for sale an 
improved property located at approximately 7045 Burlington Avenue North, commonly 
known as the Gibbs Wellness Center ("Property"), with the Property being further 
described as follows: 

Site Size: ±5.23 acres 

Improvements: ±20,732 square feet 

Zoning: NT-2 Neighborhood Traditional Single Family 

Legal: Tract A, PASADENA VISTA BLKS. 3 & 4 REPLAT, 
according to the map or plat thereof as recorded in 
Plat Book 61, Page 94, of the Public Records of Pinellas 
County, Florida, together with vacated portions of 
70th Street North and Burlington Avenue North right 
of ways and being more particularly described in 
Ordinance No. 657-V, recorded in Official Records 
Book 7805, Page 615, of the Public Records of Pinellas 
County, Florida. 

On December 6, 2022, the City of St. Petersburg ("City") submitted a Letter of Intent 
("LOI") to SPC, offering to the purchase the Property for the sum of $4,200,000, for the 
purpose of constructing approximately 105 affordable housing units ("Housing Units"), 
subject to rezoning the Property, and offering to make available Housing Units to SPC 
students and staff on a right of first refusal basis. 

In response the LOI, SPC elected to negotiate the sale of the Property with the City, with 
City Administration ("Administration") and staff attending a SPC board meeting in 
February 2022 to answer questions and provide clarification of the City's intentions. 
Subsequently, the City drafted an Agreement for Sale and Purchase ("Purchase Contract"), 
resulting in the parties agreeing to the following terms and conditions, subject to City 
Council approval: 



 

CM 231102 St Petersburg College to City - 7045 Burlington Avenue North  2 

• Purchase Price: $4,200,000 

• Due Diligence: The City shall have ninety (90) days from the effective 
date of the Agreement to perform surveys, inspections 
and environmental audits. 

• Evidence of Title: SPC at SPC's expense, shall deliver to City a title 
insurance commitment within forty-five (45) days from 
the effective date of the Agreement. 

• Re-Zoning: The City shall have one hundred eighty (180) days 
from the effective date to substantially complete the 
re-zoning of the Property to allow for the City's 
intended use and development of the Property. 

• Closing Date: The transaction shall be closed within sixty (60) days 
after the conclusion of the Due Diligence, Evidence of 
Title and Special Exception have been satisfied. 

• Costs to City: The City shall be responsible for the costs associated 
with obtaining surveys, appraisals, inspections, 
environmental audits, owner’s title policy, closing fees 
and recording fees. 

In conjunction with the Purchase Contract, SPC and the City shall enter into an agreement 
to provide up to 30% of the Housing Units to SPC staff and students on a right of first 
refusal basis ("Agreement"). As part of the Agreement, the City shall notify SPC ninety 
(90) days prior to the initial advertising of the Housing Units and SPC shall notify their 
staff and students of the available Housing Units. 

The acquisition and subsequent development of the Property to accommodate 
approximately 105 Housing Units requires a re-zoning from the current NT-2 
Neighborhood Traditional Single Family zoning to NSM-1 Neighborhood Suburban Multi 
Family zoning, which is consistent with the zoning designation for property to north and 
south of the Property.  

The Property is located approximately 750 feet from the SPC Gibbs campus, 1,100 feet 
from commercial mixed-use and is just east of the Pinellas Trail for supporting multi-
modal options. 

Upon the acquisition of the Property, the City will issue a Request for Proposal ("RFP") to 
solicit proposals from developers for the development of  affordable housing, to include 
approximately 105 Housing Units to be made available for sale to qualified homebuyers, 
which includes the 30% to be made available to SPC staff and students.  

SPC obtained two (2) appraisals for the Property in April 2023, resulting in a market value 
of $4,600,000 as determined by Entreken and Associates, Inc, and a market value of 
$5,040,000 as determined by McCormick Seaman and Terrana. 

RECOMMENDATION: Administration recommends that City Council adopt the 
attached resolution, authorizing the Mayor, or his designee to execute (I) an agreement 
with the Board of Trustees of St. Petersburg College for the purchase of a property 
located at 7045 Burlington Avenue North for the contract price of $4,200,000; (II) an 
agreement with the Board of Trustees of St. Petersburg College to give Specific rights to 
the purchase of certain affordable housing units to be built on such property; and (III) to 
pay for survey(s), inspections, environmental audit(s), title policy, and other 



 

CM 231102 St Petersburg College to City - 7045 Burlington Avenue North  3 

acquisition/closing related costs, not to exceed $100,000; to execute all documents 
necessary to effectuate this transaction; approving a transfer in the amount of 
$4,300,000 from the unappropriated balance of the Parking Revenue Fund (1021), to 
the Housing Capital Improvement Fund (3000); approving a supplemental appropriation 
in the amount of $4,300,000 from the increase in the unappropriated balance of the  
Housing Capital Improvement Fund (3000), resulting from the above transfer, to the St. 
Pete College Acquisition Project (20095); and providing an effective date. 

COST/FUNDING/ASSESSMENT INFORMATION: Funds will be available after approval of 
a transfer in the amount of $4,300,000 from the unappropriated balance of the Parking 
Revenue Fund (1021), to the Housing Capital Improvement Fund (3000); and a 
supplemental appropriation in the amount of $4,300,000 from the increase in the 
unappropriated balance of the Housing Capital Improvement Fund (3000), resulting from 
the above transfer, to the St. Pete College Acquisition Project. 

 

 

ADMINISTRATION ________________________ 

 

BUDGET/FINANCE ________________________ 
 

 

ATTACHMENTS:  Illustration and Resolution 

  



 

CM 231102 St Petersburg College to City - 7045 Burlington Avenue North  4 

ILLUSTRATION 



 

Resolution No. 2023 -   

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR, OR 

HIS DESIGNEE, TO (I) EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT 

WITH THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF ST. 

PETERSBURG COLLEGE FOR THE PURCHASE OF 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 7045 BURLINGTON AVE. 

N, ST. PETERSBURG, FOR THE CONTRACT PRICE 

OF $4,200,000, (II) EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT 

WITH THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF ST. 

PETERSBURG COLLEGE TO GIVE SPECIFIC 

RIGHTS TO ST. PETERSBURG COLLEGE 

REGARDING THE PURCHASE OF CERTAIN UNITS  

BUILT ON SUCH PROPERTY, (III) EXECUTE ALL 

OTHER DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO 

EFFECTUATE THIS TRANSACTION, AND (IV) PAY 

FOR SURVEY(S), INSPECTIONS, 

ENVIRONMENTAL AUDIT(S), AND OTHER 

ACQUISITION/CLOSING RELATED COSTS, 

INCLUDING THE PAYMENT OF STATE 

DOCUMENTARY STAMPS ON THE DEED, ALL 

NOT TO EXCEED $100,000; APPROVING A 

TRANSFER IN THE AMOUNT OF $4,300,000 FROM 

THE UNAPPROPRIATED BALANCE OF THE 

PARKING REVENUE FUND (1021), TO THE 

HOUSING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND (3000); 

APPROVING A SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATION 

IN THE AMOUNT OF $4,300,000 FROM THE 

INCREASE IN THE UNAPPROPRIATED BALANCE 

OF THE HOUSING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 

FUND (3000), RESULTING FROM THE ABOVE 

TRANSFER, TO THE ST. PETE COLLEGE 

ACQUISITION PROJECT (20095); AND PROVIDING 

AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, City Administration made an offer to St. Petersburg College (“SPC”) for the 
acquisition of approximately 5.23 acres located at 7045 Burlington Avenue North, St. Petersburg, Florida 
(“Property”); and 

WHEREAS, City Administration desires to build for-sale, affordable housing on the 
Property; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with City policy, Real Estate obtained two (2) market value 

appraisals for the Property which resulted in estimated market values of $5,040,000 and $4,600,000 for the 

Property; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to a purchase price of $4,200,000 and the City has 
agreed to give employees and students of SPC the first opportunity to purchase up to thirty (30) percent of 
the to-be-constructed units; and 

WHEREAS, City Administration has negotiated a purchase agreement and an ancillary 

agreement to effectuate this arrangement; and 



 

 2 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the purchase agreement, the City has not more than 180 days to 

partially effectuate a rezoning of the property to allow the construction of the desired amount of affordable 

housing units; and 

WHEREAS, funding for this purchase will be available after the approval of the transfer 

in the amount $4,300,000 from the unappropriated balance of the Parking Revenue Fund (1021), to the 

Housing Capital Improvement Fund (3000) and a supplemental appropriation in the amount of $4,300,000 

from the increase in the unappropriated balance of the Housing Capital Improvement Fund (3000), resulting 

from the above transfer, to the St. Pete College Acquisition Project (20095). 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. Petersburg, 
Florida, that the Mayor, or his designee, is authorized to (i) execute an agreement with the Board of Trustees 
of St. Petersburg College for the purchase of property located at 7045 Burlington Ave. N, St. Petersburg, 
for the contract price of $4,200,000, (ii)  execute an agreement with the Board of Trustees of St. Petersburg 
College to give specific rights to St. Petersburg College regarding the purchase of certain units built on such 
property, (iii) execute all other documents necessary to effectuate this transaction, and (iv) to pay for 
survey(s), inspections, environmental audit(s), and other acquisition/closing related costs, including State 
documentary stamps on the deed, all not to exceed $100,000. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that there is hereby approved the following transfer from 

the unappropriated balance of the Parking Revenue Fund (1021) to the Housing Capital Improvement Fund 

(3000), for FY24: 

 Parking Revenue Fund (1021) 

 Housing Capital Improvement Fund (3000)  $4,300,000 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that there is hereby approved from the increase in the 

unappropriated balance of the Housing Capital Improvement Fund (3000), resulting from the above 

transfer, the following supplemental appropriation for FY24: 

 Housing Capital Improvement Fund (3000) 

 St. Pete College Acquisition Project (20095)  $4,300,000 

 

This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

Legal:        Administration: 

             

City Attorney (Designee) 00705684   Amy Foster, Administrator 

Real Estate and Property Management:              Budget and Management: 

             

Aaron Fisch, Director                                          Elizabeth Makofske, Director 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



69 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Requesting permission to 

accept the awarded Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services (FDACS) Division of 

Administration (Contract #29916) for tree planting in the Childs Park Neighborhood. The awarded 

grant total is $49,617 with a 1:1 match of $49,617 that will be funded through the Office of 

Sustainability and Resilience Urban Forestry Budget. The total Childs Park tree planting and 

maintenance project cost will be up to $100,000. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



F-3

F-3



ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL  
Consent Agenda  

Meeting of November 2, 2023  
   
 
To: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair, and Members of City Council  
  
Subject: Requesting permission to accept the awarded Florida Department of Agriculture and 
Consumer Services (FDACS) Division of Administration (Contract #29916) for tree planting in the 
Childs Park Neighborhood.  The awarded grant total is $49,617 with a 1:1 match of $49,617 that 
will be funded through the Office of Sustainability and Resilience Urban Forestry Budget.  The 
total Childs Park tree planting and maintenance project cost will be up to $100,000.   
   
Explanation: The City of St. Petersburg was awarded a FDACS 2022 Urban and Community 
Forestry Grant on February 17, 2023, in the amount of $49,617 to plant up to 268 shade trees.  
The trees wlll be planted in the St. Petersburg rights of way in front of residences to reduce heat 
island effects and improve community health in this neighborhood.  The Office of Sustainability 
and Resilience will provide the required 1:1 match ($49,617) from budgeted 2023 Urban Forestry 
funds for a project total of $99,234.  The project will be completed by March 31, 2024. 

The Office of Sustainability and Resilience Department is requesting City Council approval to 
accept the awarded grant funds of $49,617 from Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer 
Services. . 
 

 
Attachments: Grant Award email, Federal Financial Assistance Subrecipient Agreement, 
FDACS Internal Contract Route Slip  



1  

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2024-    

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR HIS 
DESIGNEE TO ACCEPT A GRANT FROM THE STATE OF 
FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE AND 
CONSUMER SERVICES (“DEPARTMENT”) IN AN 
AMOUNT OF $49,617 FOR THE CITY’S CHILDS PARK 
TREE PLANTING PROJECT AND TO EXECUTE A GRANT 
AGREEMENT WITH THE DEPARTMENT AND ALL 
OTHER DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE 
THIS TRANSACTION; APPROVING A SUPPLEMENTAL 
APPROPRIATION IN THE AMOUNT OF $49,617 FROM 
THE INCREASE IN THE UNAPPROPRIATED BALANCE 
OF THE GENERAL FUND (0001), RESULTING FROM 
THESE ADDITIONAL GRANT REVENUES, TO THE 
PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTRATION DEPARTMENT, 
SUSTAINABILITY AND RESILIENCY DIVISION (040-
1251), CHILDS PARK TREE PLANTING PROJECT (TBD); 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

WHEREAS, trees reduce heat island effects and improve community health in 
the Childs Park neighborhood; and 

                        WHEREAS, the City Administraiton applied for and was awarded a grant from 
the Department in an amount of $49,617 to provide funding for the City’s Childs Park Tree 
Planting Project, which will plant shade trees in St. Petersburg rights of way in front of 
residences in the Childs Park Neighborhood; and   

  WHEREAS, the Office of Sustainability and Resilience will provide the required 
1:1 match of $49,617, funded through the Office of Sustainability and Resilience Urban 
Forestry Budget; and 

  WHEREAS, City Administration recommends approval of this resolution.   
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. 
Petersburg, Florida, that the Mayor or his designee is authorized to accept a grant from the 
State of Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services (“Department”) in an 
amount not to exceed $49,617 for the City’s Childs Park Tree Planting Program and to execute 
a grant agreement with the Department and all other documents necessary to effectuate this 
transaction. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that there is hereby approved from the increase 

in the unappropriated balance of the General Fund (0001), resulting from these additional grant 
revenues, the following supplemental appropriation for fiscal year 2024: 



2  

General Fund (0001) 
Public Works Administration Department, 
Sustainability and Resiliency Division (040-1251) 
Childs Park Tree Planting Project (TBD)                                  $49,617 

 
This resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

LEGAL: 
   
______________________________ 

 
 
DEPARTMENT: 

 
______________________________ 
Claude Tankersley 
Public Works Administrator 

 
 
BUDGET: 

 
_____________________________________ 

Elizabeth M. Makofske, Director 
Budget and Management Department 



FDACS-02017 Rev. 04/23 
Page 1 of 18 

WILTON SIMPSON 
COMMISSIONER 

Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services 
Division of Administration 

FEDERAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 
SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT 

This Federal Financial Assistance Subrecipient Agreement 
(“AGREEMENT”) made and entered into this _______ day 
of_____________, 20___ by and between the FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 
AGRICULTURE AND CONSUMER SERVICES, (“RECIPIENT”), and City of St. 
Petersburg, (“SUBRECIPIENT”).  The SUBRECIPIENT’S application 
package for federal financial assistance, dated November 10, 2022 
(“APPLICATION”) is incorporated by reference.  The SUBRECIPIENT 
shall perform the Scope of Work contained in the SUBRECIPIENT’S 
APPLICATION. 

The Department of Management Services' designated United Nations 
Standard Products and Services Code (UNSPSC) is: 70151500 

A. SUBAWARD AMOUNT

1. The total award amount for satisfactorily completing the
Scope of Work is $49,617.  In no event shall the RECIPIENT be
liable for payment of any amount, which exceeds the total
award amount.

B. EFFECTIVE DATE/TERM

1. The effective date of this AGREEMENT shall commence upon
execution and, unless sooner terminated or canceled, shall
end on the 31 day of March of 2024 (“Term”).

2. No-cost extensions require the prior written approval of the
RECIPIENT and must be submitted not less than sixty (60) days
prior to the end of the Term.  Extension requests, which
exceed the federal agency award period, will not be granted.

C. UNIVERSAL IDENTIFIER AND SYSTEM OF AWARD MANAGEMENT

1. The SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with 2 CFR, Part 25, “Financial
Assistance Use of Universal Identifier and System of Award
Management” (SAM).  The SUBRECIPIENT must register and
maintain a registration in SAM until submittal of the final
financial report.  A data universal numbering system (DUNS)
number is required for registration in SAM.

2. Compliance with 2 CFR, Part 25 is not required for
individuals.

FDACS CONTRACT#
 29916

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3E622145-E330-4393-9A3E-70533E30E7DD

23

   2nd

   June



FDACS-02017 Rev. 04/23 
Page 2 of 18 

D. FINANCIAL AND PROGRAM MANAGEMENT 
 
1. Statutory and National Policy Requirements 
 

a. All expenditures of federal financial assistance under the 
AGREEMENT shall be in compliance with all applicable laws, 
rules and regulations applicable to expenditures of federal 
funds. 
 

b. The SUBRECIPIENT shall implement applicable National Policy 
Requirements. 
 

2. Deliverables 
 
a. The SUBRECIPIENT must provide quantifiable, measurable and 

verifiable units of Deliverables (Deliverables) which must 
be received and accepted in writing by the RECIPIENT before 
payment.  Deliverables must be directly related to the 
Scope of Work; specify minimum levels of service to be 
performed; and contain criteria for evaluating the 
successful completion of each Deliverable.  The 
Deliverables are set forth in the Scope of Work contained 
in the SUBRECIPIENT APPLICATION. 
 

3. Financial Management 
 
a. The SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain an accounting system and a 

set of accounting records, which allow for the 
identification of revenues and expenditures related to this 
AGREEMENT. 

 
b. The SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with 2 CFR, Part 200 and 

adhere to the accounting principles and procedures required 
therein, use adequate internal controls and maintain 
necessary source documentation for all costs incurred. 
 

4. Reimbursement Requests 
 
a. The allowability of costs shall be in accordance with the 

federal financial assistance cost principles applicable to 
the SUBRECIPIENT and terms of this AGREEMENT. 

 
b. The SUBRECIPIENT shall submit the payment request packet to 

the RECIPIENT’s grant manager not more often than monthly, 
but not less often than quarterly.  To be eligible for 
reimbursement, costs shall be allowable, necessary and 
reasonable, and must be submitted by budget category 
consistent with the budget plan submitted with the 
SUBRECIPIENT APPLICATION. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3E622145-E330-4393-9A3E-70533E30E7DD



FDACS-02017 Rev. 04/23 
Page 3 of 18 

c. All reimbursement requests must be submitted using the 
RECIPIENT’s standard payment request packet and provide 
supporting documentation for each cost.  An authorized 
SUBRECIPIENT representative shall sign the certifications 
on the payment request packet submitted. 

 
d. The payment request packet is downloadable from 

http://forms.freshfromflorida.com/02019.pdf. 
 

e. A SUBRECIPIENT whose federal financial assistance grant 
provides an online reimbursement system for reporting 
reimbursement details shall use the online reimbursement 
system instead of the payment request packet. 

 
f. Bills for any authorized travel expenses shall be submitted 

and paid in accordance with the rates specified in Section 
112.061, Florida Statutes, governing payments by the State 
for travel expenses.  Any travel expenses must be specified 
in the Budget Plan and Scope of Work. 

 
g. $49,617.00 for one year based on invoices submitted for 

expenses incurred during the quarterly periods ending March 
31, June 30, September 30 and December 31 of each year.  
Invoices must be received within 30 calendar days of the 
conclusion of each quarter.  Bills will be in the form of 
an invoice by major categories and will include local 
funding information detailing staff salaries, benefits, 
indirect costs (at 10% of Total Direct Costs) and other 
approved expenses, if accrued. 

 
5. Payment of Reimbursement Requests 

 
a. Payment for allowable, necessary and reasonable costs shall 

be made within thirty (30) days after acceptance by the 
RECIPIENT.  Payment request packets returned to the 
SUBRECIPIENT due to omissions or preparation errors will 
result in a payment delay. 

 
b. Payment requests for a percentage of work completed on each 

task deliverable are allowed. 
 

c. Payment is contingent upon the availability of funding from 
the federal agency and SUBRECIPIENT’S compliance with the 
terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT. 

 

d. The final payment under this AGREEMENT shall be made upon 
completion of the Scope of Work including all deliverables 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3E622145-E330-4393-9A3E-70533E30E7DD



FDACS-02017 Rev. 04/23 
Page 4 of 18 

and the receipt and approval of all reports required 
hereunder. 
 (1) Reimbursement Request Form with required backup 
documentation. 
(2) Final Report - brief paragraph on letterhead 
summarizing what was accomplished with the grant funding. 
(3) Copy of a news release that will be submitted to a 
local publication crediting the U.S. Forest Service for 
providing funding. 
(4) Copy of Congressional thank you letter - Thank you 
letter addressed to your federal congressional 
representatives for the grant funding. Include a brief 
description of what you were able to accomplish with the 
funding. 
(5) Certification of Acceptance executed by a Florida 
Forest Service official. 
 

e. Disallowance or adjustments due to audit findings may 
require the SUBRECIPIENT to return funds to the RECIPIENT.  
The SUBRECIPIENT is solely responsible for reimbursing the 
RECIPIENT for amounts incorrectly paid to the SUBRECIPIENT. 
 

6. Program Income 
 
a. “Program income includes but is not limited to income from 

fees for services performed, the use or rental of real or 
personal property acquired under federal awards, the sale 
of commodities or items fabricated under a federal award, 
license fees and royalties on patents and copyrights, and 
principal and interest on loans made with federal award 
funds”. 2 CFR, 200.80 

 
b. The SUBRECIPIENT must report to the RECIPIENT any program 

income received or anticipated from the activities 
performed under this AGREEMENT. 

 
7. Revision of Budget Plan 

 
a. The Budget Plan contained in the SUBRECIPIENT APPLICATION 

lists costs and budget categories to fund the 
SUBRECIPIENT’S performance of the Scope of Work, including 
the completion of Deliverables. 
 

b. SUBRECIPIENT is required to report any transfers from one 
approved budget category to another approved budget 
category.  If the cumulative budget transfers meet or 
exceed ten percent (10%), prior approval, evidenced by 
contract amendment, is required. 
 

c. Prior approval, evidenced by contract amendment, is 
required for: 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3E622145-E330-4393-9A3E-70533E30E7DD



FDACS-02017 Rev. 04/23 
Page 5 of 18 

(1) any transfers from an approved budget category to an
unapproved budget category.  An unapproved budget
category is defined as having no funds allocated in the
original Budget Plan.

(2) any equipment purchases not noted in the original Budget
Plan and/or Scope of Work.

(3) any subawarding or contracting out of any work not noted
in the original Budget Plan and/or Scope of Work.

Revision of Scope of Work

The SUBRECIPIENT shall report any changes to the Scope of
Work including but not limited to changes in the
objectives, changes in key personnel, reduction of work
effort by key personnel and delays in completion of the
work.

Acknowledgements

The SUBRECIPIENT shall have an acknowledgement of the
 support placed on any publication 

written or published or audiovisual produced with grant 
support and, if feasible, on any publication reporting the 
results of, or describing, a grant-supported activity, or 
audiovisuals produced with grant
support.  This requirement does not apply to audiovisuals
produced as research instruments or for documenting
experimentations or findings and not intended for
presentation or distribution to the public.

Publication means a published book, periodical, pamphlet,
brochure, flier, or similar item.

Audiovisual means a product containing visual imagery or
sound or both.

The SUBRECIPIENT acknowledgement must contain a disclaimer
that says: “Any opinions, findings, conclusions, or
recommendations expressed in this publication or
audiovisual are those of the author(s) and do not
necessarily reflect the view of the 

”.

Language shall read:

The work upon which this (insert publication or 
audiovisual or both) is based was funded, in whole or in 
part through a subrecipient grant awarded by the  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3E622145-E330-4393-9A3E-70533E30E7DD



FDACS-02017 Rev. 04/23 
Page 6 of 18 

 through the Florida Department of 
Agriculture and Consumer Services. The contents do 
not necessarily reflect the views or policies of the 

 nor does mention of trade 
names, commercial productions, services or 
organization imply endorsement by the U.S. Government. 

E. PROPERTY STANDARDS

1. Equipment and Real Property

a. Equipment must be used in the project for which the federal
funds are derived.

b. The federal agency has a vested interest in equipment
and/or real property which, when purchased, exceeds $5,000
in value.  If a title is issued for the equipment and/or
real property, the federal agency must be listed on the
title.

c. The SUBRECIPIENT must maintain property records, which
include, but are not limited to, the description, serial
number or other identification number, acquisition date,
cost, location, percentage of federal participation in the
cost of the property, use and condition of the property.
When the property is disposed of, the property records must
be updated with the date of disposal and sale price of the
property.

d. A physical inventory is required at least once every two
years.

e. If the equipment and/or real property are to be sold or
used as a trade-in, approval of the RECIPIENT is required.

f. At the end of the award period, the SUBRECIPIENT is
required to request from the RECIPIENT disposal
instructions and is required to notify the RECIPIENT of the
fair market value of the equipment and/or real property.

2. Insurance Coverage

a. The SUBRECIPIENT will carry sufficient insurance coverage
to protect all assets required under the AGREEMENT from
loss due to theft, fraud and/or undue physical damage.
SUBRECIPIENT shall carry insurance on its own assets in
commercially reasonable amounts and all statutorily
required insurance, including without limitation Workers’
Compensation insurance.

3. Intellectual Property

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3E622145-E330-4393-9A3E-70533E30E7DD



FDACS-02017 Rev. 04/23 
Page 7 of 18 

a. Anything by whatsoever designation it may be known, that is 
produced by, or developed in connection with this AGREEMENT 
shall become the exclusive property of the RECIPIENT and 
may be copyrighted, patented or otherwise restricted as 
provided by Florida or federal law.  Neither the 
SUBRECIPIENT nor any individual employed under this 
AGREEMENT shall have any proprietary interest in such 
property. 

 
b. With respect to each Deliverable that constitutes a work of 

authorship within the subject matter and scope of U.S. 
Copyright Law, 17 U.S.C. Sections 102-105, such work shall 
be a “work for hire” as defined in 17 U.S.C. Section 101 
and all copyrights subsisting in such work for hire shall 
be owned exclusively by the RECIPIENT. 

 
c. In the event it is determined as a matter of law that any 

such work is not a “work for hire,” SUBRECIPIENT shall 
immediately assign to the RECIPIENT all copyrights 
subsisting therein for the consideration set forth in the 
AGREEMENT and with no additional compensation. 

 
d. The foregoing shall not apply to any preexisting software, 

or other work of authorship used by SUBRECIPIENT to create 
a Deliverable but which exists as work independent of the 
Deliverable, unless the preexisting software or work was 
developed by SUBRECIPIENT pursuant to a previous AGREEMENT 
with the RECIPIENT or by a purchase by the RECIPIENT under 
a state term contract. 
 

F. MATCHING OR COST SHARE (IF APPLICABLE) 
 
1. The matching or cost share portion must be tracked using a 

unique identifier in the SUBRECIPIENT accounting system. 
 

2. If the matching or cost share portion is not met, the 
RECIPIENT may disallow costs paid with federal funds in 
proportion to the reduction in the matching or cost share 
amount. 

 
3. The matching or cost share portion must be incurred in direct 

proportion to the amount of federal funds used. 
 

4. The matching or cost share portion must be reported based upon 
the Budget Plan submitted with the APPLICATION. 

 
5. Records for in-kind contributions, which are based upon 

volunteer hours, must have timesheets or a sign in/sign out 
log and must explicitly state the method for valuation of the 
hours.  The value must be reasonable. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3E622145-E330-4393-9A3E-70533E30E7DD



FDACS-02017 Rev. 04/23 
Page 8 of 18 

6. Records for in-kind contributions, which are based upon goods 
or services provided, must have an invoice, if available, or 
must explicitly state the method for the valuation.  The 
value must be reasonable. 

 
7. In-kind contributions must be provided by a third party during 

the period for which they are being claimed. 
 
8. The matching or cost share portion must not be counted towards 

other cost sharing requirements.  Neither costs nor values of 
third party in-kind contributions may count if they have been 
used towards other cost sharing requirements. 

 
G. GENERAL PROCUREMENT STANDARDS 

 
1. The SUBRECIPIENT will follow the same policies and procedures 

it uses for procurements from other funding sources. 
 
2. The SUBRECIPIENT must have documented procurement procedures. 
 
3. The SUBRECIPIENT must have written policies on standards of 

conduct covering conflicts of interest.  No employee, 
officer, or agency may participate in the selection, award or 
administration of a contract supported by federal funds if he 
or she has a real or apparent conflict of interest. 

 
H. PERFORMANCE MONITORING AND REPORTING 

 
1. The SUBRECIPIENT shall submit detailed quarterly reports using 

the format and content shown on the RECIPIENT’s performance 
progress report.  The performance progress report is 
downloadable from 
http://forms.freshfromflorida.com/02018.pdf. 

 
2. In the event the AGREEMENT is terminated, the SUBRECIPIENT 

shall furnish a report detailing progress made under this 
AGREEMENT through the date of termination within twenty (20) 
days of termination. 

 
3. The SUBRECIPIENT shall cooperate in all on-site reviews from 

the RECIPIENT, its authorized representatives or federal 
government personnel. 

 
4. The review personnel will be given full and complete access 

during normal business hours to all information related to 
the performance of this AGREEMENT to ensure compliance with 
project activities and statutes, regulations and rules. 

 
5. The RECIPIENT will give 48 hours of notice of any on site 

review. 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3E622145-E330-4393-9A3E-70533E30E7DD



FDACS-02017 Rev. 04/23 
Page 9 of 18 

6. The SUBRECIPIENT shall make available all personnel involved 
in the performance of work on this AGREEMENT. 
 

7. Failure to correct substandard performance within thirty (30) 
days after written notice from the RECIPIENT shall result in 
suspension and/or termination of the AGREEMENT. 

 
I. RECORD RETENTION AND ACCESS 

 
1. Retention Requirements for Records 

 
a. Upon reasonable notice, the RECIPIENT shall have access to 

the SUBRECIPIENT’S records during normal business hours. 
 

b. The SUBRECIPIENT shall maintain all records pertinent to 
the activities to be funded under this AGREEMENT for a 
period of five (5) years after final payment is received 
and for such additional period as may be required until all 
claims, litigation and appeals pertaining or related to the 
AGREEMENT have been completely resolved. 

 
2. Public Access to Records 

 
a. The SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with all applicable 

requirements of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. 
 

IF THE SUBRECIPIENT HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING 
THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA 
STATUTES, TO THE SUBRECIPIENTS’S DUTY TO 
PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS 
CONTRACT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC 
RECORDS: 
 
OFFICE OF GENERAL COUNSEL  
407 SOUTH CALHOUN STREET, SUITE 520  
TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399 
PHONE: (850) 245-1000  
EMAIL: PRCUSTODIAN@FDACS.GOV 
 

J. REMEDIES FOR NONCOMPLIANCE 
 
1. Prior to the exercise of any remedy provided for herein, the 

RECIPIENT shall provide thirty (30) calendar days written 
notice of default and shall provide the SUBRECIPIENT the 
opportunity to cure such failure or default within said 
thirty (30) day period.  Upon the failure or inability to 
cure, the RECIPIENT shall have all rights and remedies 
provided at law or in equity, including without limitation 
the following: 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3E622145-E330-4393-9A3E-70533E30E7DD



FDACS-02017 Rev. 04/23 
Page 10 of 18 

 
a. Temporarily withhold cash payments pending correction of 

the deficiency by the SUBRECIPIENT. 
 

b. Disallow all or part of the cost of the services not in 
compliance. 

 
c. Wholly or partly suspend or terminate this AGREEMENT. 
 

2. Termination 
 
a. The RECIPIENT may suspend or terminate this AGREEMENT if 

the SUBRECIPIENT: 
(1) Fails to comply with any applicable rules, regulations 

or provisions referred to herein, or any other 
applicable state or federal statutes, rules, 
regulations, executive orders, federal guidelines, 
policies or directives; 

 
(2) Fails, to timely fulfill its obligations under the 

AGREEMENT; 
 

(3) Improperly or illegally uses funds provided under this 
AGREEMENT; or 

 
(4) Submits reports that are incorrect in any material 

respect. 
 

b. This AGREEMENT may be terminated for convenience by either 
party upon giving not less than thirty (30) days advance 
written notice to the other party.  SUBRECIPIENT shall be 
paid for all work satisfactorily performed prior to the 
date of termination provided SUBRECIPIENT has otherwise 
complied with the terms of this AGREEMENT, including the 
submission of all reports. 

 
K. CLOSE OUT 

 
1. Notwithstanding the termination of this AGREEMENT, the 

SUBRECIPIENT’S obligations to the RECIPIENT shall survive 
until all close out requirements are completed.  Close out 
activities shall include but are not limited to:  completing 
and submitting final reports, properly disposing of property, 
accounting for unspent cash advances and program income and 
transferring custodianship of records to RECIPIENT or its 
designee. 
 

2. Post-close Out Adjustments 
 

a. Any funds paid in excess of the amount to which the 
SUBRECIPIENT is entitled under the AGREEMENT must be 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3E622145-E330-4393-9A3E-70533E30E7DD



FDACS-02017 Rev. 04/23 
Page 11 of 18 

refunded to the RECIPIENT within thirty (30) days after 
demand therefore by RECIPIENT. 

 
L. AUDIT REQUIREMENTS 

 
1. Audit Provisions  

 
a. If the SUBRECIPIENT is a state or local government or a 

nonprofit organization, the audit provisions as defined in 
2 CFR, Part 200 Subpart F are applicable. 

 
b. If the SUBRECIPIENT is a commercial organization (For-

Profit), the organization will provide the RECIPIENT with 
its annual audited financial statement or the annual tax 
return provided to the Internal Revenue Service. 

 
c. Audit provisions are not required for a SUBRECIPIENT who is 

an individual. 
 

d. In the event that the SUBRECIPIENT expends $750,000 or more 
in federal awards in its fiscal year, the SUBRECIPIENT must 
have a single or program-specific audit conducted in 
accordance with the 2 CFR, Part 200 Subpart F. 

 
e. If the SUBRECIPIENT expends less than $750,000 in federal 

awards in its fiscal year, an audit conducted in accordance 
with the provisions of 2 CFR, Part 200 Subpart F is not 
required.  Records must be available for audit or review if 
necessary. 

 
f. If the SUBRECIPIENT expends less than $750,000 in federal 

awards in its fiscal year and elects to have an audit 
conducted, the cost of the audit must be paid from non-
federal resources. 
 

2. Basis for Determining Federal Awards Expended 
 
a. In determining the federal awards expended in its fiscal 

year, the SUBRECIPIENT shall consider all sources of 
federal awards, including federal resources received from 
the RECIPIENT. 

b. The determination of amounts of federal awards expended 
should be in accordance with the guidelines established by 
2 CFR, Part 200 Subpart F. 
 

3. Relation to Other Audit Requirements 
 
a. If the SUBRECIPIENT has an audit conducted in relationship 

to any other federal regulation or statute, the RECIPIENT 
may determine upon review if the audit reports meet the 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3E622145-E330-4393-9A3E-70533E30E7DD



FDACS-02017 Rev. 04/23 
Page 12 of 18 

needs of the RECIPIENT.  If so, an additional audit will 
not be required. 

 
b. An audit of the SUBRECIPIENT conducted by the Auditor 

General in accordance with provisions of 2 CFR, Part 200 
Subpart F will meet these requirements. 

 
c. These provisions do not limit the authority of the federal 

agency, Inspector General, General Accounting Office (GAO) 
or RECIPIENT to conduct or arrange for the conduct of 
audits or evaluations of federal financial assistance 
awards. 
 

4. Frequency of Audits 
 
a. Audits shall be performed annually to meet this 

requirement. 
 

5. Sanctions 
 
a. If the SUBRECIPIENT is unwilling or has a continued 

inability to have an audit conducted, the provisions for 
noncompliance will be enforced. 

 
6. Subrecipient Responsibilities 

 
a. The SUBRECIPIENT shall arrange for the audit to be 

conducted in a timely manner and submitted as required in 2 
CFR, 200.512. 

 
b. The SUBRECIPIENT shall prepare the financial statements in 

accordance with 2 CFR, 200.510. 
 

c. The SUBRECIPIENT shall promptly follow up and take 
corrective action on audit findings. 

 
d. The SUBRECIPIENT will provide the auditor with access to 

records, personnel, documentation and other information as 
needed by the auditor. 

 
7. Audit Findings Follow-up 

 
a. At the completion of the audit, the SUBRECIPIENT must 

prepare, in a document separate from the auditor’s findings 
a corrective action plan to address each audit finding 
included in the current year auditor’s reports. 

 
b. The corrective action plan must provide the name(s) of the 

contact person(s) responsible for corrective action, the 
corrective action planned and the anticipated completion 
date. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3E622145-E330-4393-9A3E-70533E30E7DD



FDACS-02017 Rev. 04/23 
Page 13 of 18 

c. If the SUBRECIPIENT does not agree with the audit findings 
or believes corrective action is not required, then the 
corrective action plan must include an explanation and 
specific reasons. 

 
d. Any deficiencies noted in audit reports must be fully 

cleared by the SUBRECIPIENT within thirty (30) days after 
receipt by the SUBRECIPIENT. 

 
e. Failure of the SUBRECIPIENT to comply with the above 

requirement will constitute a violation of this AGREEMENT 
and may result in the withholding of future payments. 

 
8. Report Submission 

 
a. The audit must be completed and the data collection form 

and reporting package must be submitted within the earlier 
of thirty (30) calendar days after receipt of the auditor’s 
report(s) or nine months after the end of the audit period.  
If the due date falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or Federal 
holiday, the reporting package is due the next business 
day. 

 
b. The SUBRECIPIENT must submit required data elements 

described in Appendix X to 2 CFR, Part 200 – Data 
Collection Form (SF-SAC), which states whether the audit 
was completed in accordance with this part and provide 
information about the SUBRECIPIENT, its federal programs 
and the results of the audit. 

 
c. A senior representative of the SUBRECIPIENT must sign a 

statement to be included as part of the data collection 
that the SUBRECIPIENT has complied with the audit 
requirements, the data was prepared in accordance with 2 
CFR, 200.512, the reporting package does not include 
protected personally identifiable information, the 
information is accurate and complete and the reporting 
package and form will be publicly available on the web. 

 
d. The SUBRECIPIENT shall also submit to the RECIPIENT’s Grant 

Manager one copy of the audit report, reporting package, 
any management letter issued by the auditor and data 
collection form described in Appendix X to 2 CFR, Part 200. 

 
e. The SUBRECIPIENT is required to use the internet submission 

form on the Federal Audit Clearinghouse (FAC) website.  The 
FAC website is located at https:facweb-census.gov. 

 
f. The SUBRECIPIENT shall ensure that audit working papers are 

made available to the RECIPIENT, or its designee, Chief 
Financial Officer or Auditor General upon request for a 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3E622145-E330-4393-9A3E-70533E30E7DD



FDACS-02017 Rev. 04/23 
Page 14 of 18 

period of five (5) years from the date the audit report is 
issued, unless extended in writing by the RECIPIENT. 
 

M. GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 

1. Nothing contained in this AGREEMENT is intended to, or 
will be construed in any manner, as creating or 
establishing the relationship of principal and agent or 
employer and employee between the parties.  The 
SUBRECIPIENT will at all times remain an independent 
contractor with respect to the services to be performed 
under this AGREEMENT. 

 
2. The RECIPIENT shall have the right of unilateral 

cancellation for refusal by the SUBRECIPIENT to allow 
public access to all documents, papers, letters or other 
material made or received by the SUBRECIPIENT in 
conjunction with this AGREEMENT, unless the records are 
confidential or exempt from s. 24(a) of Article I of the 
State Constitution and s. 119.07(1), Florida Statutes. 

 
3. The SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that: 

 
i. Pursuant to Section 287.133(2)(a), Florida 

Statutes, a person or affiliate who has been placed 
on the convicted vendor list following a conviction 
for a public entity crime may not submit a bid, 
proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any 
goods or services to a public entity; may not 
submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a  contract 
with a public entity for the construction or repair 
of a public building or public work; may not submit 
bids, proposals, or replies on leases of real 
property to a public entity; may not be awarded or 
perform work as a contractor, supplier, 
subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with 
any public entity; and may not transact business 
with any public entity in excess of the threshold 
amount provided in Section 287.017, Florida 
Statutes, for CATEGORY TWO for a period of 36 
months following the date of being placed on the 
convicted vendor list. 
 

ii. Pursuant to Section 287.134(2)(a), Florida 
Statutes, an entity or affiliate who has been 
placed on the discriminatory vendor list may not 
submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract to 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3E622145-E330-4393-9A3E-70533E30E7DD



FDACS-02017 Rev. 04/23 
Page 15 of 18 

provide any goods or services to a public entity; 
may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a 
contract with a public entity for the construction 
or repair of a public building or public work; may 
not submit bids, proposals, or replies on leases of 
real property to a public entity; may not be 
awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier, 
subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with 
any public entity; and may not transact business 
with any public entity. 
 

iii. Pursuant to Section 287.137(2)(a), Florida 
Statutes, a person or an affiliate who has been 
placed on the antitrust violator vendor list 
following a conviction or being held civilly liable 
for an antitrust violation may not submit a bid, 
proposal, or reply for any new contract to provide 
any goods or services to a public entity; may not 
submit a bid, proposal, or reply for a new contract 
with a public entity for the construction or repair 
of a public building or public work; may not submit 
a bid, proposal, or reply on new leases of real 
property to a public entity; may not be awarded or 
perform work as a contractor, supplier, 
subcontractor, or consultant under a new contract 
with a public entity; and may not transact new 
business with a public entity. 

 
4. The SUBRECIPIENT shall not discriminate on the basis of 

race, sex, religion, color, national origin, age or 
disability and shall comply with all applicable state 
and federal laws and regulations related thereto, 
including without limitation, the Americans with 
Disabilities Act (42 USC 12101 et. Seq.); Section 504 of 
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC 795); and the Age 
Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 USC 6101-6107). 

 
5. The SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that the 

employment of unauthorized aliens by any person or 
entity is considered a violation of 8 U.S.C. § 1324a.  
If the SUBRECIPIENT knowingly employs unauthorized 
aliens, such violation shall be cause for unilateral 
cancellation of this AGREEMENT. SUBRECIPIENT avers that 
it is registered in the E-Verify system and further 
agrees to comply with the provisions of Section 
448.095(2), Florida Statutes during the term of the 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3E622145-E330-4393-9A3E-70533E30E7DD



FDACS-02017 Rev. 04/23 
Page 16 of 18 

contract, including receiving and maintaining required 
affidavits from subcontractors. 

 
6. This AGREEMENT is contingent upon the availability of 

funding from the federal agency.  This AGREEMENT may be 
terminated by RECIPIENT if funding from the federal 
agency is reduced or terminated. 

 
7. The SUBRECIPIENT represents and warrants that neither it, 

nor its principals, is presently debarred, suspended, 
proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or 
voluntarily excluded from participation in this 
transaction by any Federal department or agency; and, 
that the SUBRECIPIENT shall not knowingly enter into any 
lower tier contract, or other covered transaction, with 
a person who is similarly debarred or suspended from 
participating in this covered transaction. Any lower 
tier contract provider who receives funds as a result of 
this AGREEMENT shall be verified by SUBRECIPIENT through 
the General Services Administration (GSA) Federal 
Excluded Parties List: https://sam.gov/SAM/. 

 
8. The SUBRECIPIENT shall comply with the Federal 

Acquisition Regulation 52.204-25, prohibition on 
contracting for certain telecommunications and video 
surveillance services or equipment pursuant to the 
National Defense Authorization Act. Failure to comply or 
if the SUBRECIPIENT knowingly provides funds to any 
entity prohibited from receiving a contract or award 
pursuant to the Federal Acquisition Regulation 52.204-25 
shall be cause for unilateral cancellation of this 
AGREEMENT.   

 
9. The SUBRECIPIENT acknowledges it has completed the 

certification regarding lobbying.    
 

10. If prior written authorization for subcontracting is 
granted by the DEPARTMENT, any work or services 
subcontracted by the SUBRECIPIENT shall be specifically 
by written contract or agreement, and such subcontracts 
shall be subject to each provision of this AGREEMENT and 
applicable Federal, State or County guidelines and 
regulations.  Prior to execution by the SUBRECIPIENT of 
any subcontract hereunder, the SUBRECIPIENT must submit 
such subcontracts to the RECIPIENT for its review and 
approval. 

 
11. The SUBRECIPIENT will, to the extent permitted by law, 

hold harmless, defend and indemnify the RECIPIENT from 
any and all claims, actions, suits, charges and 
judgments whatsoever that arise out of the 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3E622145-E330-4393-9A3E-70533E30E7DD



FDACS-02017 Rev. 04/23 
Page 17 of 18 

SUBRECIPIENT’s performance or nonperformance of the 
services or subject matter called for in this AGREEMENT.  
Nothing herein contained shall be construed or operate 
as a waiver of sovereign immunity to the extent 
sovereign immunity may otherwise apply. 

 
12. The SUBRECIPIENT will comply with section 20.055, 

Florida Statutes. 
 

13. This AGREEMENT may not be modified except by a written 
instrument executed by a duly authorized representative 
of each party hereto. 
 

14. In the event that two or more documents combine to form 
this AGREEMENT, and in the event that there is any 
contradictory or conflicting clause or requirement in 
these documents, the provisions of the document(s) 
prepared by the RECIPIENT shall be controlling. 
 

15. This AGREEMENT shall be controlled by Florida law, 
without regard to any conflict of law provisions 
thereof. 
 

16. In the event that any clause or requirement of this 
AGREEMENT is contradictory to, or conflicts with the 
requirements of Florida law, such clause or requirement 
shall be without force and effect and the requirements 
of the applicable Florida law shall substitute for that 
clause or requirement and be binding on all parties 
hereto. 

 
17. SUBSUBRECIPIENT agrees that all services to be performed 

hereunder shall be performed solely by the SUBRECIPIENT 
and may not be subcontracted for or assigned without the 
prior written consent of DEPARTMENT, which may be 
withheld by DEPARTMENT for any reason or granted subject 
to SUBRECIPIENT’s compliance with one or more of the 
following: (i) SUBRECIPIENT purchasing, at its sole 
expense, a payment bond in a form and amount that 
DEPARTMENT determines to be adequate to protect 
suppliers of labor and material; (ii) DEPARTMENT 
withholding, as retainage, 25% or the highest percent 
permitted by law, whichever is less, of all payments 
made to the SUBRECIPIENT until SUBRECIPIENT submits 
evidence satisfactory to DEPARTMENT that all 
subcontracts and outstanding indebtedness in connection 
with the services hereunder have been paid for by the 
SUBRECIPIENT; and (iii) SUBRECIPIENT disclosing 
information satisfactory to DEPARTMENT regarding each 
subcontractor to perform services hereunder, including a 
description of the subcontractor’s organization, ability 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3E622145-E330-4393-9A3E-70533E30E7DD



FDACS-02017 Rev. 04/23 
Page 18 of 18 

to provide applicable services, cost to perform 
applicable services, previous work experience, and 
relationship to the SUBRECIPIENT. 

18. The termination of this AGREEMENT (whether by expiry,
completion, the exercise of a termination right
hereunder, or otherwise) will not relieve either party
of any obligation, nor impair the exercise of rights,
accrued hereunder prior to such termination. Without
limiting the foregoing, the terms of Sections M(17)
hereof and Articles D (entitled “FINANCIAL AND PROGRAM
MANAGEMENT”), I (entitled “RECORD RETENTION AND
ACCESS”), K (entitled “CLOSE OUT”), and L (entitled
“AUDIT REQUIREMENTS”) hereof will survive the
termination of this AGREEMENT.

Special Conditions:  See attachment A  

This AGREEMENT constitutes the entire AGREEMENT between the 
RECIPIENT and the SUBRECIPIENT for the use of the funds received 
under this AGREEMENT. 

The Grant Manager for the RECIPIENT is Todd Little  
and is located at 3125 Conner Boulevard, Tallahassee, FL 32399. 

The Grant Manager for the SUBRECIPIENT is Larry Dean Hay  
and is located at 175 5th St. N., St. Petersburg, FL 33701.  

Federal resources awarded to the SUBRECIPIENT pursuant to this 
agreement are from U.S. Department of Agriculture Forest Service, 
federal financial assistance funding opportunity under FAIN # 22-
DG-11083112-001-A and Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance 
10.664, Cooperative Forestry Assistance. 

Signed by parties to this AGREEMENT: 

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 
AND CONSUMER SERVICES 

SUBRECIPIENT 

Signature  Signature

Director of Administration 
Title  Title

Date  Date

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3E622145-E330-4393-9A3E-70533E30E7DD

5/31/2023

Assistant City Administrator

6/2/2023



FDACS 02032 06/16 
Page 9 of 25 

Attachment A: Scope of work and 
budget plan 

rt l.• 
'i } 

. 

  WILTON SIMPSON 
COMMISSIONER 

Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services 
Division of Administration 

SCOPE OF WORK 
2 CFR 200 

1. Federal Financial Assistance Funding Opportunity Number: 12. Subrecipient FEIN:
22-DG-11083112-001-A 59-6000424
3. Subrecipient Legal Name:
City of St. Petersburg
Please note section XII Public Records in the Notice of Federal Financial Assistance Funding Opportunity before including 
any proprietary or confidential information. 

Performance Measures 
Deliverable 

# 
Item/Task Item/Task Description Costs per 

Unit 
Outcome Measures 

1 Air quality improvement Reduction in 2.5 PM sensor alerts $66.60 PM air sensor-measured monthly 

2 Summer heat index Reduction in summer heat index $66.60 Mobile temp monitoring-measured monthly 

3 Resident participation Resident participation in tree plantings $66.60 Rank participation Improvements-monthly 

4 Street flooding Increase in street flooding dissipation $66.60 Track flooding in Childs Park-per event 

5 Environmental Education Hold 2-3 youth environmental education sessions $66.60 Monitor tree knowledge through fun quizzes 

Describe in detail the activity or work to be conducted. 

This project will plant and maintain 149 native broadleaf, evergreen species shade trees (minimum 7-8' installation height)(at least 3 species selected from 
Right Tree/Right Place posters produced by the Florida Urban Forestry Council species) to ameliorate the historic climatic, environmental, and poor health 
conditions commonly found in Childs Park. The shade trees planted in this project, and subsequent plantings, will be mapped and tracked utilizing the city's 
TreePlotter software to share the expanding environmental/ecosystem benefits with city administration, District 7 council members, and community leaders. 

St. Pete's Citizen Forester group (volunteer tree citizen scientists), St. Pete Sustainability urban foresters, and neighborhood leaders will lead residents to 
complete the tree plantings over a six-week period starting in June 2023. This project will provide residents with an opportunity to improve the neighborhood 
conditions while air quality concerns are being addressed within the City of St. Pete. 

Ongoing environmental education sessions (2-3 per year) will be held by the project urban forester at the local YMCA to reinforce with youth the value of trees 
in their neighborhood. Performance measurables will be monitored in the following methods: 
1 Air quality improvement-number of high PM events (using EPA 2.5 PM standards) 
2. Summer heat index-number of heat index days with temp >103F
3. Resident participation-tracking of events and number of residents participating 
4. Street flooding-time measured for dissipation of worst street flooding per storm event
5. Environmental Education-Monitor student tree knowledge at end of each session 

City of St. Pete will collaborate with Keep Pinellas Beautiful (currently under contract) to assist with planting and volunteer logistics. Keep Pinellas Beautiful 
(KPB) will provide additional tools and educational curricula assistance. The project urban forester will coordinate the collaboration with KPB. 

This project can be incorporated into the 2023 planting calendar and follows the same scope of work as municipally funded planting projects The City's 2023 
volunteer tree planting goal is 500 trees (which includes this project). 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3E622145-E330-4393-9A3E-70533E30E7DD



FDACS 02032 06/16 
Page 13 of 25 

 WILTON SIMPSON 
COMMISSIONER 

Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services 
Division of Administration 

BUDGET PLAN 
2 CFR 200 

Federal Financial Assistance Funding Opportunity Number: I Subrecipient FEIN: 59_600042422-DG-11083112-001-A
Subrecipient Legal Name: City of St. Petersburg

C 

Category/Description Cost per Unit 
Number of 

Units Grant Amount Match Amount 
Personnel - N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Fringe Benefits - N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Travel (not authorized) N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Equipment (not authorized) N/A N/A N/A N/A 
Supplies - $8  $1,192 

Contractual (if authorized) - 100  $14,900 

Trees - $225  $33,525 

Other Expenses - N/A N/A NIA N/A 

Total Direct Charges $243 $49,617 
Indirect Charges - N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Total Amount $243  $49,617  

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3E622145-E330-4393-9A3E-70533E30E7DD



From: Little, Todd
To: Larry D. Hay
Subject: Florida Forest Service Grant
Date: Friday, February 17, 2023 10:24:11 AM
Attachments: St Pete Signed.pdf

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Good morning,
Congratulations, I am happy to share that your application was selected for a grant from the Florida
Forest Service’s 2022 urban and community forestry grant program! Please see the attached
welcome letter with some introductory information, and know that we will be in touch shortly with
more information after beginning the process of contract initiation on our end. In addition, you will
soon be receiving a physical copy of this welcome letter in the mail delivered to the address listed in
your grant application. Please don’t hesitate with any questions or concerns you have immediately.
Thanks,
Todd Little
Urban and Community Forestry Program Coordinator
Florida Forest Service
Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services
(850) 681-5874 office
Todd.Little@FDACS.gov
 
The Conner Building
3125 Conner Boulevard
Tallahassee, Florida 32399
www.FDACS.gov     
 
Please note that Florida has a broad public records law (Chapter 119, Florida Statutes).  Most written communications to or from state
employees are public records obtainable by the public upon request.  Emails sent to me at this address may be considered public and will
only be withheld from disclosure if deemed confidential pursuant to the laws of the State of Florida.
 



Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services
Division of Administration, Director's Office

INTERNAL CONTRACT ROUTE SLIP

Date:

Contract Period:

Services Required:

Appropriation Category:

Division:

Contract Manager:

Org Code:

EO:

Obj. Code:

To

Vendor Name: CITY ST PETERSBURG

FLORIDA FOREST SERVICE

LITTLE, TODD 

Upon Execution 42110622300

WH

780000

Commodity Code:

03/31/2024

050052

2022 Urban & Community Forestry Grant

Contract Administrator:   __________________________________________                 ______________

Legal Section:                    __________________________________________                 ______________

Finance and Accounting: __________________________________________                ______________

Purchasing Director:         __________________________________________                 ______________

Planning and Budgeting: __________________________________________                  ______________

05/18/2023

Contractor's FEID#: F596000424012

Rate of Compensation: Contract Amount:  $49,617.00

Signature

Signature

Division
Director: ___________________________   ________

Authorized
Supervisor: _____________________________  ________

Signature

Signature

Signature

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date

Signature Date DateSignature

Funding: General Revenue: NO

Trust Fund Name FEDERAL GRANTS TRUST FUND

   Federal Funding: YES

************   BELOW FOR USE BY DIVISION OF ADMINISTRATION ONLY   ***************

DACS-01084   05/01

*-16986957-1139-*

Procurement Method: EXEMPT - GOVERNMENT AGENCIES

16986957Scan Documents using Request Number : 

29916Contract :

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3E622145-E330-4393-9A3E-70533E30E7DD

5/31/2023

5/31/2023



Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services
Division of Administration, Director's Office

INTERNAL CONTRACT ROUTE SLIP

29916Contract Number

GDDFS Contract Type $49,617.00Original Contract Amt

CITY OF ST. PETERSBURGLong Title

CITY OF STShort Title

Execution Date Effective Date 03/31/2024Expiration Date

NAuthorized Advance Payment

State Term Contract or Alternate Source ID

Notice of Federal Funding Award - Agency Decisions
Contract Exempt Justification

22-DG-11083112-001-AAgency Solicitation Num

NBusiness Case Study Case Study Date

NLegal Challenges to Procurement
Legal Challenge Description

F.S. 589.04Contract Statutory Authority

YContract involves State or Fed Financial Aid State Fed

IRecipient Type

NProvide for Administrative Cost Administrative Cost Percent

NProvide for Periodic Increase Periodic Increase Percent

NWas the Contract Function  Previously performed by the State?

NWas the Contract Function Considered for Insourcing Back to the  State?

NDid the Vendor make Capital Improvements on State Property?

Capital Improvement  Description

Value of Capital Improvements?

Value of Unamortized Capital Improvements?

FACTS INFORMATION

SUBRECIPIENTS (FEDERAL ASSISTANCE ONLY)

%

%

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3E622145-E330-4393-9A3E-70533E30E7DD



Vendor List

Vendor Number Name Address Phone Number

F596000424 CITY ST PETERSBURG 175 5TH STREET NORTH 5513396

Funding Sets

Org Code EO Obj Code

42110622300 WH 780000 050052

App Cat

FLORIDA FOREST SERVICE

Division List

 $     49,617.00

LEHNERT, KAREN 

PETERS, LINDA B

BARRETT, GERRY 

STYS, JOHN E

EDWARDS, D A

DUNCAN, JOSEPH 

YARBROUGH, SALENA 

PANDYA, BRINDA 

FAIRCLOTH, MICHELLE O

DUNCAN, JOSEPH 

Approver

05/25/23 09:52

05/25/23 11:05

05/25/23 11:31

05/25/23 11:41

05/25/23 12:00

05/26/23 11:52

05/30/23 09:06

05/30/23 09:14

05/30/23 14:40

05/31/23 10:16

Date

DOF FINANCE

FFS FISCAL LIAISON

SPECIAL ACCT FORESTRY

DIVISION DIRECTOR - FLORIDA FOREST 
SERVICE
DEPUTY CHIEF OF STAFF FOR OPERATIONS

CONTRACT ADMIN 1ST STOP

POLICY AND BUDGET

FINANCE AND ACCOUNTING

GENERAL SERVICES

CONTRACT ADMIN FINAL

Routing Stop

Approvers List

Amount

Fund Description

FEDERAL GRANTS TRUST FUND - DAC42202261004421104000005005200

07/01/2022 RE

Account Code

FY Effective Dt  RE-NR

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3E622145-E330-4393-9A3E-70533E30E7DD



70151500

Commodity Code

Forestry management

Commodity

COST REIMBURSEMENT                          

Method of Payment 

 $49,617.00

Major Deliverable Price

Pages 19-20

Tree Planting

Subrecipient will accomplish deliverables stated in the scope of work.

The Department shall have all rights and remedies provided at law or in equity, including without limitation the 
following: Temporarily withhold cash payments, disallow all or part of the cost of the services not in compliance, or 
wholly or partly suspend or terminate the contract.

Deliverables

Financial Consequences

Performance Metrics

Major Deliverable

Non Price Justification

Source Documentation Reference Page

CSFA Code Description

CSFA

10.664

Code

COOPERATIVE FORESTRY ASSISTANCE

Description

CFDA

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3E622145-E330-4393-9A3E-70533E30E7DD



99 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: A Resolution approving the plat 

of YMCA - Riviera, generally located at 501 62nd Avenue Northeast; setting forth conditions; and 

providing an effective date. (City File No.: DRC 22-20000013) 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



F-4

F-4



 
 

ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 
 

Meeting of November 2, 2023 
 
TO:    The Honorable Council Chair Gabbard, and Members of City 

Council 
 
SUBJECT:   A Resolution approving the plat of YMCA - Riviera, generally 

located at 501 62nd Avenue Northeast; setting forth conditions; and 
providing an effective date. (City File No.: DRC 22-20000013) 

 
AGENDA CATEGORY: Consent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: The Administration recommends APPROVAL. 
 
DISCUSSION: The applicant is requesting approval of a plat to create one (1) platted lot.  The 
property previously consisted of 16 platted lots and portions of rights-of-way approved for vacation 
via City File: DRC 21-33000018.  The plat is required in order to assemble the lots for 
redevelopment of the property which is zoned Neighborhood Suburban, Single-Family (NS-1). 
 
The language in Condition 1 requires compliance with the conditions within the Engineering 
Memorandum dated September 22, 2023, prior to the closing out/completion of the right-of-way 
permit (22-1111-D-1074).  Engineering has confirmed that Condition #3 within their Memorandum 
has been satisfied. 
 
The language in Condition 2 requires compliance with all amended special conditions of approval 
within Resolution No. 2022-223 associated with the Special Exception and related Site Plan 
approved by City Council on May 12, 2022, which must be met prior to the occupancy of either 
the YMCA or the middle school (City File: DRC 21-32000015).   
 
BACKGROUND: This item is associated with a Special Exception and related Site Plan to 
construct a middle school and YMCA (City File: DRC 21-32000015).  The Development Review 
Commission at its public hearing on April 6, 2022, voted to approve the request which failed by a 
vote of 3-3, thereby denying the request.  The applicant appealed the request to City Council and 
at its public hearing on May 12, 2022, voted to approve the Resolution granting the appeal. The 
motion to approve the Resolution passed by a vote of 7 to 0, thereby granting the appeal and 
approving the request, subject to the amended special conditions of approval. 
 
Attachments: Location Map, Resolution, Engineering Memorandum dated September 22, 2023, 
Resolution No. 2022-223 
 
 
Reviewed and Approved by (signature and date): 
 Administrative: ___________________________________________________ 
 Budget: ____NA__________________________________________________ 
 Legal: __________________________________________________________ 



 

         

 

 
     

  
 

   
   

 
 

1111111111&..
-f.@IIIIIII 
~'\WIIIIII _. .... 

st.petersburg 
www.stpete.org 

Project Location Map 
City of St. Petersburg, Florida 

Planning and Development Services NDepartment 
Case No.: 22-20000013 (nts) 

Address: 501 62nd Avenue Northeast 



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE PLAT OF YMCA - 
RIVIERA, GENERALLY LOCATED AT 501 62ND AVENUE 
NORTHEAST; SETTING FORTH CONDITIONS FOR 
APPROVAL; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  (City 
File 22-20000013) 

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. Petersburg, Florida, that the plat 
of YMCA - Riviera, generally located at 501 62nd Avenue Northeast, is hereby approved, subject 
to the following conditions. 

1. Comply with Engineering conditions in the memorandum dated September 22,
2023, prior to the closing out/completion of the right-of-way permit (22-1111-D-
1074).

2. All amended special conditions of approval within Resolution No. 2022-223
associated with the Special Exception and related Site Plan approved by City
Council on May 12, 2022, must be met prior to the occupancy of either the YMCA
or the middle school (City File: DRC 21-32000015).

This resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND CONTENT: 

Planning & Development Services Dept. Date 

City Attorney (Designee) Date 
10/18/2023

10/16/23



YMCA - RIVIERA 
BEING A REPLAT OF LOTS 8 THROUGH 11 AND A PORTION OF LOT 12, BLOCK 4, LOT 1, BLOCK 5, AND LOTS 1 THAU 9 BLOCK 11, FLORIDA RMERA PLAT NO. 2, KNOWN AS BOULEVARD ESTATES, ACCORDING TO THE MAP OR 

PLAT THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 7, PAGE 71, PUBLIC RECORDS OF PINELLAS COUNTY, FLORIDA, TOGETHER WITH TRACT A AND LOT 1, BOULEVARD ESTATES SCHOOL REPLAT, ACCORDING TO THE MAP OR PLAT 
THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 59, PAGE 73, PUBLIC RECORDS OF PINELLAS COUNTY, FLORIDA, TOGETHER WITH VACATED RIGHTS OF WAY, LYING IN THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 31 AND THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF 

SECTION 32, TOWNSHIP 30 SOUTH, RANGE 17 EAST 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: 
From the Southeast corner of Tract A, BOULEVARD ESTATES SCHOOL REPLAT, as recorded in Plat Book 59, Page 73, Public Records of 
Pinellas County Florida as the Point of Beginning, said point being on the North right of way of 62nd Avenue Northeast (a 100 foot 
right of way); thence along said North right of way, S89'50'24"W, 1148.98 feet to the East right of way of Pershing Street Northeast (a 
60 foot right of way); thence along said East right of way the following four courses: N00"06'39"E, 250.05 feet to a point of curve; 
thence along the arc of a curve to the left, 365.47 feet, said curve having a radius of 910.28 feet, central angle of 23"00'14, chord 
N11"23'27"W, 363.02 feet to a point af compound curve; thence along the arc of a curve to the left, 83.54 feet, said curve having a 
radius of 708.94 feet. central angle of 6"45'06", chord N26" 16'07"W, 83.49 feet to a point of reverse curve; thence along the arc of a 
curve to the right, 17.83 feet, said curve having a radius of 10.00 feet, central angle of 102"09'41", chord N21"26'11"E, 15.56 feet to 
a point of tangency, said point being on the South right of way of 64th Avenue Northeast (a 60 foot right of way); thence along the 
South right of way of said 64th Avenue Northeast, N72"31 '01 E, 784.86 feet to the Northeast corner of Tract A of aforesaid BOULEVARD 
ESTATES SCHOOL REPLAT; thence along the easterly boundary of said Tract A, the following two courses; along the arc of a non-tangent 
curve to the right, 345.96 feet, said curve having a radius of 1401.12 feet, central angle of 14'08'50", chord S45'31 '31 "E, 345.08 feet 
to a point of compound curve; thence along the arc of a curve to the right, 744.62 feet, said curve having a radius of 1188.79 feet, 
central angle of 35'53'19", chord S20"30'27"E, 732.51 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

DEDICATION: 
The undersigned hereby certifies that it is the owner of the hereon described tract of land hereby platted as YMCA-RIVIERA, and that it 
dedicates to the public all streets, alleys, public easements, rights of way, and public areas shown on this plat of the subdivision of 
said lands. 

PINELLAS COUNTY SCHOOL BOARD, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 

Manda Rahgozar, PhD, P.E., Civil Engineer 

Witness 

(Print Name) 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT: 
STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF PINELLAS 

Witness 

(Print Name) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of --------~ 
Civil Engineerr of the PINELLAS COUNTY SCHOOL BOARD, A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION. 

He is personally known to me or has produced 

My commission expires: 

___________ as identification. 

A.O., 2023, by _______ ~ 

NOTARY PUBLIC, State of Florida at Large 
Commission Number: 

(Print Name) 

NOTICE: 
This plat, as recorded in its graphic form, is the official depiction of the subdivided lands described herein and will in no circumstances 
be supplanted in authority by any other graphic or digital form of the plat. There may be additional restrictions that are not recorded 
on this plat that may be found in the public records of this county. 

All platted utility easements shall provide that such easements shall also be easements for the canstruction, installation, maintenance 
and operation of cable television services; provided, however, no such construction, installation, maintenance and operation of cable 
televisian services shall interfere with the facilities and services of an electric, telephane, gas, or other public utility. In the event a 
cable television company damages the facilities of a public utility, it shall be solely responsible for the damages. This section shall nat 
apply to those private easements granted to ar obtained by a particular electric, telephone, gas, or other public utility. Such 
construction, installation, maintenance, and operation shall comply with the National Electrical Safety Code as adapted by the Florida 
Public Service Commission. 

George F. Young, Inc. LB 021 
299 Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Street North 
St. Petersburg, Florida 33701 

CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL BY THE cnx OF ST. PETERSBURG: 
APPROVED for the City of St. Petersburg, Pinellas County, Florida, this ---,- day of ------~ A.O., 202_; provided that this 
plat is recorded in the public records of Pinellas County, Florida, within six (6) months from the date of this approval. 

MAYOR 

APPROVED by the City Council of the City of St. Petersburg, Pinellas County, Florida, this ___ day of ------~ A.O., 202_. 

COUNCIL CHAIR 

CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL BY COUNTY CLERK: 
STATE OF FLORIDA 
COUNTY OF PINELLAS 

I, Ken Burke, Clerk of the Circuit Court of Pinellas County, Florida, hereby certify that this plat has been examined and that it complies 
in form with all the requirements of the Statutes of Florida pertaining to maps and plats and that this plat has been filed for record 
in 

Plat Book Pages Public Records of Pinellas County, Florida. 

Signed on this ___ day of ------~ A.O., 202_, at. ___ ~ 

By: 
Deputy Clerk 

(Print Name) 

Ken Burke, Clerk 
Pinellas County, Florida 

CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL OF THE CITY SURVEYOR: 
It is hereby certified that this Plat has been reviewed for canformity with the Platting requirements of Chapter 177, Part I of the 
Florida Statutes. The geometric data has not been verified. 

Timothy R. Collins 
Professional Surveyor and Mapper 
Florida License Number 6882 

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE: 

Date: 

I, Trevor Hatch, of George F. Young, Inc., the Surveyor making this plat, do hereby certify that this plat was prepared under my 
direction and supervision and that this plat complies with all the survey requirements of Part I, Chapter 177, Florida Statutes. 

Plat boundary surveyed on the 26th day of October, A.O., 2022. 

Lot corners surveyed on the 27th day of October, A.O., 2022. 

GEORGE F. YOUNG, INC., LB 021 
299 Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Street North 
St. Petersburg, FL 33701 
(727) 822-4317 

Trevor Hatch 
Florida Professional Surveyor & Mapper 
# LS 7443 

rn 

-l f (727) 822-4317 
SHEET 1 OF 2 J '-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------'' 

” 

” 



----
----

-----

YMCA - RIVIERA 
BEING A REPLAT OF LOTS 8 THROUGH 11 AND A PORTION OF LOT 12, BLOCK 4, LOT 1, BLOCK 5, AND LOTS 1THAU 9 BLOCK 11, FLORIDA RMERA PLAT NO. 2, KNOWN AS BOULEVARD ESTATES, ACCORDING TO THE MAP OR 

PLAT THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 7, PAGE 71, PUBLIC RECORDS OF PINELLAS COUNTY, FLORIDA, TOGETHER WITH TRACT A AND LOT 1, BOULEVARD ESTATES SCHOOL REPLAT, ACCORDING TO THE MAP OR PLAT 
THEREOF, AS RECORDED IN PLAT BOOK 59, PAGE 73, PUBLIC RECORDS OF PINELLAS COUNTY, FLORIDA, TOGETHER WITH VACATED RIGHTS OF WAY, LYING IN THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 31 AND THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF 

VICINITY MAP 
(NOT TO SCALE) 

Mttl Ave N 

87th il. veN Rivier.:, B.:,y 

811\'.1 Ave N 

Gateway 
k,1.:,II 

77 110Av,, N 

Gro r'd e 
Bilyau 

• 
i 

'ii 
52n:I Ave N 

5J th Ave N 49~, 17 Ave N 

z 48th A\'e N 
47r Ave N .•46 1h A\·e N .r: 

45th AveN 
4•ll h Ave N I 44t h A"" N[ 

z 43rd ~i'f,f ~""' N 43 rd Aw, NE 42nd Ave NE 

4h! Ao,:1'-! - :: 41s t A,•e NEr
: oo 40th Me NE 
,: ,;a 3'9th A¥eNE 

38\hAve I< {ili) "' 38 th Avr-NE 
37rhAve NE 

c,~r,36t~ Ave N 
J:Jlll Ave tJ !"'ar k 

'.14111 Ase N 

z 
ill 32 rd Av,i N 

EASEMENT DETAIL 

I 
r ---- ,-

1 
I 

-
I 
I 
I 
I 
L 

NOTES 
1. Bearings and coordinates utilized hereon is relative to the Florida State 

Plane Coordinate System, West Zone, North American Datum of 1983, 
2011 adjustment as established using the public Florida Department of 
Transportation's (FDOT) Florida Permanent Reference Network (FPRN) of 
fixed base stations. The South boundary of the hereon described 
property bears S89"50'24"W. 

2. All easements as shown hereon, are dedicated by this plat unless 
otherwise stated. 

3. All easements shown hereon as previously dedicated in various recorded 
documents are not being re-dedicated by this plat. 

,a 
0 

0N 
,a 
Cl! 

LEGEND 
"'1 
'0, 

~ = Centerline ""0 

~ 

FCM = Found Concrete Monument •0 
0SN&D = Set Nail and Disc

E z 
ID = Identification 
LB = Licensed Business 
LS = Licensed Surveyor 
O.R. = Official Records 

s P.B. = Plat Book 
PLS = Professional Land Surveyor

40 80 
PRM = Permanent Reference Monumenti--•; I 

80 o SCM = Set Concrete Monument 
SCALE: 1" = 80' 

George F. Young, Inc. LB 021 
299 Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Street North 
St. Petersburg, Florido 33701l f (727) 822-4317 

SECTION 32, TOWNSHIP 30 SOUTH, RANGE 17 EAST 

~~ ~o 2 
vv'\'.st"~s 

i-~i- s~._~, 
f\,O 1~"i.S ~o~, l'i>l ' 
~o~?V-°\,aoo .b~ 

&;,~ 
~~ 

,,,.~ 

\ 0 

\. 0 e 

~A---SCM 4"x4" 
"PRM LB 021" 

0 "' 

1 
..; 

B.OO' 89'56'42"E 221.58'- ---

..... ..... ~ 
' ' 

NE CORNER OF TRACT "A", 

Gra nde Bayou 

--- - -- - ------ -+-- - --- - -- - -------- - ---------------------------------

S89"50'24"W 1148.98' 

LINE TABLE 

LINE # LENGTH DIREC"TlON LINE # LENGTH DIREC"TlON LINE # LENGTH DIREC"TlON LINE # LENGTH DIREC"TlON LINE # LENGTH DIREC"TlON 

L1 J.92' 55117'44"W L10 23.43' 51T26'06"E L19 57.84' N1J"J9'40"W L28 55.25' 582'59'J6"E L37 67.18' 528'58'09"E 

L2 4.99' 540'56'15"E L11 88.42' S1T26'06"E L20 79.11' N21°26'24"W L29 55.04' S20°25'41"E L38 55.24' S4018'44"E 

L3 4.16' S50"32'26"W L12 60.39' S23°28'02"E L21 21.14' N78'25'12"E L30 44.63' S04°26'57"W 

L4 18.00' S1917'36"E L13 52.75' N11'56'J6"E L22 42.84' SB8°25'57"E LJ1 87.84' SOJ"J9'J9"E 

L5 16.JB' S00'37' 47"E L14 34.80' N15'56'14"W L2J 193.35' S81'35'59"E L32 45.82' S63'55'02"W 

LS 32.87' S86'57'55"E L15 38.31' N10"48'35"W L24 49.99' N85'26'51"E L3J 64.10' S13'34'48"E 

L7 14.62' SJT29'49"E L16 37.84' N35'51'21 "E L25 71.00' S29'05'01 "E L34 133.27' SOB'JJ'17"E 

LB 10.45' S77'20' 4 7"W L17 32.481 N40'5J'50°E L26 120.34' S22'24'1 B"E L35 81.481 N85-0S104"E 

L9 6.95' S24'59' 45"W L1B 57.10' N44'0J'59"W L27 70.56' N8B°29' J2"E L36 73.11' S2510'15"E 

BOULEVARD ESTATES 
PLAT BOOK 59, PAGE9 
SCM 4"X4" 

C '/-. "PRM LB 021"0 
e I-

- j'., ~j'., 
- ~~\J ll') 

'V 'V4,'\'.\\ " "~._1-11.l<-
6 ~l'~ol'I • 1'-/'tl ci'~o) 'V 'V 'V 'V"" &O 0._01 

ll'"-"'101.ls1.--< w 'V 'V 'V 'V 'V 

'V 'V 'V 'V 'V 'V 
------ JURISDICTIONAL WETLAND -----

A PORTION OF THAT UTILITYCMENT DESCRIBE:JIN 1O' LANDSCAPE BUFFER 
11709, PAGE 619 

-----<>,89"45'23"E 268.22'(M}-- --- ----->89'57'35"E 409.89'(M)-

SCHOOL REPLAT 
73 

MANGROVE BAY GOLF COURSE 
(UNPLATTED) 

SCM 4"x4" 
/ "PRM LB 021" 

'V 

'V 

'V 

'V 

'V 'V 

'V 

'V 'V 

POINT OF BEGINNING 
NORTH RIGHT OF WAYFCM 4"X4" SE CORNER OF TRACT "A",62ND AVENUE NE OF 62ND AVENUE NE(LB 6472) BOULEVARD ESTATES SCHOOL REPLAT100' R/W 

PLAT BOOK 59, PAGE 73(PREVIOUSLY DEDICATED) 
FCM 3"X3" 

(ZBI PRM LB 6472) 

CURVE TABLE 

CURVE

* LENGlH RAOIUS CHORD 
DIRECTION 

CHORD 
LENGlH 

C1 365.47' 910.28' N11°2J'27"W 363.02' 

C2 83.54' 708.94' N2616'07"W 83.49' 

CJ 17.83' 10.00' N21 °26'11 "E 15.56' 

C4 345.96' 1401.12' S45'31 '31 "E 345.08' 

cs 744.62' 1188.79' S20'J0'27"E 732.51' 

C6 48.23' 801.51' S41°22'22"E 48.23' 

C7 43.63' 1631.84' SJ8'57'15"E 43.63' 

CB 5.34' 1631.84' SJ7'55'0J"E 5.34' 

C9 115.02' 960.00' SJ4°23'21 "E 114.96' 

CURVE TABLE 

CURVE

* LENGlH RADIUS CHORD 
DIRECTION 

CHORD 
LENGlH 

C10 94.44 910.28 S19'55'14 "E 94.40 

C11 10.00 910.28 S16'38'01"E 10.00 

C12 11.29 910.28 S15'57' 48"E 11.29 

C1J 50.01 910.28 S14 '02'0J"E 50.01 

C14 199.72 910.28 S0610'29"E 199.32 

'.'I 

-
C•' 

" 

-
J) 

rn 

" 
? ,.. 
u 

-

SHEET 2 OF 2 J'----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------'' 

C 



 
 

 
 

 
     

   
   

      
    

 
 

   
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  
  

                          
 

  
 
 

      
 
 

   
 
 

 
 

  
    

     
  

       
     

   
       

 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

MEMORANDUM 
CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG 

ENGINEERING & CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS DEPARTMENT (ECID) 

TO: Scot Bolyard, Deputy Zoning Official 
FROM: Kyle Hurin, Plans Review Supervisor 
DATE: September 22nd, 2023 
SUBJECT: Final Plat – YMCA- Riviera Final Plat 
FILE: 22-20000013 R3 

ADDRESSES: 
400 DAVENPORT AVE NE 
410 DAVENPORT AVE NE 
428 DAVENPORT AVE NE 
434 DAVENPORT AVE NE 
401 DAVENPORT AVE NE 
411 DAVENPORT AVE NE 
421 DAVENPORT AVE NE 
435 DAVENPORT AVE NE 
440 DAVENPORT AVE NE 
6309 PERSHING ST NE 
410 64TH AVE NE 
501 62ND AVE NE 
418 64TH AVE NE 

PARCEL ID NO: 
31-30-17-28494-004-0080 
31-30-17-28494-004-0100 
31-30-17-28494-004-0110 
31-30-17-28494-004-0120 
31-30-17-28494-011-0010 
31-30-17-28494-011-0020 
31-30-17-28494-011-0030 
31-30-17-28494-011-0040 
32-30-17-10458-000-0011 
31-30-17-28494-011-0060 
31-30-17-28494-011-0070 
32-30-17-10458-000-0010 
31-30-17-28494-011-0080 

ZONING: Neighborhood Suburban, Single Family (NS-1) 

REQUEST: Approval of the YMCA – Riviera Final Plat 

The Engineering and Capital Improvements Department (ECID) has no objection to the proposed 
provided the following special conditions and standard comments are added as conditions of approval: 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: 

1. It is acknowledged that some of the following items may have already been addressed with the 
submittal of the associated right of way permit (22-1111-D-1074), vacations (21-33000018 and 22-
33000021) and special exception (21-32000015) conditions but remain listed below as 
documentation since the vacations and final plat are being processed concurrently with 
construction. All the conditions of right of way permit (22-1111-D-1074), vacations (21-33000018 
and 22-33000021) and special exception (21-32000015) remain applicable to the development and 
replat of this site and remain a condition of this approval. ECID conditions of the associated DRC 
approvals will be verified prior to Engineering departmental closeout of the right of way permit. 



  
  

    
 

   
  

  
 

       
    

      
      

    
  

  
     

 
   

  
     

 
   

  
     

 
 

 
    

      
      

 
   

 
  

      
    

   
      

   
 

   
 

      
  

   
 

Application 22-20000013 R3 
ECID Review Narrative 
Page 2 of 6 

2. The public sanitary sewer and potable watermain which exists within the vacated portions of 
Davenport Avenue Northeast and Pine Street Northeast are to be removed per the conditions of 
DRC 21-33000018. 

3. The current vacation submittal (DRC 22-33000021) includes the entire public purpose easements 
dedicated per OR book 11709 page 619-628. Portions of this easement will need to be retained 
per my comments listed below and the vacations be revised accordingly. The final plat has been 
updated to correctly show the retained easement area, but the revised vacation needs to be 
submitted and approved prior to final plat recordation. 

a. There is a 6-inch potable watermain within the eastern parkway of Pershing Street 
Northeast which requires 15-feet of accessible right of way or easement centered on the 
main, any portion of the existing public purpose easement encompassed by this 15-feet 
shall remain and be shown on the revised vacation. 

b. There is an 8-inch potable watermain within the northern parkway of 62nd Avenue 
Northeast which requires 20-feet of accessible right of way or easement centered on the 
main, any portion of the existing public purpose easement encompassed by this 20-feet 
shall remain and be shown on the revised vacation. 

c. There is an 8-inch sanitary sewer main within the northern parkway of 62nd Avenue 
Northeast which requires 20-feet of accessible right of way or easement centered on the 
main, any portion of the existing public purpose easement encompassed by this 20-feet 
shall remain and be shown on the revised vacation. 

STANDARD COMMENTS: Water service is available to the site.  The applicant’s Engineer shall coordinate 
potable water and /or fire service requirements through the City’s Water Resources department. Recent 
fire flow test data shall be utilized by the site Engineer of Record for design of fire protection system(s) 
for this development.  Any necessary system upgrades or extensions shall be performed at the expense 
of the developer. 

Water and fire services and/or necessary backflow prevention devices shall be installed below ground in 
vaults per City Ordinance 1009-g (unless determined to be a high hazard application by the City’s Water 
Resources department or a variance is granted by the City Water Resources department).  Note that the 
City’s Water Resources Department will require an exclusive easement for any meter or backflow device 
placed within private property boundaries.  City forces shall install all public water service meters, 
backflow prevention devices, and/or fire services at the expense of the developer.  Coordinate a review 
with the City’s Water Resources department Technical Services Division via email to 
WRDUtilityreview@stpete.org, or phone 727-892-5334 for additional information. 

All portions of a private fire suppression system shall remain within the private property boundaries and 
shall not be located within the public right of way (i.e. post indicator valves, fire department connections, 
etc.). 



  
  

    
 

  
       

     
      

     
  

     
      

  
  

      
   

  
  

  
  

      
  

     
    

        
   

      
     

  
    
 

   
    

   
 

  
  

      
   

   
 

    
  

 
     

 
   

  
   

    
      

    
   

Application 22-20000013 R3 
ECID Review Narrative 
Page 3 of 6 

Wastewater reclamation plant and pipe system capacity will be verified prior to development permit 
issuance. Any necessary sanitary sewer pipe system upgrades or extensions (resulting from proposed new 
service or significant increase in projected flow) as required to provide connection to a public main of 
adequate capacity and condition, shall be performed by and at the sole expense of the applicant. 
Proposed design flows (ADF) must be provided by the Engineer of Record on the wastewater Concurrency 
Form (ECID Form Permit 005), available upon request from the City Engineering department, phone 727-
893-7238.   If an increase in flow of over 3000 gpd is proposed, the ADF information will be forwarded for 
a system analysis of public main sizes 10 inches and larger proposed to be used for connection. The project 
engineer of record must provide and include with the project plan submittal 1) a completed wastewater 
Concurrency Form, and 2) a capacity analysis of public mains less than 10 inches in size which are proposed 
to be used for connection.  If the condition or capacity of the existing public main is found insufficient, the 
main must be upgraded to the nearest downstream manhole of adequate capacity and condition, by and 
at the sole expense of the developer.  The extent or need for system improvements cannot be determined 
until proposed design flows and sanitary sewer connection plan are provided to the City for system 
analysis of main sizes 10” and larger.  Connection charges are applicable and any necessary system 
upgrades or extensions shall meet current City Engineering Standards and Specifications and shall be 
performed by and at the sole expense of the developer. 

Please assure that the developer’s design professional(s) coordinate with Duke Energy regarding any 
landscaping proposed under Duke’s overhead transmission or distribution systems or necessary Duke pole 
relocations or installations prior to proceeding with further development of this site plan to assure that 
the design has provided adequate space for any Duke Energy equipment which may be required to be 
placed within the private property boundary to accommodate the building power needs.  Early 
coordination is necessary to avoid additional expense and project delays which may occur if plans must 
be changed later in the building/site design stage as necessary to accommodate power systems on and 
off site.  Please initiate contact via email to newconstruction@duke-energy.com . 

*Needs for on-street decorative lighting or additional street lighting must be coordinated through 
Michael.Kirn@stpete.org, the City’s liaison with Duke Energy.  All lighting shall be installed at the 
developer’s expense. 

A work permit issued by the City Engineering & Capital Improvements Department must be obtained prior 
to the commencement of construction within City controlled right-of-way or public easement.  All work 
within right of way or public utility easement shall be in compliance with current City Engineering 
Standards and Specifications and shall be installed at the applicant's expense in accordance with the 
standards, specifications, and policies adopted by the City. 

Engineering Standard Details are available at the City’s Website at the following link: 
https://www.stpete.org/business/building_permitting/forms_applications.php 

City infrastructure maps are available via email request to ECID@stpete.org.  All City infrastructure 
adjacent to and within the site must be shown on the development project’s construction plans. 

The scope of this project will trigger compliance with the Drainage and Surface Water Management 
Regulations as found in City Code Section 16.40.030.  Submit drainage calculations which conform to the 
water quantity and the water quality requirements of City Code Section 16.40.030.  Please note the 
volume of runoff to be treated shall include all off-site and on-site areas draining to and co-mingling with 
the runoff from that portion of the site which is redeveloped. Stormwater runoff release and retention 
shall be calculated using the Rational formula and a 10-year 1-hour design storm. 



  
  

    
 
 

      
     

    
   

   
 

 
      

 
   

 
   

    
      

 
 

  
     

     
    

   
 

  
    

      
     

   
   

    
   

   
     

  
     

      
     
     

 
  

 
     

    
   

     
   

   

Application 22-20000013 R3 
ECID Review Narrative 
Page 4 of 6 

Stormwater systems which discharge directly or indirectly into impaired waters must provide net 
improvement for the pollutants that contribute to the water body’s impairment.   The BMPTrains model 
shall be used to verify compliance with Impaired Water Body and TMDL criteria.  Prior to approval of a 
plan, the owner's engineer of record shall verify that existing public infrastructure has sufficient capacity 
or will have sufficient capacity prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy, to convey the drainage flow 
after considering the current and proposed infrastructure demand. 

Prior to approval of a plan, the owner's engineer of record shall verify that existing public infrastructure 
has sufficient capacity or will have sufficient capacity prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy, to 
convey the drainage flow after considering the current and proposed infrastructure demand. 

Plan and profile showing all paving, drainage, sanitary sewers, and water mains (seawalls if applicable) to 
be provided to the Engineering Department for review and coordination by the applicant's engineer for 
all construction proposed or contemplated within dedicated right of way or easement. 

City approval of a Construction Access Plan (CAP) is a conceptual approval.  Final approval of a Temporary 
Traffic Control plan, phased implementation schedule, public sidewalk closures/detours, bicycle lane 
detours, vehicular or parking lane closures, etc. requires detailed review & approval by City ECID at the 
time of construction. TTC plans must be coordinated through Traffic.Control@stpete.org.  Approval of a 
CAP plan does not assure approval and ECID permitting of a final Temporary Traffic Control plan & 
implementation schedule. 

The site-specific Temporary Traffic Control (TTC) plan in compliance with FDOT “Uniform Traffic Control 
Devices for Streets and Highways” and “Roadways and Traffic Design Standards” for submittal to City ECID 
for approval prior to initiating construction. All Traffic Control Plans shall meet the requirements of the 
FDOT Standard Plans Index 102-600 – 102-655 and be prepared by or certified by an individual that 
possesses a current Advanced MOT Course certification. The site specific TTC plan shall provide for 
pedestrian and vehicular safety during the construction process and shall minimize the use of the public 
right of way for construction purposes.  Roadway travel lane closures are discouraged and will be 
approved at the discretion of the City’s Engineering director pending receipt of adequate justification. 
Impacts to the Pinellas Trail and bicycle lanes are discouraged and will require approval of a detour plan 
by City Transportation and City ECID.  The TTC plan shall be prepared in compliance with City Engineering’s 
“Temporary Traffic Control Plan Requirements”, available upon request from the City Engineering & 
Capital Improvements department.  Proposed use of on-street public parking spaces for construction 
purposes must receive prior approval from the City’s Transportation and Parking Management division. 
Refer to the City’s “Parking Meter Removal & Space Rental Policy During Construction” procedure, 
available upon request from the City Transportation and Parking Management department. 

Note that contractor introduction letters must be sent to all surrounding businesses, associations, and 
property owners prior to implementing any Temporary Traffic Control plan.  As a minimum, the letter 
must give a description of the project,  provide a list of all right of way impacts (parking impacts, travel 
lane impacts, sidewalk closures and temporary pedestrian paths, etc.), a schedule for each phase of the 
TTC implementation, and what to expect with regard to noise, delivery trucks, concrete trucks & pumps, 
as well as contact information for the on-site contractor’s representative with 24 hour availability who is 
responsible for addressing any and all concerns of impacted citizens.  The contractor must personally visit 
each operating business around the construction site and make direct contact with any active business 



  
  

    
 

   
    

      
   

   
 

      
    

 
   

   
 

      
   

  
     

 
    

    
     

   
     

  
    

     
  

   
     

 
 
    

 
     
    

 
   

 
 

    
 

   
  

      
 

    
    

 
   

     

Application 22-20000013 R3 
ECID Review Narrative 
Page 5 of 6 

association or neighborhood association and personally introduce themselves to the business owners and 
association presidents.  The contractor must also meet with any association representatives and property 
owners periodically to address any concerns that may develop as the project proceeds. The contractor is 
required to provide a copy of the letter and summary of when and who was contacted prior to 
implementing any City approved TTC plan. 

*Use of the public right of way for construction purposes shall include mill and overlay in full lane widths 
per City ECID standards and specifications. 

Redevelopment within this site shall be coordinated as may be necessary to facilitate any City Capital 
Improvement projects in the vicinity of the site. 

Development plans shall include a grading plan to be submitted to the Engineering Department including 
street crown elevations.  Lots shall be graded in such a manner that all surface drainage shall be in 
compliance with the City's stormwater management requirements. A grading plan showing the building 
site and proposed surface drainage shall be submitted to the engineering director. 

Per land development code 16.40.050, habitable floor elevations for commercial projects must be set per 
FEMA and building code requirements as administered by the building official. Per land development 
code 16.40.140.4.6 the construction site upon the lot shall be a minimum of one foot above the average 
grade crown of the road, which crown elevation shall be as set by the engineering director. Adequate 
swales shall be provided on the lot in any case where filling obstructs the natural ground flow. In no case 
shall the elevation of the portion of the site where the building is located be less than an elevation of 103 
feet according to City datum. *It is noted that meeting required building floor elevations often 
necessitates elevating existing public sidewalks. Please note that transitions to adjacent public sidewalks 
shall be smooth, consistent, and ADA compliant with maximum cross slope of 2% and maximum 
longitudinal slope of 5%.  Ramps may only be used at driveways and intersections, not mid-block in the 
main sidewalk path. 

Development plans shall include a copy of a Southwest Florida Water Management District Management 
of Surface Water Permit or Letter of Exemption or evidence of Engineer’s Self Certification to FDEP. 

It is the developer’s responsibility to file a CGP Notice of Intent (NOI) (DEP form 62- 21.300(4)(b)) to the 
NPDES Stormwater Notices Center to obtain permit coverage if applicable. 

Submit a completed Stormwater Management Utility Data Form to the City Engineering Department. 

Public sidewalks are required by City of St. Petersburg Municipal Code Section 16.40.140.4.2 unless 
specifically limited by the DRC approval conditions. 

Existing sidewalks and new sidewalks will require curb cut ramps for physically handicapped and truncated 
dome tactile surfaces (of contrasting color to the adjacent sidewalk, colonial red color preferred) at all 
corners or intersections with roadways that are not at sidewalk grade and at each side of proposed and 
existing driveways per current City and ADA requirements.  Concrete sidewalks must be continuous 
through all driveway approaches. All existing public sidewalks must be restored or reconstructed as 
necessary to be brought up to good and safe ADA compliant condition prior to Certificate of Occupancy. 

The applicant will be required to submit to the Engineering Department copies of all permits from other 
regulatory agencies including but not limited to FDOT, FDEP, SWFWMD and Pinellas County, as required 



  
  

    
 

   
 
 

  
 

    
    
 
 

Application 22-20000013 R3 
ECID Review Narrative 
Page 6 of 6 

for this project. Plans specifications are subject to approval by the Florida state board of Health. 

KJH/akp 

ec:  Sean McWhite – WRD 
Maria R. Sciddurlo – Development Review Services 









115 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Proposed text amendments to 

the City Code of Ordinances Chapter 16 (Land Development Regulations) and Chapter 17.5 

(Housing Assistance) pertaining to an update to the existing alternative housing affordability site 

plan review process related to SB 102 known as the “Live Local Act”. (City File: LDR 2023-03 and 

Chapter 17.5 Amendments) 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



G-1

G-1



ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 

Meeting of November 2, 2023 

TO: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair, and Members of City Council 

SUBJECT:  Proposed text amendments to the City Code of Ordinances Chapter 16 (Land 
Development Regulations) and Chapter 17.5 (Housing Assistance) pertaining to an 
update to the existing alternative housing affordability site plan review process 
related to SB 102 known as the “Live Local Act”. (City File: LDR 2023-03 and 
Chapter 17.5 Amendments): 

Ordinance 565-H, an ordinance of the City of St. Petersburg, Florida amending the 
City’s Land Development Regulations; amending Section 16.01.040. to preclude 
application of the Land Development Regulations to certain affordable housing 
projects approved pursuant to Section 166.04151(6) or pursuant to 
166.04151(7)(a), Florida Statutes; and providing an effective date. 

Ordinance 564-H, an ordinance of the City of St. Petersburg, Florida amending 
Chapter 17.5 of the City code related to housing assistance; amending the existing 
process pursuant to Sections 166.04151(6) and 166.04151(7(a), Florida Statutes, 
wherein the City may administratively approve the development of housing that is 
affordable in designated zoning categories subject to procedural and site 
compatibility requirements; providing for severability; and providing an effective 
date. 

BACKGROUND: 
In 2020, the Florida State Legislature passed House Bill 1339, which included a provision permitting 
the governing body of a municipality to approve an affordable and/or workforce development on any 
parcel zoned for residential, commercial or industrial.  In 2021, three ordinances were adopted which 
permitted City Council to review and potentially approve affordable and/or workforce development 
proposals in Neighborhood Traditional, Neighborhood Suburban, Industrial Traditional and Industrial 
Suburban zoning districts without requiring a rezoning or change of Future Land Use.  The ordinance 
which included the process and review criteria for City Council to follow is included in Chapter 17.5 
of the City Code. In the 2023 legislative session, Senate Bill 102 (SB 102) known as the “Live Local 
Act” was passed and signed by the governor. SB 102 included the following two subsections (changes 
shown in strike-through/underline format): 

(6) Notwithstanding any other law or local ordinance or regulation to the contrary, the governing body
of a municipality may approve the development of housing that is affordable, as 433 defined in s.
420.0004, including, but not limited to, a mixed-use residential development, on any parcel zoned for
residential, commercial or industrial use; and



(7)(a) A municipality must authorize multifamily and mixed-use residential as allowable uses in any 
area zoned for commercial, industrial, or mixed use if at least 40 percent of the residential units in a 
proposed multifamily rental development are, for a period of at least 30 years, affordable as defined 
in s. 420.0004. Notwithstanding any other law, local ordinance, or regulation to the contrary, a 
municipality may not require a proposed multifamily development to obtain a zoning or land use 
change, special exception, conditional use approval, variance, or comprehensive plan amendment for 
the building height, zoning, and densities authorized under this subsection.  For mixed-use residential 
projects, at least 65 percent of the total square footage must be used for residential purposes. 

The purpose of these amendments is as follows: 
1. To bring Chapter 16 into conformance with this statutory change by amending 16.01.040 to delete

the “residential” option previously allowed under subsection (6) and to add the language from
subsection (7)(a) requiring administrative approval for qualifying projects. The related change to
the Comprehensive Plan was approved by City Council on September 28, 2023 (LGCP 2023-02);
and

2. Modify the Affordable Housing Site Plan Approval process (Section 17.5-111 ) in response
to SB 102, the “Live Local Act” as follows:
• Add an Administrative process for 40% Mandatory projects (F.S. Section

166.04151(7)(a)), subject to same minimum review criteria as 30% projects;
• Establish Neighborhood Suburban Multi-family (NSM) as the standard for Industrial

zoning districts;
• Amend standards for 30% Optional Projects (F.S. Section 166.04151(6)) as follows:

o Eliminate the 5-acre minimum for industrial zoning districts
o Reduce 60-unit minimum to 10-unit minimum for industrial zoning districts
o Change process to Administrative, eliminating the required Public Hearing

• Add an Appeal process for applicants; and
• Add a 30-day Public Comment Period

RECOMMENDATION: 
Administration:  City staff recommends APPROVAL. 
Public Input:  No public comments have been received at this time. On September 19, 2023, 
staff presented the changes to the Affordable Housing Advisory Committee. There were no 
questions or concerns expressed by the committee. Additionally, information and the draft 
ordinance has been provided to interested developers and no questions or comments have been 
received. 
Development Review Commission (DRC):  On June 7, 2023, the DRC conducted a public 
hearing regarding the Comprehensive Plan text amendment and by a vote of 6 to 1 made a 
finding of internal consistency with the City’s Comprehensive Plan.  
Previous City Council Action: At the Committee of the Whole meetings on July 27 and August 
24, 2023, staff provided presentations on the Live Local Act and options for amending the 
Affordable Housing Site Plan Review process in Chapter 17.5. The committee voted for staff to 
bring back the attached ordinance changes. 

Recommended City Council Action: 

1) CONDUCT the first reading and set the second reading and adoption public hearing of
the attached proposed ordinances for November 30, 2023

Attachments: Ordinances and DRC Staff Report 



Page 1 of 2 

Ord. No. 565-H 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ST. 
PETERSBURG, FLORIDA AMENDING THE 
CITY’S LAND DEVELOPMENT
REGULATIONS; AMENDING SECTION 
16.01.040.  TO PRECLUDE APPLICATION OF 
THE LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS 
TO CERTAIN AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
PROJECTS APPROVED PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 166.04151(6) OR PURSUANT TO 
166.04151(7)(a), FLORIDA STATUTES; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

The City of St. Petersburg does ordain: 

SECTION ONE. Section 16.01.040. of the St. Petersburg City Code is hereby amended to read 
as follows: 

Sec. 16.01.040. - Applicability. 

This chapter applies to all development in the City, except for Affordable Housing projects 
approved pursuant to F.S. 166.04151(6), which states, in pertinent part, that notwithstanding any 
other law or local ordinance or regulation to the contrary, the governing body of a municipality 
may approve the development of housing that is affordable, as defined in s. 420.0004, on any 
parcel zoned for residential commercial or industrial use or pursuant to F.S. 166.04151(7)(a), 
which states, in pertinent part, a  municipality must authorize multifamily and mixed-use 
residential as allowable uses in any area zoned for commercial, industrial, or mixed use if at least 
40 percent of the residential units in a proposed multifamily rental development are, for a period 
of at least 30 years, affordable as defined in s. 420.0004. No development shall be undertaken 
except as authorized by this chapter. No structure shall be erected, converted, enlarged, 
reconstructed or structurally altered, nor shall any structure or land be used or occupied which 
does not comply with all the regulations established by this chapter for the district in which the 
building or land is located. When a violation of this chapter exists on any property, no 
development permits shall be issued for such property, except permits which are necessary to 
correct the violation or for necessary maintenance, until the violation is corrected. 

SECTION TWO. Coding. As used in this ordinance, language appearing in struck-through type 
is language to be deleted from the City Code, and underlined language is language to be added to 
the City Code, in the section, subsection, or other location where indicated. Language in the City 
Code not appearing in this ordinance continues in full force and effect unless the context clearly 
indicates otherwise.  

SECTION THREE. Effective Date. In the event this Ordinance is not vetoed by the Mayor in 
accordance with the City Charter, it shall become effective upon the expiration of the fifth 
business day after adoption unless the Mayor notifies the City Council through written notice 



Page 2 of 2 

filed with the City Clerk that the Mayor will not veto this Ordinance, in which case this 
Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon filing such written notice with the City 
Clerk.  In the event this Ordinance is vetoed by the Mayor in accordance with the City Charter, it 
shall not become effective unless and until the City Council overrides the veto in accordance 
with the City Charter, in which case it shall become effective immediately upon a successful vote 
to override the veto.   

LEGAL: DEPARTMENT: 

____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Assistant City Attorney 
00705466.docx 



Page 1 of 12 

Ord. No. 564-H 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF ST. 
PETERSBURG, FLORIDA AMENDING 
CHAPTER 17.5 OF THE CITY CODE RELATED 
TO HOUSING ASSISTANCE; AMENDING THE 
EXISTING PROCESS PURSUANT TO 
SECTIONS 166.04151(6) AND 166.04151(7(a), 
FLORIDA STATUTES, WHEREIN THE CITY 
MAY ADMINISTRATIVELY APPROVE THE 
DEVELOPMENT OF HOUSING THAT IS 
AFFORDABLE IN DESIGNATED ZONING 
CATEGORIES SUBJECT TO PROCEDURAL 
AND SITE COMPATIBILITY REQUIREMENTS; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

The City of St. Petersburg does ordain: 

SECTION ONE. Section 17.5-19. of the St. Petersburg City Code is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 17.5-19. Intent and purpose. 

(a) The intent of the local housing assistance program (the program) is:
(1) To increase the availability of affordable housing units by combining local resources and

cost-saving measures into a local housing partnership and using public funds to leverage
private funds, thereby reducing the cost of housing;

(2) To assist in achieving the growth management goals contained in the adopted local
comprehensive plan, by allowing more efficient use of land so as to provide housing
units that are affordable to persons who have special housing needs, very-low income,
low-income, or moderate-income;

(3) To promote innovative design of eligible housing that provides cost savings; flexible
design options for housing and development such as the combination of architectural
styles, building forms, and development requirements; and positive design features such
as orientation towards the street and pedestrian access, without compromising the quality
of the eligible housing;

(4) To promote mixed-income housing in urban and suburban areas so as to provide
increased housing and economic opportunities for persons who have special housing
needs, or have very low-income, low-income, or moderate-income; and

(5) To build the organizational and technical capacity of community-based organizations so
as to optimize the role of community-based organizations in the production of affordable
housing.



 
 

 
    Created: 2023-03-20 18:58:49 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 44) 

 
Page 2 of 12 

(6) To provide for a process pursuant to F.S. §§ 166.04151(6) and 166.04151(7)(a) for City 
Council administrative review of affordable housing projects that are may not otherwise 
be allowed under Chapter 16 of City Code.  

(b) The purpose of this article is to aid in achieving the intent of the program while providing for:  
(1) Protection of natural resources;  
(2) Enhancement of the viability of public transit, pedestrian circulation, and non-motorized 

modes of transportation;  
(3) Community development and economic growth; and  
(4) A strong sense of community through increased social and economic integration. 

 
SECTION TWO. Section 17.5-110. of the St. Petersburg City Code is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

Sec. 17.5-110. Intent and purpose. 

The City recognizes that housing affordability continues to be an important issue to the 
citizens of St. Petersburg. The City further recognizes that its Land Development Regulations 
(LDRs) may sometimes be an impediment to the establishment of affordable housing on certain 
sites that may otherwise be appropriate for such development. The intent and purpose of this article 
is to create an alternative process to that which is outlined in the City's LDRs for the provision of 
affordable housing in certain residential commercial and industrial areas of the City, pursuant to 
F.S. §§ 166.04151(6) and 166.04151(7)(a). Approvals sought pursuant to this article shall meet 
the procedural requirements set forth herein, in addition to the standards for review related to the 
compatibility of the development with its neighborhood.  

 
SECTION THREE.  Section 17.5-111. of the City Code is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Sec. 17.5-111. Qualifying property. 

To qualify for application for the affordable housing site plan approval process, property shall 
meet the following minimum criteria:  

(a) The property shall have a current zoning designation of Neighborhood Traditional, 
Neighborhood Suburban, Commercial Corridor Traditional (CCT), Commercial 
Corridor Suburban (CCS), Industrial Suburban (IS), Industrial Traditional (IT), 
Downtown Center (DC) Regional Center (RC), Employment Center(EC), or 
Institutional Center (IC) Industrial Traditional or Industrial Suburban.  

(b) Property located in a Neighborhood Traditional or Neighborhood Suburban zoning 
district shall have a minimum lot size of one acre.  

(c) Property located in an Industrial Traditional or Industrial Suburban zoning district shall 
have a minimum lot size of five acres.  

(d) The development proposal in a Neighborhood Traditional or Neighborhood Suburban 
zoning district shall consist of 20 or more dwelling units.  



 
 

 
  

Page 3 of 12 

(b) The development proposal submitted for review pursuant to F.S. § 166.04151(6) in an 
Industrial Traditional or Industrial Suburban IT or IS zoning district shall consist of 60 
10 or more dwelling units.  

(c) Projects submitted for review pursuant to F.S. § 166.04151(6) Property located in an 
Industrial Traditional or Industrial Suburban zoning district shall meet the following 
additional location criteria:  
(1) Shall be located within two miles of a public school including a vocational school;  
(2) Shall be located within a ¼ mile of a PSTA bus line;  
(3) Shall be located within one mile of a grocery store; and  
(4) Shall be located within one mile of the Pinellas Trail or City park.  

(d) All of the proposed dwelling units shall have a restrictive covenant that requires the 
dwelling units to be affordable to qualified buyers or renters at 120 percent of area 
median income or below for a minimum period of 30 years. Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, development proposals submitted for review pursuant to F.S. § 166.04151(6) 
within an Industrial Traditional or Industrial Suburban zoning district consisting of 300 
or more dwelling units may designate no less than 30 percent of the proposed dwelling 
units as affordable so long as 50 percent of those dwelling units are designated as 
affordable to qualified buyers or renters at 80 percent of area median income or below 
for a minimum period of 30 years, and the developer of the project agrees to not apply 
for or receive funding under F.S. § 420.5087.   
Notwithstanding the foregoing, development proposals submitted for review pursuant to 
F.S. § 166.04151(7)(a) shall designate no less than 40 percent of the proposed dwelling 
units as affordable to renters at 120 percent of area median income or below for a 
minimum period of 30 years.  

(e) For mixed use projects on a property, other permitted uses besides affordable housing 
sought pursuant to this section are subject to Chapter 16 of the City Code. However, for 
development proposals submitted for review pursuant to F.S. § 166.04151(6) within an 
Industrial Traditional or Industrial Suburban zoning district, accessory commercial uses 
such as cafes, restaurants, drug stores or pharmacies, and grocery stores up to 10,000 
square feet are exempt from this requirement.  

(f)   For development proposals submitted pursuant to F.S. § 166.04151(7)(a), projects shall 
have a maximum density of 82 dwelling units per acre and maximum height shall be the 
highest currently allowed height for a commercial or residential development located 
within 1 mile of the proposed development or 3 stories, whichever is higher. Projects 
located in Industrial zoning districts shall follow the land development regulations of 
the Neighborhood Suburban Multi-family (NSM) District; projects located in 
commercial/mixed-use districts shall follow the district standards of the underlying 
commercial/mixed-use district.  

(g) There shall be no variances granted to these criteria.  
 



 
 

 
    Created: 2023-03-20 18:58:49 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 44) 

 
Page 4 of 12 

SECTION FOUR.  Section 17.5-114. of the St. Petersburg City Code is hereby amended to read 
as follows:  

Sec. 17.5-114. Definitions. 

As used in this section:  
Applicant means the person who requested the decision.  
Application means an application or request for approval of an affordable housing 

development pursuant to F.S. § 166.04151(6) or § 166.04151(7)(a).  
Decision means a decision of the POD or a decision of City Council.  
Render means, with respect to decisions of the POD, that the decision has been reduced to 

writing, signed by the POD, and mailed or delivered to the applicant. With respect to decisions by 
City Council, the term means a vote has been taken and the results have been announced by the 
City Clerk.  

 
SECTION FIVE.  Section 17.5-115. of the St. Petersburg City Code is hereby amended to read 
as follows:  

Sec. 17.5-115. Supplemental notice. 

(a) Notice requirements. The supplemental notice set forth in this section for public hearing shall 
be provided for all public hearings before the City Council projects.  

(b) Notification. The City Council recognizes the importance for community involvement in 
many proceedings for which notice is not required by Florida Statutes. In an attempt to 
facilitate such involvement, and to provide notification of such proceedings to property 
owners and residents in nearby neighborhoods and to other interested parties, it is the intent 
of the City Council to provide the following supplemental notice.  
(1) Written notice. Notice shall be mailed by the applicant to all neighborhood associations 

and business association representatives within 300-feet of the subject application, the 
Council of Neighborhood Associations (CONA), and the Federation on Inner-City 
Community Organizations (FICO) and the owners of property listed by the county 
property appraiser's office, any portion of which is within 300 feet of any portion of the 
subject property measured by a straight line, property line to property line.  
a. Any request to receive notice by any person not an owner of property as described 

above must be in writing, must specifically identify the notices the person wishes 
to receive, must be delivered to the POD, and must contain a mailing address.  
Such requests, when not related to a specific application, shall only be valid for the 
specifically identified notices for not more than one year after receipt by the POD 
and may be renewed on an annual basis.  



 
 

 
     

Page 5 of 12 

b. The applicant shall obtain from the POD a copy of the notice and the procedures 
for notification of property owners who must receive notice. The applicant shall not 
include any information in the notice other than that which is required by the POD.  

c. Not less than 15 days prior to the date of the scheduled public hearing, tThe 
applicant shall deliver or mail a copy of said notice to all persons listed on the 
notification list and the owners of property within the distance described in this 
section. Notice shall be mailed by the U.S. Mail with a postal service certificate of 
mailing returned to the City.  

d. The applicant shall file proof that the notices were mailed or delivered with the 
POD not less than seven days prior to the date of the scheduled public hearing.  

e. For property in condominium or cooperative ownership which falls within 300 feet, 
the owner of each unit shall be notified.  

(2) Posted notice. Notice of the public hearing shall be posted on the subject property by the 
applicant on such date as the written notice is mailed at least 15 days prior to the public 
hearing. The applicant shall provide proof of posted notice on the subject property to the 
POD at least seven days prior to the public hearing.  

(3) Identify the property. The written and posted notices shall identify the property upon 
which the request for action is made, the date and location of the public hearing, the 
phone number and address where information regarding the proposal can be obtained, 
and the type of action requested.  

(4) Neighborhood and business association notice. One complete copy of each application 
shall be provided by the POD to CONA, FICO and neighborhood and business 
association representatives within 300 feet of the subject property.  

(5) Governmental notice. Mailed notice shall be provided to a neighboring government for 
comment, where the subject property is located within one-fourth of a mile of a 
neighboring government. Mailed notice shall also be provided to the Pinellas County 
School Board for comment, where the subject property is located withing one-fourth 
mile of a public educational facility.  

(6) Failure to provide supplemental notice. Upon receipt of the proof of the written and 
posted public notice, a 30-day public comment period shall commence. No decision may 
be rendered by the POD until after the public comment period has expired. The POD 
may take such comments into consideration in determining whether to approve a project 
and in establishing the conditions of approval.  

(7) If the POD is notified of or discovers a failure to provide supplemental notice of at least 
36 hours before the scheduled start of the public hearing, the POD may cancel the public 
hearing, reschedule the public hearing and require new notice to be given. The POD 
should only take this action if:  
a. It appears from the information provided that the holding of the hearing would be 

a substantial hardship on the person who did not receive notice;  
b. Such substantial hardship is different from the hardship the person would have 

suffered had he received the notice.  



 
 

 
     

Page 6 of 12 

c. Such hardship cannot be corrected or mitigated prior to the scheduled public 
hearing; and  

d. Rescheduling would not be a substantial hardship on other persons who received 
notice or the applicant.  

(8) If the POD is not notified of or does not discover a failure to provide supplemental notice 
until after the time set forth above than the POD shall not cancel the public hearing. City 
Council, at the public hearing, may weigh the effects of the failure to provide 
supplemental notice and may choose to continue the public hearing if the circumstances 
so warrant.  

(9) If the POD is not notified of or does not discover a failure to provide supplemental notice 
until after the public hearing has been held and a decision rendered, then none of these 
actions shall be taken. Failure to provide any supplemental notice shall not invalidate 
any action by the City Council.  

 
SECTION SIX.  The St. Petersburg City Code is hereby amended by removing Section 17.5-116. 
in its entirety.  Section 17.5-116. shall be marked as reserved. 

Sec. 17.5-116. Rehearing. 

An applicant following a decision by City Council may request a rehearing.  
(a) The City Council shall not rehear an application unless:  

(1) There has been faulty notification to the applicant;  
(2) New evidence is discovered by the applicant after the hearing which would likely 

change the result if a new hearing is granted and which could not have been 
discovered before the hearing by due diligence; or  

(3) There is a substantial change of circumstance.  
(b) If either of these conditions is alleged to exist, then a request for rehearing may be 

made by the original applicant or the City staff within ten days of the original decision 
by filing a written request for rehearing with the POD.  
(1) If a request for rehearing is based on newly discovered evidence, documents 

supporting that evidence shall be served with the application.  
(2) A request for rehearing shall be heard at the next regularly scheduled meeting 

following the receipt of any request and, based upon the information before it, 
City Council shall issue an order denying or granting a rehearing.  

(3) If a request for rehearing is granted, the application shall be scheduled for a public 
hearing after the required fee, if any, has been paid and notification has been made 
as required for the first hearing by the person requesting the rehearing.  

(4) If a request for rehearing is timely filed, such filing tolls the time in which to seek 
judicial review of the decision until an order is rendered denying the request for 
rehearing. If a request for a rehearing is granted, the time in which to seek judicial 
review shall begin when an order is entered at the rehearing of the application.  



 
 

 
    Created: 2023-03-20 18:58:49 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 44) 

 
Page 7 of 12 

 
SECTION SEVEN.  Section 17.5-117. of the St. Petersburg City Code is hereby amended to 
read as follows: 

Sec. 17.5-117. Withdrawal of application; abandonment of approval. 

(a) An applicant may withdraw his application at any time prior to a final decision. The process 
shall end upon receipt of written notice thereof or an oral request made at a public hearing.  

(b) An owner of property with an approved development order or permit may request that the 
approved development order or permit be deemed abandoned. Once an approved 
development order or permit is abandoned, the approval shall become null and void and the 
property shall be treated as if the approval had never occurred. Thereafter, the owner shall 
not be allowed to perform any work pursuant to the approval. The owner shall apply for any 
required development order or permit before performing any work on the property. The owner 
(not the owner's agent) shall provide the POD with a sworn statement expressing the owner's 
intention to abandon the approved development order or permit and acknowledging that after 
approval by the POD, the owner shall not be allowed to perform any work pursuant to the 
approval and shall be required to apply for a development order or permit before performing 
any work. The POD shall approve the request and may place reasonable conditions on the 
approval of such request. The abandonment of an approval shall not be approved if 
development of the property has commenced under the development order or permit, whether 
the development is complete or not, unless the POD determines the condition of the property 
would not violate the Land Development Regulations in the absence of the approval.  

 
SECTION EIGHT.  The St. Petersburg City Code is hereby amended by removing Section 17.5-
118. in its entirety.  Section 17.5-118. shall be marked as reserved. 

Sec. 17.5-118. Successive applications. 

(a) If an application is submitted to City Council for a decision, and if the City Council denies 
the application, the same or a substantially similar application shall not be accepted by the 
POD within 18 months following the action by the City Council on the earlier application 
unless the applicant demonstrates that there has been a substantial change of conditions or 
character of the surrounding land area or the land in question.  

(b) A decision by the POD not to accept an application may be appealed by the applicant to the 
City Council.  

(c) A decision by the POD to accept an application is not appealable.  
 
SECTION NINE.  Section 17.5-119. of the St. Petersburg City Code is hereby amended to read 
as follows: 



 
 

 
    Created: 2023-03-20 18:58:49 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 44) 

 
Page 8 of 12 

Sec. 17.5-119. Extensions and duration of approvals. 

(a) Duration of approvals. Any application submitted for review under this Article approved 
pursuant to this section shall remain valid for three years from the date of approval except 
approvals of applications for which a specific expiration date is established by the approval.  

(b) Applicants may request up to two two-year extensions from the POD. The application shall 
be revised to comply with any code amendments that were adopted after the original approval, 
unless a variance is granted.  

(c) After the original approval and any approved extension have expired without substantial 
construction commencing, the approval shall be void, and a new application shall be required.  

(d) Phased projects, including rehabilitation of an existing building, shall be approved in such a 
manner that each phase can reasonably be started within two years from the date the certificate 
of occupancy is issued for the previous phase, unless a shorter compliance period is required 
by City Council the POD.  

(e) Approved applications for which substantial construction has commenced shall remain valid 
subject to compliance with all approved development permits.  

(f) New applications for sites with a previously approved application which are submitted in 
advance of the expiration date of the approval or extension shall have maintained non-
interrupted approval for vesting purposes for any other ordinance or code of the City or for 
any other government approval provided that the new application is approved by City Council 
the POD within 120 days after the expiration date of the original approval or extension.  

(g) Extensions of approvals. Requests for extension approval shall be in writing and received by 
the POD prior to the expiration date of the approval or previously approved extension. A 
failure to request an extension prior to the expiration of the approval or a previously approved 
extension or failure to meet all conditions of an approval of an extension shall invalidate the 
original application approval. Requests for extensions shall address the following matters and 
may be denied if impacts cannot be adequately mitigated:  
(1) The extent of actions taken by the applicant to implement the approved development 

plan including real estate transactions, preparation of construction plans, site preparation 
and pre-construction sales.  

(2) The effect of unforeseen circumstances such as changes in economic condition, cost of 
materials, and site specific conditions on the approval.  

(3) The length of additional time estimated by the applicant to be needed to implement the 
approved development plan.  

(4) Changes in the City code that would apply to the property.  
(5) Changes or new construction on property in the vicinity of the applicant's property which 

may increase impacts to other properties.  
(6) Other facts considered relevant to a consideration of an extension.  
 



  Created: 2023-03-20 18:58:49 [EST]

(Supp. No. 44) 

Page 9 of 12 

SECTION TEN.  The St. Petersburg City Code is hereby amended by removing Section 17.5-
120. in its entirety.  Section 17.5-120. shall be marked as reserved.

Sec. 17.5-120. Tenant notice of intent to develop.

Development applications under this section which involve the demolition of four or more 
existing occupied multi-family dwelling units at time of application shall provide a written notice 
of intent to develop to all tenants residing on the subject property at least 90 days prior to issuance 
of a building permit. Evidence of notice shall be provided to the POD. No permits shall be issued 
for the subject property until such time as the 90 day period has expired. For purposes of this 
section, multi-family shall include tenancies in which both a mobile home and a mobile home lot 
are rented or leased by the mobile home resident, but not those mobile homes otherwise regulated 
by F.S. ch. 723.  

A notice of intent to develop shall comply with the requirements set forth herein. A written 
notice shall be on paper and indicate the intent to develop with a planned date for demolition of 
structures and commencement of construction and shall be delivered via certified mail to all tenants 
residing on the subject property. Notice shall be mailed by U.S. mail with a U.S. postal service 
certificate of mailing returned to the City. Evidence of notice shall be a copy of the notice letter, 
the list of tenants residing on the subject property at time of mailing, and a copy of the U.S. postal 
service certificate of mailing.  

SECTION ELEVEN.  Section 17.5-121. of the St. Petersburg City Code is hereby amended to 
read as follows: 

Sec. 17.5-121. Affordable housing site plan review. 

(a) Application. An application shall include the following information in addition to additional
information that the POD may reasonably require.
(1) A site plan of the subject property. The number of copies required shall be established

by the POD:
a. All site plans shall include information required by the POD.

1. Elevations depicting architectural details and materials for all sides of each
structure shall be provided.

2. The POD may require a surveyor's certificate to determine location of the
proposed structures relative to the lot lines involved.

b. The site plan shall include the parking layout and the number of parking spaces
being provided.

c. The site plan shall include a landscaping plan.
d. The application shall include a site data sheet to be provided to the applicant by the

POD identifying the number of affordable units by phases, bedroom sizes and by
rent limits for the 80 percent and the 120 percent categories as published annually
by the Florida Housing Finance Corporation.



 

 
  

Page 10 of 12 

e. The application shall include a financial document depicting the financial sources 
for the proposed development and the financial uses. The financial documents shall 
also include information on financial reserves to maintain the dwelling units.  

f. If the property is located in an industrial zoning district, an environmental report of 
the subject property and an analysis of the surrounding industrial uses including any 
mitigation measures needed to address the health and safety of future residents due 
to proximity to such uses.  

g. If the redevelopment will displace an existing business or businesses, a plan for 
relocation of the business or businesses and/or re-employment of existing 
employees.  

h. If the redevelopment will include any non-residential uses, provide a narrative 
describing the types of uses proposed and how those uses will support the future 
residents.  

i. The application shall include a project narrative addressing the applicable standards 
for review. 

(b) Procedures. 
(1) City Council review and decision:  
a. Public hearing. If the POD determines that an application meets the applicability 

standards and all required application and public notice information has been provided, 
the POD shall schedule a public hearing before City Council.  

b. Upon receipt of a recommendation from the POD, the City Council shall conduct a public 
hearing on the application and shall approve, approve with conditions or deny the 
application. After considering the application, the City Council may defer action for no 
more than 60 days to obtain additional information.  
Staff review and recommendation. Upon receipt of an affordable housing site plan review 
application, the POD shall determine whether the application complies with all submittal 
requirements and the applicable standards for review and the POD shall approve, approve 
with conditions or deny the application. 

(2) Appeals. A decision of the POD to approve with conditions or deny an application may 
only be appealed by the applicant to the City Council, whose decision shall be deemed 
the final decision of the City. 

(c) Standards for review. 
(1) Ingress and egress to the property and the proposed structures with particular emphasis 

on automotive and pedestrian safety, separation of automotive and bicycle traffic and 
control, provision of services and servicing of utilities, and refuse collection, and access 
in case of fire, catastrophe and emergency. Access management standards on state and 
county roads shall be based on the latest access management standards of FDOT or the 
county, respectively.  

(2) Location and relationship of off-street parking, bicycle parking, and off-street loading 
facilities to driveways and internal traffic patterns within the proposed development with 



 

 
  

Page 11 of 12 

particular reference to automotive, bicycle, and pedestrian safety, traffic flow and 
control, access in case of fire or catastrophe, and screening and landscaping.  

(3) Traffic impact report describing how this project will impact the adjacent streets and 
intersections. A detailed traffic report may be required to determine the project impact 
on the level of service of adjacent streets and intersections. Transportation system 
management techniques may be required where necessary to offset the traffic impacts.  

(4) Drainage of the property with particular reference to the effect of provisions for drainage 
on adjacent and nearby properties and the use of on-site retention systems. City Council 
may grant approval of a drainage plan as required by City ordinance, county ordinance 
or SWFWMD.  

(5) Signs, if any, and proposed exterior lighting with reference to glare, traffic safety and 
compatibility and harmony with adjacent properties.  

(6) Orientation, height and location of buildings, recreational facilities and open space in 
relation to the physical characteristics of the site, the character of the neighborhood and 
the appearance and harmony of the building with adjacent development and surrounding 
landscape.  

(7) Compatibility of the use with the existing natural environment of the site, historic, and 
archaeological sites, and with properties in the neighborhood.  

(8) Substantial detrimental effects of the use, including evaluating the impacts of the use 
and a concentration of similar or the same uses and structures on the neighborhood.  

(9) Sufficiency of setbacks, screens, buffers and general amenities to preserve the internal 
and external harmony and compatibility with the uses inside and outside the proposed 
development and to control adverse effects of noise, light, dust, fumes and other 
nuisances.  

(10) Land area is sufficient, appropriate and adequate for the use and reasonably anticipated 
operations.  

(11) Landscaping and preservation of natural manmade features of the site including trees, 
wetlands and other vegetation.  

(12) Sensitivity of the development to on-site and adjacent historic or archaeological 
resources related to scale, mass, building materials and other impacts.  

(13) Unit type, such as rental or ownership, and the income levels served by the development 
are needed in the marketplace.  

(14) If the subject property is zoned industrial, then the following criteria shall be considered 
in determining the suitability of the subject property for development pursuant to this 
section:  
a. One or more of the following characteristics exist over an extended period of time: 

1) vacant or underutilized land; 2) vacant or underutilized buildings; 3) poor quality 
job creation in terms of pay, employee density and spin-off or multiplier effects; 4) 
chronic competitive disadvantages in terms of location, transportation 
infrastructure/accessibility and other market considerations.  



 

 
  

Page 12 of 12 

b. Conversion to a residential use will not cause negative impacts on surrounding 
industrial operations.  

c. Location and surrounding land uses will not cause any adverse impacts to the health 
of future residents.  

 
SECTION TWELVE.  The St. Petersburg City Code is hereby amended by adding a new Section 
17.5-123., to read as follows: 
 
Section 17.5-123. - Sunset date. 
 
In accordance with F.S. § 166.04151(7)(j), development proposals submitted for review pursuant 
to F.S. § 166.04151(7)(a) shall not be accepted on or after October 1, 2033. 
 
SECTION THIRTEEN.  Codification. As used in this ordinance, language appearing in struck-
through type is language to be deleted from the City Code, and underlined language is language to 
be added to the City Code, in the section, subsection, or other location where indicated. Language 
in the City Code not appearing in this ordinance continues in full force and effect unless the context 
clearly indicates otherwise. 
 
SECTION FOURTEEN.  Severability. The provisions of this ordinance shall be deemed 
severable. If any provision of this ordinance is determined to be unconstitutional or otherwise 
invalid, such determination shall not affect the validity of any other provisions of this ordinance. 
 
SECTION FIFTEEN.  Effective Date. In the event this Ordinance is not vetoed by the Mayor in 
accordance with the City Charter, it shall become effective upon the expiration of the fifth business 
day after adoption unless the Mayor notifies the City Council through written notice filed with the 
City Clerk that the Mayor will not veto this Ordinance, in which case this Ordinance shall become 
effective immediately upon filing such written notice with the City Clerk.  In the event this 
Ordinance is vetoed by the Mayor in accordance with the City Charter, it shall not become effective 
unless and until the City Council overrides the veto in accordance with the City Charter, in which 
case it shall become effective immediately upon a successful vote to override the veto.   
 
LEGAL:      DEPARTMENT: 
 
 
____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Assistant City Attorney 
00700212.docx 

  



 
 

DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMISSION 
 

Prepared by the Planning & Development Services Department 
For Public Hearing on Tuesday June 7, 2023 

at 1:00 p.m. at City Hall in City Council Chambers at 175 5th Street North, St. Petersburg, Florida. 
 

 

City File: LDR 2023-03 
Alternative Housing Affordability Development Process 

  
 
This is a City-initiated application requesting that the Development Review Commission (“DRC”), in its 
capacity as the Land Development Regulation Commission (“LDRC”), make a finding of consistency with the 
Comprehensive Plan and recommend to City Council APPROVAL the following text amendment to the City 
Code, Chapter 16, Land Development Regulations (“LDRs”). 
 
APPLICANT INFORMATION 
 
APPLICANT: City of St. Petersburg 

1 4th Street North 
St. Petersburg, Florida 33701 
 

CONTACT: Elizabeth Abernethy, AICP 
Director, Planning & Development Services 
Elizabeth.Abernethy@stpete.org 
727-893-7868 
 

STAFF ANALYSIS 
 

Background 
 
In 2020, the Florida State Legislature passed House Bill 1339, which included a provision permitting the 
governing body of a municipality to approve an affordable and/or workforce development on any parcel zoned 
for residential, commercial or industrial.  In 2021, three ordinances were adopted which permitted City Council 
to review and potentially approve affordable and/or workforce development proposals in Neighborhood 
Traditional, Neighborhood Suburban, Industrial Traditional and Industrial Suburban zoning districts without 
requiring a rezoning or change of Future Land Use.  The ordinance which included the process and review 
criteria for City Council to follow is included in Chapter 17.5 of the City Code. 
 



  Page 2 

In the 2023 legislative session, Senate Bill 102 (SB 102) known as the “Live Local Act” was passed and signed 
by the governor. SB 102 included the following two subsections (changes shown in strike-through/underline 
format): 
 
(6) Notwithstanding any other law or local ordinance or regulation to the contrary, the governing body of a 
municipality may approve the development of housing that is affordable, as 433 defined in s. 420.0004, 
including, but not limited to, a mixed-use residential development, on any parcel zoned for residential, 
commercial or industrial use; and 
 
(7)(a) A municipality must authorize multifamily and mixed-use residential as allowable uses in any area zoned 
for commercial, industrial, or mixed use if at least 40 percent of the residential units in a proposed multifamily 
rental development are, for a period of at least 30 years, affordable as defined in s. 420.0004. 
Notwithstanding any other law, local ordinance, or regulation to the contrary, a municipality may not require 
a proposed multifamily development to obtain a zoning or land use change, special exception, conditional use 
approval, variance, or comprehensive plan amendment for the building height, zoning, and densities 
authorized under this subsection.  For mixed-use residential projects, at least 65 percent of the total square 
footage must be used for residential purposes. 
 
The purpose of this amendment is to bring Chapter 16 into conformance with this statutory change by 
amending 16.01.040 to delete the “residential” option previously allowed under subsection (6) and to add the 
language from subsection (7)(a) requiring administrative approval for qualifying projects. Concurrently, staff 
is requesting a change to the Comprehensive Plan which will be reviewed by the Community Planning & 
Preservation Commission and City Council.   
 
 

PROPOSED LDR TEXT AMENDMENT 
 
The proposed amended language is shown below in strike through and underline format. 
 
16.01.040. - Applicability.  

This chapter applies to all development in the City, except for Affordable Housing projects approved 
pursuant to F.S. 166.04151(6), which states, in pertinent part, that notwithstanding any other law or local 
ordinance or regulation to the contrary, the governing body of a municipality may approve the development of 
housing that is affordable, as defined in s. 420.0004, on any parcel zoned for residential commercial or 
industrial use or pursuant to F.S. 166.04151(7)(a), which states, in pertinent part, a  municipality must authorize 
multifamily and mixed-use residential as allowable uses in any area zoned for commercial, industrial, or mixed 
use if at least 40 percent of the residential units in a proposed multifamily rental development are, for a period 
of at least 30 years, affordable as defined in s. 420.0004 . No development shall be undertaken except as 
authorized by this chapter. No structure shall be erected, converted, enlarged, reconstructed or structurally 
altered, nor shall any structure or land be used or occupied which does not comply with all the regulations 
established by this chapter for the district in which the building or land is located. When a violation of this 
chapter exists on any property, no development permits shall be issued for such property, except permits which 
are necessary to correct the violation or for necessary maintenance, until the violation is corrected.  

 
Consistency and Compatibility (with Comprehensive Plan) 

 
Pursuant to Section 16.80.020.1 of the City Code of Ordinances, the DRC, acting as the LDRC, is responsible 
for reviewing and making a recommendation to the City Council on all proposed amendments to the LDRs. 



  Page 3 

The following objectives and policies from the City's Comprehensive Plan are applicable to the attached 
proposal: 

• OBJECTIVE LU21: The City shall, on an ongoing basis, review and consider for adoption, 
amendments to existing or new innovative land development regulations that can provide additional 
incentives for the achievement of Comprehensive Plan Objectives. 

• H1.1 Provide information, technical assistance, and incentives to the private sector to maintain a 
housing production capacity sufficient to meet the required production. 

• H1.3 - Review ordinances, codes, regulations and the permitting process for the purpose of eliminating 
excessive and overlapping requirements and resolving conflicting requirements and amending or 
adding other requirements in order to increase private sector participation in meeting housing needs, 
while continuing to insure the health, welfare and safety of the residents.  

 
PUBLIC HEARING PROCESS 

 
The ordinance associated with the LDR text amendment requires one (1) public hearing by the Development Review 
Commission (“DRC”) and one (1) by the City Council.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the Development Review Commission, in its capacity as the Land Development 
Regulation Commission, make a finding of consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and recommend to City 
Council APPROVAL of the City Code, Chapter 16 LDR text amendment described herein. 

    
 

  



Page 4 

City of St. Petersburg 
Housing Affordability Impact Statement 

Each year, the City of St. Petersburg receives approximately $2 million in State Housing Initiative Partnership 
(SHIP) funds for its affordable housing programs.  To receive these funds, the City is required to maintain an 
ongoing process for review of local policies, ordinances, resolutions, and plan provisions that increase the cost of 
housing construction, or of housing redevelopment, and to establish a tracking system to estimate the cumulative 
cost per housing unit from these actions for the period July 1– June 30 annually.  This form should be attached to 
all policies, ordinances, resolutions, and plan provisions which increase housing costs, and a copy of the completed 
form should be provided to the City’s Housing and Community Development Department. 

I. Initiating Department:  Planning & Development Services Development

II. Policy, Procedure, Regulation, or Comprehensive Plan Amendment Under Consideration for
adoption by Ordinance or Resolution:

See attached proposed amendments to Chapter 16, City Code of Ordinances (City File LDR 2023-04).

III. Impact Analysis:
A. Will the proposed policy, procedure, regulation, or plan amendment, (being adopted by ordinance or

resolution) increase the cost of housing development? (i.e. more landscaping, larger lot sizes, increase fees,
require more infrastructure costs up front, etc.)

No    X  (No further explanation required.) 
Yes     _____ Explanation: 

B. Will the proposed policy, procedure, regulation, plan amendment, etc. increase the time needed for housing
development approvals?

No  X   (No further explanation required) 
Yes      ___ Explanation: 

IV: Certification 
It is important that new local laws which could counteract or negate local, state and federal reforms and incentives 
created for the housing construction industry receive due consideration.  If the adoption of the proposed regulation 
is imperative to protect the public health, safety and welfare, and therefore its public purpose outweighs the need to 
continue the community’s ability to provide affordable housing, please explain below:  

 The proposed regulation, policy, procedure, or comprehensive plan amendment will not result in an 
increase to the cost of housing development or redevelopment in the City of St. Petersburg and no further 
action is required. (Please attach this Impact Statement to City Council Material, and provide a copy to 
Housing and Community Development department.) 

Elizabeth Abernethy 6.01.23 
            Planning & Development Services Director (signature) Date 

Copies to: City Clerk  
Joshua A. Johnson, Director, Housing and Community Development 

X 



137 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Respectfully requesting a 

referral to a Committee of the Whole meeting to be scheduled on November 9, 2023 a discussion 

regarding a potential straw poll on the Tampa Bay Rays stadium agreement, to be included on the 

March 19, 2024 presidential preference primary election ballots. (Councilmember Floyd) 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



H-1

H-1



 
 
TO:   Members of City Council 
 
DATE:   October 18, 2023 
 
COUNCIL DATE: November 2, 2023 
 
RE: Referral to the Committee of the Whole to discuss a potential Tampa Bay 

Rays stadium agreement straw poll 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
ACTION DESIRED: 
 
Respectfully requesting a referral to a Committee of the Whole meeting to be scheduled on 
November 9, 2023 a discussion regarding a potential straw poll on the Tampa Bay Rays stadium 
agreement, to be included on the March 19, 2024 presidential preference primary election 
ballots. 
 
 
 

Richie Floyd 
Council Member, District 8 

 
 

 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
NEW BUSINESS ITEM 



140 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Respectfully requesting a joint 

Community Benefit Advisory Committee and City Council meeting at a Committee of the Whole for 

discussion on the Community Benefit Program (Vice-Chair Figgs-Sanders) 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



H-2

H-2



 

 

 

 

TO:   Members of City Council 

 

DATE:   October 20, 2023 

 

COUNCIL DATE: November 2, 2023 

 
RE: Requesting a joint Community Benefit Advisory Committee and City 

Council meeting at a Committee of the Whole for a discussion on the 
Community Benefit Program 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

ACTION DESIRED: 

 

Respectfully requesting a joint Community Benefit Advisory Committee and City Council 

meeting at a Committee of the Whole for discussion on the Community Benefit Program 

 

      

 

 

Deborah Figgs-Sanders, Vice Chair 

District 5 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
NEW BUSINESS ITEM 



143 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Respectfully requesting a 

referral to a Committee of the Whole no later than the end of the first quarter of 2024 for a 

discussion on flood mitigation strategies for the coastal high hazard and repetitive loss areas of our 

city. Topics to include current permitting process and requirements for infill residential 

development, current FEMA application & acceptance procedures for mitigation grants, exploration 

of methods to improve our Community Rating System (CRS) score to reduce the impact of rising 

flood insurance rates, and a discussion on funding a study examining the fiscal impact of climate 

informed zoning such as the study prepared by the Lincoln Institute of Land Policy attached. This 

conversation is relevant to a New Business Item approved in a City Council Meeting on July 12, 

2018 to “explore options for, and provide a presentation on, creating a grant or incentive program for 

homeowner hurricane mitigation efforts in repetitive loss neighborhoods as determined by FEMA.” 

that is on the Health, Energy, Resilience, and Sustainability (HERS) Committee Referral List. (Chair 

Gabbard) 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



H-3

H-3



 
 
TO:   Members of City Council 
 
DATE:   October 19, 2023 
 
COUNCIL DATE: November 2, 2023 
 
RE: Referral to a Committee of the Whole for a discussion in response to the 

repetitive flooding occurring in the City of St. Petersburg 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
ACTION DESIRED: 

Respectfully requesting a referral to a Committee of the Whole no later than the end of the first 
quarter of 2024 for a discussion on flood mitigation strategies for the coastal high hazard and 
repetitive loss areas of our city. Topics to include current permitting process and requirements 
for infill residential development, current FEMA application & acceptance procedures for 
mitigation grants, exploration of methods to improve our Community Rating System (CRS) 
score to reduce the impact of rising flood insurance rates, and a discussion on funding a study 
examining the fiscal impact of climate informed zoning such as the study prepared by the 
Lincoln Institute of Land Policy attached. This conversation is relevant to a New Business Item 
approved in a City Council Meeting on July 12, 2018 to “explore options for, and provide a 
presentation on, creating a grant or incentive program for homeowner hurricane mitigation 
efforts in repetitive loss neighborhoods as determined by FEMA.” that is on the Health, Energy, 
Resilience, and Sustainability (HERS) Committee Referral List.     

 
 
Council Chair Brandi Gabbard 
District 2 

 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

• July 12, 2018 New Business Item 
• “The Case for Climate-Informed Zoning: A Study of Fiscal Impact in Norfolk, VA” 

prepared by the Lincoln Institute of Land Policy  
 

 
  

 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
NEW BUSINESS ITEM 



 
 
TO:   Members of City Council 
 
DATE:   June 29, 2018 
 
COUNCIL DATE: July 12, 2018 
 
RE:   Hurricane Mitigation Program   
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
ACTION DESIRED: 
 
Respectfully requesting to the Budget, Finance, and Taxation Committee, that the City 
Floodplain Manager, Sustainability Coordinator, and other necessary staff explore options for, 
and provide a presentation on, creating a grant or incentive program for homeowner hurricane 
mitigation efforts in repetitive loss neighborhoods as determined by FEMA.  
 
 
     Brandi Gabbard 

Council Member, District 2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
NEW BUSINESS ITEM 



June 2023 
 
The findings and conclusions of this Working Paper reflect the views of the author(s) and have not been 
subject to a detailed review by the staff of the Lincoln Institute of Land Policy. Contact the Lincoln Institute 
with questions or requests for permission to reprint this paper. help@lincolninst.edu   
 
© 2023 Lincoln Institute of Land Policy 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Case for Climate-Informed Zoning: A Study 
of Fiscal Impact in Norfolk, VA 
Working Paper WP23KB1 

 
 
Katherine Burgess 
Smart Growth America 
 
Michael Rodriguez 
Smart Growth America 
 
Jordan Howard 
Smart Growth America 
 
Jared Klukas 
Smart Growth America 
 
Megan Wright 
Smart Growth America 



Abstract 
 

As the impacts of climate change continue to intensify, zoning presents a key tool to direct 
development to protect communities from climate events. Norfolk, Virginia, a city at severe risk 
from sea level rise due to climate change, is among the first cities in the US to use climate 
adaptation as a core consideration for future development. This report examines the economic 
and social impact of resilience zoning in Norfolk, Virginia, which offers a cutting-edge example 
of climate-informed policy through the adoption of two land use plans—planNorfolk2030 to 
guide short-term development and Vision 2100 for long-term development.  
 
Using quantitative analysis, the Smart Growth America team explores the fiscal implications on 
Norfolk’s annual budget and property values. Additionally, this report includes a national scan of 
resilience zoning efforts, and shares recommendations to Norfolk and other cities facing flood 
risk seeking to address climate risk in land use policy and advance equitable climate adaptation. 
 
 

About the Author(s) 
 
Katharine Burgess is the Vice President of Land Use and Development at Smart Growth 
America. Katharine leads Smart Growth America’s land use work, with a special focus on how 
communities can adapt to the impacts of climate change using smart growth strategies. She can 
be contacted at kburgess@smartgrowthamerica.org. 
 
Michael Rodriguez is Research Director at Smart Growth America. Michael’s work explores 
the fiscal and economic impacts of transportation and infrastructure projects, especially with 
regard to smart growth and walkability. He can be reached at 
mrodriguez@smartgrowthamerica.org. 
 
Jordan Howard is the Economic Development Specialist at Smart Growth America. Jordan’s 
work centers on using quantitative analysis for projects relating to economic & fiscal health, 
transit oriented development, land use and transportation interactions, and market analysis. 
He can be reached at jhoward@smartgrowthamerica.org. 
 
Jared Klukas is Land Use and Development Associate at Smart Growth America. Jared’s work 
focuses on advancing social equity through inclusive planning policy, including increasing 
housing diversity and transit-oriented development. He can be reached at 
jklukas@smartgrowthamerica.org. 
 
Megan Wright is the Economic Development Associate at Smart Growth America. Megan’s 
work includes data collection and analysis on economic metrics that support equitable, 
sustainable growth in communities across the country. She can be reached at 
mwright@smartgrowthamerica.org. 
 
Smart Growth America 
1152 15th Street NW, Suite 450 
Washington, DC 20005  
info@smartgrowthamerica.org 



Table of Contents 
 
 
Introduction 1 
 
Climate-Informed Land Use Policy in Norfolk 4 
 
Study Design 8 
 
Background and Existing Conditions 9 
 
Demographic Findings: Vision 2100 Analysis 10 
 
Development Patterns 16 
 
Social Impact: Redlining and Flood Vulnerability 17 
 
Redlining and Vision 2100 19 
 
Climate-Informed Zoning Overlays in Norfolk 20 
 
Statistical Analysis: Residential Real Estate Market Trends 21 
 
Data Results 22 
 
National Policy Precedents 23 

 Boston, MA 30 
Charleston, SC 31 
Stonington, CT 32 
Green Area Ratio: Washington, DC 32 
Stormwater Code in a Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance, New Orleans, LA 33 

 
Conclusions & Recommendations 34 
 
References 37 
 
Appendix: Additional Real Estate Analysis 41 



1 

The Case for Climate-Informed Zoning: A Study of Fiscal Impact in Norfolk, VA 
 
 
 

Introduction 
 

Floods, extreme heat, and wildfires increasingly put communities across the country in harm’s 
way and compound existing inequities in household wealth, well-being, and economic 
opportunity. Low-income communities and communities of color face the greatest exposure to 
climate hazards on account of historic discriminatory land use policies, which often forced or 
pressured people to live in vulnerable areas. Today, these households are often the most at risk 
from destructive climate events which could lead to physical harm to both people and property. 
These events can also lead to reduced wealth-building opportunities due to the potential 
disruption by climate events and the likely market recognition of climate risk. 
 
Local governments in areas prone to climate hazards face difficult decisions to address climate 
risk and reduce the vulnerability of their residents. In many places, the most vulnerable areas are 
already largely built out, communities do not want to relocate and the costs to retrofit homes 
would be high. Supporting existing residents in these communities is critical but can be 
challenging to fund and coordinate. However, local land use policy presents one tool to direct 
new construction out of harm’s way and to require new construction in vulnerable areas to be 
built to a higher and safer standard.   
 

Source: Wiki user Photographer is licensed under CC BY-SA 4.0. 

Yet recognizing climate risk in new land use policy presents a market signaling risk. 
Governmental recognition of the risk associated with building in particular areas is likely to 
reduce the value of homes in these locations, further disadvantaging communities already 
harmed by discriminatory land use policy. Reduction in home values, and subsequent reductions 
in property taxes, can lead to a vicious cycle in which historically marginalized households 
continue to be negatively impacted, while those owning property in relatively safer areas benefit 
on account of relative preservation of their property values. Fear of this scenario is valid; but if 
local governments do not recognize climate risk and discourage future unsafe development the 
number and percentage of people at risk from weather and climate disasters will continue to 
grow. Unfortunately, this will also happen without new development given the growing 
frequency and intensity of climate-related weather events. 
Furthermore, today’s housing access crisis necessitates the building of more housing and 
reducing regulatory burdens that have drastically reduced supply and often reinforced 



2 

exclusionary development patterns. New housing is much needed, especially at price points 
accessible to low and moderate-income households. However, implementing policies to build 
new housing everywhere faces the risk of putting more households in harm’s way, whether from 
flooding, wildfire, drought, or other dangerous hazards. It is critical that this new housing be 
built to standards prepared for future climate impacts and in locations more prepared for weather 
events. Climate-informed policy is a key way to address this, ideally alongside policy changes to 
accelerate the development of more affordable housing supply. 
 
To better understand the market impacts of climate-informed land use policy, Smart Growth 
America (SGA) conducted a fiscal impact study of recent land use reforms in Norfolk, Virginia. 
The coastal city is ranked among the most vulnerable cities in the country for flooding hazards 
and sea level rise resulting from climate change.1 Sea level rise projections in the year 2100 for 
Norfolk range from a rise of 1.6 feet to as much as ten feet above present-day levels.2 The city 
recently adopted one of the most proactive long-range plans that addresses the current and future 
threats of flooding and sea level rise through land use strategy, Vision 2100, alongside associated 
zoning reforms, a premier US example of “climate-informed zoning.” At the time of adoption, 
city staff in Norfolk encountered significant concern and pushback that these policy changes 
could lead to negative market impacts, disadvantaging property owners and the city’s taxbase. 
 
Norfolk was among the first cities in the US to adopt a systematic change in land use regulation 
to address the current and anticipated future impacts of climate change. In the past decade, the 
city has introduced a suite of plans and policies guiding short-term and long-term development, 
including: 
 

 PlaNorfolk2030, a short-term comprehensive plan adopted in March 2013 which 
provides guidance to address flooding, aging infrastructure, population growth, and an 
uncertain regional and global economy;3 

 Vision 2100, a long-range plan which uses sea level rise projections to anticipate future 
conditions and to direct development and infrastructure investment accordingly. Adopted 
in November 2016, its primary purpose is to provide a new resilient framework to guide 
citywide decision-making;4  

 A ‘resilience quotient,’ introduced into the city’s zoning regulations to supplement the 
initiatives embedded within these two plans; and 

 Two zoning overlay districts in high flood risk areas with unique standards attributed to 
each district.  

 

 
1  Kramer, David. “Norfolk: A Case Study in Sea-Level Rise.” Physics Today 69, no. 5 (May 2016): 22–25. https://doi.org/10.1063/pt.3.3163.  

2  “Norfolk Vision 2100.” City of Norfolk, VA, November 22, 2016. 

3  “plaNorfolk2030.” plaNorfolk2030 | City of Norfolk, Virginia - Official Website. City of Norfolk, VA, March 26, 2013. 

https://www.norfolk.gov/1376/plaNorfolk2030.n 
4  “Norfolk Vision 2100.” City of Norfolk, VA, November 22, 2016. 



3 

 

 
Cover page of the plaNorfolk 2030 initiative, adopted in 2013 (left); Cover page of the City of Norfolk’s Vision 
2100 plan (right). Source: “plaNorfolk2030.” plaNorfolk2030 | City of Norfolk, Virginia - Official Website. City of 
Norfolk, VA, March 26, 2013. https://www.norfolk.gov/1376/plaNorfolk2030.n;“Norfolk Vision 2100.” City of 
Norfolk, VA, November 22, 2016. 
 
This research project sought to understand the short-term fiscal impact of the implementation of 
Vision 2100 and Norfolk’s climate-informed approach to zoning. Given that these policies 
categorize locations for development using flood vulnerability as a key component, they had the 
potential to lead to increased development momentum and real estate value in parts of the city 
less susceptible to flooding and decrease the incentive for development in areas with more flood 
vulnerability. However, SGA’s analysis found that the initial fiscal impact was not statistically 
significant, and any small impacts were not substantive or noteworthy.SGA found no statistically 
significant impact on sales prices for homes, or office and retail development, from the Vision 
2100 coastal resilience zones between the years 2018 and 2021. 
 
The study, however, did recognize some impact in the number of permits sought, indicating that 
Vision 2100 and subsequent policy may successfully redirect future development to sites that 
present comparatively fewer risks. The lack of fiscal impact is likely on account of the recent 
implementation of the policy, the additional market conditions during the pandemic (such as low 
interest rates, accelerated consumer interest in homebuying, and chaotic changes in office and 
retail markets), as well as a lack of concern about climate risk among home-buyers and 
developers in Norfolk during the period studied.  
 
While climate resilience has been a goal of comprehensive planning for many years, localities 
have only recently begun incorporating resilience objectives into zoning and other land use 
implementation strategies. Today, policymakers realize they must enhance long-term resilience 



4 

with guidance directing future development patterns to protect economic and human 
vulnerabilities to climate-related weather events. To do this, localities should include standards 
in their zoning ordinances that legally require developers to incorporate mitigation practices into 
the location, siting, design, construction, and uses of their projects. Because effective mitigation 
may require property owners to act in ways that go beyond their own individual interests to 
ensure that the community goals of resilience are met, it is essential that the force of law––in this 
case zoning regulations––be brought to bear.  
 
The case study of Norfolk introduces an example that may reduce hesitation by other local 
governments considering reform. The study found that, during the time period studied, it was 
possible to implement a policy that hinders development in flood-prone areas and encourages 
development in less-risky areas without introducing harm to existing property owners or the 
overall real estate market. Norfolk is in some ways exceptionally positioned to address climate 
risk, given the Naval Base and significant national security presence, and the level of investment 
in resilience planning through external partnerships such as the Rockefeller Foundation’s 100 
Resilient Cities (100RC)5 and the US Department of Housing & Urban Development’s National 
Disaster Resilience Competition (NDRC).6 These partnerships and investments may have 
provided investors with more certainty regarding the medium-term protection of assets. Yet, in 
other ways, the city faces far greater risk, and thus fear of market impact, than many others given 
the extent of vulnerability to sea level rise and subsidence. In short, Norfolk’s example shows 
that innovative public policy can advance resilience without significant short-term market 
disruption.  
 
This report introduces the Norfolk fiscal impact study, highlights examples of other climate-
informed land use approaches across the country and concludes with recommendations regarding 
the implementation of climate-informed land use policy to advance equitable climate adaptation. 
 

Climate-Informed Land Use Policy in Norfolk 
 

Norfolk is estimated to be most at risk of sea level rise on the US east coast and already 
experiences regular nuisance or sunny day flooding, which is anticipated to increase with sea 
level rise.7 By 2060, Norfolk is expected to experience up to 2.5 feet of sea level rise.8 The city is 
exposed to the coast on three sides and is low-lying, increasing the city’s exposure to storm surge 
and tidal flooding as well as sea level rise. Of the census’ estimated city population of just under 
243,000 in 2010, climate data provider Climate Central estimated 27,350 people to be at severe 
risk with homes below six feet in elevation.9 The Department of Defense has identified sea level 
rise in the area to pose a national security threat; the National Ocean and Atmospheric 

 
5  “100 Resilient Cities.” The Rockefeller Foundation. The Rockefeller Foundation, February 7, 2023. 

https://www.rockefellerfoundation.org/100-resilient-cities/. 
6  “National Disaster Resilience Competition.” U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). U.S. Department of Housing and 

Urban Development . Accessed March 28, 2023. https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/economic_development/resilience/competition. 
7  Kramer, David. “Norfolk: A Case Study in Sea-Level Rise.” Physics Today 69, no. 5 (May 2016): 22–25. https://doi.org/10.1063/pt.3.3163.  

8  Surging Seas Risk Finder. NOAA Technical Report (2017). 

https://riskfinder.climatecentral.org/place/norfolk.va.us?comparisonType=place&forecastName=Basic&forecastType=NOAA2017_int_p50&lev
el=6&unit=ft 
9  “Surging Seas: Risk Finder: Norfolk, VA.” Surging Seas: Risk Finder. Climate Central . Accessed March 29, 2023. 

https://riskfinder.climatecentral.org/place/norfolk.va.us?comparisonType=place&amp;forecastType=NOAA2017_int_p50&amp;level=6&amp;u
nit=ft.; U.S Census Bureau, Newsroom Archive (2011). U.S. Census Bureau Delivers Virginia's 2010 Census Population Totals, Including First 
Look at Race and Hispanic Origin Data for Legislative Redistricting - 2010 Census - Newsroom - U.S. Census Bureau 



5 

Administration (NOAA) has already seen 18 inches of sea level rise at Naval Station Norfolk 
over the past 100 years and anticipate an additional 1-3 feet of sea level rise by 2050.10 
 
Although a small city, Norfolk has been a leader in the US on resilience planning, especially 
given its success in establishing relevant partnerships for capacity building and infrastructure 
funding. Land use has been an established priority within its resilience planning work, as set out 
in its 2015 Resilience Strategy, published through the city’s partnership with 100 Resilient Cities 
and under the leadership of Chief Resilience Officer Christine Morris.11 The Norfolk Resilience 
Strategy included launching Vision 2100 as a strategic action.12 The Strategy noted that “Vision 
2100 is informed by the resilience thinking in this strategy; it will bring that thinking into 
communities, collectively map community assets, and facilitate discussions about where and 
how the city should make long-term investments for future growth.”13   
 
In Norfolk’s Vision 2100 plan, multiple strategies adopted by the city seek to guide future 
development out of harm’s way. These strategies guide future land use and zoning in four unique 
“vision areas” and address infrastructural and economic priorities based on current 
environmental and existing development conditions of the geographic areas (Figure 1). The four 
color-coded vision areas of the city specify specific zoning, developmental standards, and flood 
hazard mitigation strategies. Each vision area’s strategy reflects the different socioeconomic, 
environmental, and infrastructural characteristics in each area, connecting the vision for future 
development and infrastructure investment with the level of flood vulnerability. Additionally, 
there are two zoning-specific “overlay” zones: In Norfolk’s revised zoning ordinance (2018), the 
“Upland Resilience Overlay” and “Coastal Resilience Overlay” are applied to high flood risk 
areas and prescribe unique statutory policy changes within each overlay zone. The overlay zones 
are located in areas with different floodplain characteristics, with some synergy with the “vision 
areas.” 
 
Overall, the flood risk in all Vision 2100 vision areas is about the same as nearby areas such as 
Virginia Beach and Hampton Roads, which are also extremely flood-prone. The red and yellow 
zones have the highest risk of flooding from sea level rise. The red zone includes the Naval Base, 
meaning the area is considered vital from a national security perspective, the historic downtown, 
multifamily housing, and industrial land use while the yellow zones are primarily, low density, 
auto-oriented residential uses, and suburban and commercial retail land use. The vision areas 
encourage continued development in the red zones, given the critical assets for the city contained 
therein and given continued flood mitigation infrastructure investment, and discourage 
development in the yellow zones. The green and purple zones have a comparatively lower risk of 
flooding, with the green area identified as a priority area for future development. 
 
There are several action items aligning development objectives with flood vulnerability and 
preparedness in each of the “vision zones” as seen in Figure 1 below:  
 

 
10  Lopez, C Todd. “DOD, Navy Confront Climate Change Challenges in Southern Virginia.” U.S. Department of Defense. U.S. Department of 

Defense, July 21, 2021. https://www.defense.gov/News/News-Stories/Article/Article/2703096/dod-navy-confront-climate-change-challenges-in-
southern-virginia/#:~:text=Over%20the%20last%20100%20years,1%2D3%20feet%20by%202050. 
11 Meet Norfolk's Chief Resilience Officer. YouTube. NorfolkTV, 2015. https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=xcLUKniKNkY.  

12  “Norfolk Resilience Strategy.” The Rockefeller Foundation, 2015. 

13  “Norfolk Resilience Strategy.” The Rockefeller Foundation, 2015. 



6 

Figure 1: Vision 2100 Areas  
 

 

Source: “Norfolk Vision 2100.” City of Norfolk, VA, November 22, 2016.  
 
Four vision areas within the city of Norfolk’s Vision 2100, corresponding to different land use and 
economic development tactics unique to each vision area.14 
 

 Within red zones, which include low-lying flood-vulnerable areas as well as economic 
development hubs such as downtown and the Naval Base, which are dense, urbanized 
areas that face considerable destruction in the event of a major flood. Red zones are also 
well within the FEMA-designated 100-year flood zone. The focus here is to expand the 
flood protection system, such as shoreline protection projects and tidal flooding 
mitigation infrastructure; build a comprehensive, 24-hour transportation network; 
transform less intense uses into denser, mixed-use patterns, diversify the housing options 
available to residents, and strengthen and increase economic diversity. Many of these 
strategies encourage higher-density development, with an underlying commitment to 
infrastructure investment given flood vulnerability and the strategic importance of the 
Naval Base and surrounding development. In short, red zones are recognized as flood-
vulnerable, but this vulnerability is met with a commitment to infrastructure investment. 
 

 
14  “Norfolk Vision 2100.” City of Norfolk, VA, November 22, 2016. 



7 

 The yellow zones, which include comparatively flood-vulnerable areas, seek to use new 
technologies to reduce flood risk to the built environment, focus infrastructure 
investments on improvements that extend resilience, educate residents about the risk of 
recurring flooding, develop mechanisms to allow property owners to recoup economic 
values lost to water rise, and develop a solution for sea level rise adaptation in historic 
neighborhoods. A resilience overlay discourages development in these zones while 
seeking to support existing residents. Accordingly, yellow zones recognize flood 
vulnerability and seek to direct future investment elsewhere while recognizing the 
challenges faced by and seeking to support current residents. 

 The green zones outline transit-centric land use and infrastructure patterns to support 
new urban centers and build the infrastructure necessary to support this development. The 
strategies aligned with this zone incentivize new development in an area that is less 
susceptible to flooding than other parts of Norfolk, and which has been underutilized 
from an economic development perspective. The green zones send market signals about 
the positives of investing in areas that are relatively less flood-prone and seek to direct 
future investment here. 

 Finally, purple zones seek to improve connections to the city’s key assets, prioritize 
infrastructure investments that enhance neighborhood attractiveness, maintain housing 
affordability while improving economic value, as well as redevelop underperforming 
commercial and multifamily residential properties. Purple zones are also comparatively 
less flood-prone, with policy supporting future development at less intensity than in the 
green zones, with a focus on maintaining housing affordability.  

 
 
Table 1: Vision 2100 Zones and Goals 
 

Overlay 
Zone 

Goal 

Red Support additional mixed-use inland development; expand flood protection 
systems; diversify housing mix (context: comparatively high vulnerability, key civic 
and economic assets) 

Yellow Resilient investments; develop solutions for sea level rise; protect economic assets 
(context: comparatively high flood vulnerability) 

Green Encourage high-density development; focus on intermodal transit development 
(context: comparatively low flood vulnerability) 

Purple Make investment & improve connections; maintain housing affordability (context: 
comparatively low flood vulnerability) 

 



8 

Study Design 
 
The fiscal impacts in Norfolk set an important precedent as policymakers, investors, and housing 
advocates seek to better understand how climate adaptation measures are impacting the real 
estate markets, especially as regulation pertaining to climate risk increases. 
 
Climate-informed land-use policies such as Norfolk’s have the potential to guide investment to 
areas that are better prepared for climate impacts, and subsequent market recognition of climate 
adaptation measures is likely to lead to further development in “safer” areas. However, 
communities located in flood-prone areas, often on account of discriminatory land use policy, 
stand to lose the most if investment pulls back and property values depreciate. Understanding the 
early fiscal impacts of Norfolk’s policies offers important insight to policymakers seeking to 
incentivize climate adaptation and support communities who continue to be most harmed by 
climate impacts. 
 
The project team assessed the economic results of imposing these legal requirements, focusing 
on whether and how climate-informed zoning in Norfolk has affected property values. The 
analysis below evaluates several data points in regards to Vision 2100: 

 Residential property prices – Evaluating the sales price of properties within each of the 
Vision 2100 Zones; 

 Building Permits - Analyzing the number of building permits, or the approval given by a 
locality to proceed on s construction project; 

 Retail - Analyzing the sale of consumer goods; 
 Office – Analyzing the usage of a building for office management, administrative, 

financial, educational, medical or other professional services. 
 
This lack of fiscal impact from 2018-2021 may have occurred on account of: 

 The relatively recent implementation of climate-informed zoning in Norfolk; 
 The disruptive nature of the pandemic and subsequent market impacts, which complicates 

the data set from this relatively short period of time; 
 The predictability of continued economic activity in and associated with the Naval Base 

despite climate risk; 
 Lack of immediate increased associated costs relevant to climate risk and flooding such 

as insurance; 
 An overall lack of recognition of, or concern about, climate risk by homebuyers, 

businesses and investors in Norfolk at the time of the study. 
 
In 2022, policy changes and events have contributed to the American public and business 
community’s understanding of climate risk. This study should be revisited in several years, 
especially on account of increased federal policy recognizing climate risk, including improved 
climate data availability. Climate data has become even more readily available, including data 
sets for all climate hazards, through both free portals, resources released by the Biden 
Administration such as resilience.climate.gov,15 and integration into real estate websites such as 

 
15 Executive Office of the President, The White House § (2022). https://www.whitehouse.gov/about-the-white-house/our-government/the-

executive-branch/#:~:text=Perhaps%20the%20most%20visible%20parts,the%20President's%20activities%20and%20agenda.   



9 

Redfin.16 Redfin’s in-house research has found that homeowners relocating in late 2021 factored 
climate risk into their decisions; 1 in 10 homebuyers surveyed cited climate risk as a key factor 
in their move.17 FEMA’s Risk Rating 2.0 rolled out in October 2021, which increases prices of 
flood insurance in order to deliver rates that are more ‘actuarially sound’ and better reflect flood 
risk (new policies have been subject to Risk Rating 2.0’s rating methodology since October 1, 
2021).18 
 
Federal policy and the international investment community have also increasingly recognized the 
financial impacts of climate risk and sought to ensure investors are addressing the issue. For 
example, the Federal Reserve has announced that six of the country’s largest banks will 
participate in a pilot program testing their exposure to the consequences arising from climate 
change.19 New federal supplier requirements address climate risk and resilience as of late 2022, 
which are likely to advance market impacts given the federal government is the world’s largest 
individual buyer of goods and services.20 
 

Background and Existing Conditions 
 

The city of Norfolk has a geographic area of 96 square miles but as it is located near the coast of 
Virginia, it hosts 144 miles of coastline. The city has a population of about 240,000 residents. It 
is a diverse city with a resident population that is 46 percent non-Hispanic white, 40 percent 
Black, eight percent Hispanic or Latino, four percent Asian, and two percent of two or more 
races. The median household income for the city is $53,026. The city has the world’s largest 
Naval Base, an economic driver of the city and region as a whole.  
 
The majority of people in Norfolk live in owner-occupied single-family homes and the tenure of 
residents (renter v. owner-occupied units) remains similar across racial demographics. The 
downtown core of the city which is closest to the coast is majority white and has a higher income 
than the city as a whole. Conversely, the neighborhoods near downtown are separated from the 
core by two highways, Saint Pauls Blvd and Brambleton Ave, and are predominantly majority-
black and lower-income neighborhoods. 
 

 
16  “Flood Risk &amp; Homes: Real Estate Resources &amp; Tips | Redfin.” Redfin. Redfin. Accessed March 29, 2023. 

https://www.redfin.com/guides/climate-change-housing-impact/flood-risk. 
17 Ellis, Tim, and Dana Anderson. “1 In 10 Homebuyers & Sellers Say Climate Risk Is Main Reason for Move: Redfin Survey.” Redfin Real 

Estate News. Redfin, January 18, 2022. https://www.redfin.com/news/homebuyer-survey-climate-change/. 
18 “Risk Rating 2.0: Equity in Action.” FEMA.gov. Federal Emergency Management Administration (FEMA), April 18, 2021. 

https://www.fema.gov/flood-insurance/risk-rating. 
19 “Federal Reserve Board Announces That Six of the Nation’s Largest Banks Will Participate in a Pilot Climate Scenario Analysis Exercise 

Designed to Enhance the Ability of Supervisors and Firms to Measure and Manage Climate-Related Financial Risks.” Board of Governors of the 
Federal Reserve System. United States Federal Reserve System, September 29, 2022. Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System. 
https://www.federalreserve.gov/newsevents/pressreleases/other20220929a.htm?source=email. 
20 “Federal Supplier Climate Risks and Resilience Proposed Rule.” Federal Supplier Climate Risks and Resilience Proposed Rule | Office of the 

Federal Chief Sustainability Officer. Council on Environmental Quality, November 10, 2022. 
https://www.sustainability.gov/federalsustainabilityplan/fed-supplier-rule.html. 



10 

Table 2: Population by Vision 2100 Zone 
 

 

Source: Real Estate Product Information and Yearly Analytics from CoStar Group, 2023. https://www.costar.com/ 
 
 
 
Table 3: Poverty by Vision 2100 Zone 
 

 

Source: Real Estate Product Information and Yearly Analytics from CoStar Group, 2023. https://www.costar.com/ 
 
Table 3 displays the households living in poverty. The red zones have the highest poverty rate at 
30,000 households or four percent. In contrast, the yellow and green zones have a similar number 
of households living below the poverty line. The purple zones have the least households falling 
below the poverty line. 
 

Demographic Findings: Vision 2100 Analysis 
 
The following section details an in-depth analysis of the Vision 2100 areas broken down into 
their population, geography, income, education, development patterns, and Vision 2100 Goals. 
Overall findings and takeaways are also included.  
 
  



11 

Figure 2: Vision 2100 Red Zones 
 

 

Source: “Norfolk Vision 2100.” City of Norfolk, VA, November 22, 2016.  

Table 4. Red Zone Demographics 
 

 

Source: Real Estate Product Information and Yearly Analytics from CoStar Group, 2023. https://www.costar.com/ 
 

 Population: ~60,000 
 Geography: mainly coastal; high risk of flooding 
 Income: $52,000+ 
 Education: similar to yellow zones; a large proportion of the population 25+ with a BA 

or greater 
 Development patterns: naval base and associated military developments have made up 

most new construction in the north 
 Southern portion home to downtown Norfolk 
 Vision 2100 goals: encourage additional mixed-use inland development; expand flood 

protection systems; diversify housing mix 

Red zones are home to key economic and national security assets like the Naval base, office and 
retail space. Plans for the red zone focus on the commitment to future infrastructure investment 



12 

to protect against flood vulnerability while also encouraging additional mixed-used 
development.  

Figure 3: Vision 2100 Yellow Zones 
 

 

Source: “Norfolk Vision 2100.” City of Norfolk, VA, November 22, 2016.  
 
Table 7: Yellow Zone Demographics 

 

Source: Real Estate Product Information and Yearly Analytics from CoStar Group, 2023. https://www.costar.com/ 

 Population: ~45,000 
 Geography: major coastal areas and tourist zones; residential areas outside of Old 

Dominion 
 Income: $58,000+ 
 Education: second-highest proportion of people 25+ with a BA or greater 
 Development patterns: experienced a spike in development from 2015-2018; hasn’t 

seen much development since 
 Vision 2100 goals: resilient investment; develop solutions for sea level rise; develop 

mechanisms to protect economic assets 



13 

Yellow zones are home to established residential neighborhoods, but little commercial real 
estate, that experience more frequent flooding. The focus of this zone is on investments that will 
help the area adapt to sea level rise and protect the economic assets within the zone, without 
incentivizing future development that could be redirected to more prepared areas. The reduced 
recent development in yellow may be a result of the overlay. 
 

Figure 4: Vision 2100 Green Zones 
 

 

Source:  “Norfolk Vision 2100.” City of Norfolk, VA, November 22, 2016.  

Table 5: Green Zone Demographics 
 

Source: Real Estate Product Information and Yearly Analytics from CoStar Group, 2023. https://www.costar.com/ 
 

 Population: ~40,000 
 Geography: inland; low risk of flooding 
 Income: $50,000+ 
 Education: lowest population of people 25+ with a BA or greater 
 Development patterns: lack of commercial and multi-use development; mainly single-

family homes 



14 

 Vision 2100 goals: encourage high-density development; focus on intermodal transit 
development 

Green zones are at low-risk of coastal flooding and have a high potential for high-density, 
mixed-use, and mixed-income development. Currently, the majority of green zones are host to 
retail spaces, both big box and small businesses with few housing units. The policy goal for the 
area is to encourage vibrant, higher density development in less flood-vulnerable areas.   
 
Figure 8: Vision 2100 Purple Zones 
 

 

Source:  “Norfolk Vision 2100.” City of Norfolk, VA, November 22, 2016.  

Table 9: Purple Zone Demographics 
 

 

Source: Real Estate Product Information and Yearly Analytics from CoStar Group, 2023. https://www.costar.com/ 
 

 



15 

 Population: ~82,000 
 Largest population out of all zones 
 Geography: inland & central; low flooding risk 
 Income: highest average income of all zones ($60,000+) 
 Education: most highly educated zone (majority of people 25+ have a BA or higher) 
 Development patterns: suburban residential & commercial office; the majority of new 

development in Norfolk has occurred here in the past 10 years 
 Vision 2100 Goals: make investment & improve connections; maintain housing 

affordability 

Purple zones host the majority of multifamily buildings in neighborhoods within the city that are 
at less risk of flooding, but they are cut off from many connections to downtown areas and 
economic assets. In recent years, purple zones have seen an uptick in the construction of 
commercial real estate. This may be one of the early impacts of Vision 2100 but requires further 
analysis. 
 
  



16 

Development Patterns 
 
The Naval Base comprises a significant portion of development along the city's western coast. 
The downtown area includes a historic district, the commercial core which traditionally served 
the port of the city. Downtown also includes commercial, residential, and other mixed-used types 
of development. However, outside this area, most development patterns follow a more euclidean 
approach, meaning that residential, commercial, and institutional uses are often separated, and 
development is more auto-oriented than in the downtown area. Multifamily units are more 
common in the downtown area, while single-family homes dominate areas outside of the urban 
core. Inland from downtown, industrial and commercial land uses are more prevalent. 
 
Table 6: New Development: New Building Permits by Vision 2100 Zone 
 

 

Source: Real Estate Product Information and Yearly Analytics from CoStar Group, 2023. https://www.costar.com/ 
 
 
Table 5: New Building Permits Per Vision 2100 Zone 

 

Source: Real Estate Product Information and Yearly Analytics from CoStar Group, 2023. https://www.costar.com/ 
 
Purple zones have had the highest number of new building permits overall. 2019 saw the biggest 
bifurcation between permits in purple zones, which experienced an increase, and permits in 
yellow and red zones, which experienced a decrease. Green zones experienced a modest 
increase. The number of permits in yellow zones dropped significantly from the end of 2017 to 
the end of 2018. These trends may have been a result of market impacts of Vision 2100, which 
made building more attractive in the purple and green zones.  
 



17 

Social Impact: Redlining and Flood Vulnerability 
 
Figure 5: Redlined Districts, Norfolk, VA (1940) 

 

Historic Home Owners’ Loan Corporation (HOLC) redlining map of the Greater Norfolk, VA areas. Based on 
HOLC neighborhood “grading,” the red areas signify areas considered “Hazardous” by HOLC , or where the HOLC 
identified as areas not suitable for development, usually areas that had a high population of people of color. The 
yellow areas represent those considered  “Declining” or areas that the HOLC warned were on their way to becoming 
“Hazardous.” The blue areas signified “Suitable” areas for development according to HOLC, and the green the 
“Best” areas according to HOLC. Blue and green areas were usually where white populations settled. HOLC 
redlining maps such as this one had the result of segregating cities by race across the country. 
Source: Robert K. Nelson, LaDale Winling, Richard Marciano, Nathan Connolly, et al., “Mapping Inequality,” 
American Panorama, ed. 



18 

Figure 3: Redlined Districts and Flood Risk From Sea Level Rise  
 

HOLC redlining map overlaid with the Federal Emergency Management Agency’s 100-Year Floodplain, 
representing Norfolk’s 1% annual chance of flooding. Red areas represent the HOLC’s “Hazardous” categorization; 
the yellow areas “Declining;” the blue areas “Suitable;” and the green areas “Best.” 
Source: “Norfolk Vision 2100.” City of Norfolk, VA, November 22, 2016.  
 
Nationally, areas which faced redlining are more flood-prone.21 This racially discriminatory 
practice isolated Black communities in areas with lower levels of investment, reducing wealth-
building and social and educational mobility. In Norfolk, formerly redlined districts are more at 
risk of flooding due to sea level rise. The characterization of red and yellow districts as 
“hazardous” or “undesirable” to investment led to a lack of high-quality development and 
infrastructure investment in these areas, putting vulnerable communities even more at risk by 
significantly decreasing opportunities for wealth-building through rising property values. 
Infrastructure damage from flooding also impacts lower-income communities more significantly, 
given reduced household resources available for emergency costs, and repairs and often reduced 
flexibility for time away from work for flood event preparation, evacuation, and recovery after a 
storm event.  
 
There are many forces that cause an area to suffer from disinvestment, poor development, and 
lack of access to resources, but redlining very likely was a major contributor to the existing 
stratification of Norfolk. Today, the rise in popularity of urbanized areas, and access to the 
amenities they provide, has led the historic HOLC map to essentially flip, with formerly 

 
21  Katz, Lily. “A Racist Past, a Flooded Future: Formerly Redlined Areas Have $107 Billion Worth of Homes Facing High Flood Risk-25% 

More than Non-Redlined Areas.” Redfin Real Estate News. Redfin, June 23, 2021. https://www.redfin.com/news/redlining-flood-risk/. 



19 

“undesirable areas” becoming the most desirable, and affluent in the city. In terms of the Vision 
2100 zones, these areas would be the yellow and purple zones. Demographically, both zones 
have gained white residents, but purple zones have retained their majority black populations. 
Areas in proximity to downtowns or other urban centers are expensive, causing populations to be 
stratified by wealth rather than race. Meanwhile, the areas further from concentrated urban 
centers have become cheaper. These trends have led to the most dense, affluent areas of Norfolk 
to be increasingly vulnerable to flooding and permanent inundation. Though wealthy-area 
exposure to flooding may seem to have little impact on the low-income residents of the city that 
reside farther from the coast, flooding in the densest areas affects businesses and economic 
activity, not just the destruction of homes; any major flooding event in Norfolk would negatively 
impact not only the people living in the inundation zones but also those who work there. 
 
 

Redlining and Vision 2100 
 
Figure 6: Flood Risk in Climate Zones 
 

 

Image displays FEMA’s 100-year floodplain (area with a 1% annual chance of flooding) with Norfolk’s Vision 
2100 planning areas. 
Source: “Norfolk Vision 2100.” City of Norfolk, VA, November 22, 2016.  

 



20 

 
 
The majority of formerly redlined districts are located in yellow and purple zones. Today, purple 
zones are home to populations with the highest incomes and educational attainment and when 
redlining became a practice in the 1940s, the Naval Base, the red zone along the coast, was 
excluded given its military status.  The federal government sought to control housing decisions 
within its territory—a striking contradiction, given its role in encouraging and institutionalizing 
redlining. 

 
Climate-Informed Zoning Overlays in Norfolk 

 

The zoning overlays in Vision 2100 can be used to change or modify the provisions of the 
zoning code to a defined area in the city without re-zoning any of the land. 

The Upland Resilience Overlay (URO) & Coastal Resilience Overlay (CRO) are overlay zones 
that are applied to high flood-risk areas and prescribe unique statutory policy changes within 
each overlay zone and the overlay zones seek to concentrate investment in more prepared areas 
and increase resilience to sea level rise in more vulnerable areas. While the CRO focuses more 
on some design mandates for structures in climate-vulnerable areas, the URO is mostly a set of 
incentives and other policies to encourage future development in areas that are at lower risk for 
flooding and other climate damage. 

There are several tools and enforcement mechanisms envisioned by Vision 2100 in the overlays 
that seek to drive more dense development to locations that are less flood-prone. Not all of these 
policies have been implemented in law, but the Vision 2100 plan does indicate that these are the 
policy mechanisms for implementation: Notably, the zoning changes described in this report 
were introduced in 2018, after the adoption of Vision 2100. 
 

 Transfer of Development Rights (TDRs) is a voluntary, incentive-based program where 
landowners sell development rights from their land located areas designated as less 
suitable for development to a developer who can then use these rights to increase the 
density of development at another designated location.22 TDR is intended to transfer 
development from where it is discouraged to where it is encouraged. TDR is authorized 
in VA, but Norfolk would need to enact significant code changes to implement. 

 Density bonuses permit developers to build more housing units, taller buildings, or more 
floor space than normally allowed, in exchange for the provision of a defined public 
benefit, such as a specified percentage of affordable units; authorized in VA, but Norfolk 
would have to make changes to both its comprehensive plan and zoning ordinance. 

 Inclusionary Zoning (IZ) requires a given share of new construction to be affordable by 
people with low to moderate incomes; communities in Northern Virginia have IZ 
programs that could be used as a model for Norfolk. 

 
If implemented, these policies have the potential to set a precedent nationally for mechanisms to 
drive new development to locations that are less flood-prone. Transferable Development Rights 
have the potential to incentivize development in areas where the city would like to concentrate 
growth and allow the market and developers to realize the economic benefits that come with 

 
22  https://njaes.rutgers.edu/highlands/transfer-development-rights.php  



21 

smart growth and climate resilience. Similarly, density bonuses have the potential to present a 
market-oriented solution to housing affordability by allowing developers to increase the number 
of units, and potentially offer more units below market rate, in areas that are both less flood-
prone and close to the economic activity that will benefit residents.  
 
Inclusionary zoning is an approach that the city could use in conjunction with the first two 
policies, to ensure higher-density development includes affordable units. This approach also 
ensures that affordable development is not only occurring in parts of the city in which land 
values are lower, which can correlate with flood vulnerability. Given that low-income 
communities are often hardest hit by disasters, and have the least financial resources to address 
damages and potential rising insurance costs, it is especially critical that any new affordable 
development is not placed in harm’s way.   
 

Statistical Analysis: Residential Real Estate Market Trends 
 

SGA researched to what extent the 2018 Vision 2100 coastal resilience policy in the Upland 
Resilience Overlay (URO) impacts the prices of for-sale homes. SGA utilized sales prices of 
individual residences from 2009-2022 and looked at the sales prices for each zone in the overlay 
then collected and analyzed for changes in trends. The analysis focused on the URO (rather than 
the CRO) given that the URO had more direct impacts on permit data, in comparison to the CRO 
which introduced limits on construction, such as requiring raised electrical systems and no 
basements. 

To identify the effect a “difference in difference” (DID) design was utilized. The “treatment” 
was the individual zone, while the “post” period was 2018, or the date the URO came into effect. 
We employed a separate OLS regression using this DID design for each Vision 2100 zone type 
and controlled for standard factors of housing in a hedonic model. These covariates included 
housing age, size, number of bedrooms and bathrooms, distance to City Hall (a proxy for 
distance to the central business district), and lot size.  

Overall the results showed that the policy impact was neither significant in a quantitative sense, 
nor in a statistical sense. SGA found no statistically significant impact on sales prices for homes 
from the Vision 2100 “vision areas.” 
 
  



22 

Data Results 
 

Table 7: Vision 2100 and Sales Impacts 
 

Zone URO Policy impact on sales prices Simple correlation on  # of permits 

Red -3.4% (not stat. sig.) -800 from 2018-2019 

Yellow -3.5% -1,500 from 2018-2019 

Green -0.5% (not stat. sig.) NA 

Purple +2.0% +3,000 from 2018-2019 

Source: Real Estate Product Information and Yearly Analytics from CoStar Group, 2023. https://www.costar.com/ 

 

Table 8: Norfolk Average sales Price by Vision 2100 Planning Area 
 

 

Source: Real Estate Product Information and Yearly Analytics from CoStar Group, 2023. https://www.costar.com/ 

 



23 

As displayed in Table 11, there is evidence to suggest that the Upland Resilience Overlay, 
beginning in 2018, influenced sales prices in the green zone upward, compared to what they 
would otherwise have been based on similar properties. Controls for various factors of the home 
characteristics.  

The effect size is approximately -0.5 percent in real sale price (inflation-adjusted), or generally 
a NULL effect on price. This is a relatively small effect size compared to other treatments such 
as TOD, or major infrastructure improvements, where impact is usually +15-20 percent) and 
could be the result of signaling to the market but results are not statistically significant from zero. 
 
As shown in the table, the trend lines remain about the same over time, even after the policy was 
enacted in 2018 but there was a slight increase in sales prices in red zones post-2018.  
 

National Policy Precedents 
 
Norfolk’s Vision 2100 plan was among the first of its kind as a comprehensive, climate-informed 
approach to zoning, especially in a smaller market without the larger planning capacity or real 
estate value of a major metropolitan area. Alongside the fiscal impact analysis, SGA sought out 
examples of best practices in climate-informed zoning nationally. While many American 
municipalities have flood overlays or specific regulations pertinent to development in the 
floodplain, few locations offer as comprehensive of an approach as Norfolk’s. Norfolk’s 
approach is particularly notable for not only regulating development in flood-vulnerable areas 
but also seeking to direct future development to areas less susceptible to flooding. The zoning 
tools however, which sought to increase the attractiveness of development in some areas, were 
implemented at a later stage than Vision 2100. 
 
Many municipalities and cities have already initiated, or are increasing their commitment to, 
flood preparedness strategies such as flood plain overlay districts, flood mitigation plans, green 
area ratios, and stormwater management standards. However, many of these flood preparedness 
approaches are not necessarily reflective of the increased risk that municipalities will face on 
account of climate impacts. In many cases, floodplain overlay districts have been in place for 
several decades, but may not reflect the full extent of flood vulnerability in the area covered or 
the wider community served. Furthermore, most of these strategies focus solely on reducing or 
changing development patterns in flood-vulnerable areas, as opposed to also incentivizing 
development in areas which face less vulnerability. 
 
Many flood mitigation strategies that municipalities have instituted reflect FEMA’s Base Flood 
Elevation (BFE). FEMA describes the Base Flood Elevation as “the elevation of surface water 
resulting from a flood that has a 1 percent chance of equaling or exceeding that level in any 
given year”, and is reflected in the Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM).23 Areas of a municipality 
that fall under this BFE are attributed with certain insurance standards and elevation 
requirements. These elevation standards are more universally applicable and are therefore used 
as the metric for flood mitigation standards for municipalities across the country.  
 

 
23  “Base Flood Elevation (BFE).” FEMA.gov. Federal Emergency Management Administration, March 5, 2020. 

https://www.fema.gov/node/404233. 



24 

Recently, FEMA’s data and flood mapping were revised and improved through the Risk Rating 
2.0 initiative, in order to more accurately reflect risk and encourage more preparedness. As 
described by FEMA, Risk Rating 2.0 contains more indicating variables that measure flood risk, 
including river overflow, storm surging, erosion, and rainfall.24 These additional variables allow 
for a more comprehensive and proactive assessment of flood risk and mapping, in addition to the 
ability for FEMA to more accurately detect rating disparities.  
 
There are few municipalities across the country that have adopted innovative and more nuanced 
climate-informed zoning approaches. There has been more progress in communities with 
lucrative real estate markets, as well as higher capacity city planning or zoning departments. 
Many of the smaller towns which have begun to integrate climate and flood considerations into 
zoning and land use planning are coastal and include higher value real estate in the form of 
vacation or second homes, such as Nantucket, Massachusetts. While these trends are not 
surprising in terms of market considerations, they underscore the equity risks compounded by the 
impacts of climate change. Lower-income communities and communities of color already face 
disproportionate climate impacts and exposure will worsen comparatively when higher-income 
communities have more proactive policies in place. 
 
While municipalities are increasingly considering flood vulnerability in zoning and 
comprehensive planning, other climate hazards present many, if not more acute, risks to their 
residents. Heat is the climate hazard that presents the greatest risk to human health, according to 
the National Weather Service.25 A limited number of cities have adopted Urban Heat Island 
Ordinances, such as Miami Beach, which has an Urban Heat Island Ordinance, and Los Angeles, 
which has a Cool Roof Ordinance. The Los Angeles Cool Roof Ordinance places new 
requirements on roofing elements to follow particular Solar Reflective Index and Thermal 
Emittance, pertaining to new development and substantial redevelopment.26 Miami Beach’s 
Urban Heat Island Ordinance requires surface and rooftop parking to have high albedo surfaces 
and waives public hearing fees for sustainable roofing systems, cool pavement, and porous 
pavement.27 
 
Wildfire risk also presents a grave danger to many communities across the US, especially those 
which have undertaken recent suburban development in the Wildland Urban Interface (WUI). 
WUI codes or overlays regulate aspects of building and landscape design which can stop the 
spread of fire, often focused on building materials, defensible space (which limits flammable 
materials in close proximity to the building), and emergency access.28 Cities and counties with a 
WUI code include Austin, TX,29 Santa Clara, CA,30 and many others. Wildfire preparedness is 

 
24  “Risk Rating 2.0: Equity in Action.” FEMA.gov. Federal Emergency Management Administration (FEMA), April 18, 2021. 

https://www.fema.gov/flood-insurance/risk-rating. 
25  “Excessive Heat.” National Weather Service. NOAA's National Weather Service, November 22, 2021. 

https://www.weather.gov/phi/heat#:~:text=A%20combination%20of%20high%20heat,due%20to%20sweating%20or%20dehydration. 
26  “Ordinance No. 183149.” Los Angeles, CA: Department of Building and Safety, August 20, 2014. 

27  https://www.mbrisingabove.com/wp-content/uploads/Ordinance-2019-4252.pdf 

28  Barrett, Kimiko, Alice Ewen, George L. Geissler, CF, Abby Hall, Laurie Kurth, Molly Mowery, AICP, Peter Stangel, Michele Steinberg, and 

Mike Zupko. “Multihazard Planning for Communities in the Wildland-Urban Interface.” American Planning Association. American Planning 
Association, July 1, 2018. https://www.planning.org/publications/document/9155699/. 
29 “Wildland-Urban Interface Code.” Wildland-Urban Interface Code | AustinTexas.gov. City of Austin, TX. Accessed March 27, 2023. 

https://www.austintexas.gov/department/wildland-urban-interface-code. 
30 “Santa Clara County Wildland Urban Interface.” Santa Clara County Wildland Urban Interface. County of Santa Clara, CA. Accessed March 

27, 2023. https://plandev.sccgov.org/how/research-property/santa-clara-county-wildland-urban-interface. 



25 

also addressed by many building codes; for example, the state of California maintains a list of 
‘WUI-approved products’ that are in compliance with the California building code.31 However, 
while these methods require design approaches to reduce vulnerability, they do not effectively 
direct development elsewhere. Given the many development pressures in wildfire-prone areas in 
the US, especially California, redirecting development is a challenge given the current cost of 
land, environmental conditions, and many more considerations.  
 
The methods for integrating flood vulnerability into land use regulation most commonly seen in 
the US at the time of the field scan include: 
 

 Comprehensive Planning, which are long-term plans then followed by subsequent 
regulatory action; comprehensive planning is likely to address a wide variety of climate 
topics including adaptation and mitigation with implementation strategies to follow. 

 Design Guidelines, which codify design approaches that can reduce flood vulnerability; 
design guidelines may be recommended for a specific district or type of development. 

 Floodplain Overlay Districts, which are the most commonly identified strategies for 
climate-informed zoning; however, most current Floodplain Overlay districts may not 
fully depict the extent of anticipated future flooding on account of the impacts of climate 
change. 

 Stormwater Management & Green Area Ratios, which provide guidance on how 
stormwater is managed on site and in green space adjacent or connected to new 
development; while stormwater management can support flood preparedness, it typically 
does not influence the location or intensity of development. 

 Zoning, which regulates the built environment including considerations such as density, 
building size, setback, and use. Zoning provides one of the most thorough ways to 
integrate climate-informed considerations into future development

 
31 “Wildland-Urban Interfaces.” Wildland-Urban Interfaces | California Department of Housing and Community Development. State of 

California Department of Housing and Community Development. Accessed March 28, 2023. https://www.hcd.ca.gov/building-
standards/manufactured-and-factory-built/wildland-urban-interfaces. 



26 

 
 

 Climate-Informed Land Use Policy Approaches: Summary 

Type of 
Land Use 
Planning 
Approach 
 

Comprehensive Plans Design Guidelines Floodplain / Overlay 
District 

Stormwater 
Management Policies 
and Green Area Ratio 

Zoning 

Opportunity 
for Climate 
informed 
approaches 

Comprehensive Plans 
often approach climate 
hazards through an 
interdisciplinary lens. 
These plans usually 
institute long-range 
goals that address 
greenhouse gas 
emissions and energy 
reductions, and may 
address climate 
adaptation topics such 
as flooding and heat 
preparedness. These 
plans also focus on the 
public realm, with 
stress on public health, 
equity, and civic 
improvements to 
transportation and 
housing.  

Design guidelines can 
be used to help 
manage the threats of 
flooding and 
stormwater runoff, 
while also fostering 
consistency of other 
design elements. When 
addressing climate 
considerations, Design 
Guidelines may focus 
on strategies to help 
manage erosion, 
stormwater, and 
rainfall. Facades, 
building shape, open 
space design and 
building materials can 
be addressed to 
improve civic and 
social space. 

Overlay districts are 
flexible regulations 
that oftentimes 
supersede the zoning 
regulations of the 
district that they 
surmount. Floodplain 
or Coastal Districts are 
a popular type of 
Overlay. While 
Overlay zones allow 
for more stringent 
regulations, they can 
be seen as an 
“exception” rather than 
a fundamental part of a 
community’s zoning. 
 
In most cases, 
floodplain or coastal 
districts are 
particularly vulnerable 

Stormwater 
management (SWM) 
and green area ratios 
often utilize natural 
elements of the built 
environment where 
these strategies are 
applied in the 
municipality to buttress 
or strengthen protection 
against flooding 
hazards. These include 
natural fauna, artificial 
barriers, or other 
landscape structures 
that supply another 
added level of barriers 
between development 
and possible flooding. 
These measures also 
help address urban heat 
island effects and 

Zoning regulates 
the built 
environment, 
including 
building uses, 
setback, density 
and size; it  is the 
practice that 
dictates what 
type of 
development or 
use a specific 
parcel or area 
within a 
community can 
have. A climate-
informed 
approach to 
zoning can 
reduce 
development in 
flood-prone areas 



27 

to flooding due to their 
proximity to water or 
their natural 
characteristics. These 
districts dictate certain 
standards and uses 
within the geographic 
area that the overlay 
districts confine. 
Minimum setbacks, 
elevation standards, 
and floor area ratios 
are common standards 
that overlay districts 
regulate to prepare 
built structures from 
the dangers of 
flooding.  

pollution/air quality, 
and can have 
recreational, quality of 
life and public health 
benefits. 

more 
comprehensively 
than through 
limited overlay 
districts and can 
help encourage 
higher-density or 
more intense 
development in 
non-flood prone 
areas of a 
community. 
Zoning also can 
set certain 
developmental 
standards unique 
to different 
districts, or 
geographic areas, 
in a community.  

Limitations Although 
comprehensive and 
action plans 
summarize important 
goals a municipality 
outlines to improve 
public health, reduce 
emissions, and prepare 
for future climate 
change, these plans 
often do not have legal 
“teeth.” Changing 

Design guidelines 
usually focus on the 
architectural features 
of a building or 
development. From a 
holistic perspective of 
flood mitigation, 
design guidelines may 
not be as effective 
because they are often 
site-specific, meaning 
that they do not 

These land use 
planning approaches 
are often based on 
FEMA-determined 
standards for base 
flood elevation. Data 
has improved with the 
arrival of Risk Rating 
2.0; however, 
previously these 
measures of flooding 
may have been 

SWM and green area 
ratios apply a ratio of 
natural vegetation 
within  a certain area to 
prevent flooding and 
stormwater build-up 
and can include design 
strategies such as green 
roofs, bioswales, rain 
gardens, and other 
interventions. While 
these regulations make 

Zoning is one of 
the most 
effective tools 
that communities 
can use to adapt 
to the anticipated 
effects of climate 
change. 
Unfortunately, a 
zoning change is 
not enough to 
lead to more 



28 

zoning or other 
development 
regulations is a 
subsequent step which 
will ultimately change 
development patterns. 

incentivize future 
development in non-
flood-prone areas. 
While they do help 
manage stormwater 
and runoff, they have 
limited effect on where 
future development 
should be prioritized 
geographically across 
a community.  

extremely out of date 
and were not reflective 
of the extent of risk 
faced. While these 
approaches change 
standards in flood-
vulnerable areas, they 
fail to incentivize 
development in areas 
which face less 
vulnerability. 

development more 
prepared for climate 
impacts, they do not 
typically change or 
influence the location or 
intensity of 
developments. 

community 
preparedness - 
developers and 
the market need 
to follow with 
new construction 
and rehabilitation 
projects, 
requiring sites, 
capital, and 
developer savvy. 
Zoning also has 
an exclusionary 
history; 
Euclidean and 
socially 
restrictive zoning 
are rooted in 
segregation and 
racism in the 
history of the 
United States. 
The segregation, 
reduced wealth-
building 
opportunities, 
and other long-
term impacts 
require far 
greater action to 
address than 
zoning reform 
alone. 



29 

Notable 
examples 

● Boston, MA 
● Corpus, Christi, 
TX 
● Dauphin 
Island, AL 
● Nantucket, MA 
● New York, NY 
● San Francisco, 
CA 
● Santa Barbara, 
CA 
● Stonington, CT 

● Boston, MA 
● Charleston, SC 
● Nags Head, NC 
● New York, NY 
● Savannah, GA 
 

● Boston, MA 
● Charleston, SC 
● New Britain, 
PA 
● New York, NY 
● Ogunquit, ME 
● Rochester, NH 
● Stonington, CT 
 

● Hampton Roads, 
VA 
● New Orleans, 
LA 
● Washington, DC 

Norfolk, VA 
 

 

The examples above represent progress in recognizing climate impacts in land use policy. However, these individual policy 
approaches alone will not be sufficient to guide land use patterns so communities can become less susceptible to climate impacts. To 
address the many, varied impacts of climate change, local governments must incorporate a wide variety of levers addressing 
mitigation and adaptation, and recognize the disproportionate impacts of climate change on communities that have already suffered 
from discriminatory policies. Communities currently advancing a wide variety of climate-informed land use policies include: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



30 

Boston, MA 
 
New England’s largest city, Boston has a population of about 650,000 people, many of whom 
live and work in sites highly vulnerable to sea level rise.32 The city is highly vulnerable to coastal 
hazards; much of the city was built on fill, and its elevation above sea level is about 40 ft.33 The 
City of Boston adopted its Climate Action Plan in December 2007, the first of its kind on the 
city-wide level to address the threats of climate change and rising greenhouse gas emissions.34 
After going through multiple updates, in 2016 Boston debuted their ambitious Climate Ready 
Boston plan, which includes numerous land use, development, zoning, and sustainability 
initiatives to better prepare the city for the current and future effects of climate change.35 One of 
Climate Ready Boston’s goals is “to promote adapted buildings that will function to limit 
damage and displacement related to the impacts of a changing climate.”36 
 
Boston’s Coastal Flood Resilience Design Guidelines are part of the city’s larger overarching 
Climate Action Plan, which guides future development in the overlay district through four 
resilience-based criteria. These criteria proposed building approaches that both reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions and help prepare for rising sea levels while emphasizing the 
importance of the public realm as a keystone of civic and cultural life. The city also identified the 
six most vulnerable building typologies in the overlay district,  which informed how the design 
guidelines were created and what type of provisions were adopted for the code.37 
 
One of the most notable features in the city’s Climate Ready Boston plan is its Coastal Flood 
Resilience Overlay District (CFROD), which was enacted and added into the climate plan three 
years later in 2019.38 The district and its regulations reflect areas of the city with a projected 1 
percent annual increase of flooding in the year 2070 with 40 inches of sea level rise. Unlike 
many other resiliency or flood vulnerability districts in other municipalities across the country, 
Boston uses distinctive parameters to determine the geographic boundaries of the overlay 
district.  
 
The City of Boston has also developed their own Boston Harbor Flood Risk Model (BH-FRM) 
to determine vulnerable areas of the city at risk of flooding and geographically designate these 
areas within the Coastal Flood Resilience Zoning Overlay District.39 This model uses data not 
accounted for in the FEMA flood maps, which are generally based on historical data. Instead of 
using the FEMA flood mapping tool, The Boston Harbor Flood Risk Model allows the city to 

 
32  “U.S. Census Bureau Quickfacts: Boston City, Massachusetts.” QuickFacts: Boston city, Massachusetts. United States Census Bureau. 

Accessed March 27, 2023. https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/bostoncitymassachusetts. 
33  “City of Boston, MA Feature Details.” Geographic Names Information System. United States Geological Survey. Accessed March 27, 2023. 

https://edits.nationalmap.gov/apps/gaz-domestic/public/summary/617565. 
34  “Climate: Change | The City of Boston’s Climate Action Plan .” City of Boston, MA, December 2007. 

35  “Preparing for Climate Change.” City of Boston. City of Boston, July 17, 2016. https://www.boston.gov/departments/environment/preparing-

climate-change.  
36  “Coastal Flood Resilience Guidelines & Zoning Overlay District (Article 25A).” Flood Resiliency Building Guidelines & Zoning Overlay 

District. Boston Planning and Development Agency. Accessed March 27, 2023. https://www.bostonplans.org/planning/planning-initiatives/flood-
resiliency-building-guidelines-zoning-over. 
37  “Coastal Flood Resilience Guidelines & Zoning Overlay District (Article 25A).” BPDA. 

38   “Coastal Flood Resilience Guidelines & Zoning Overlay District (Article 25A).” BPDA.  

39  “Coastal Flood Resilience Guidelines & Zoning Overlay District (Article 25A).” BPDA. 



31 

anticipate future flooding hazards instead of basing such geographic district considerations on 
historical data. 
 
Boston’s CFROD contains conventional flood mitigation techniques and developmental 
standards much like other cities and towns facing heightened vulnerability to sea level rise. 
These include tactics and regulations within their zoning code such as:  

 minimum sea level rise design elevations 
 limitations on residential uses below minimum seal level rise 
 the creation of a more stringent review process for new buildings and 

developments located within flood zones, the city has adopted  
 
Within the Coastal Flood Resilience Overlay District regulations, the city of Boston has 
administered a resilience-focused four-step process to ensure that any future building 
developments fall within the goals outlined in the Boston Climate Plan, considering resilience, 
urban design and public realm, relationship to district-scale solutions, and sustainability co-
benefits.  
 
Charleston, SC 
 
Due to its proximity to the Atlantic Ocean and its near-level elevation to the sea floor in many 
parts of the city, Charleston, SC has a particular vulnerability to flooding and the impacts of 
climate change. The city has grappled with floods throughout its history and continues to 
struggle with flooding as a result of hurricanes and extreme weather. According to the Union of 
Concerned Scientists, Charleston is one of the fifty cities nationally that could be underwater by 
2050, with some extreme projections estimating that sea levels could rise by 5 feet in just ten 
years.40 One of the city’s primary flood mitigation strategies is the Bluebelt program, which is a 
floodplain management initiative with an emphasis on the restoration of natural floodplains.41 
Key criteria for investment include preparedness of repetitive loss properties, and opportunities 
to increase stormwater capacity and green space, as well as adjacencies to schools or other civic 
facilities.42 The city also has adopted zoning-based initiatives in their 2019 Flooding and Sea 
Level Rise Strategy,43 including a density and incentive-based Upper Peninsula Zoning District, 
which provides density and height bonuses to future development. Charleston is also investing in 
devising a portfolio of growth management strategies within the Plan West Ashley framework, 
which identifies areas within the West Ashley district of Charleston that encourages the 
retrofitting of buildings to increase flood resilience of the area. 
 
 
  

 
40  “Underwater: Rising Seas, Chronic Floods, and the Implications for US Coastal Real Estate.” Union of Concerned Scientists. Union of 

Concerned Scientists, June 18, 2018. https://www.ucsusa.org/resources/underwater. 
41  “Flood Mitigation Resources.” Flood Mitigation Resources. City of Charleston, SC. Accessed March 27, 2023. https://www.charleston-

sc.gov/2386/Flood-Mitigation-Resources.  
42  “Flood Mitigation Resources.” Flood Mitigation Resources. City of Charleston, SC. Accessed March 27, 2023. https://www.charleston-

sc.gov/2386/Flood-Mitigation-Resources.  
43  Flooding & Sea Level Rise Strategy. City of Charleston, SC, February 2019. https://www.charleston-sc.gov/1981/Flooding-Sea-Level-Rise-

Strategy. 



32 

Stonington, CT 
 
The coastal town of Stonington, CT which lies adjacent to the border of Rhode Island is located 
at the mouth of Long Island Sound and the Atlantic Ocean in southeastern Connecticut. Nearly 
50 percent of all properties are expected to face a severe risk of flooding within the next 50 
years, according to climate data provider Risk Factor.44 The town has taken several steps to 
better prepare the community for the future impacts of climate change through zoning and land 
use strategies, codified in Stonington’s Coastal Resilience Plan.45 The town has limited the 
development of buildings within floodplain zones, as well as offered floodplain acquisition and 
buyouts for residents located in floodplain districts. In addition to more ubiquitous elevation 
protocols for structures about the base flood elevation (BFE), Stonington has also recommended 
the use of financing programs, such as tax increment financing, to assist in the funding of 
community resilience programs. Stonington’s coastal resilience plan is more nuanced in that it 
includes both strategy numerous building standards and floodplain developmental protocols, but 
also recommends the installation of financing and acquisition programs that incentivize the 
future development of property outside floodplain zones while simulating more coastal resiliency 
programs through financing and tax programs. 
 
Some of the most recent innovation in climate-informed land use policy has emerged in the 
stormwater management realm. Notable examples include the policies below, which are 
supplemented with other approaches to climate-informed land use policy. 
 
Green Area Ratio, Washington, DC:  
 
Washington, DC’s Green Area Ratio incorporates green infrastructure requirements into new 
development, creating high-performance landscapes which both serve a stormwater management 
function and contribute to community green space and quality of life. The nation’s capital, 
Washington, DC, lies at the confluence of the Potomac River and the Chesapeake Bay in the 
mid-Atlantic region of the United States. Faced with moderate flooding risk over the next thirty 
years, the District has taken robust and pragmatic approaches to flood mitigation and hazard 
preparation. The District has embedded green area ratios (GARs) into the zoning regulations as a 
legal land use tactic to guide future development within certain districts. The District’s GAR 
assigns a weighted score to different development types based on multiple factors – square 
footage of the area, types and distribution of landscape elements, and other components.46 
Natural elements that provide added protection to a space, including shrubbery, trees, pervious 
services, and soil depth are all used to assess the green area ratio requirements of a specific 
parcel or site. The District’s green area ratio, legally codified into the zoning regulation, is a 
robust mitigation tactic that uses the natural landscape to help the District and its residents 
prepare for future flooding impacts from climate change. 
 

 
44  “Stonington, Connecticut Flood Factor® Report.” Risk Factor. First Street Foundation. Accessed March 27, 2023. 

https://riskfactor.com/city/stonington-connecticut/973700_fsid/flood. 
45  “Stonington Coastal Resilience Plan.” Stonington, CT Resiliency Plan. Town of Stonington, CT, August 2017. https://www.stonington-

ct.gov/planning-department/pages/stonington-ct-resiliency-
plan#:~:text=This%20resiliency%20plan%20is%20about,life%20and%20destruction%20to%20property. 
46  Green Area Ratio Overview. District of Columbia Department of Energy and Environment. Accessed March 28, 2023. 

https://doee.dc.gov/service/green-area-ratio-overview. 



33 

Stormwater Code in a Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance, New Orleans, LA:  
 
The City of New Orleans faces unique and particularly severe threats of climate change and sea 
level rise due to its geographic position on the Gulf of Mexico. The city has experienced 
devastating weather events such as hurricanes and tropical storms, which are expected to 
intensify due to climate change in the near future. Recognizing this risk, the city has adopted 
numerous comprehensive plans, ordinances, and resilience strategies. The 2018 Stormwater 
Code is one particularly notable innovation: In 2018, the City replaced Article 23 of the city’s 
Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance (CZO), which was focused on stormwater management 
strategies and guidelines for land use and development, with the Stormwater Code, a unified set 
of principles and regulations that use predominantly geophysical and natural resources to 
mitigate future effects of climate change, floods, and excess stormwater throughout the city.47  
 

 

New Orleans skyline. Source: Flickr by Robert Karma is licensed under CC BY-NC-ND 2.0  
 
The Stormwater Code contains design requirements that feature “alternative design methods”, 
which are included in the City of New Orleans Green Infrastructure Toolkit. These design 
methods marry stormwater management principles with other natural design principles including 
the construction of green roofs, impervious paving, and bioretention areas. 
 

 
 
 

  

 
47  “City of New Orleans Ordinance No. 27702.” City of New Orleans, February 8, 2018. 



34 

Conclusions & Recommendations 
 
SGA’s analysis found that the fiscal impact of Norfolk’s climate-informed zoning was neither 
significant in a quantitative sense, nor in a statistical sense. SGA found no statistically significant 
impact on sales prices for homes, or office and retail development from the Vision 2100 coastal 
resilience zones. This lack of impact is likely on account of how recently the policy was 
implemented, the unusual market conditions during the pandemic, and potentially a lack of 
concern about climate risk among home-buyers and developers in Norfolk during the period 
studied. Furthermore, as a long-range plan, Vision 2100 lacked the “implementation teeth” of 
subsequent regulatory follow-up that might have led to more immediate market impacts. 

The study found small changes in commercial real estate prices, but they were not statistically 
significant for single-family home prices (SFHs). Therefore, the statistical tests on SFHs do not 
support evidence of a strong causal relationship between the implementation of climate-informed 
land use and development policy and property values. While there may have been some effects 
on construction within the zones, this requires further analysis. 

Given these results, why might Norfolk’s Upland Resilience Overlay impact the market in the 
longer term? One potential conclusion is through signaling or the policy communicating 
preferred building locations to the market, with incentives for building increasing immediate 
demand in the market area. The more stringent building requirements in more vulnerable zones 
also effectively reduce the cost of doing business in the areas which are less vulnerable to 
flooding. Density bonuses, transfer of development rights, and other mechanisms to enable 
higher-density development also can increase the potential for value creation in areas that are 
less vulnerable to flooding. Longer term, these market signals may be further compounded by 
changes in insurance rates if prices increase in flood-vulnerable areas.  

The lack of immediate fiscal impact of climate-informed zoning in Norfolk is a reminder that 
climate risk was not a top-of-mind consideration for home-buyers and businesses in this market 
during the time period studied. However, the City of Norfolk chose to incorporate climate 
considerations into Vision 2100, making the issue more prominent for investors in the region and 
directly relevant to real estate development prospects. While the recognition of climate risk by 
the city may have been seen as dramatic at the time, it is now in line with continued progress on 
this issue in the private sector. Nationally, US federal policymakers have since increasingly 
focused on developing strategies to prepare for the physical and financial impacts of climate 
change, and institutional investors and commercial real estate developers have begun 
incorporating climate risk considerations into ESG and investment strategies.  

Informed by this study, Smart Growth America makes the following recommendations to 
Norfolk and other cities facing flood risk seeking to address climate risk in land use policy and 
advance equitable climate adaptation: 

 Embed climate data and climate risk considerations into land use policy: Land use 
policy presents a key opportunity to direct future development out of harm’s way, and to 
require higher, safer standards for new development. Local control of land use policy also 
ensures that planning can be calibrated with the community’s needs. Even with the risk of 
harmful market impacts, municipalities should recognize climate risk and use climate 
data to guide future development patterns. This climate data is now increasingly 
available, through freely available federal government sources and non-profit providers 



35 

as well as private sector companies providing more tailored analysis of risk. Some 
constituents may fear recognizing the trends apparent in the data will lead to market 
disruption. However, in most cases, private developers and investors are already using 
this data; it is low and moderate-income households, civic entities, and governmental 
bodies which may not have access to or understanding of this information which can 
impact the long-term values of their properties or planning decisions. In some cases, 
including in Norfolk, markets may not react sharply to planning which incorporates 
climate risk considerations, especially if there are strong long-term employment anchors 
and the local government is proactively investing in preparedness infrastructure to 
support the community’s residents and economy. 

 Incentivize development out of harm’s way: Strategies that make development more 
attractive for the market in less flood-prone areas may create a stronger housing supply, 
addressing today’s housing access crisis and directing future residents out of harm’s way. 
While Norfolk’s policy reform did not lead to immediate notable or statistically 
significant market impacts, it did lead to initial trends in permitting and construction, 
with momentum in the areas that the policy sought to make more attractive to future 
development. Encouraging new development in sites that are less flood-prone will not 
only keep new residents safer and out of harm’s way, it also has the potential for 
governmental savings due to reduced exposure to and potential for harm and economic 
disruption from climate events. Over the longer term, building more attractive and 
affordable housing in more prepared locations will draw new residents to safer locations 
and may make relocating within the region more feasible or attractive for residents 
currently living in riskier areas. 

 Recognize discriminatory land use policies and support the communities who have 
faced generational impacts: Local governments must recognize the legacy and ongoing 
harm borne by communities of color on account of racist land use policies, many of 
which directed low-income development into locations vulnerable to climate hazards. 
Resilience and land use planning needs to prioritize communities that have faced the 
most harm and also which stand to lose the most on account of climate impacts. 
Accordingly, policies should focus on supporting existing communities now, through 
infrastructure investment, grants for home retrofits, and preparedness investments like 
resilience hubs as well as through long-term planning. Strategies to support low-income 
communities facing climate risk also need to recognize the importance of social and 
community ties for residents, in everyday life as well as in a potential crisis event.  

 Pair land use policy change with further investment in affordable housing: Policies 
such as Norfolk’s have the potential to harm low-income communities and communities 
of color who are most likely to live in riskier areas, which may suffer market impacts and 
reduced property values due to recognition of climate risk.  These policies should be 
paired with other initiatives to proactively increase affordable housing supply, such as 
inclusionary zoning, which ensures that all new development includes affordable units. 
Partnerships to deliver affordable housing, such as community land trusts, present other 
avenues to advance equitable development in partnership with community members. 

 Continue to invest in mitigation alongside adaptation efforts: Climate adaptation is 
increasingly urgent as communities are already experiencing higher levels of physical 
destruction, negative health impacts, and financial risk on account of the consequences of 
climate change. Investing in preparedness against harmful climate impacts is critical, but 



36 

cannot be society’s sole focus in the face of the climate crisis. Local plans need to embed 
both adaptation and mitigation goals into land use and transportation policy, considering 
not only building design, electrification, and energy usage but also mode shift, including 
investment in transit and increased density to reduce reliance on cars. 

 

This initial study of the fiscal impact of Norfolk’s Vision 2100 indicated that climate-informed 
zoning did not impact property values in the short term. Despite the concern of some 
stakeholders as expressed to Norfolk city staff, the market did not “explode” on account of 
planning documentation recognizing the vulnerabilities faced by the city.  This may change as a 
wider variety of investment entities increase their understanding of climate risk and climate 
events become more severe. However, at the time of the study, the market conditions in Norfolk 
present one example which could reduce hesitation in other communities—and perhaps lead to 
vital increased recognition of the impacts of climate change in land use policy.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



37 

References 
 

“100 Resilient Cities.” The Rockefeller Foundation. The Rockefeller Foundation, February 7, 
2023. https://www.rockefellerfoundation.org/100-resilient-cities/.  

Barrett, Kimiko, Alice Ewen, George L. Geissler, CF, Abby Hall, Laurie Kurth, Molly Mowery, 
AICP, Peter Stangel, Michele Steinberg, and Mike Zupko. “Multihazard Planning for 
Communities in the Wildland-Urban Interface.” American Planning Association. American 
Planning Association, July 1, 2018. https://www.planning.org/publications/document/9155699/.  

“Base Flood Elevation (BFE).” FEMA.gov. Federal Emergency Management Administration, 
March 5, 2020. https://www.fema.gov/node/404233.  

“Climate: Change | The City of Boston’s Climate Action Plan.” City of Boston, MA, December 
2007. 

“Coastal Flood Resilience Guidelines & Zoning Overlay District (Article 25A).” Flood 
Resiliency Building Guidelines & Zoning Overlay District. Boston Planning and Development 
Agency. Accessed March 27, 2023. https://www.bostonplans.org/planning/planning-
initiatives/flood-resiliency-building-guidelines-zoning-over.  

“City of Boston, MA Feature Details.” Geographic Names Information System. United States 
Geological Survey. Accessed March 27, 2023. https://edits.nationalmap.gov/apps/gaz-
domestic/public/summary/617565.  

“City of New Orleans Ordinance No. 27702.” City of New Orleans, February 8, 2018.  

Das, Puja. “Rising Sea Level, Boston Underwater | Understanding Different Sea Level Rise 
Scenarios in Boston's Neighborhoods.” Rising Sea Level, Boston Underwater | ArcGIS 
StoryMaps. Esri, October 19, 2020. 
https://storymaps.arcgis.com/stories/32cfb90449e347038ee2a97fcfcba9f3.  

Ellis, Tim, and Dana Anderson. “1 In 10 Homebuyers & Sellers Say Climate Risk Is Main 
Reason for Move: Redfin Survey.” Redfin Real Estate News. Redfin, January 18, 2022. 
https://www.redfin.com/news/homebuyer-survey-climate-change/.  

“Excessive Heat.” National Weather Service. NOAA's National Weather Service, November 22, 
2021. 
https://www.weather.gov/phi/heat#:~:text=A%20combination%20of%20high%20heat,due%20to
%20sweating%20or%20dehydration.  

Executive Office of the President, The White House § (2022). 
https://www.whitehouse.gov/about-the-white-house/our-government/the-executive-
branch/#:~:text=Perhaps%20the%20most%20visible%20parts,the%20President's%20activities%
20and%20agend. 



38 

“Federal Reserve Board Announces That Six of the Nation’s Largest Banks Will Participate in a 
Pilot Climate Scenario Analysis Exercise Designed to Enhance the Ability of Supervisors and 
Firms to Measure and Manage Climate-Related Financial Risks.” Board of Governors of the 
Federal Reserve System. United States Federal Reserve System, September 29, 2022. Board of 
Governors of the Federal Reserve System. 
https://www.federalreserve.gov/newsevents/pressreleases/other20220929a.htm?source=email.   

“Federal Supplier Climate Risks and Resilience Proposed Rule.” Federal Supplier Climate Risks 
and Resilience Proposed Rule | Office of the Federal Chief Sustainability Officer. Council on 
Environmental Quality, November 10, 2022. 
https://www.sustainability.gov/federalsustainabilityplan/fed-supplier-rule.html.  

“Flood Mitigation Resources.” Flood Mitigation Resources. City of Charleston, SC. Accessed 
March 27, 2023. https://www.charleston-sc.gov/2386/Flood-Mitigation-Resources.  

“Flood Risk & Homes: Real Estate Resources &amp; Tips | Redfin.” Redfin. Redfin. Accessed 
March 29, 2023. https://www.redfin.com/guides/climate-change-housing-impact/flood-risk.  

Flooding & Sea Level Rise Strategy. City of Charleston, SC, February 2019. 
https://www.charleston-sc.gov/1981/Flooding-Sea-Level-Rise-Strategy.  

Green Area Ratio Overview. District of Columbia Department of Energy and Environment. 
Accessed March 28, 2023. https://doee.dc.gov/service/green-area-ratio-overview.  

“Green Infrastructure.” Green Infrastructure - NOLA Ready. City of New Orleans. Accessed 
March 28, 2023. https://ready.nola.gov/green-infrastructure/.  

Hallegatte, Stephane, Colin Green, Robert J. Nicholls, and Jan Corfee-Morlot. “Future Flood 
Losses in Major Coastal Cities.” Nature Climate Change 3, no. 9 (August 18, 2013): 802–6. 
https://doi.org/10.1038/nclimate1979.  

Katz, Lily. “A Racist Past, a Flooded Future: Formerly Redlined Areas Have $107 Billion Worth 
of Homes Facing High Flood Risk-25% More than Non-Redlined Areas.” Redfin Real Estate 
News. Redfin, June 23, 2021. https://www.redfin.com/news/redlining-flood-risk/.  

Kramer, David. “Norfolk: A Case Study in Sea-Level Rise.” Physics Today 69, no. 5 (May 
2016): 22–25. https://doi.org/10.1063/pt.3.3163.  

Lopez, C Todd. “DOD, Navy Confront Climate Change Challenges in Southern Virginia.” US 
Department of Defense. US Department of Defense, July 21, 2021. 
https://www.defense.gov/News/News-Stories/Article/Article/2703096/dod-navy-confront-
climate-change-challenges-in-southern-
virginia/#:~:text=Over%20the%20last%20100%20years,1%2D3%20feet%20by%202050.  

Meet Norfolk's Chief Resilience Officer. YouTube. NorfolkTV, 2015. 
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=xcLUKniKNkY.  



39 

“National Disaster Resilience Competition.” US Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD). US Department of Housing and Urban Development . Accessed March 28, 
2023. https://www.hud.gov/program_offices/economic_development/resilience/competition.  

“New Orleans Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance, Article 23: Landscape, Stormwater 
Management, and Screening.” New Orleans Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance, Article 23: 
Landscape, Stormwater Management, and Screening | Adaptation Clearinghouse. Georgetown 
Climate Center. Accessed March 28, 2023. 
https://www.adaptationclearinghouse.org/resources/new-orleans-comprehensive-zoning-
ordinance-article-23-landscape-stormwater-management-and-
screening.html#:~:text=The%20full%20CZO%20is%20intended,(excluding%20some%20reside
ntial%20property).  

“Norfolk Resilience Strategy.” The Rockefeller Foundation, n.d. 

“Norfolk Vision 2100.” City of Norfolk, VA, November 22, 2016. 

“Ordinance No. 183149.” Los Angeles, CA: Department of Building and Safety, August 20, 
2014. 

“plaNorfolk2030.” plaNorfolk2030 | City of Norfolk, Virginia - Official Website. City of 
Norfolk, VA, March 26, 2013. https://www.norfolk.gov/1376/plaNorfolk2030.  

“Preparing for Climate Change.” City of Boston. City of Boston, July 17, 2016. 
https://www.boston.gov/departments/environment/preparing-climate-change.  

“Risk Rating 2.0: Equity in Action.” FEMA.gov. Federal Emergency Management 
Administration (FEMA), April 18, 2021. https://www.fema.gov/flood-insurance/risk-rating.  

“Santa Clara County Wildland Urban Interface.” Santa Clara County Wildland Urban Interface. 
County of Santa Clara, CA. Accessed March 27, 2023. https://plandev.sccgov.org/how/research-
property/santa-clara-county-wildland-urban-interface.  

“Stonington Coastal Resilience Plan.” Stonington, CT Resiliency Plan. Town of Stonington, CT, 
August 2017. https://www.stonington-ct.gov/planning-department/pages/stonington-ct-
resiliency-
plan#:~:text=This%20resiliency%20plan%20is%20about,life%20and%20destruction%20to%20
property.  

“Stonington, Connecticut Flood Factor® Report.” Risk Factor. First Street Foundation. Accessed 
March 27, 2023. https://riskfactor.com/city/stonington-connecticut/973700_fsid/flood.  

“US Census Bureau Quickfacts: Boston City, Massachusetts.” QuickFacts: Boston city, 
Massachusetts. United States Census Bureau. Accessed March 27, 2023. 
https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/bostoncitymassachusetts.  



40 

“Underwater: Rising Seas, Chronic Floods, and the Implications for US Coastal Real Estate.” 
Union of Concerned Scientists. Union of Concerned Scientists, June 18, 2018. 
https://www.ucsusa.org/resources/underwater.  

“Wildland-Urban Interface Code.” Wildland-Urban Interface Code | AustinTexas.gov. City of 
Austin, TX. Accessed March 27, 2023. https://www.austintexas.gov/department/wildland-urban-
interface-code.  

“Wildland-Urban Interfaces.” Wildland-Urban Interfaces | California Department of Housing 
and Community Development. State of California Department of Housing and Community 
Development. Accessed March 28, 2023. https://www.hcd.ca.gov/building-
standards/manufactured-and-factory-built/wildland-urban-interfaces.  

 

 
 
 

  



41 

Appendix: Additional Real Estate Analysis  
 

Office 
 

Figure 7: Total Occupied Office Space Per Zone 
 

 

Source: Real Estate Product Information and Yearly Analytics from CoStar Group, 2023. https://www.costar.com/ 

Very little change in occupied square footage of office space in each zone since 2006, with red 
zones hosting the most occupied office space overall. 
 

Figure 8: Change in Office Occupancy  

Source: Real Estate Product Information and Yearly Analytics from CoStar Group, 2023. https://www.costar.com/ 



42 

Percentage of occupied office space shows the amount of space occupied as a percentage of total 
available space. All zones follow the same general trends with a slight dip in 2008 (likely due to 
the recession) and another drop in 2017. Interestingly, 2020 is when the zones completely 
diverge from one another, indicating significantly different office market trends in each zone 
with purple and green zones continuing to host significant percentages of occupied office space 
and yellow and red zones declining. 
 

Figure 11: Change in Office Occupancy Since 2018 
 

 

Source: Real Estate Product Information and Yearly Analytics from CoStar Group, 2023. https://www.costar.com/ 

 
More clearly shows the trends in percentage of occupied office space per zone since 2018. The 
pandemic seems to have had little to no effect on green and red zones while yellow and purple 
zones saw a drop in 2020, then purple zones increased steadily while yellow zones were more 
volatile until 2022. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



43 

Figure 9: Average Office Rent 
 

Source: Real Estate Product Information and Yearly Analytics from CoStar Group, 2023. https://www.costar.com/ 

 
Red zones host the highest cost per square foot in office rents, with green zones following close 
behind. Yellow zones saw peak prices in 2013 and have remained generally the same since. 
Purple zones just recently (2021) saw a steep increase in office space, likely due to the pandemic. 
 



44 

Figure 10: Change in Average Rent Since 2018 
 

Source: Real Estate Product Information and Yearly Analytics from CoStar Group, 2023. https://www.costar.com/ 

More clearly shows the trends in average costs of office space per zone since 2018. No notable 
observations except for the steep rise in cost in purple zones in 2021. 

Figure 11: Office Space Absorption 
 

Source: Real Estate Product Information and Yearly Analytics from CoStar Group, 2023. https://www.costar.com/ 

Office space absorption was negligible going back to 2006, Q1 2022 experienced a large degree 
of volatility.  
 



45 

Figure 12: Office Space Absorption Since 2018 
 

 

Source: Real Estate Product Information and Yearly Analytics from CoStar Group, 2023. https://www.costar.com/ 
 
Occupied office space in the city has remained the same in each zone with most occupied office 
space being located in red zones. There were no significant changes after 2018.  
 
The yellow and purple zones experienced a drop in office occupancy rates in 2017 and 2018, 
respectively. Given the location of the northernmost yellow zone along the coast, this decline in 
occupancy rates may be correlated with the introduction of the climate zoning policy. However, 
it is important to note the yellow zones contain the second-largest inventory of office space by 
square footage. There were no significant changes in the red or green zones. 
 
Red and green zones reported the most expensive office space rents and the trend has remained 
consistent since 2018. Yellow zones increased their office rents in 2018, which correlates with 
the drop in office occupancy rates around the same time. Purple zones experienced a spike in 
office space rents in 2021, which may be connected to the Covid-19 pandemic.  
 
Absorption is an indicator of tenant demand and it is common to see spikes going from the 
positive to the negative and back again. There was no noticeable change in office absorption 
until 2021 when absorption in the red, green, and yellow zones increased and absorption in 
purple areas dropped. Absorption tends to be a lagging indicator of tenant demand and 2022 data 
may not be wholly reflective of current market conditions.  
 
The purple and yellow zones have the least amount of office inventory and the red zones have 
the largest amount. Green zones have an amount above purple and yellow but below the red 
zones. Office inventory in each zone has remained consistent throughout the time period from 
2006-2022.  
 
There was a steep decline in office occupancy in yellow zones from 2018-2019, which then 
increased in 2020. The red, green, and purple zones have a similar occupancy rate.  



46 

 
Office rents have remained stable, with offices in the purple zones exhibiting the lowest average 
rent. Green, yellow, and red zones offer similar rents. In 2020, every zone increased the rental 
prices of office spaces except for the yellow zones. There were no noticeable changes in net 
absorption in any zone going back from 2006-2022. 

 

Retail 

Figure 13: Total Occupied Retail Space Per Zone 

 

Source: Real Estate Product Information and Yearly Analytics from CoStar Group, 2023. https://www.costar.com/ 

Trends have remained consistent since 2006, with green zones experiencing a slight uptick in 
occupied retail space in 2017 while purple zones slightly declined. 

 
 



47 

Figure 14: Change in Average Retail Occupancy 
 

 

Source: Real Estate Product Information and Yearly Analytics from CoStar Group, 2023. https://www.costar.com/ 

Retail occupancy in all zones show relative volatility, with green and red zones maintaining the 
highest percentage of occupied retail space until 2020 when yellow zones increased their 
occupancy rates as well. Purple zones saw a major drop in percentage of occupied retail space in 
2018 and have not recovered. 

 

Figure 15: Average Retail Rent 
 

 

Source: Real Estate Product Information and Yearly Analytics from CoStar Group, 2023. https://www.costar.com/ 



48 

Retail rents display volatility, representing shifting demand in the market. All retail rents have 
steadily risen since 2006, except for rents in yellow zones that dipped in 2014. Between 2017 
and 2018, rents in yellow and purple zones sharply rose; the peak in purple zones is likely due to 
the major decline in occupancy around the same time. 

 
Figure 19: Change in Retail Rent Since 2018 
 

 

Source: Real Estate Product Information and Yearly Analytics from CoStar Group, 2023. https://www.costar.com/ 

Shows a more detailed view of changes in retail rents in all zones since 2018. Purple and yellow 
zones host volatile rents while green and red zones stay more consistent, even in the midst of the 
pandemic. 
 



49 

Figure 16: Change in Retail Absorption 

 

Source: Real Estate Product Information and Yearly Analytics from CoStar Group, 2023. https://www.costar.com/ 

 
Retail absorption rates have been very low and negative in the purple zones over the past few 
years.   
 

Figure 21: Retail Absorption Since 2018 
 

 

Source: Real Estate Product Information and Yearly Analytics from CoStar Group, 2023. https://www.costar.com/ 
 
There was no significant change in occupied retail space in each zone since 2018. Green zones 
have the highest amount of retail space. 
 
Retail occupancy rates in each zone remained relatively unchanged up until 2018 when 
occupancy rates in purple zones dropped about 15 percent. Overall, this is not a significant 
change, as the majority of retail space in purple zones was still occupied, but it’s important to 



50 

note that while retail spaces in other zones went mostly unaffected, purple zones did experience a 
shit.  
 
Retail space rents have remained similar to one another, with red zones having higher rents and 
yellow zones offering lower rents. From Q3 of 2018 forward, retail space rents drastically 
increased, correlating with the drop in occupancy rates these areas experienced the same year. 
The most recent retail space rent indicates the prices in each zone seem to be splitting more 
drastically. Finally, the yellow zones have the highest rents. 
 
There was no significant impact on retail space absorption over the specified time period. 
Outliers began to show in 2021 with absorption drastically increasing in green and red zones, and 
declining in purple zones. 

The green and red zones contain the largest concentration of retail inventory. This is closely 
followed by purple zones with yellow zones falling far below the rest. Starting in 2018, purple 
zones experienced a dramatic decrease in retail space occupancy, decreasing approximately 15 
percent in two years. The retail occupancy rates in the other zones remained the same. The 
purple zones also experienced an increase in retail space rents in 2018, but then dropped in 2019. 
The increase in rent correlates with the decrease in occupancy in these zones. The rental prices in 
the other zones clustered around the same average price. There were no noticeable changes in 
absorption in any zone. 
 
Multifamily 
 
Figure 17: Occupied Multifamily Space 
 

 

Source: Real Estate Product Information and Yearly Analytics from CoStar Group, 2023. https://www.costar.com/ 

Occupied multifamily space has held constant since 2006, with very slight increases in all zones, 
but most notably in purple and red zones. 
 



51 

Figure 18: Total Multifamily Occupancy Rates 
 

 

Source: Real Estate Product Information and Yearly Analytics from CoStar Group, 2023. https://www.costar.com/ 

Red zones host the lowest occupancy rates in multifamily housing, reflecting the naval presence 
in the area. Occupancy rates in the yellow, green, and purple zones have remained about the 
same since 2000. 

 
Figure 19: Change in Average Multifamily Occupancy Rates Since 2018 
 

 

Source: Real Estate Product Information and Yearly Analytics from CoStar Group, 2023. https://www.costar.com/ 

A more detailed look at multifamily occupancy rates since 2018 shows that there has been little 
to no change, other than in 2020 when there was a dip in yellow zones. 



52 

Figure 20: Average Multifamily Rent 

 

Source: Real Estate Product Information and Yearly Analytics from CoStar Group, 2023. https://www.costar.com/ 

All multifamily rents have steadily increased since 2000, with red zones hosting the most 
expensive rates. 

 
Figure 21: Multifamily Absorption 
 

 

Source: Real Estate Product Information and Yearly Analytics from CoStar Group, 2023. https://www.costar.com/ 

Multifamily absorption has been increasing in all ones since 2012. Prior to the recession in 2008, 
absorption rates were more volatile.  
 



53 

Figure 27: Multifamily Absorption Since 2018 

 

Source: Real Estate Product Information and Yearly Analytics from CoStar Group, 2023. https://www.costar.com/ 
 
The purple zones contained the most occupied square footage for multifamily units. Beginning in 
2014, the red and green zones increased the amount of occupied multifamily space. However, 
there were no statistically significant effects post-2018. 
 
Rent prices for multifamily units have remained relatively stable with rents in red zones being 
slightly higher than prices in yellow, purple, and green zones.  

Purple zones contain significantly more multifamily units compared to the other zones while the 
green, red, and yellow zones have a similar amount of multifamily units. Occupancy rates are 
lowest in red zones and similar in green, yellow, and purple zones 

In each zone, the rent for multifamily units has remained similar and has steadily increased over 
time. The red zones have more expensive rents for multifamily units than the other zones. There 
were no noticeable changes in absorption in any zone from Q1 2001 to Q2 2022 other than in 
2020, which could be the result of the effects of the pandemic. 
 

 
 



203 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Approving a blanket purchase 

agreement with Odyssey Manufacturing Co. for sodium hypochlorite supply services, for the Water 

Resources Department, for a total contract amount of $2,171,000. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CA-1

CA-1



ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 
Consent Agenda 

Meeting of November 2, 2023 
 
 
To: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair, and Members of City Council 
 
Subject: Approving a blanket purchase agreement with Odyssey Manufacturing Co. for sodium 
hypochlorite supply services, for the Water Resources Department, for a total contract amount of 
$2,171,000. 
 
Explanation: This purchase is being made from the Tampa Bay Water Contract 2022-016. 
The vendor provides liquid sodium hypochlorite to the Cosme Water Treatment Plant, Oberly and 
Washington Terrace Pump Stations, and the Northeast, Northwest and Southwest Water 
Reclamation facilities. This chemical is used to disinfect drinking water and wastewater for 
reclaimed water use prior to distribution to the public. 
 
The Procurement and Supply Management Department, in cooperation with the Water 
Resources Department, recommends an award: 
 

Odyssey Manufacturing Co. (Tampa, FL) ………........................................$2,171,000 
 
Odyssey Manufacturing Co has met the specifications, terms and conditions of Tampa Bay Water 
Contract 2022-016 effective through September 30, 2024. This purchase is made in accordance 
with Section 2-219 (b) of the Procurement Code, which authorizes the Mayor, or his designee, to 
utilize competitively bid contracts of other governmental entities. A blanket purchase agreement 
will be issued and will be binding only for actual quantities received. 
 
Cost/Funding/Assessment Information: Funds have been previously appropriated in the 
Water Resources Operating Fund (4001), Water Resources Department, Oberly PS Division 
(420-2081), Washington Terrace PS Division (420-2085), Northeast WRF Division (420-2173), 
Northwest WRF Division (420-2177), and Southwest WRF Division (420-2181) 
 
Attachments: Resolution 



Date Report Run: September 20, 2023

Description of Good/Service: Sodium Hypochlorite Supply Service

Procurement Analyst: Deron deFreese

Council Date: October 19, 2023

Award or Renewal: Award

Grand Total $2,625,000 $2,270,662 $2,499,919 $229,258

Contract Number CPA oSupplier Name

Agreed 

Amount

Contract 

Matched 

Amount

Contract 

Released 

Amount

Contract 

Unpaid 

Amount

245707 Odyssey Man $2,625,000 $2,270,662 $2,499,919 $229,258

Spend by  Fiscal Year

Department  FY 21 FY 22 FY 23 Grand Total

Water Resources $17,673 $894,878 $1,303,517 $2,216,069

Parks And Recreation $0 $26,432 $28,161 $54,593

Grand Total $17,673 $921,310 $1,331,678 $2,270,662

Spend by  Fiscal Year

Invoice Month FY 21 FY 22 FY 23 Grand Total

Aug $8,974 $81,514 $137,758 $228,246

Sep $8,699 $103,384 $27,445 $139,528

Oct $0 $70,587 $110,306 $180,892

Nov $0 $75,670 $109,823 $185,493

Dec $0 $68,307 $116,872 $185,179

Jan $0 $78,982 $101,612 $180,595

Feb $0 $60,262 $111,314 $171,577

Mar $0 $74,911 $122,248 $197,159

Apr $0 $70,044 $113,483 $183,528

May $0 $76,888 $109,806 $186,694

Jun $0 $69,933 $133,456 $203,388

Jul $0 $90,828 $137,555 $228,383

Grand Total $17,673 $921,310 $1,331,678 $2,270,662

Average $1,473 $76,776 $110,973 $189,222 #DIV/0! #DIV/0!

Spend by  Fiscal Year

Department and Fund Fund Fund Descriptio FY 21 FY 22 FY 23 Grand Total

190 Parks And Recrea 0001 General Fund $0 $26,432 $28,161 $54,593

420 Water Resources 4001 Water Resourc $17,673 $894,878 $1,303,517 $2,216,069

Grand Total $17,673 $921,310 $1,331,678 $2,270,662

Spend by  Fiscal Year

Requisitioner FY 21 FY 22 FY 23 Grand Total

Smith, Brianne Grace $17,070 $758,237 $1,036,336 $1,811,643

Church, Clyde E Jr $604 $61,814 $267,181 $329,599

Pierce, Cynthia A $0 $74,826 $0 $74,826

Parsley, Gary R Jr $0 $26,432 $20,845 $47,277

Hansen, Rebecca D $0 $0 $7,316 $7,316

Grand Total $17,673 $921,310 $1,331,678 $2,270,662

Spend By Requisitioner

FY 21 FY 22 Grand Total

Smith, Brianne Grace 17,070$           758,237$         775,307$        

Pierce, Cynthia A ‐$                 74,826$           74,826$          

Church, Clyde E Jr 604$                 61,814$           62,418$          

Parsley, Gary R Jr ‐$                 26,432$           26,432$          

Grand Total 17,673$           921,310$         938,984$        



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-_____ 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE AWARD OF A BLANKET 
PURCHASE AGREEMENT TO ODYSSEY MANUFACTURING 
CO. FOR SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE SUPPLY SERVICES FOR 
THE WATER RESOURCES DEPARTMENT FOR A TOTAL 
CONTRACT AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $2,171,000 
UTILIZING TAMPA BAY WATER CONTRACT 2022-016; 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE TO 
EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO 
EFFECTUATE THIS TRANSACTION; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City of St. Petersburg (“City”) desires to purchase sodium hypochlorite 
supply services; and 

WHEREAS, Section 2-219 (b) of the St. Petersburg City Code allows the City to use 
competitively bid contracts of other government entities or consortiums if the contracts were 
awarded on the basis of a competitive process substantially equivalent to the one specified in the 
City’s Procurement Code and that it is in the best interest of the City to utilize the contract; and 

WHEREAS, Odyssey Manufacturing Co. has met the specifications, terms and conditions 
of the Tampa Bay Water Contract 2022-016 for the purchase of sodium hypochlorite effective 
through September 30, 2024; and  

WHEREAS, the Procurement and Supply Management Department has reviewed the 
applicable solicitation and has determined (i) that Tampa Bay Water Contract 2022-016 was 
awarded on the basis of competitive process substantially equivalent to the one specified in the 
City’s Procurement Code and (ii) that it is in the best interest of the City to utilize Tampa Bay 
Water Contract 2022-016 to purchase sodium hypochlorite supply services; and 

WHEREAS, the Procurement and Supply Management Department, in cooperation with 
Water Resources recommends approval of this resolution.  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. Petersburg, 
Florida, that the award of a blanket purchase agreement to Odyssey Manufacturing Co. for sodium 
hypochlorite supply services for the Water Resources Department for a total contract amount not 
to exceed $2,171,000 utilizing Tampa Bay Water Contract 2022-016 is hereby approved. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or his designee is authorized to execute all 
documents necessary to effectuate this transaction.  



 

This resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

LEGAL: DEPARTMENT: 

    
00705277 



Page 1 of 1

-- City of St. Petersburg Authorization Request --

General Authorization

Request #

237740

Name: Kertesz, Cortni L Request Date: 11-OCT-2023 Status: APPROVED

Authorization Request

Subject: 885-40 Chemical,Sodium Hypochlorite,Nov 2 Consent

Message: Submitted for your approval, please find attached Consent Write-up for, scheduled to go before City Council 
November 2, 2023.  Resolution currently in development and will be included on the finalized version when 
posted into City Clerk's Office Questys system.  Should you have any questions, please contact me at extension 
3231. Thank you.

Supporting
Documentation:

885-40 Chemical, Sodium Hypochlorite, November 2, 2023 Consent Write-up and Forcsat Report.pdf

Approver Completed By Response Response
Date

Type

0 Kertesz, Cortni L SUBMITTED 11-OCT-2023

1 Tankersley, Claude Duval Tankersley, Claude Duval APPROVE 11-OCT-2023 User Defined 



210 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Accepting a proposal from 

Daniel Company, dba Daniel Mechanical LLC, a sole source supplier, for a Bio-trickling Filter and 

Carbon Adsorber Odor Control System, for the Southwest Water Reclamation Facility, for a total 

cost of $1,315,000. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CA-2

CA-2



ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 
Consent Agenda  

Meeting of November 2, 2023 
 
 
To: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair, and Members of City Council 
 
Subject: Accepting a proposal from Daniel Company, dba Daniel Mechanical LLC, a sole source 
supplier, for a Bio-trickling Filter and Carbon Adsorber Odor Control System, for the Southwest 
Water Reclamation Facility, for a total cost of $1,315,000. 
 
The supplier will furnish and deliver a Bio-trickling Filter and Carbon Adsorber Turn-key Odor 
Control System to the Southwest Water Reclamation Facility (SWWRF). The components of this 
system include water panel design, polyurethane foam media, activated carbon media, scrubber 
towers, ductwork, and dampers. The purchase of this odor control system is an addition to an 
existing odor control system at the SWWRF to address complaints about odors emanating from 
the headworks structure. Given the persistent nature of these complaints, implementation of an 
additional unit is necessary. The proposed system is designed to further mitigate ongoing odor 
issues at the SWWRF. Previously, biological units from Daniel Company were installed to address 
odors at other processes within the facility, and these units have consistently proven reliable and 
efficient. These units do not require external contractors to operate and maintain, thereby 
reducing operational expenses, eliminating re-training for staff, and ensuring consistent odor 
control performance.  
 
Daniel Company is the original equipment manufacturer (OEM) and the exclusive sole source 
supplier of the Bio-trickling Filter and Carbon Adsorber Odor Control System. This system will 
help to achieve regulatory compliance, optimize odor control, standardize equipment, and ensure 
environmental stewardship. Therefore, a sole source purchase is recommended. 
 
The Procurement Department, in cooperation with the Water Resources Department, 
recommends for award: 
 

Daniel Company (Upland, CA)……………………….……………. $1,315,000 
 
This purchase is being made in accordance with Section 2-212 (a) (6) of the Procurement Code, 
which allows for a sole source procurement to be used for the purchase of supplies, services, or 
construction when such supply, services or construction is available from only one source. The 
Procurement Director has reviewed and determined the purchase of Bio-trickling Filter and 
Carbon Adsorber Turn-key Odor Control System shall be made as sole source. 
 
Cost/Funding/Assessment Information: Funds have been previously appropriated in the Water 
Resources Capital Projects Fund (4003), WRF SW Influent Odor Control FY22 Project (18747). 
 
 
Attachments: Sole Source 
                        Resolution 
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-____ 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PROPOSAL AND 
APPROVING THE PURCHASE OF A BIO-TRICKLING FILTER 
AND CARBON ADSORBER TURN-KEY ODOR CONTROL 
SYSTEM FROM DANIEL COMPANY DBA DANIEL 
MECHANICAL LLC FOR A TOTAL COST OF $1,315,000; 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE TO 
EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO 
EFFECTUATE THIS TRANSACTION; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City desires to purchase a Bio-trickling Filter and Carbon Adsorber Turn-
Key Odor Control System for the Southwest Water Reclamation Facility; and 

WHEREAS, Daniel Company dba Daniel Mechanical LLC is the only supply source for a 
Bio-trickling Filter and Carbon Adsorber Turn-Key Odor Control System; and 

WHEREAS, Section 2-212 of the St. Petersburg City Code provides for sole source 
procurement when a supply or service is available from only one source (“the Sole Source 
Procurement Section”); and 

WHEREAS, the Procurement Director (i.e., the “POD”) has made the determination that the 
purchase of a Bio-trickling Filter and Carbon Adsorber Turn-Key Odor Control System from Daniel 
Company dba Daniel Mechanical LLC must be made pursuant to the Sole Source Procurement 
Section and has prepared a written statement to the City Council certifying the condition and 
circumstances for this sole source purchase; and 

WHEREAS, the Procurement and Supply Management Department, in cooperation with the 
Water Resources Department, recommends approval of this award.  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. Petersburg, 
Florida, that the proposal is accepted and the purchase of a Bio-trickling Filter and Carbon Adsorber 
Turn-Key Odor Control System from Daniel Company dba Daniel Mechanical LLC for a total cost 
of $1,315,000 is hereby approved. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or his designee is hereby authorized to 
execute all documents necessary to effectuate this transaction. 

This resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

LEGAL: DEPARTMENT: 

    
00704415  



Page 1 of 1

-- City of St. Petersburg Authorization Request --

General Authorization

Request #

237750

Name: Kertesz, Cortni L Request Date: 11-OCT-2023 Status: APPROVED

Authorization Request

Subject: 890-84 Odor Control System, Nov 2 Consent

Message: Submitted for your approval, please find attached Consent Write-up for, scheduled to go before City Council 
November 2, 2023.  Resolution currently in development and will be included on the finalized version when 
posted into City Clerk's Office Questys system.  Should you have any questions, please contact me at extension 
3231. Thank you.

Supporting
Documentation:

890-84 Daniel Company's Odor Control System November 2 2023 Consent Agenda v1.pdf

Approver Completed By Response Response
Date

Type

0 Kertesz, Cortni L SUBMITTED 11-OCT-2023

1 Tankersley, Claude Duval Tankersley, Claude Duval APPROVE 11-OCT-2023 User Defined 



215 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Accepting Statements of 

Qualifications (SOQs) from CivilSurv Design Group, Inc., Colliers Engineering & Design, Inc., 

Hyatt Survey Services, Inc., Survtech Solutions, Inc., and T2 UES. Inc. for Consulting Services, 

Professional Surveying, for the Engineering and Capital Improvements Department, for a four-year 

contract. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CA-3

CA-3



Continued on Page 2 

ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 
Consent Agenda 

Meeting of November 2, 2023 
 
 
To: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair, and Members of City Council 
 
Subject: Accepting Statements of Qualifications (SOQs) from CivilSurv Design Group, Inc., 
Colliers Engineering & Design, Inc., Hyatt Survey Services, Inc., Survtech Solutions, Inc., and T2 
UES. Inc. for Consulting Services, Professional Surveying, for the Engineering and Capital 
Improvements Department, for a four-year contract. 
 
Explanation: The Procurement and Supply Management Department issued RFQ No. 8643 for 
Consulting Services, Professional Surveying on May 23, 2023. On June 22, 2023, the City 
received 10 SOQs from the following firms: 
 

1.  Bowman Consulting Group, Ltd. 
2. CivilSurv Design Group, Inc. 
3. Colliers Engineering & Design, Inc.  
4. Cumbey & Fair, Inc. 
5. Dyer Riddle Mills & Precourt, Inc. 
6. George F Young, Inc. 
7. Halff Associates, Inc. 
8. Hyatt Survey Services, Inc. 
9. Survtech Solutions Surveying & Mapping, Inc. 
10. T2 UES, Inc. 

 
Evaluations of the SOQs were conducted by the following staff: 
 
Brejesh Prayman, Director, Engineering  
Tim Collins, City Surveyor  
Evan Birk, Engineering Design Manager  
Michael Littlewood, Capital Improvements Construction Coordinator 
Jeff Rzewnicki, Senior Capital Projects Coordinator 
 
The SOQs were evaluated based on the following criteria: 
 

• Team background and experience 
• Staff availability 
• Project approach 
• Relevant project examples 
• Is the firm a Small, Minority, Women and Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
• Does the Project Team include SBE/WBE/MBE/DBE 

 
Interviews and Recommendation for Award: 
 
On August 21, 2023, the evaluation committee heard presentations and interviewed the eight 
shortlisted firms. The evaluation committee then scored the shortlisted firms and determined to 
award the five highest ranked firms. The respective aggregate scores are based on a possible 
total of 600 points are as follows: 
 
 
 



Consulting Services, Professional Surveying 
October 19, 2023 
Page 2 
 
 

Company  Score Rank 
Survtech Solutions Surveying & Mapping, Inc. 496 1 
Hyatt Survey Services, Inc. 491 2 
T2 UES, Inc. 480 3 
Colliers Engineering & Design, Inc.  475 4 
CivilSurv Design Group, Inc. 440 5 
George F Young, Inc. 429 6 
Dyer Riddle Mills & Precourt, Inc. 429 7 
Cumbey & Fair, Inc. 415 8 

 
The consultants will provide consulting services including topographic, boundary, right-of-way 
mapping, hydrographic (pre- and post-dredging for navigational channels and major drainage 
channels), subsurface utility location and/or excavation, laser scanning, establish horizontal and 
vertical control, construction layout, as-built, aerial mapping, property acquisition and expert 
witness services in legal proceedings, if needed.  
 
City Code Sec 2-274, Living Wage Requirements for Service Contracts requires every contractor 
that employs more than 50 persons and provides services to the City pursuant to a major contract 
pay employees a living wage. The above vendors, which have more than 50 employees, have 
acknowledged and agreed to comply with the living wage requirement. 
 
Cost/Funding/Assessment Information: Funds have been previously appropriated in projects 
and programs, and user agencies, or will be appropriated at the time a task order is approved 
by City Council. 
 
 
 
Attachments: Technical Evaluation  
                        Resolution 



Technical Evaluation  
 

RFQ No. 8643 for Consulting Services, Professional Surveying 
 
Summary Work Statement 
 
The City received ten Statements of Qualifications (SOQs) for RFQ No. 8643 for Consulting 
Services, Professional Surveying. The successful offerors will provide Topographic, Boundary, 
Right-of-Way Mapping, Hydrographic (pre- and post-dredging for navigational channels and 
major drainage channels), subsurface utility location and/or excavation, laser scanning, establish 
horizontal and vertical control, construction layout, as-built, aerial mapping, property acquisition, 
expert witness in legal proceedings, Descriptions and Sketches and property/easement stakeout.. 
The SOQs were received from: 
 

1.  Bowman Consulting Group, Ltd. 
2. CivilSurv Design Group, Inc. 
3. Colliers Engineering & Design, Inc.  
4. Cumbey & Fair, Inc. 
5. Dyer Riddle Mills & Precourt, Inc. 
6. George F Young, Inc. 
7. Halff Associates, Inc. 
8. Hyatt Survey Services, Inc. 
9. Survtech Solutions Surveying & Mapping, Inc. 
10. T2 UES, Inc. 

. 
Evaluation Committee 
 
Evaluation of the SOQs was conducted by:   
 

Brejesh Prayman, Director, Engineering  
Tim Collins, City Surveyor  
Evan Birk, Engineering Design Manager  
Tom Rice, Engineering Construction Manager  
Jeff Rzewnicki, Senior Capital Projects Coordinator 
 

Evaluation Criteria 
 
The SOQs were evaluated based on the following criteria:  
 

Team background and experience 30 possible points 
Staff Availability 25 possible points 
Project Approach 20 possible points 
Relevant Project Examples 25 possible points 
Is the firm a Small, Minority, Women and Disadvantaged 
Business Enterprise 

10 possible points 

Does the Project Team include SBE/WBE/MBE/DBE 10 possible points 
 

 
Offerors’ Profiles 
 
Bowman Consulting Group, Ltd. is headquartered in Reston, VA and was incorporated in 1995. 
They have been in business for 28 years and employ 1700 people.  



 is headquartered in Atlanta, GA and was incorporated in 1963. They have been in business for 
60 years and employ 202 people. Their SOQ demonstrated their team of local experts.  They 
have successfully delivered similar projects for the City of St. Petersburg, the City of Largo FL., 
and the Tampa Convention Center. Their SOQ demonstrated team longevity with the key 
members having worked together on prior projects. They listed two sub-consultants that are state 
certified DBE and SBE firms.  
 
Sweet Sparkman Architects, Inc. is headquartered in Sarasota, Florida and was incorporated 
in 2002. They have been in business for 21 years and employ 36 people. Their SOQ 
demonstrated their team of local experts and longevity with the company. They have successfully 
delivered similar projects including the Cape Coral Fire Department Training Facility in Cape 
Coral, FL., the Sarasota County Regional Fire/EMS Training Facility in Sarasota, FL., and the 
Largo Fire Station located in Belleair Bluffs, FL. The team presented did not include any 
subconsultant (SBE) Small Business Enterprise firms. Sweet Sparkman Architects, Inc. is in the 
process of SBE certification with the City of St. Petersburg.  
 
Wannemacher Jensen Architects, Inc. is headquartered in St. Petersburg Florida and was 
incorporated in 1992. They have been in business for 30 years and employ 57 people. Their SOQ 
demonstrated their team of local experts. They have successfully delivered projects for the City 
of St. Petersburg, Dade City FL., and Tampa FL., Their SOQ demonstrated team longevity for the 
key team members who will be assigned to this project. They are a City Certified SBE. They 
presented the longest list of sub-consultants, some of which are also SBE/WBE.  
 
Shortlisting and Interviews 
 
On April 3, 2023, the SOQs were evaluated solely on the evaluation criteria established in the 
RFQ. The evaluation committee discussed each firms’ qualifications and invited all three firms to 
the presentations and interviews phase.  
 
Interviews and Recommendation for Award 
 
On April 21, 2023, the evaluation committee heard presentations and interviewed the three firms. 
The evaluation committee then scored the shortlisted firms. The respective aggregate scores 
based on a possible total of 900 points were as follows:  
 

Company  Score Rank 
Sweet Sparkman Architects, Inc.  645.50 1 
Wannemacher Jensen Architects, Inc. 612 2 
Associated Space Design, Florida, Inc. 550 3 

 
Sweet Sparkman Architects, Inc. has met the requirements for RFQ No. 8588 and were 
determined to be the most qualified firm, taking into consideration their experience of providing 
these services and the evaluation criteria set forth in the RFQ. 
 
The firm was selected for the following reasons:  
 

• Their years of experience in providing these services 
• The longevity of the key team members identified for this project 
• They provided successful, relevant past and present project examples  
• They presented a detailed project approach 



• Their staff availability 



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-____ 

A RESOLUTION ACKNOWLEDGING THE SELECTION OF 
CIVILSURV DESIGN GROUP, INC., COLLIERS ENGINEERING 
& DESIGN, INC., HYATT SURVEY SERVICES, INC., SURVTECH 
SOLUTIONS, INC., AND T2 UES, INC. AS THE MOST 
QUALIFIED FIRMS TO PROVIDE PROFESSIONAL SURVEYING 
SERVICES; AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE TO 
EXECUTE THE CITY'S STANDARD FORM 
ARCHITECT/ENGINEERING AGREEMENTS FOR 
CONTINUING MISCELLANEOUS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
WITH SUCH SELECTED FIRMS; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, on May 23, 2023, the Procurement & Supply Management Department issued 
a request for qualifications ("RFQ") No. 8643 in accordance with the requirements set forth in 
Florida Statute §287.055 (the Consultant's Competitive Negotiation Act) to engage the most 
qualified firm(s) to provide miscellaneous professional surveying services; and 

WHEREAS, on June 22, 2023, the Procurement & Supply Management Department 
received ten (10) statement of qualifications in response to the RFQ; and 

WHEREAS, on August 3, 2023, the selection committee (Brejesh Prayman, Tim Collins, 
Evan Birk, Michael Littlewood and Jeff Rzewnicki) met to discuss the statement of qualifications, 
shortlisted to eight (8) firms, and motioned to hear presentations and conduct interviews with the 
eight (8) shortlisted firms; and 

WHEREAS, the eight (8) shortlisted firms were 1) CivilSurv Design Group, Inc., 2) 
Colliers Engineering & Design, Inc., 3) Cumbey & Fair, Inc., 4) Dyer Riddle Mills & Precourt, 
Inc., 5) George F Young, Inc., 6) Hyatt Survey Services, Inc., 7) Survtech Solutions Surveying & 
Mapping, Inc., and 8) T2 UES, Inc.; and 

WHEREAS, on August 21, 2023, the eight (8) shortlisted firms made presentations to the 
selection committee and interviews were conducted; and 

WHEREAS, based on the presentations, interviews, deliberations, and statement of 
qualifications submitted by the eight (8) shortlisted firms, the selection committee met on August 
21, 2023 and ranked 1) CivilSurv Design Group, Inc., 2) Colliers Engineering & Design, Inc., 3) 
Hyatt Survey Services, Inc., 4) Survtech Solutions Surveying & Mapping, Inc., and 5) T2 UES, 
Inc. as the most qualified firms to provide miscellaneous professional surveying services; and 



2 

WHEREAS, the firms are required to execute the City's form architect/engineering 
agreements for continuing miscellaneous professional services ("A/E Agreements"); and 

WHEREAS, the firms have agreed to the terms and conditions set forth in the A/E 
Agreements; and 

WHEREAS, from time to time the City issues task orders to a qualified firm in order for 
the firm to provide professional services in accordance with the applicable A/E Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. 
Petersburg, Florida, that the selection of CivilSurv Design Group, Inc., Colliers Engineering & 
Design, Inc., Hyatt Survey Services, Inc., Survtech Solutions Surveying & Mapping, Inc., and T2 
UES, Inc. as the most qualified firms to provide miscellaneous professional surveying services is 
hereby acknowledged. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or his designee is authorized to execute the 
City's form architect/engineering agreements for continuing miscellaneous professional services 
with such selected firms. 

This resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

LEGAL: DEPARTMENT: 

00704153 



Page 1 of 1

-- City of St. Petersburg Authorization Request --

General Authorization

Request #

237742

Name: Kertesz, Cortni L Request Date: 11-OCT-2023 Status: APPROVED

Authorization Request

Subject: 925.86Consulting Sevcs  Nov 2 Consent

Message: Submitted for your approval, please find attached Consent Write-up for, scheduled to go before City Council 
November 2, 2023.  Resolution currently in development and will be included on the finalized version when 
posted into City Clerk's Office Questys system.  Should you have any questions, please contact me at extension 
3231. Thank you.

Supporting
Documentation:

906-10 Consulting Services, Professional Surveying November 2, 2023 - Consent Agenda and Tech Eval.pdf

Approver Completed By Response Response
Date

Type

0 Kertesz, Cortni L SUBMITTED 11-OCT-2023

1 Tankersley, Claude Duval Tankersley, Claude Duval APPROVE 11-OCT-2023 User Defined 



225 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Accepting a bid from Ajax 

Paving Industries of Florida LLC, for Citywide Annual Resurfacing, for the Engineering and Capital 

Improvements Department, in the amount of $5,049,379 (ECID Project No. 23003-130; Oracle No. 

19196). 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CA-4

CA-4



ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 
Consent Agenda 

Meeting of November 2, 2023 
 
 
To: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair, and Members of City Council 
 
Subject: Accepting a bid from Ajax Paving Industries of Florida LLC, for Citywide Annual 
Resurfacing, for the Engineering and Capital Improvements Department, in the amount of 
$5,049,379 (ECID Project No. 23003-130; Oracle No. 19196). 
 
Explanation: The Procurement and Supply Management Department issued IFB No. 8714 dated 
August 10, 2023. The bid was opened on September 11, 2023. The Procurement and Supply 
Management Department received two bids. 
 

Bidders Amount 
Ajax Paving Industries of Florida LLC $5,049,379  
Preferred Materials, Inc.  $5,809,200 

 
The contractor will furnish all labor, material, and equipment necessary to perform street 
milling, street resurfacing, the construction of speed humps, ADA curb ramps, sidewalks and all 
related operations at various locations within the City. The work within the Fiscal Year 2023 project 
includes approximately 14,466 tons of asphalt and 238,847 square yards of milling. Surface 
adjustment of City manhole rings and restoration of traffic signal controller loops will be required. 
 
The Procurement and Supply Management Department, in cooperation with the Engineering and 
Capital Improvements Department, recommends for award: 
 

Ajax Paving Industries of Florida LLC (North Venice, FL) ………. $5,049,379 
 
Ajax Paving Industries of Florida LLC, the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, has met the 
specifications, terms, and conditions of IFB No. 8714 dated August 10, 2023. Ajax Paving has 
satisfactorily performed similar work for the City of St. Petersburg.  
 
City Code 2-234, Small Business Enterprise Assistance Program, requires a goal to be assigned 
to all construction projects of over $50,000. This project was assigned a 10 percent SBE goal. In 
its proposal, Ajax Paving Industries of Florida LLC, has complied with this requirement and has 
proposed an SBE usage above the 10% goal. 
 
City Code Sec 2-261 Major Construction Project Requirements requires contractors to employ 
apprentices for at least 15 percent of all hours of work on a major construction project of 
$1,000,000 or more. Ajax Paving has agreed to comply with the 15 percent apprenticeship 
requirement by using their company-sponsored training program that meets the City Code 
requirements. Ajax Paving proposes to employ apprentice workers to meet the 15 percent 
minimum requirement. 
 
City Code Sec 2-268 Major Construction Project requires contractors to employ disadvantaged 
workers for at least 15 percent of the work hours on a project with a bid value of $1,000,000, or 
more. Ajax Paving proposes to employ disadvantaged workers to meet the 15 percent minimum 
requirement. 
 
 



City Code Sec. 2-277, Responsible Wage Requirements for Certain Construction Contracts, 
applies to any major construction contract valued at $1 million or more. The Responsible Wage 
stipulates that every contractor shall pay, and ensure that all subcontractors pay, no less than the 
hourly wage for each craft or trade under the most recent Davis-Bacon Act wage rates listed for 
Pinellas County. If the hourly wage for the craft or trade under the most recent Davis-Bacon wage 
rates listed for Pinellas County is less than the living wage for the City, then every contractor shall 
pay, and shall ensure that all subcontractors pay no less than the living wage for the City. Ajax 
Paving has agreed to comply with responsible wage requirements in its proposal. 
 
The contractor will begin work approximately ten (10) days from Notice to Proceed and is 
scheduled to complete the Fiscal Year 2023 work within two hundred seventy (270) consecutive 
calendar days thereafter. 
 
Cost/Funding/Assessment Information: Funds have been previously appropriated in Citywide 
Infrastructure CIP Fund (3027), Street and Road Improvement Project (19196). 
 
 
Attachments: Bid Tab  

Resolution 



RESOLUTION 2023-____ 
 
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID AND APPROVING 
THE AWARD OF AN AGREEMENT TO AJAX PAVING 
INDUSTRIES OF FLORIDA LLC FOR CITYWIDE ANNUAL 
RESURFACING FOR A TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT OF 
$5,049,379; AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE 
TO EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO 
EFFECTUATE THIS TRANSACTION; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Procurement & Supply Management Department received two (2) bids 
for Citywide Annual Resurfacing pursuant to IFB No. 8714 dated August 10, 2023; and  

WHEREAS, Ajax Paving Industries of Florida LLC, the lowest responsible and 
responsive bidder, has met the specifications, terms and conditions of IFB No. 8714; and 

WHEREAS, the Procurement & Supply Management Department, in cooperation with 
the Engineering & Capital Improvements Department, recommends approval of this award. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
St. Petersburg, Florida that the bid is hereby accepted and the award of an agreement to Ajax 
Paving Industries of Florida LLC for Citywide Annual Resurfacing for a total contract amount of 
$5,049,379 is hereby approved. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or his designee is hereby authorized to 
execute all documents necessary to effectuate this transaction. 

This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

LEGAL: DEPARTMENT: 

    
00704122 

 

 

 



Page 1 of 1

-- City of St. Petersburg Authorization Request --

General Authorization

Request #

237747

Name: Kertesz, Cortni L Request Date: 11-OCT-2023 Status: APPROVED

Authorization Request

Subject: 913-96 Citywide Annual Resurfacing, Nov 2 Consent

Message: Submitted for your approval, please find attached Consent Write-up for, scheduled to go before City Council 
November 2, 2023.  Resolution currently in development and will be included on the finalized version when 
posted into City Clerk's Office Questys system.  Should you have any questions, please contact me at extension 
3231. Thank you.

Supporting
Documentation:

913-96 Citywide Annual Resurfacing FY23 November 2, 2023 - Consent Write-up and IFFB 8714,2.pdf

Approver Completed By Response Response
Date

Type

0 Kertesz, Cortni L SUBMITTED 11-OCT-2023

1 Tankersley, Claude Duval Tankersley, Claude Duval APPROVE 11-OCT-2023 User Defined 



231 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Approving a three-year blanket 

purchase agreement with FirstOnsite Restoration, Inc dba Interstate Restoration and Paul Davis 

Restoration, Inc for as-needed disaster restoration services for the Pier. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CA-5

CA-5



ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL  
Consent Agenda  

Meeting of November 2, 2023  
   
 
To: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair, and Members of City Council  
  
Subject: Approving a three-year blanket purchase agreement with FirstOnsite Restoration, Inc 
dba Interstate Restoration and Paul Davis Restoration, Inc for as-needed disaster restoration 
services for the Pier.  
   
Explanation: Enterprise Facilities Department received pricing for as-needed disaster restoration 
services from FirstOnsite Restoration, Inc dba Interstate Restoration and Paul Davis Restoration, 
Inc. The City currently has three agreements for restoration services and is seeking to enter into 
another term contract to ensure the availability of disaster restoration services for the Municipal 
Pier District.  
 
The vendor will provide disaster relief when responding to significant damage from major events 
at the Pier District to include 24/7/365, fire damage restoration, water damage, mold damage, 
storm damage, environmental abatement, structural restoration and repair, and construction 
defects. The vendor will also provide emergency planning and loss prevention consultation that 
will simplify the response and recovery process.   
 

The Procurement and Supply Management Department in cooperation with the Enterprise 
Facilities Department recommends for award: 

 
FirstOnsite Restoration, Inc dba Interstate Restoration (Tallahassee, FL) 

Paul Davis Restoration, Inc (Jacksonville, FL)  

  

There is no cost to the city for entering into the agreement. The rates as outlined in the fee 
schedule only apply upon the city’s authorized request for service after an actual emergency. 
Council approval will be obtained for funding of services. 
 
This procurement is being made in accordance with Section 2-202 (v) of the Procurement Code, 
exemption for services with respect to the operation of the Municipal Pier District. The agreement 
will be effective three years from contract execution after council approval with two, one-year 
renewal options. A blanket purchase agreement will be issued and will only be binding for actual 
services rendered for as needed services as authorized by the City.  

 
Cost/Funding/Assessment Information: Funds have been previously appropriated in the Pier 
Operating Fund (1203), Enterprise Facilities Department, Pier Operations Division (282-2861). 
 

Attachments: Resolution  



1 

RESOLUTION NO. ____ 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THREE-YEAR 
BLANKET PURCHASE AGREEMENTS WITH 
TWO, ONE-YEAR RENEWAL OPTIONS WITH 
FIRSTONSITE RESTORATION, INC DBA 
INTERSTATE RESTORATION AND PAUL 
DAVIS RESTORATION, INC FOR AS NEEDED 
DISASTER RESTORATION SERVICES FOR 
THE MUNICIPAL PIER DISTRICT; 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR HIS 
DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS 
NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THESE 
TRANSACTIONS; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City desires to enter into three-year blanket purchase agreements 
with two, one-year renewal options with FirstOnsite Restoration, Inc. dba Interstate Restoration 
and Paul Davis Restoration, Inc for as needed disaster restoration services for the Municipal Pier 
District (“Agreements”); and 

WHEREAS, there is no immediate cost to the City upon entering into the 
Agreements. The rates as outlined in the fee schedule only apply upon the City’s authorized request 
for service; and 

WHEREAS, this procurement is made pursuant to Section 2-202 (v) of the City 
Code, which exempts services with respect to the operation of the Municipal Pier District from the 
provisions otherwise set forth in the Procurement Code; and 

WHEREAS, the Procurement and Supply Management Department, in cooperation 
with the Enterprise Facilities Department, recommends approval of this resolution. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. 
Petersburg, Florida, that three-year blank blanket purchase agreements with two, one-year renewal 
options with FirstOnsite Restoration, Inc. dba Interstate Restoration and Paul Davis Restoration, 
Inc for as needed disaster restoration services for the Municipal Pier District is hereby approved. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or his designee is authorized to 
execute all documents necessary to effectuate these transactions. 



2 

This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

LEGAL: DEPARTMENT: 

00705259 



Page 1 of 1

-- City of St. Petersburg Authorization Request --

General Authorization

Request #

238113

Name: Kertesz, Cortni L Request Date: 13-OCT-2023 Status: IN PROCESS

Authorization Request

Subject: 962-72 Restoration Services, Pier Nov2 Consent

Message: Submitted for your approval, please find attached Consent Write-up for, scheduled to go before City Council 
November 2, 2023.  Resolution currently in development and will be included on the finalized version when 
posted into City Clerk's Office Questys system.  Should you have any questions, please contact me at extension 
3231. Thank you.

Supporting
Documentation:

962-72 Restoration Services Pier November 2, 2023 - Consent Write-up Final 1.pdf

Approver Completed By Response Response
Date

Type

0 Kertesz, Cortni L SUBMITTED 13-OCT-2023

1 Corbett, James Anthony User Defined 



237 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Approving the renewal and an 

increase in allocation of a two-year blanket purchase agreement with Parkmobile LLC, for pay-by-

connected-device parking services, for a total contract amount of $2,290,000. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CA-6

CA-6



ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 
Consent Agenda 

Meeting of November 2, 2023 
 

 
To: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair, and Members of City Council 
 
Subject: Approving the renewal and an increase in allocation of a two-year blanket purchase 
agreement with Parkmobile LLC, for pay-by-connected-device parking services, for a total 
contract amount of $2,290,000.  
 
Explanation: On December 3, 2020, City Council approved a three-year blanket purchase 
agreement through November 30, 2023, in the amount of $1,090,000. The agreement has one, 
two-year renewal option.  
 
The vendor will provide all equipment, software applications, and secure internet access website 
for consumers, hosting services, credit card payment processing and customer instructional 
signage/stickers for provision of pay-by-phone services. Additionally, the vendor shall provide 
training on the use of its software, payment verification for enforcement, technical support 
services and marketing of the program to potential pay-by-phone consumers. 
 
Pay-by-phone customers will pay a $0.35 convenience fee for each parking transaction, or $0.25 
with a monthly membership fee of $0.99. Confirmed primary residents of St. Petersburg will not 
pay a convenience fee. All customer payments for convenience fees and parking payments will 
be deposited directly into the City’s bank account. The City will retain all parking revenue and 
settle convenience fees with Parkmobile consistent with terms and conditions of the agreement. 
       
The Procurement and Supply Management Department, in cooperation with the Transportation 
and Parking Management Department, recommends for renewal: 
 

 Parkmobile LLC (Atlanta, GA). ….......$1,200,000 
 
The vendor agrees to uphold the terms and conditions of RFP No. 77660, dated December 3, 2020.  
Administration recommends renewal of the agreement based on the vendor’s past satisfactory performance 
and demonstrated ability to comply with the terms and conditions of the contract.  The renewal will be 
effective at the end of the current term through November 30, 2025.       
 
 
Cost/Funding/Assessment Information: Funding for this program is generated through 
revenues received from convenience fees paid by users to the vendor. 
 
Attachments: Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-____ 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE RENEWAL OPTION TO 
EXTEND THE TERM THROUGH NOVEMBER 30, 2025 AND 
INCREASE THE ALLOCATION BY $1,200,000 FOR THE 
RENEWAL TERM FOR THE AGREEMENT WITH 
PARKMOBILE LLC FOR PAY-BY-CONNECTED-DEVICE 
PARKING SERVICES, FOR A TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT 
NOT TO EXCEED $2,290,000; AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR 
OR HIS DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS 
NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THIS TRANSACTION; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, on December 3, 2020, City Council approved a three-year blanket purchase 
agreement with one two-year renewal option with Parkmobile LLC for pay-by-connected-device 
parking services for a total contract amount of $1,090,000 for the initial term through November 
30, 2023 (“Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to exercise the renewal option to extend the term through 
November 30, 2025 and increase the allocation for this Agreement by $1,200,000 for the renewal 
term; and  

WHEREAS, the Procurement and Supply Management Department, in cooperation with 
the Transportation and Parking Management Department, recommends approval of this 
Resolution. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. 
Petersburg, Florida, that the renewal option to extend the term through November 30, 2025 and 
increase the allocation by $1,200,000 for the renewal term for the Agreement with Parkmobile 
LLC for pay-by-connected-device parking services is hereby approved. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the total contract amount shall not exceed 
$2,290,000.  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or his designee is authorized to execute 
all documents necessary to effectuate this transaction.  

This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

LEGAL: DEPARTMENT: 

00704601



Page 1 of 1

-- City of St. Petersburg Authorization Request --

General Authorization

Request #

237745

Name: Kertesz, Cortni L Request Date: 11-OCT-2023 Status: APPROVED

Authorization Request

Subject: 968-62 Parking Meter Services, Nov 2 Consent

Message: Submitted for your approval, please find attached Consent Write-up for, scheduled to go before City Council 
November 2, 2023.  Resolution currently in development and will be included on the finalized version when 
posted into City Clerk's Office Questys system.  Should you have any questions, please contact me at extension 
3231. Thank you.

Supporting
Documentation:

968-62 Parking Meter Services Novemeber 2 2023-Consent Write and Executed Agreement.pdf

Approver Completed By Response Response
Date

Type

0 Kertesz, Cortni L SUBMITTED 11-OCT-2023

1 Corbett, James Anthony Corbett, James Anthony APPROVE 17-OCT-2023 User Defined 



242 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: A Resolution accepting a 

guaranteed maximum price proposal dated June 26, 2023 in the amount of $613,682 from Archer 

Western Construction, LLC (“Archer Western”) for construction phase services for the Sanitation 

Building Fiber Optic Network Expansion Project; authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute 

all documents necessary to effectuate this transaction; and providing an effective date (ECID Project 

No. 22100-124; Oracle Project Nos. 19071, 17971). 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CA-7

CA-7



 
 

ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 
 

Consent Agenda 
 

Meeting of November 2, 2023 
 
TO: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair, and Members of City Council 
 
SUBJECT: A Resolution accepting a guaranteed maximum price proposal dated June 26, 2023 in the 
amount of $613,682 from Archer Western Construction, LLC (“Archer Western”) for construction phase 
services for the Sanitation Building Fiber Optic Network Expansion Project; authorizing the Mayor or his 
designee to execute all documents necessary to effectuate this transaction; and providing an effective date 
(ECID Project No. 22100-124; Oracle Project Nos. 19071, 17971). 
 
EXPLANATION: On December 1, 2022, City Council acknowledged the selection of four CMAR firms 
for the CMAR Continuing Services for Water/Wastewater Projects, for the Engineering & Capital 
Improvements Department and authorized execution of Construction Manager at Risk Agreements with a 
Guaranteed Maximum Price with those firms. A Letter Agreement as executed with each firm establishing 
the terms and conditions of the continuing services CMAR Agreement. 
 
The goal of these construction activities is to furnish and install new underground conduits for fiber optic 
lines which will provide a connection from the City Network to the new Sanitation Administration Facility 
located on 20th Avenue North (between 28th and 26th Street North), ensuring efficient communication and 
data transfer vital for modern Municipal Operations. 
 
A $15,692.52 Owner’s Contingency for unforeseen conditions is included in the GMP. 
 
The Engineering and Capital Improvements Department recommends for award: 
 

Archer Western Construction LLC.  ……………. $613,682 
 
City Code 2-234, Small Business Enterprise Assistance Program, requires a required participation 
percentage to be assigned to all construction projects of over $50,000. The SBE required participation 
percentage for this project is in the process of determination.  
 
RECOMMENDATION: Administration recommends authorizing the Mayor or his designee to accept a 
guaranteed maximum price proposal dated June 26, 2023 in the amount of $613,682 from Archer Western 
Construction, LLC (“Archer Western”) for construction phase services for the Sanitation Building Fiber 
Optic Network Expansion Project; authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute all documents 
necessary to effectuate this transaction; and providing an effective date (ECID Project No. 22100-124; 
Oracle Project Nos. 19071, 17971). 
 
COST/FUNDING/ASSESSMENT INFORMATION: Funds have been previously appropriated in the 
Sanitation Operating Fund (4021); Bldg Fiber Optic Network Project (Oracle No. 19071) and Sanitation 
Capital Projects Fund (4024), New Sanitation Facility FY21 Project (Oracle No. 17971) 
 
ATTACHMENTS: GMP Proposal 
   Resolution 
   Map 



Page 1 of 1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-____ 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A GUARANTEED MAXIMUM 
PRICE PROPOSAL DATED JUNE 26, 2023 IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$613,682 FROM ARCHER WESTERN CONSTRUCTION, LLC 
(“ARCHER WESTERN”) FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE 
SERVICES FOR THE SANITATION BUILDING FIBER OPTIC 
NETWORK EXPANSION PROJECT; AUTHORIZING THE 
MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS 
NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THIS TRANSACTION; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE (ECID PROJECT NO. 22100-
124; ORACLE PROJECT NOS. 19071, 17971). 

WHEREAS, on September 8, 2022, City Council (i) acknowledged the selection of 
four firms, including Archer Western Construction, LLC (“Archer Western”), as the most qualified 
firms to provide construction manager at risk services on a continuing basis for Water/Wastewater 
projects for the Engineering & Capital Improvements Department and (ii) authorized the Mayor or 
his designee to execute Construction Manager at Risk Agreements with a Guaranteed Maximum 
Price (“GMP”) between the City and those qualified firms, including Archer Western; and 

WHEREAS, Archer Western has submitted to the City for review and acceptance a 
GMP proposal in the amount of $613,682 (which includes a $15,692.52 owner’s contingency) for 
construction phase services for the Sanitation Building Fiber Optic Network Expansion project 
(“Project”); and  

WHEREAS, the City and Archer Western desire to execute the Construction 
Manager at Risk Agreement that includes a GMP Proposal in the amount of $613,682 for the Project. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. 
Petersburg, Florida, that a guaranteed maximum price (“GMP”) proposal dated June 26, 2023 in the 
amount of $613,682 submitted by Archer Western Construction, LLC (“Archer Western”) for 
construction phase services for the Sanitation Building Fiber Optic Network Expansion Project is 
hereby accepted. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or his designee is authorized to 
execute all documents necessary to effectuate this transaction. 

This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

LEGAL: DEPARTMENT: 

    
00705201 



O
w

ne
r: 

  C
ity

 o
f S

t. 
Pe

te
rs

bu
rg

, F
lo

rid
a

Pr
oj

ec
t N

o.
 2

21
00

-1
24

 - 
Sa

ni
ta

tio
n 

Bu
ild

in
g 

Fi
be

r O
pt

ic
 E

xp
an

si
on

 C
M

AR
 P

ro
po

sa
l

CM
AR

: A
rc

he
r W

es
te

rn
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

En
gi

ne
er

:  
W

SP
 U

SA
 In

c.

DA
TE

:  
06

/2
6/

20
23

FI
N

AL
 G

M
P 

- D
ET

AI
L 

BR
EA

KD
O

W
N

Q
TY

U
N

LA
BO

R 
CO

ST
M

AT
ER

IA
L 

CO
ST

SU
BC

O
N

TR
AC

T 
CO

ST
EQ

U
IP

M
EN

T 
CO

ST
TO

TA
L 

CO
ST

SC
O

PE
 C

O
N

TI
N

G
EN

CY
TO

TA
L 

PR
O

JE
CT

 C
O

ST

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 D

IR
EC

T 
CO

ST
S

M
O

BI
LI

ZA
TI

O
N

Eq
ui

pm
en

t M
ob

ilz
at

io
n 

to
 S

ite
1

LS
$1

,2
50

$1
,2

50
$1

,2
50

Eq
ui

pm
en

t D
em

ol
iza

tio
n

1
LS

$1
,2

50
$1

,2
50

$1
,2

50

HO
RI

ZO
N

TA
L 

DI
RE

CT
IO

N
AL

 D
RI

LL
 P

IP
E 

IN
ST

AL
LA

TI
O

N
 

HD
D 

In
st

al
la

tio
n 

an
d 

Pi
pe

 F
us

io
n 

(2
) 4

" C
on

du
its

4,
46

7
LF

$4
7.

53
$2

12
,3

17
$2

12
,3

17
Co

nd
ui

t M
at

er
ia

ls 
(2

) 4
" C

on
du

its
4,

46
7

LF
$1

4.
96

$6
6,

82
6

$6
6,

82
6

Ha
nd

ho
le

s I
ns

ta
lla

tio
n

9
EA

$6
,5

47
.3

8
$5

8,
92

6
$5

8,
92

6
Ha

nd
ho

le
 M

at
er

ia
ls 

9
EA

$6
,6

29
.8

1
$5

9,
66

8
$5

9,
66

8
Po

th
ol

in
g 

/ U
til

ity
 In

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

- H
ar

d 
Su

rf
ac

e
15

EA
$4

50
.9

4
$6

,7
64

$6
,7

64
Po

th
ol

in
g 

/ U
til

ity
 In

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

- G
ra

ss
y 

Ar
ea

s
45

EA
$1

49
.0

1
$6

,7
05

$6
,7

05
Fi

be
r I

ns
ta

lla
tio

n 
(b

y 
ot

he
rs

)

TR
AF

FI
C 

CO
N

TR
O

L
 

Tr
af

fic
 C

on
tr

ol
 C

re
w

 a
nd

 D
ev

ic
es

1
LS

$1
4,

79
0

$5
,0

00
$1

,9
20

$2
1,

71
0

$2
1,

71
0

Fl
ag

ge
rs

1
LS

$5
,2

20
$5

,2
20

$5
,2

20
Er

os
io

n 
&

 S
ed

im
en

t C
on

tr
ol

1
LS

$1
,7

40
$1

,5
00

$3
,2

40
$3

,2
40

 

AL
LO

W
AN

CE
S

Co
nc

re
te

 R
es

to
ra

tio
n

10
0

SF
$2

7.
06

$2
,7

06
$2

,7
06

As
ph

al
t P

at
ch

in
g

20
0

SF
$1

8.
82

$3
,7

64
$3

,7
64

Sw
ee

pe
r T

ru
ck

1
LS

$2
,5

00
$2

,5
00

$2
,5

00
So

d
1,

50
0

SF
$2

.7
7

$4
,1

55
$4

,1
55

TO
TA

L 
DI

RE
CT

 C
O

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 P
HA

SE
 C

O
ST

S
$2

1,
75

0
$6

,5
00

$1
8,

88
8

$1
,9

20
$4

57
,0

02
$4

57
,0

02

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 IN

DI
RE

CT
 C

O
ST

S
CM

AR
 G

EN
ER

AL
 C

O
N

DI
TI

O
N

S
PR

O
JE

CT
 S

TA
FF

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

er
1.

0
M

O
$1

5,
30

8
$1

5,
30

8
$1

5,
30

8
Pr

oj
ec

t S
up

er
in

te
nd

en
t

1.
0

M
O

$1
9,

48
3

$1
9,

48
3

$1
9,

48
3

Pr
oj

ec
t E

ng
in

ee
r

0.
5

M
O

$1
0,

85
5

$5
,4

28
$5

,4
28

Pr
oj

ec
t Q

ua
lit

y 
M

an
ag

er
0.

25
M

O
$1

8,
87

5
$4

,7
19

$4
,7

19
Sa

fe
ty

 M
an

ag
er

0.
25

M
O

$1
8,

87
5

$4
,7

19
$4

,7
19

Fi
el

d 
En

gi
ne

er
0.

25
M

O
$1

0,
85

5
$2

,7
14

$2
,7

14
Ad

m
in

st
ra

tiv
e 

As
sis

ta
nt

0.
5

M
O

$6
,9

58
$3

,4
79

$3
,4

79
Ve

hi
cl

es
1.

0
M

O
$3

,5
00

$3
,5

00
$3

,5
00

Po
rt

a-
Jo

hn
s

2.
0

M
O

$1
,4

83
$1

,4
83

$1
,4

83
Ph

on
es

1.
5

M
O

$7
50

$7
50

$7
50

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 L

AY
O

U
T 

/ 
ST

AK
IN

G



Su
rv

ey
 - 

St
ak

in
g 

/ C
on

tr
ol

$4
,5

00
$4

,5
00

$4
,5

00

CM
AR

 G
EN

ER
AL

 C
O

N
DI

TI
O

N
S 

TO
TA

L
1

LS
$1

01
,2

09
$2

,2
33

$4
,5

00
$3

,5
00

$6
6,

08
2

$6
6,

08
2

TO
TA

L 
IN

DI
RE

CT
 C

O
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 P

HA
SE

 C
O

ST
S

$6
6,

08
2

SU
BT

O
TA

L 
DI

RE
CT

 &
 IN

DI
RE

CT
 P

RO
JE

CT
 C

O
ST

S
$5

23
,0

84
CM

AR
 O

ve
rh

ea
d 

&
 F

ee
12

.0
%

$6
2,

77
0

SU
BT

O
TA

L
$5

85
,8

54

AD
DI

TI
O

N
AL

 P
RO

JE
CT

 IN
DI

RE
CT

 C
O

ST
S 

(N
o 

M
ar

k-
up

)
Co

m
m

er
ci

al
 &

 G
en

er
al

 L
ia

bi
lit

y 
In

su
ra

nc
e

1.
20

%
$6

,2
77

.0
1

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 &
 P

ay
m

en
t B

on
d

1.
00

%
$5

,8
58

.5
4

Bu
ild

er
s R

is
k

0.
00

%
$0

.0
0

O
w

ne
r C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Co
nt

in
ge

nc
y

3.
00

%
$1

5,
69

2.
52

AD
DI

TI
O

N
AL

 P
RO

JE
CT

 IN
DI

RE
CT

 T
O

TA
LS

1
LS

$2
7,

82
8

G
U

AR
AN

TE
ED

 M
AX

IM
U

M
 P

RI
CE

 (G
M

P)
$6

13
,6

82





Page 1 of 1

-- City of St. Petersburg Authorization Request --

General Authorization

Request #

238731

Name: Johnson, Sarah B Request Date: 18-OCT-2023 Status: APPROVED

Authorization Request

Subject: Council - 11/2

Message: 22100-124 - Archer Western - Sanitation Fiber - CMAN GMP

Supporting
Documentation:

Archer Western - Sanitation Fiber - CMAN GMP - Final.pdf

Approver Completed By Response
Response

Date Type

0 Johnson, Sarah B SUBMITTED 18-OCT-2023

1 Prayman, Brejesh B Prayman, Brejesh B APPROVE 19-OCT-2023 User Defined 

2 McKee, Stacey Pevzner McKee, Stacey Pevzner APPROVE 19-OCT-2023 User Defined 

3 Tankersley, Claude Duval Tankersley, Claude Duval APPROVE 19-OCT-2023 User Defined 



250 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Approving a blanket purchase 

agreement with Allied Universal Corp. for sodium hydroxide, for the Water Resources Department, 

for a total contract amount of $350,000 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CB-1

CB-1



ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 
Consent Agenda 

Meeting of November 2, 2023 
 
 
To: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair, and Members of City Council 
 
Subject: Approving a blanket purchase agreement with Allied Universal Corp. for sodium 
hydroxide, for the Water Resources Department, for a total contract amount of $350,000.  
 
Explanation: This purchase is being made from the Tampa Bay Water Contract No. 2024-006. 
 
The vendor furnishes and delivers sodium hydroxide (caustic soda) to the Cosme Water 
Treatment Plant and the City’s three water reclamation facilities. The chemical is used in 
conjunction with calcium oxide (quicklime) to stabilize the disinfectant (chloramine) used to 
safeguard the potable water. It protects the health of citizens and the iron piping in the water 
distribution system. It is also used in conjunction with sodium hypochlorite to maintain the pH 
balance in the wet scrubbers used for odor control at the water reclamation facilities.  
 
The Procurement and Supply Management Department, in cooperation with the Water 
Resources Department, recommends for award: 
 

Allied Universal Corp. (Miami, FL) ............................................................$350,000 
 

Allied Universal Corp. has met the terms and conditions of Tampa Bay Water bid no. 2024-006, 
dated July 18, 2023. The purchase is being made in accordance with Section 2-219 (a) of the 
Procurement Code, which authorizes the Mayor, or his designee, to utilize competitively solicited 
contracts of other governmental entities. The Procurement and Supply Management Department 
has reviewed the applicable solicitation and determined (i) that the agreement was awarded 
based on a competitive process substantially equivalent to the one specified in the City’s 
Procurement Code and (ii) that it is in the best interest of the City to utilize this agreement. A 
blanket purchase agreement will be issued for the term ending September 30, 2024 and will be 
binding only for actual services rendered. This blanket purchase agreement has three, 1-yr 
renewal options. 
 
Cost/Funding/Assessment Information: Funds have been previously appropriated in the 
Water Resources Operating Fund (4001), Water Resources Department, Cosme W.T.P. 
Operations and Maintenance Division (420-2077) and Southwest WRF Division (420-2181). 
 
 
Attachments: Resolution 



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-_____ 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE AWARD OF 
A ONE-YEAR AGREEMENT WITH THREE, 
ONE-YEAR RENEWAL OPTIONS TO ALLIED 
UNIVERSAL CORP. FOR SODIUM 
HYDROXIDE FOR A TOTAL CONTRACT 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $350,000 FOR THE 
INITIAL TERM THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 
2024 UTILIZING TAMPA BAY WATER 
CONTRACT NO. 2024-006; AUTHORIZING 
THE MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE 
ALL DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO 
EFFECTUATE THIS TRANSACTION; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City of St. Petersburg (“City”) desires to purchase sodium 
hydroxide for the Water Resources Department; and 

WHEREAS, Section 2-219 (a) of the St. Petersburg City Code authorizes the City 
to participate with other governmental entities in a cooperative joint bidding process; and 

WHEREAS, Allied Universal Corp. has met the specifications, terms and 
conditions of Tampa Bay Water Contract No. 2024-006; and  

WHEREAS, the Procurement and Supply Management Department, in 
cooperation with the Water Resources Department, recommends approval of this Resolution.  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. 
Petersburg, Florida, that the award of a one-year agreement with three, one year renewal options 
to Allied Universal Corp. for sodium hydroxide for a total contract amount not to exceed 
$350,000 for the initial term through September 30, 2024, utilizing Tampa Bay Water Contract 
No. 2024-006 is hereby approved. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or his designee is authorized to 
execute all documents necessary to effectuate this transaction.  

This resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

 
 
LEGAL: DEPARTMENT: 

    
00705372 



Page 1 of 1

-- City of St. Petersburg Authorization Request --

General Authorization

Request #

237737

Name: Kertesz, Cortni L Request Date: 11-OCT-2023 Status: APPROVED

Authorization Request

Subject: 885-40 Chemical, Sodium Hydroxide, Nov 2 Consent

Message: Submitted for your approval, please find attached Consent Write-up for , scheduled to go before City Council on 
November 2, 2023.  Resolution currently in development and will be included on the finalized version when 
posted into City Clerk's Office Questys system.  Should you have any questions, please contact me at extension 
3231. Thank you.

Supporting
Documentation:

885-94 Chemical Sodium Hydroxide November 2, 2023 - Write-up and Forcast Report.pdf

Approver Completed By Response Response
Date

Type

0 Kertesz, Cortni L SUBMITTED 11-OCT-2023

1 Tankersley, Claude Duval Tankersley, Claude Duval APPROVE 11-OCT-2023 User Defined 



255 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Approving the reinstatement 

and an increase in allocation for shuttle bus services, with SP Plus Corporation for the Municipal 

Pier District, in the amount of $56,050, for a total contract amount of $2,019,050. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CB-2

CB-2



ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 
Consent Agenda 

Meeting of November 2, 2023 
 
 

To: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair, and Members of City Council 
 
Subject: Approving the reinstatement and an increase in allocation for shuttle bus services, with 
SP Plus Corporation for the Municipal Pier District, in the amount of $56,050, for a total contract 
amount of $2,019,050. 
 
Explanation: On May 19, 2022, City Council approved a one-year blanket purchase agreement 
for shuttle bus services through May 31, 2023 in the amount of $1,013,000. On May 18, 2023, 
City Council Approved a one-year renewal in the amount of $950,000. After approval, the vendor 
requested a price increase per the Consumer Price Index (CPI) on each anniversary of the 
effective date. Starting June 1, 2023, the CPI reflected a 5.9% increase which is more than the 
original $950,000 requested on May 18, 2023. The agreement has two, one-year renewal options. 
This is the first renewal option. 
 
The supplier provides all labor, materials, and equipment for transportation and parking 
management services. This includes providing staffing to drive the trams and manage the parking 
lots. The supplier has successfully provided transportation and parking management services for 
the Pier since it’s opening in 2020 and the City desires to have SP Plus Corporation continue 
providing such services 365 days per year. 
 
The Procurement and Supply Management Department, in cooperation with the Enterprise 
Facilities Department, recommends for renewal: 
 

SP Plus Corporation (Chicago, IL) ……………........$56,050 
 

 
SP Plus Corporation has agreed to renew under the same terms and conditions of the agreement. 
Administration recommends renewal of the agreement based on the vendor’s past satisfactory 
performance and demonstrated ability to comply with the terms and conditions of the agreement. 
This renewal will be effective through May 31, 2024. 
 
Cost/Funding/Assessment Information: Funds have been previously appropriated in the Pier 
Operating Fund (1203), Enterprise Facilities Department, Pier Operations Division (282.2861). 
 
Attachments: Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO.____________ 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FIRST ONE-
YEAR RENEWAL TERM TO THE BLANKET 
PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH SP PLUS 
CORPORATION FOR SHUTTLE BUS SERVICES 
FOR THE MUNICIPAL PIER DISTRICT AT AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $1,006,050 FOR 
THIS RENEWAL TERM; AUTHORIZING THE 
MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE ALL 
DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE 
THIS TRANSACTION; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, on May 19, 2022, City Council approved the award of a blanket 
purchase agreement with SP Plus Corporation for shuttle bus services for the Municipal Pier 
District (“Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, on May 18, 2023, City Council approved the first one-year renewal 
term of the Agreement at a cost not to exceed $950,000 for such renewal term; and 

WHEREAS, the prior City Council authorization did not anticipate an increase in 
pricing to the Agreement that was contractually agreed to in the Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, no action was taken by City Administration following and as a result 
of the prior City Council authorization; and 

WHEREAS, the City desires to exercise the first one-year renewal option to 
aforementioned agreement at a cost not exceed $1,006,050 for this renewal term.  

WHEREAS, the Procurement & Supply Management Department, in cooperation 
with the Enterprise Facilities Department, recommends approval of this resolution. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
St. Petersburg, Florida that the first one-year renewal term to the blanket purchase agreement with 
SP Plus Corporation for shuttle bus services for the Municipal Pier District at an amount not to 
exceed $1,006,050 for this renewal term is hereby approved. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or his designee is authorized to 
execute all documents necessary to effectuate this transaction. 

This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

LEGAL: 

_______________________ 

DEPARTMENT: 

______________________ 
00705260 



Page 1 of 1

-- City of St. Petersburg Authorization Request --

General Authorization

Request #

238112

Name: Kertesz, Cortni L Request Date: 13-OCT-2023 Status: APPROVED

Authorization Request

Subject: 962-17 Shuttle Bus, Pier Nov 2 Consent

Message: Submitted for your approval, please find attached Consent Write-up for, scheduled to go before City Council 
November 2, 2023.  Resolution currently in development and will be included on the finalized version when 
posted into City Clerk's Office Questys system.  Should you have any questions, please contact me at extension 
3231. Thank you.

Supporting
Documentation:

962-17 Shuttle Bus Pier November 2 2023 - Consent Write-up.pdf

Approver Completed By Response Response
Date

Type

0 Kertesz, Cortni L SUBMITTED 13-OCT-2023

1 Corbett, James Anthony Corbett, James Anthony APPROVE 13-OCT-2023 User Defined 



260 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Approving the renewal and an 

increase in allocation of a contract purchase agreement with Econolite Control Products, Inc., a sole 

source supplier, for the purchase of traffic controllers for the Stormwater Traffic and Pavement 

Operations Department in the amount of $320,000. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CB-3

CB-3



 
 
 

ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 
Consent Agenda 

Meeting of November 2, 2023 
 
 

To: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair, and Members of City Council 
 

Subject: Approving the renewal and an increase in allocation of a contract purchase agreement 
with Econolite Control Products, Inc., a sole source supplier, for the purchase of traffic 
controllers for the Stormwater Traffic and Pavement Operations Department in the amount of 
$320,000. 

 
Explanation: On November 19, 2020, City Council approved a three-year contract purchase 
agreement for traffic controllers in the amount of $480,000. The agreement has one two-year 
renewal option available. This is the first and final renewal option. 
 
The project is for 45-year-old intersection cabinets to be replaced to much newer technology.  
The vendor supplies Cobalt TS1/TS2-T2 controllers with data keys and receptacles for traffic 
signals. The traffic signal controllers are part of the vehicle detection system at each signalized 
intersection in the City. Cobalt controllers are the next generation in Advanced Transportation 
Controller (ATC), specifically designed for the mobile computing environment. The newer 
technology will enhance the operation of the intersections throughout the City. The devices 
support connected and automated vehicle programs including signal phase and timing map data 
messaging capabilities. The devices communicate directly with the main computer at the traffic 
operations building on error and issue reporting. 
 
The Procurement and Supply Management Department, in cooperation with the Stormwater 
Traffic and Pavement Operations Department, recommends approval: 

 
Econolite Control Products, Inc……………………...$320,000 

(Two-years @ $160,000 per year) 
 

This purchase is being made in accordance with Section 2-212 (a) 1 of the Procurement Code, 
which allows for a sole source procurement to be used for the purchase of supplies, services, or 
construction when such supply, services or construction is available from only one source. The 
Procurement Director has reviewed and determined the purchase of traffic controllers shall be 
made as sole source. The renewal will be effective from the date of approval through November 
30, 2025, with no renewal option remaining. 

 
Cost/Funding/Assessment Information: Funds have been previously appropriated in the 
General Fund (0001), Stormwater, Pavement and Traffic Operations Department, Traffic 
Signals Division (400-1281). 

 
 

Attachments: Resolution 



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ___ 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE RENEWAL 
OPTION TO THE AGREEMENT WITH 
ECONOLITE CONTROL PRODUCTS, INC. FOR 
TRAFFIC CONTROLLERS TO EXTEND THE 
TERM UNTIL NOVEMBER 30, 2025 AND 
INCREASE THE CONTRACT AMOUNT IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $320,000 FOR THIS RENEWAL 
TERM; AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR HIS 
DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS 
NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THIS 
TRANSACTION; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 

WHEREAS, on November 19, 2020, City Council approved a three-year blanket 
purchase agreement with a two-year option to Econolite Control Products, Inc., a sole source 
supplier, for traffic controllers for the Stormwater Traffic and Pavement Operations Department 
at a total contract amount not to exceed $480,000 through November 30, 2023 (“Agreement”); 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to exercise the renewal option to extend the term of 

the Agreement until November 30, 2025 and increase the contract amount in the amount of 
$320,000 for this renewal term; and 

WHEREAS, the Procurement and Supply Management Department, in 
cooperation with the Stormwater Traffic and Pavement Operations Department, recommends 
approval of this Resolution.  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. 
Petersburg, Florida, that the renewal option to the Agreement with Econolite Control Products, 
Inc. for traffic controllers to extend the term until November 30, 2025 and increase the contract 
amount in the amount of $320,000 for this renewal term is hereby approved. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or his designee is authorized to 
execute all documents necessary to effectuate this transaction.  

This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

LEGAL: DEPARTMENT: 

  ______________________________ 
00703939 



Page 1 of 1

-- City of St. Petersburg Authorization Request --

General Authorization

Request #

238110

Name: Kertesz, Cortni L Request Date: 13-OCT-2023 Status: APPROVED

Authorization Request

Subject: 968-82 Traffic Controls Cobalt Nov 2 Consent

Message: Submitted for your approval, please find attached Consent Write-up for, scheduled to go before City Council 
November 2, 2023.  Resolution currently in development and will be included on the finalized version when 
posted into City Clerk's Office Questys system.  Should you have any questions, please contact me at extension 
3231. Thank you.

Supporting
Documentation:

968-82 Traffic Controls Cobalt Controllers, November 2, 2023 - Consent Write-up v.3 STR.pdf

Approver Completed By Response Response
Date

Type

0 Kertesz, Cortni L SUBMITTED 13-OCT-2023

1 Tankersley, Claude Duval Tankersley, Claude Duval APPROVE 16-OCT-2023 User Defined 



265 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Approving the renewal a 

blanket purchase agreement with Portable Sanitation of Tampa, Inc. for the rental of portable toilets, 

in the amount of $40,000. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CB-4

CB-4



 
 
 
 

ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 
Consent Agenda 

Meeting of November 2, 2023 
 

 
To:  The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair, and Members of City Council 
 
Subject:  Approving the renewal a blanket purchase agreement with Portable Sanitation of 
Tampa, Inc. for the rental of portable toilets, in the amount of $40,000.  
 
Explanation: On December 1, 2020, the city entered into a three-year blanket purchase 
agreement.  City Council approval was not required due to the contract being under the council 
threshold. The agreement has one, two-year renewal option. 
 
The vendor provides rental services for portable toilet, hand washing stations and all consumables 
for requested service locations. The vendor also provides services during scheduled events 
throughout the year, as well as during times of severe conditions and power outages, such as 
after a hurricane or other natural disaster or emergency situations.  
 
The Procurement and Supply Management Department, in cooperation with the Parks and 
Recreation, Sanitation and Water Resources Departments recommends for renewal: 
 

Portable Sanitation of Tampa, Inc. (Tampa, FL) ……. $40,000 
 

The original agreement was executed on December 1, 2020, and $46,740 has been spent during 
the initial term. The vendor has agreed to renew under the same terms and conditions. 
Administration recommends renewal of the agreement based on the vendor’s past satisfactory 
performance and demonstrated ability to comply with the terms and conditions of the agreement.  
The renewal will be effective from December 1, 2023 through November 30, 2025.   
 
Cost/Funding/Assessment Information:  Funds have been previously appropriated in the 
Sanitation Operating Fund (4021) Sanitation Department, Wash Rack Division (450.2313) and 
Brush Sites Division (450.2301); the Water Resources Operating Fund (4001), Water Resources 
Department, Cosme WTP Operations Division (420.2077), and various Divisions; Water 
Resources Capital Projects Fund (4003), various projects; and the General Fund (0001), Parks 
and Recreation Department (190) various divisions. 
 
Attachments: Resolution 

 



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-_____ 
 

 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FIRST AND 
FINAL TWO-YEAR RENEWAL OPTION TO 
THE AGREEMENT WITH PORTABLE 
SANITATION OF TAMPA, INC. FOR THE 
RENTAL OF PORTABLE TOILETS, HAND 
WASHING STATIONS AND CONSUMABLES 
TO EXTEND THE TERM THROUGH 
NOVEMBER 30, 2025 AND INCREASE THE 
CONTRACT AMOUNT BY $40,000 FOR THIS 
RENEWAL TERM; AUTHORIZING THE 
MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE ALL 
DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE 
THIS TRANSACTION; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
  WHEREAS, on December 1, 2020, the City entered into a three-year agreement 
with Portable Sanitation of Tampa, Inc. for the rental of portable toilets, hand washing stations 
and consumables; and  
 
  WHEREAS, City Administration desires to exercise the first and final two-year 
renewal option to extend the term of the agreement through November 30, 2025 and increase the 
contract amount by $40,000 for the renewal term; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Procurement & Supply Management Department, in cooperation 
with the Parks and Recreation, Sanitation and Water Resources Department, recommend 
approval of this Resolution. 
 
  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
St. Petersburg, Florida that the first and final two-year renewal option to the agreement with 
Portable Sanitation of Tampa, Inc. for the rental of portable toilets, handwashing stations and 
consumables to extend the term through November 30, 2025 and increase the contract amount by 
$40,000 for the renewal term is hereby approved.  
 
  BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or his designee is authorized to 
execute all documents necessary to effectuate this transaction. 
 
  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 

LEGAL: DEPARTMENT: 

________________________                            _________________________ 
00705215 



Page 1 of 1

-- City of St. Petersburg Authorization Request --

General Authorization

Request #

237743

Name: Kertesz, Cortni L Request Date: 11-OCT-2023 Status: APPROVED

Authorization Request

Subject: 977-73Portable Sanitation, Rental Nov 2 Consent

Message: Submitted for your approval, please find attached Consent Write-up for, scheduled to go before City Council 
November 2, 2023.  Resolution currently in development and will be included on the finalized version when 
posted into City Clerk's Office Questys system.  Should you have any questions, please contact me at extension 
3231. Thank you.

Supporting
Documentation:

977-73 Portable Sanitation Units November 2 2023 Consent Agenda(SFPedit)_lnsedits.pdf

Approver Completed By Response Response
Date

Type

0 Kertesz, Cortni L SUBMITTED 11-OCT-2023

1 Foster, Amy E Foster, Amy E APPROVE 11-OCT-2023 User Defined 



270 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Accepting a bid from Jantech 

Services, Inc for battery replacement services for the Police Department, in the amount of 

265,148.16. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CB-5

CB-5



ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 
Consent Agenda 

Meeting of November 2, 2023 
 
 

To: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair, and Members of City Council  
 
Subject: Accepting a bid from Jantech Services, Inc for battery replacement services 
for the Police Department, in the amount of 265,148.16.   
 
Explanation: The Procurement and Supply Management Department issued IFB 8690,1 on 
August 10, 2023. The bids were opened on September 21, 2023. The Procurement and Supply 
Management Department received eight bids for UPS Battery Replacement and are tabulated as 
follows:  
 
 
Bidders Amount 
Jantech Services, Inc. $44,191.36 
PWR Storage Solutions dba Power Storage Solutions $55,003.00 
AETPRO $58,163.00 
Vertiv Corporation $38,863.00 
Nationwide Power Solutions, Inc $44,696.16 
PC Liquidations $500.00 
RESA Power $69,918.10 
Trading Enterprises Corporation $347.17 

 
 
The vendor shall provide all-inclusive battery replacement services for each of the six (6) Liebert 
(VERTIX eXM) Uninterrupted Power Supply Units, to include all labor, new materials, disposal of 
old materials, technical support, documentation, supervision, tools, equipment, batteries, and 
vehicles necessary located at the St. Petersburg Police Department Headquarters Building (1301 
1st Ave. N. St Petersburg FL 33705). 

 
The vendor will replace two batteries per fiscal year over the next three years, for a total of six 
batteries.  
 
The Procurement and Supply Management Department, in cooperation with the Police 
Department, recommends an award to: 
 

Jantech Services, Inc. (Odessa, TX)………………….$265,148.16 
($44,191.36/battery @ 2 batteries/fiscal year) 

 
 
Jantech Services, Inc., the lowest responsive and responsible bidder has met the specifications 
and requirements of IFB No. 8690,1 dated August 10, 2023. . A blanket purchase agreement will 
be issued for the three-year term and will be binding only for actual services rendered.  
Cost/Funding/Assessment Information: Funds have been previously appropriated in the 
General Fund (0001), Police Department, Building Maintenance Division (140.1393). 
 
Attachments: Bid Tabulation 

Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE BID AND APPROVING
THE AWARD OF A THREE-YEAR BLANKET PURCHASE
AGREEMENT WITH JANTECH SERVICES, INC. FOR
BATTERY REPLACEMENT SERVICES FOR THE POLICE
DEPARTMENT IN THE AMOUNT OF $265,148.16;
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE TO
EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO
EFFECTUATE THIS TRANSACTION; AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City received eight bids for battery replacement services for each of the
six (6) Liebert (VERTIX eXM) Uninterrupted Power Supply Units located at the St. Petersburg
Police Department Headquarters Building pursuant to IFB No. 8690-1 dated August 10, 2023;
and

WHEREAS, Jantech Services, Inc., the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, has met
the specifications and requirements of IFB No. 8690-1 dated August 10, 2023; and

WHEREAS, the Procurement & Supply Management Department, in cooperation with the
Police Department, recommends approval of this resolution.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St.
Petersburg, Florida, that the bid is accepted and the award of a three-year blanket purchase
agreement with Jantech Services, Inc. for battery replacement services for the Police Department
in the amount of $265,148.16 is hereby approved.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or his designee is hereby authorized to
execute all documents necessary to effectuate this transaction.

This resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

LEGAL: DEPARTMENT:

Megan C McGee& &

00704409



Page 1 of 1

-- City of St. Petersburg Authorization Request --

General Authorization

Request #

238116

Name: Kertesz, Cortni L Request Date: 13-OCT-2023 Status: APPROVED

Authorization Request

Subject: 936-61 Uninterrupted Power Sup Battery Nov2Consent

Message: Submitted for your approval, please find attached Consent Write-up for, scheduled to go before City Council 
November 2, 2023.  Resolution currently in development and will be included on the finalized version when 
posted into City Clerk's Office Questys system.  Should you have any questions, please contact me at extension 
3231. Thank you.

Supporting
Documentation:

836-61 Uninterrupted Power Supply Battery Replacements November 2, 2023 - Consent Write-up.pdf

Approver Completed By Response Response
Date

Type

0 Kertesz, Cortni L SUBMITTED 13-OCT-2023

1 McGee, Megan Cassidy McGee, Megan Cassidy APPROVE 16-OCT-2023 User Defined 



275 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Authorizing the Mayor, or his 

designee, to execute a License Agreement with the Civil Air Patrol, a Congressionally chartered 

non-profit federal corporation and the civilian Auxiliary of the United States Air Force, for 

continued use of property to maintain a building and other ancillary improvements for its base 

operations within City-owned Albert Whitted Airport, for a period of three (3) years at an aggregate 

fee of $36.00; and providing an effective date. (Requires affirmative vote of at least six (6) members 

of City Council.)  

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CB-7

CB-7



   

      

            
    
             

           
      

  
     

 

   
      

             
        

           
 

   
  

   
        

        
   

  
  

      
         

        
  

     
 

             
            

        
             

      
       
       

    
  

  
        

       
 

ST. PETERSBURG  CITY COUNCIL  

Consent Agenda  

Meeting of  November  2,  2023  

TO: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair and Members of City Council 

SUBJECT: A resolution authorizing the Mayor, or his designee, to execute a License 
Agreement with the Civil Air Patrol, a Congressionally chartered non-profit federal 
corporation and the civilian Auxiliary of the United States Air Force, for continued use of 
property to maintain a building and other ancillary improvements for its base operations 
within City-owned Albert Whitted Airport, for a period of three (3) years at an aggregate 
fee of $36.00; and to execute all documents necessary to effectuate same; and providing 
an effective date. (Requires affirmative vote of at least six (6) members of City 
Council.) 

EXPLANATION: Real Estate and Property Management ("REPM") received a request from 
the Civil Air Patrol, a Congressionally chartered non-profit federal corporation and the 
Civilian Auxiliary of the United States Air Force ("Licensee"), to enter into a new license 
agreement for a three (3) year term for the use of land located within the Albert Whitted 
Airport ("Property"), depicted in the attached illustration. The Licensee has occupied the 
Property, which is improved with a building and other ancillary improvements 
(collectively, "Premises"), as its base of operations since August 23, 1984.  The Licensee 
maintains the Premises at its sole cost and expense. 

The Licensee was established December 1, 1941 as a private, non-profit organization 
and incorporated by the United States Congress on July 1, 1946 and serves three primary 
missions: 1) Emergency Services including air and ground search and rescue, disaster 
relief, and civil defense, as well as cooperation with and assistance to other emergency 
service agencies; 2) Aerospace Education programs that provide members and the 
community information about aviation and space activities; and 3) Cadet Programs 
designed to inspire the country's youth to become leaders and good American citizens. 
Locally, the Licensee consists of the Pinellas Senior Squadron SER-FL-182 comprised of 
senior adult members, along with the St Petersburg Cadet Squadron SER-FL-066 
consisting primarily of cadets (12-21 years old) with a senior member (18 years old and 
older) staff performing the tactical application of Aerospace Education and Cadet 
Programs. 

The Licensee has executed a new License Agreement ("License") for a term of three (3) 
years ("Term"), subject to City Council approval, with the terms and conditions providing 
the Licensee with the same basic rights and privileges it has enjoyed during the 
preceding term. The fee is thirty-six dollars ($36.00) in the aggregate for the entire 
Term. The Licensee will be responsible for payment of all costs associated with its use 
of the Premises including, but not limited to, costs associated with utilities, applicable 
taxes, security, and maintenance of the Premises. Additionally, the Licensee will 
maintain a commercial general liability insurance policy in the amount of at least 
$1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 in the aggregate, protecting the City against 
all claims or demands that may arise or be claimed on account of Licensee’s use of the 
Premises. Either party may terminate the License by providing the other party sixty (60) 
days written notice. The City is under no obligation to provide a replacement facility 
under any circumstances. 

CM 231102 - 1 RE Civil Air Patrol @ Albert Whitted Airport L-6660 (2023-2026) 00703700.docx 1 



  

     
              

        
  

       
      

    
       

    
          

  
 

  

    

The License is in compliance with Section 1.02(c)(4)A.1 of the City Charter, which permits 
the leasing of property at the Airport for a term not to exceed twenty-five (25) years with 
an affirmative vote of at least six (6) members of City Council.  This property is zoned IT 
(Industrial Traditional). 

RECOMMENDATION: Administration recommends that City Council adopt the 
attached resolution authorizing the Mayor, or his designee, to execute a License 
Agreement with the Civil Air Patrol, a Congressionally chartered non-profit federal 
corporation and the civilian Auxiliary of the United States Air Force, for use of property 
to maintain a building and other ancillary improvements for its base operations within 
City-owned Albert Whitted Airport for a period of three (3) years at an aggregate fee of 
$36.00; and to execute all documents necessary to effectuate same; and providing an 
effective date. 

COST/FUNDING/ASSESSMENT INFORMATION: N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: Illustration and Resolution 

CM 231102 - 1 RE Civil Air Patrol @ Albert Whitted Airport L-6660 (2023-2026) 00703700.docx 2 

         

       

APPROVALS: Administration: 

Budget: N/A 



  

 

ILLUSTRATION  
PREMISES  

CM 231102 - 1 RE Civil Air Patrol @ Albert Whitted Airport L-6660 (2023-2026) 00703700.docx 3 



    Resolution No. 2023 -

CM 231102 - 1 RE Civil Air Patrol @ Albert Whitted Airport L-6660 (2023-2026) 00703700.docx   

     
   

     

     
     

    
            

    

  
  

   
   

      

   
    

 
         

    
      

 

     

A RESOLUTION  AUTHORIZING T HE  MAYOR,  OR  HIS  
DESIGNEE, TO  EXECUTE A  LICENSE AGREEMENT  WITH  
THE CIVIL  AIR PATROL, A CONGRESSIONALLY  
CHARTERED  NON-PROFIT  FEDERAL  CORPORATION  
AND  THE CIVILIAN AUXILIARY OF  THE  UNITED STATES  
AIR  FORCE,  FOR  USE  OF  PROPERTY  TO  MAINTAIN  A 
BUILDING  AND  OTHER ANCILLARY  IMPROVEMENTS  
FOR  ITS B ASE  OPERATIONS W ITHIN  CITY-OWNED 
ALBERT WHITTED AIRPORT FOR A PERIOD  OF THREE  
(3) YEARS AT  AN  AGGREGATE FEE  OF $36.00; AND TO  
EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS  NECESSARY  TO  
EFFECTUATE  SAME;  AND  PROVIDING  AN  EFFECTIVE  
DATE.  

WHEREAS, the Civil Air Patrol, a Congressionally chartered non-profit federal 
corporation ("Licensee"), desires to continue to use property within City-owned Albert Whitted 
Airport in order to maintain a building and other ancillary improvements (collectively 
"Premises"), that the Licensee has utilized since August 23, 1984; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed License Agreement will be for a term of three (3) years 
for an aggregate fee of $36.00; and 

WHEREAS, the Licensee will be responsible for payment of all costs associated 
with its use of the Premises including, but not limited to, costs associated with utilities, any 
applicable taxes and insurance, security, and maintenance of the Premises; and 

WHEREAS, either party may terminate the License by providing the other party 
sixty (60) days written notice; and 

WHEREAS, the License is in compliance with Section 1.02(c)(4)A.1 of the City 
Charter, which permits the leasing of property at the Airport for a term not to exceed twenty-
five (25) years with an affirmative vote of at least six (6) members of City Council. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. 
Petersburg, Florida, that the Mayor, or his designee, is authorized to execute a License 
Agreement with the Civil Air Patrol, a Congressionally chartered non-profit federal corporation 
and the civilian Auxiliary of the United States Air Force, for use of property to maintain a 
building and other ancillary improvements for its base operations within City-owned Albert 
Whitted Airport, for a period of three (3) years at an aggregate fee of $36.00; and to execute 
all documents necessary to effectuate same. 

This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

1 

   

             
     

       

  

      
 

Legal: City Development Administration: 

City Attorney (Designee) Chris Ballestra, Managing Director 
00703700 Development Coordination 

Real Estate & Property Management: 

Aaron Fisch, Director 



281 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Authorizing the Mayor, or his 

designee, to execute a First Amendment to the License Agreement with the Salvador Dali Museum, 

Inc., a Florida not-for-profit corporation, to continue the non-exclusive right to use up to fifty (50) 

numbered vehicular parking spaces in the overflow parking area at Albert Whitted Airport for an 

additional three (3) year term; and providing an effective date.  

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CB-8

CB-8



         

           

     
           

            
           

           
    

             
           

        
         

              
              

       

          
              

   

          
              

    

         
          

   
             

            
     

    

     

   

ST.  PETERSBURG C ITY  COUNCIL  

Consent  Agenda  

Meeting  of  November  2,  2023  

TO: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair and Members of City Council 

SUBJECT: A resolution authorizing the Mayor, or his designee, to execute a First 
Amendment to the License Agreement with the Salvador Dali Museum, Inc., a Florida not-
for-profit corporation, to continue the non-exclusive right to use up to fifty (50) numbered 
vehicular parking spaces in the overflow parking area at Albert Whitted Airport for an 
additional three (3) year term; and to execute all documents necessary to effectuate same; 
and providing an effective date. 

EXPLANATION: On October 26, 2020, the City of St. Petersburg and the Salvador Dalí 
Museum, Inc. ("Dalí") entered into a three (3) year license agreement ("License") granting 
the Dalí the non-exclusive right to use fifty (50) parking spaces (“Parking Spaces”) for 
employee parking located within the Albert Whitted Airport ("Airport") overflow parking 
area ("Premises") for a term of three (3) years. The License provides for a renewal term of 
three (3) years and the Licensee desires to exercise this renewal option. The initial term of 
the License expired on October 31, 2023. 

Real Estate and Property Management ("REPM") received a request from the Dalí to renew 
its license agreement for the use the Parking Spaces within the Premises for an additional 
three (3) year term. 

Dalí has executed a First Amendment to the License extending the term to October 31, 
2026, subject to City Council approval. All of the provisions of the License not specifically 
amended shall remain in full force and effect. 

RECOMMENDATION: Administration recommends that City Council adopt the attached 
resolution authorizing the Mayor, or his designee, to execute a First Amendment to the 
License Agreement with the Salvador Dali Museum, Inc., a Florida not-for-profit 
corporation, to continue the non-exclusive right to use up to fifty (50) numbered vehicular 
parking spaces in the overflow parking area at Albert Whitted Airport for an additional 
three (3) year term; and to execute all documents necessary to effectuate same; and 
providing an effective date. 

COST/FUNDING/ASSESSMENT INFORMATION: N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: Illustrations and Resolution 

CM 231102 – 2 RE 1st Amendment Salvador Dali Museum, Inc. Employee Parking @ AWA (2023-2026) 1 

       

        

APPROVALS: Administration: 

Budget: N/A 



       Resolution No. 2023 --

         

      
          

             
      

             
            

     

            
           

 

         

          
           

          
    

      
         

           
            

             
           

         

A R ESOLUTION  AUTHORIZING  THE  MAYOR, OR  
HIS  DESIGNEE,  TO  EXECUTE  A  FIRST AMENDMENT 
TO  THE LICENSE AGREEMENT  WITH THE  
SALVADOR  DALI  MUSEUM,  INC.,  A FLORIDA NOT-
FOR-PROFIT  CORPORATION,  TO  CONTINUE  THE  
NON-EXCLUSIVE  RIGHT TO  USE  UP  TO  FIFTY  (50) 
NUMBERED VEHICULAR  PARKING SPACES  IN T HE  
OVERFLOW PARKING AREA AT  ALBERT  WHITTED  
AIRPORT  FOR AN  ADDITIONAL THREE  (3) YEAR 
TERM;  AND  TO  EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS  
NECESSARY  TO  EFFECTUATE  SAME;  AND  
PROVIDING  AN EFFECTIVE D ATE.  

WHEREAS, the City of St. Petersburg owns and operates Albert Whitted 
Airport ("Airport") in the City of St. Petersburg, Florida; and 

WHEREAS, on October 26, 2020, the City of St. Petersburg and the Salvador 
Dalí Museum, Inc. ("Dalí") entered into a three (3) year license agreement ("License") 
granting the Dalí the non-exclusive right to use fifty (50) parking spaces (“Parking Spaces”) 
for employee parking located within the Albert overflow parking area ("Premises") for a 
term of three (3) years; and 

WHEREAS, the Dalí desires to extend the term of the License for another 
three (3) years for use of the Parking Spaces within the Premises, as provided in the 
License; and 

WHEREAS, the initial term of the License expired on October 31, 2023; and 

WHEREAS, the Dalí has executed a First Amendment to the License extending 
the term to October 31, 2026, subject to City Council approval; and 

WHEREAS, all of the provisions of the License not specifically amended shall 
remain in full force and effect. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. 
Petersburg, Florida, that the Mayor, or his designee, is authorized to execute a First 
Amendment to the License Agreement with the Salvador Dali Museum, Inc., a Florida not-
for-profit corporation, to continue the non-exclusive right to use up to fifty (50) numbered 
vehicular parking spaces in the overflow parking area at Albert Whitted Airport for an 
additional three (3) year term; and to execute all documents necessary to effectuate same. 

This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

CM 231102 – 2 RE 1st Amendment Salvador Dali Museum, Inc. Employee Parking @ AWA (2023-2026) 2 

          

             
          

        

   

      
   

Legal: City Development Administration: 

City Attorney (Designee) Chris Ballestra, Managing Director 
00704505 Development Coordination 

Real Estate and Property Management: 

Aaron Fisch, Director 



285 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Authorizing the Mayor, or his 

designee, to execute License Agreement with the Childs Park Rattlers Youth Athletic Organization, 

Inc., a Florida not-for-profit corporation, for the use of the concession stand, equipment/storage, and 

press box/storage buildings within a portion of City-owned Childs Park Athletic Complex located at 

601 – 45th Street South, St. Petersburg, for a period of three (3) years at an aggregate fee of $36.00; 

and waiving the reserve for replacement requirement of City Council Resolution No. 79-740A; and 

providing an effective date. (Requires affirmative vote of at least six (6) members of City Council.) 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CB-9

CB-9



       

      

     
           

  
    

  
    

     
    

   
  

     
  

 

ST. PETERSBURG  CITY COUNCIL  

Consent Agenda  

Meeting of  November  2, 2023  

TO: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair and Members of City Council 

SUBJECT:  A  resolution authorizing the Mayor, or his  designee,  to  execute License  
Agreement with  the Childs Park Rattlers Youth  Athletic Organization, Inc., a Florida not-
for-profit  corporation,  for  the  use  of  the  concession stand, equipment/storage,  and  
press box/storage  buildings  and  within a  portion of  City-owned  Childs Park Athletic  
Complex  located  at  601  –  45th  Street  South,  St.  Petersburg,  for  a  period  of  three  (3)  years 
at  an  aggregate  fee  of  $36.00;  and  to  execute all  documents  necessary  to  effectuate  
same;  waiving the reserve  for  replacement requirement of City Council  Resolution No. 
79-740A;  and providing an effective  date.  (Requires  affirmative  vote  of at  least  six  (6)  
members  of City  Council.)  

EXPLANATION:  The Real  Estate  and  Property  Management  Department  received  a  
request  from  Childs Park Rattlers  Youth Athletic Organization  ("Licensee") to  enter  into  
a  new  license  agreement  for  continued  use  of  the  concession stand, equipment/storage,  
and  press box/storage  buildings  within a  portion of City-owned  Childs Park Athletic  
Complex located at  601  –  45th  Street South,  St.  Petersburg  (collectively  referred  to  as  
"Premises"), that the Licensee has utilized since  October 1, 2002.   

The proposed License Agreement ("License") will be for a term of thirty-six (36) months, 
subject to City Council approval, with the terms and conditions providing it with the 
same basic rights and privileges it has enjoyed during the preceding term. The fee is 
thirty-six dollars ($36.00) for the entire term. The Licensee is responsible for (i.) all 
interior and exterior maintenance of both buildings (excluding the restrooms); (ii.) 
payment of utilities including, but not limited to, electricity, telephone, internet service, 
water, gas, cable/satellite television, sewerage, garbage and trash collection; and (iii.) 
any applicable taxes. Additionally, the Licensee will maintain a commercial general 
liability insurance policy in the amount of $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 
in the aggregate, protecting the City against all claims or demands that may arise or be 
claimed on account of the Licensee’s use of the Premises. The License may be terminated 
without cause by either party with ninety (90) days written notice prior to the scheduled 
date of termination. 

City  Council  Resolution N o. 79-740A,  dated October  4,  1979,  establishes policies for  the  
sale and  leasing  of City-owned park and waterfront property. This resolution requires 
that when leasing  City  property to a non-profit, private  organization ". . . the organization  
pays operating  costs  plus a reserve  for  replacement." Due to  the  limited financial  
resources of this organization,  nominal rent is being charged and it  is  recommended  
that the  reserve for  replacement  requirement  be waived  in  an effort  to  minimize  
operating costs.  These terms and conditions are  consistent  with  prior  leases of  non-
profit organizations. U nder the terms  of the License, "the  City is  under no obligation to  
provide  a replacement  facility under any circumstances."   

CM 231102 - 3 RE Childs Park Rattlers Youth Athletic Organization (2023-2026) L-2240 1 



       

  

  

Section 1.02 (c)(2) of the City  Charter, Park  and Waterfront Property, permits City Council  
approval of leases for Park and Waterfront property  for three  (3)  years or less on  
residentially-zoned  property  with  approval by  an  affirmative  vote  of  at  least  six  (6)  
members of City Council.  The subject property is zoned (NT-2) Neighborhood  Traditional 
Single Family-2.  

RECOMMENDATION:    Administration  recommends that City Council  adopt  the  attached  
resolution authorizing  the Mayor, or his  designee,  to execute a License Agreement with  
the Childs  Park  Rattlers  Youth  Athletic  Organization, Inc., a Florida not-for-profit  
corporation, for  the use of the concession stand, equipment/storage, and press box/  
storage buildings within a portion  of  City-owned Childs Park Athletic Complex  located  at 
601 – 45th Street South,  St. Petersburg,  for a period of three  (3) years at an  
aggregate fee of $36.00; and to execute all  documents necessary to effectuate same;  
waiving the reserve for replacement requirement of  City Council Resolution  No. 79-740A;  
and providing an effective date.  

COST/FUNDING/ASSESSMENT INFORMATION: N/A 

ATTACHMENTS: Illustration and Resolution 

CM 231102 - 3 RE Childs Park Rattlers Youth Athletic Organization (2023-2026) L-2240 2 

          

         

APPROVALS: Administration: 

Budget: N/A 



       

 

 

ILLUSTRATION  

Premises A  –  Concession Stand/Board Room  Building  
Premises  B  -  Equipment/Storage Building  
Premises C  –  Pressbox/Storage  Building  

Address:  601 – 45 th  Street South, St. Petersburg  

CM 231102 - 3 RE Childs Park Rattlers Youth Athletic Organization (2023-2026) L-2240 3 



   Resolution No. 2023-
 

       

         
               

   

   
  

  
        

 

   
     

            
    

 
      

    

  
     

     
   

A  RESOLUTION  AUTHORIZING  THE  MAYOR,  OR 
HIS  DESIGNEE,  TO  EXECUTE  A  THREE  (3)  YEAR  
LICENSE AGREEMENT WITH  THE  CHILDS PARK 
RATTLERS YOUTH  ATHLETIC  ORGANIZATION,  
INC.,  A FLORIDA NOT-FOR-PROFIT 
CORPORATION,  FOR  USE  OF  THE  CONCESSION  
STAND, EQUIPMENT/STORAGE,  AND PRESS 
BOX/STORAGE  BUILDINGS  WITHIN A PORTION  
OF CITY-OWNED  CHILDS  PARK  ATHLETIC  
COMPLEX  LOCATED AT 601  –  45TH  STREET 
SOUTH,  ST.  PETERSBURG, FOR  AN  AGGREGATE  
FEE OF $36.00;  AND TO EXECUTE ALL  
DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE 
SAME; WAIVING THE RESERVE FOR  
REPLACEMENT  REQUIREMENT OF  CITY  
COUNCIL  RESOLUTION NO. 79-740A; AND  
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

WHEREAS,  the  Childs Park Rattlers Youth Athletic  Organization, Inc.  
("Licensee")  desires to  continue  use  of certain City-owned property  located at 601  –  45th  
Street  South,  collectively referred to  as “Premises”, to use the  concession stand, 
equipment/storage,  and  press box/storage  buildings  within Childs  Park Sports Complex,  
that  the Licensee has  utilized  since October 1, 2002; and  

WHEREAS, the proposed License Agreement ("License") will be for a term of 
thirty-six (36) months, at an aggregate fee of $36.00, to be paid on or before the 
effective date of the License; and 

WHEREAS, the Licensee is responsible for (i) all interior and exterior 
maintenance of both buildings (excluding the restrooms); (ii) payment of utilities 
including, but not limited to, electricity, telephone, internet service, water, gas, 
cable/satellite television, sewerage, garbage and trash collection; and (iii) any applicable 
taxes and insurance; and 

WHEREAS, the License is in accordance with the policies established in 
Resolution No. 79-740A provided; however, due to the limited financial resources of the 
organization, the City is charging nominal rent and recommending that the reserve for 
replacement requirement be waived in an effort to minimize operating costs; and 

WHEREAS, these terms and conditions are consistent with prior licenses 
with this and other non-profit organizations; and 

WHEREAS, Section 1.02 (c)(2) of the City Charter, Park and Waterfront 
Property, permits City Council approval of leases for Park and Waterfront property for 
three (3) years or less on residentially-zoned property with approval by an affirmative 
vote of at least six (6) members of City Council. 

CM 231102 - 3 RE Childs Park Rattlers Youth Athletic Organization (2023-2026) L-2240 1 



 

       

  
    

    

NOW, THEREFORE  BE  IT  RESOLVED  by  the C ity  Council  of  the City of St. 
Petersburg,  Florida,  that  the  Mayor,  or his  designee,  is hereby  authorized  to  execute a  
License  Agreement with the  Childs Park  Rattlers  Youth Athletic Organization, a  Florida  
not-for-profit corporation, for the use  of  tthe concession stand, equipment/storage,  
and  press box/storag e buildings  within a  portion   of City-o w ned Childs  Park Athletic   
Complex located  at 601 – 45th Street  South, St. Petersburg, for  a period of  three (3)  
years at  an aggregate fee  of $36.00; and  to execute all documents necessary  to  
effectuate same; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the reserve for replacement requirement 
pursuant to Resolution No. 79-740A is waived. 

This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

CM 231102 - 3 RE Childs Park Rattlers Youth Athletic Organization (2023-2026) L-2240 2 

         

              
       

  

      
 

 

Legal: Community Enrichment Administration: 

City Attorney (Designee) Michael J. Jefferis, Administrator 

Real Estate and Property Management: 

Aaron Fisch, Director 
00704762 



292 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: A Resolution to execute the 

first amendment to the agreement with Volkan Alkanoglu Design, LLC for two artistic sculptures for 

the Grand Central District Entryway Project to increase the total contract amount by $219,000, 

including a $38,000 contingency, for a total contract amount not to exceed $418,000. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CB-10

CB-10



    
  

      
 

 
            

 
             

           
            

            
           

             
             

           
          

            
            
           
          

            
      

 
    

 
               

               
              

               
                  

             
    

 
   

 
         

 
               

              
             

             
             

           
 

ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 
Consent Agenda 

Meeting of November 2, 2023 

TO: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair and Members of City Council 

SUBJECT: A resolution authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute the first 
amendment between the City of St. Petersburg, Florida, and Volkan Alkanoglu 
Design LLC (“Artist”) for two artistic sculptures for the Grand Central District 
Entryway Project to increase the total contract amount by $219,000, including a 
$38,000 contingency, for a total contract amount not to exceed $418,000; 
approving a transfer in the amount of $179,000 from the unappropriated balance 
of the Intown West Tax Increment District Fund (1107), to the Tax Increment 
Financing Capital Improvement Fund (3005) to provide funding for the first 
amendment; approving a supplemental appropriation in the amount of $179,000 
from the increase in the unappropriated balance of the Tax Increment Financing 
Capital Improvement Fund (3005), resulting from the above transfer, to the Grand 
Central Improvements Project (19024); authorizing the Mayor or his designee to 
execute all other documents necessary to effectuate this transaction; authorizing 
the city attorney or designee to make non-substantive changes to the first 
amendment; and providing an effective date. 

AMENDMENT BACKGROUND: 

Amendments to the agreement approved by City Council on February 2, 2023, between the City 
and artist, Volkan Alkanoglu, recognize an increase in the project budget for the Grand Central 
District entryway project. Costs for the Grand Central District entryway project have increased 
since the original agreement was approved. An increase in costs for fabrication materials and 
labor for two sculptures, and the need to fund a public construction bond by the artist due to 
exceeding the Statutory cost threshold will require an additional appropriation of $179,000 to 
complete the project. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Administration recommends City Council APPROVE the attached resolution. 

COST/FUNDING INFORMATION: Funding will be available after the approval of a transfer in the 
amount of $179,000 from the unappropriated balance of the Intown West Tax Increment District 
Fund (1107), to the Tax Increment Financing Capital Improvement Fund (3005) and a 
supplemental appropriation in the amount of $179,000 from the increase in the unappropriated 
balance of the Tax Increment Financing Capital Improvement Fund (3005), resulting from the 
above transfer, to the Grand Central Improvements Project (19024). 



   
   

  

 

 

 

 

    

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

NOVEMBER 2, 2023 
PAGE 2 

Attachments: 
- Resolution 
- Amended Artist Agreement 

Approvals: 

Administrative: 

Budget: 



 

 
 

   
 

       
        

       
      

       
      

       
       
      
        

       
        

     
        

    
        

       
     

       
      

        
      

     
      

      
     

 
 

            
             

               
               

            
 

            
               

          
 

           
     

 
           

               

Resolution No. 2023-______ 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR HIS 
DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG, 
FLORIDA AND VOLKAN ALKANOGLU DESIGN LLC 
(“ARTIST”) FOR TWO ARTISTIC SCULPTURES FOR THE 
GRAND CENTRAL DISTRICT ENTRYWAY PROJECT TO 
INCREASE THE TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT BY $219,000, 
INCLUDING A $38,000 CONTINGENCY, FOR A TOTAL 
CONTRACT AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $418,000; 
APPROVING A TRANSFER IN THE AMOUNT OF $179,000 
FROM THE UNAPPROPRIATED BALANCE OF THE INTOWN 
WEST TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT FUND (1107), TO THE 
TAX INCREMENT FINANCING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 
FUND (3005) TO PROVIDE FUNDING FOR THE FIRST 
AMENDMENT; APPROVING A SUPPLEMENTAL 
APPROPRIATION IN THE AMOUNT OF $179,000 FROM THE 
INCREASE IN THE UNAPPROPRIATED BALANCE OF THE 
TAX INCREMENT FINANCING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 
FUND (3005), RESULTING FROM THE ABOVE TRANSFER, 
TO THE GRAND CENTRAL IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
(19024); AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE TO 
EXECUTE ALL OTHER DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO 
EFFECTUATE THIS TRANSACTION; AUTHORIZING THE 
CITY ATTORNEY OR DESIGNEE TO MAKE NON-
SUBSTANTIVE CHANGES TO THE FIRST AMENDMENT; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, on February 2, 2023, City Council (i) approved an agreement (“Artist 
Agreement”) for Volkan Alkanoglu Design LLC to design, fabricate, and install two sculptures 
for the Grand Central District Entryway Project at a cost of $199,000, and (ii) appropriated 
$399,000 for the Project, which included $199,000 to fund the Artist Agreement and $200,000 to 
fund City engineering costs for site preparation, sculpture foundations, and lighting; and 

WHEREAS, due to increased costs for fabrication materials and labor, and because 
the artist will now be responsible for the sculpture foundations, the artist needs an additional 
$179,000 to complete the project under the Artist Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, City engineering costs for site preparation and lighting are now 
$160,000 instead of $200,000; and 

WHEREAS, because the total contract price for the Artist Agreement was 
originally under $200,000, City Council granted the artist an exemption and waiver from the public 

1 



 

 
 

            
  

 
           

               
 

 
            

               
             

    
 

              
               

                
  

 
        

 
 

              
                

              
              

              
     

 
             

         
 

            
         

 
       

       
               

 
             

            
           

 
        
          

 
             

       

construction bond requirements of Florida Statute Section 255.05(1) and City Code Section 2-
217(a); and 

WHEREAS, the public construction bond requirements can no longer be exempted 
or waived because the total contract price under the Artist Agreement will now exceed $200,000; 
and 

WHEREAS, an amendment to the Artist Agreement is needed to include sculpture 
foundations as part of the artist’s duties, increase the total contract amount by $219,000 (which 
amount includes a $38,000 contingency), add a public construction bond requirement, and make 
other necessary changes; and 

WHEREAS, the $40,000 that is no longer needed for City engineering costs for this 
project can now go toward funding the increase in the contract price, with an additional 
appropriation in the amount of $179,000 needed to fully cover the $219,000 to fund the first 
amendment; and 

WHEREAS, Administration recommends that City Council approve this 
Resolution. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. 
Petersburg, Florida, that the Mayor or his designee is authorized to execute the first amendment to 
the agreement between the City of St. Petersburg, Florida and Volkan Alkanoglu Design LLC 
(“Artist”) for two artistic sculptures for the Grand Central District Entryway Project to increase 
the total contract amount by $219,000, including a $38,000 contingency, for a total contract 
amount not to exceed $418,000. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or his designee is authorized to 
execute all other documents necessary to effectuate this transaction. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that there is hereby approved the following transfer 
for FY24 to provide funding for the first amendment: 

Intown West Tax Increment District Fund (1107) 
Transfer to: Tax Increment Financing Capital 

Improvement Fund (3005) $179,000 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that there is hereby approved from the increase in 
the unappropriated balance of the Tax Increment Financing Capital Improvement Fund (3005), 
resulting from the above transfer, the following supplemental appropriation for FY24: 

Tax Increment Financing Capital Improvement Fund (3005): 
Grand Central Improvements Project (19024) $179,000 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Attorney or designee is authorized to 
make non-substantive changes to the first amendment. 

2 



  

   

 
 

 

 

~ ~ ______________________________ ______________________________ 

______________________________ 

This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

LEGAL: DEPARTMENT: 

City Attorney (Designee) Administration 
00695871 

BUDGET: 

Budget and Management 

3 



 

 
 

     
  

   
 
       

    
 
      

 
 

 
   

 
 

 
  

  
 

  
    

   
 

  
 

 
  

 
  

   
  

 
  

    
   

 
 

  
 

  
  

  
 

 
      

FIRST AMENDMENT TO AGREEMENT 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT (“First Amendment”) is made and entered into on this 3rd day of 
September, 2023, by and between Volkan Alkanoglu Design LLC, a Georgia Limited Liability 
Company (“Artist”) and the City of St. Petersburg, Florida (“City”) (collectively, “Parties”). 

WHEREAS, the Parties entered into an agreement on December 15, 2022 for Artist to 
design, fabricate, and install works of art for the City; and 

WHEREAS, the agreement dated December 15, 2022, as amended from time to time, is 
collectively referred to herein as the “Agreement”; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties now desire to amend the Agreement to increase the Payment, 
add contingency, include a public construction bond requirement, and modify other necessary 
provisions. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, and 
conditions herein contained, the foregoing recitals, and other good and valuable consideration, 
the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. All references in the Agreement to Final Acceptance, the City issuing its Final
Acceptance, or Final Acceptance by the City means Substantial Completion has
been reached. For the purposes of this Agreement, Substantial Completion is the
status of completion of the Artwork which, in the written opinion of the City, is
sufficiently complete, in accordance with this Agreement, so that the Artwork can
be utilized for the purposes for which it was intended.

2. Article 2.2A. is hereby amended to read as follows:

Beginning on the Effective Date, Artist shall commence the final design,
development, fabrication, and installation of the Artwork (including the
foundation for the Artwork) in accordance with this Agreement. Without limiting
the generality of the foregoing, Artist shall prepare construction drawings for the
Artwork (including the foundation for the Artwork), and Artist shall submit those
construction drawings to the City for the City’s approval. Artist must obtain the
City’s approval of the construction drawings prior to commencing any work at the
Site.

3. Article 2.2B. is hereby amended to read as follows:

Final placement of the Artwork must be coordinated with and approved by the
City before installation begins to ensure that no damage is caused to the Site.
Artist is responsible for installing the Artwork and a foundation for the Artwork
in accordance with construction drawings that have been approved by the City.

4. Article 3.1 of the Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows:

1 



 

 
 

    

 
 

   
   

 
 

 
    

 
   

  
 

 
 

  
 

   
 

     
 

 
    

   
   

   
 

 
   

     
     

    
  
   

  
  

  
 

  
   

  
   

Payment. Provided Artist faithfully performs its obligations contained in this 
Agreement, the City shall pay Artist a total amount not to exceed three hundred 
eighty thousand dollars ($380,000) ("Payment"), which shall constitute full 
compensation for all services performed (including any approved services 
provided prior to the Effective Date) and materials furnished by Artist under this 
Agreement, including Artist's fee. Artist shall invoice the City for the Payment in 
accordance with Article 3.2 of this Agreement. The Payment may be increased 
with the prior approval of the City to cover contingencies in accordance with 
Article 3.5. 

5. Article 3.2 of the Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Method and Schedule of Payment. Artist shall invoice the City for the Payment in 
accordance with the following schedule. Each installment shall be paid after 
receipt of the applicable certifications or documentation described below, which 
shall be in a form acceptable to the City in its reasonable discretion. 

A. Artist shall invoice the City for Ninety Five Thousand dollars ($95,000) 
within thirty (30) days after the date of the First Amendment, and the City 
shall pay such invoice within twenty (20) business days after receipt 
(provided Artist is in compliance with the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement). This amount is intended to cover completion of the final 
design. 

B. Artist shall invoice the City for One Hundred Ninety Thousand dollars 
($190,000) of the Payment, and the City shall pay such invoice within 
twenty (20) business days after receipt, provided the Artist is in 
compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and has 
submitted construction drawings that have been approved by the City. 

C. Within twenty (20) business days after the final Punch List (as defined 
herein) is created in accordance with Article 4.6 (or, if the City determines 
that no Punch List is needed, within 20 business days after Substantial 
Completion is reached), the City will make payment of the remaining 
balance of the Payment that includes all contingency payments authorized 
pursuant to Article 3.5 of this Agreement, less an amount equal to 150 
percent of the estimated cost to complete all items on the Punch List. Such 
payment may be adjusted for work that is incomplete, not in accordance 
with the requirements of this Agreement, the subject of a good faith 
dispute made in writing pursuant to this Agreement, or the subject of a 
claim brought pursuant to section 255.05, Florida Statutes. Upon Final 
Completion (as defined herein), the City will make payment for the 
completed Artwork, including any payments withheld to date. Such 
payment shall be adjusted for work that is incomplete, or not in 

2 



 

 
 

 
   

 
 
 

   
 

   
 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

     
    

 
   

  
   

  
 

  
   

 
  

   
 

   
 

    
 

 
   

 
 
 

  
 

accordance with the requirements of this Agreement, or the subject of a 
good faith dispute made in writing pursuant to this Agreement. 

6. Article 3.4 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Travel and Other Expenses. Travel and other expenses will not be reimbursed 
except as provided in this Agreement. Artist's sole compensation shall be the 
Payment as described in this ARTICLE 3. 

7. Article 3.5 is hereby added to the Agreement to read as follows: 

Contingency. In addition to the Payment, the City may authorize up to an 
additional $38,000 in contingency payments to reimburse Artist for items that 
include, but are not limited to: items inadvertently omitted during the estimating 
and bidding process, schedule recovery costs associated with weather and other 
causes of delay, additional costs incurred due to the withdrawal or disqualification 
of a subcontractor bid that the Artist had relied upon prior to execution of a 
written subcontract, costs associated with subcontractor default, cost increases 
due to unanticipated local labor and material market conditions, selective 
overtime, or the like. Any contingency payments authorized by the City will not 
become due until after Substantial Completion. To utilize the contingency, Artist 
must provide the City with a written request for contingency funds, including 
supporting documentation. Any cost escalation beyond the Payment and this 
$38,000 of contingency will be the Artist’s responsibility. In no event will the 
City authorize contingency payments for (i) costs arising from Artist’s failure to 
comply with applicable Laws, (ii) legal costs of any nature, or (iii) costs due to 
the negligence of, or failure to fulfill a specific responsibility of this Agreement 
(and associated damages therewith) by Artist or Artist’s suppliers, or anyone 
directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may 
be liable. All Public Construction Bonds and riders thereto must be approved by 
the City Attorney’s Office. 

8. Article 4.1 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Time of Performance Described. All services by Artist shall be completed 
pursuant to this Agreement. Artist agrees to be available to begin this project 
immediately on the Effective Date. Artist shall reach Substantial Completion of 
the Artwork no later than October 4, 2024.  

9. Article 4.6 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Substantial Completion. When Artist believes the Artwork has reached 
Substantial Completion, Artist shall request the City to schedule an inspection of 
the Artwork. Upon receipt of the request, the City will (i) perform the inspection 
and, provided the City agrees that the Artwork has reached Substantial 
Completion, (ii) within thirty (30) calendar days after the Artwork has reached 

3 



 

    
  

 
 

   
  

   
    

  
   

 
   

 
  

 
  
      

   
  

 
  

 
 

  
 

   
 

 
  

  
 

  
 

  
  

 
     

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
   

Substantial Completion, develop a list of items (if any) required to render the 
Artwork complete, satisfactory, and acceptable, including the estimated cost to 
complete each item on the list (hereinafter, “Punch List”). The estimated cost to 
complete each item on the Punch List will be determined by mutual agreement 
between the City and Artist or, if no agreement is reached, by decision of the City. 
Within five (5) calendar days after the City finishes developing and reviewing the 
Punch List, the City will deliver it to the Artist. Upon receipt of the Punch List 
from the City, the Artist shall complete all items on the Punch List within thirty 
(30) calendar days after the City submits the Punch List to Artist unless a longer 
period of time is identified in the Punch List. When Artist believes that it has 
satisfactorily completed all items on the Punch List, Artist shall so notify the City 
to review the completed Artwork.  

10. Article 4.7 is hereby added to the Agreement to read as follows: 

Final Completion. For the purposes of this Agreement, Final Completion means 
the status of completion of the Artwork in which all Punch List items (if any) have been 
completed to the satisfaction of the City, and the Artist has provided the following 
documentation to the City: 

A. Photos and documentation of completed fabrication of the Artwork and 
evidence that all required permits have been obtained; 

B. A written bill of sale conveying title of the Artwork to the City; 

C. Written instructions for the care, maintenance, preservation and handling 
of the Artwork pursuant to this Agreement; 

D. A sworn statement of no liens, claims or other encumbrances for the 
Artwork pursuant to this Agreement; 

E. A written warranty for the Artwork pursuant to this Agreement; and 

F. Written assignment of any and all warranties for materials used or labor 
performed by subcontractors or other persons for the Artwork. 

11. Article 8.4 is hereby added to the Agreement to read as follows: 

Artist shall furnish a public construction bond (and, as applicable, any riders 
thereto) for the Artwork pursuant to this Agreement (“Public Construction 
Bond”), which Public Construction Bond must be in the form provided by the 
City and must be approved by the City Attorney’s Office. The Public 
Construction Bond must be executed by a surety company duly authorized to do 
business in the State of Florida. The amount of the Public Construction Bond 
must be equal to the full amount of the Payment plus contingency (i.e., $418,000 
total) as security for the faithful performance of this Agreement and as security 

4 



 
 

  
 
 

   
 

  
 

 
 

 
   

 
 
 

  
 
 

for the payment by the Artist of all persons performing this Agreement. In lieu of 
the Public Construction Bond, the Artist may furnish to the City an alternative 
form of security in the form of cash, money order, certified check, cashier’s 
check, or a security of a type listed in Chapter 625, Part II, of the Florida Statutes 
and acceptable to the City Attorney. Any such alternative form of security is 
subject to the same conditions as those applicable to the Public Construction Bond 
required by this Agreement and Chapter 255 of the Florida Statutes. Alternative 
forms of security will be returned to the Artist not later than thirty (30) calendar 
days following the expiration of the guarantee period. The Public Construction 
Bond must remain in effect for at least one year beyond the date of Final 
Completion. 

12. Any and all provisions of the Agreement not specifically amended by this First 
Amendment shall remain in full force and effect. 

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 

5 



 

 
      

  
 

  

 
 

 
  

 
 

  
  

 

  
 

                   
      
      

    
                         

                             
                

 

 
  

 
 
  
  

} t 
____________________________ 

_____________________________________ 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Artist and the City have caused this First Amendment to be 
executed by their duly authorized representatives on the date first above written. 

CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG, FLORIDA 
By:______________________________ 
Print: ____________________________
Title: ____________________________
Address:  P. O. Box 2842 
St. Petersburg, FL 33731 

ATTEST: 

_________________________ (SEAL) 

City Clerk 

VOLKAN ALKANOGLU DESIGN LLC: 

Sign: 
Print: Volkan Alkanoglu, Principal 
Address: 135 NW 9th Ave, Unit 814, Portland, OR 97209 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND CONTENT: 

City Attorney (designee) 
00695916 

6 



305 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Approving a resolution 

authorizing the Mayor or his designee to accept additional grant funds from the State of Florida 

Department of Health, Bureau of Childcare Food Programs (“Department”) in an amount not to 

exceed $14,625.96 as an additional reimbursement for the City of St. Petersburg 2023 Childcare 

Food Program for a total amount of $241,295.96; to execute a grant agreement and all other 

documents necessary to effectuate this transaction; and providing an effective date. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CB-11

CB-11



ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 

Consent Agenda 

Meeting of November 2, 2023 

TO: City Council Chair & Members of City Council 

SUBJECT: 

Approving a resolution authorizing the Mayor or his designee to accept additional grant 

funds from the State of Florida Department of Health, Bureau of Childcare Food 

Programs (“Department”) in an amount not to exceed $14,625.96 as an additional 

reimbursement for the City of St. Petersburg 2023 Childcare Food Program for a total 

amount of $241,295.96; to execute a grant agreement and all other documents necessary 

to effectuate this transaction; and providing an effective date. 

EXPLANATION: 

The Department awarded the City funding to provide nutritious snacks to be given to 

any child registered in a recreation facility throughout the school year. The grant will 

reimburse the City for snacks at 11 sites in St. Petersburg. The program is funded by the 

Florida Department of Health, Bureau of Childcare Food Programs. The payments under 

the grant are made on a reimbursement basis based on how many snacks are served at 

the 11 sites. In the Fiscal Year of 2023, the Parks and Recreation Department served 

additional snacks to participants resulting in an extra $14,625.96 in grant reimbursement 

revenue due to the City from the Department. The additional grant reimbursement 

revenue increases the total amount awarded to the City of St. Petersburg to $241,295.96.  

COST/FUNDING/ASSESSMENT INFORMATION: 

Revenues of $14,625.96 will be received from the Department and deposited into the 

General Fund (0001). This amount will be added to the previously approved supplement 

allocation of $226,670 and will cover the costs for additional snacks that were served. 

ATTACHMENTS: Resolution 

 
APPROVALS: 

 

Administration: ___________________  Budget: __________________ 



1  

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-   
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR HIS 

DESIGNEE TO ACCEPT ADDITIONAL GRANT FUNDS 

FROM THE STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 

HEALTH, BUREAU OF CHILDCARE FOOD PROGRAMS 

(“DEPARTMENT”) IN THE AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 

$14,625.96 AS AN ADDITONAL REIMBURSEMENT FOR THE 

CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG 2023 CHILDCARE FOOD 

PROGRAM FOR A TOTAL AMOUNT OF $241,295.96 AND 

TO EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO 

EFFECTUATE THIS TRANSACTION; AND PROVIDING AN 

EFFECTIVE DATE 
 

 

 

WHEREAS, the City of St. Petersburg’s youth are an important and valuable 

resource; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of St. Petersburg Parks & Recreation Department applied for 

and was awarded a grant from the Department in the original amount of $226,670 to provide 

funding for nutritional snacks for middle and elementary school-aged children at City recreation 

centers; and  

 

WHEREAS, during the FY23 Childcare Food Program, the Parks and Recreation 

Department increased the number of snacks served to youth in the community that resulted in 

additional grant funds to be awarded from the Department in the amount of $14,625.96; and 

 

WHEREAS, the amended amount of grant funds to be reimbursed by the 

Department for the FY23 Childcare Food Program is not to exceed $241,295.96. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. 

Petersburg, Florida, that the Mayor or his designee is authorized to accept additional grant funds 

from the State of Florida Department of Health, Bureau of Childcare Food Programs 

(“Department”) in the amount of $14,625.96 for the City’s 2023 Childcare Food Program for a 

total amount of $241,295.96 and to execute all documents necessary to effectuate this 

transaction. 



2  

This resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

 
LEGAL: DEPARTMENT: 

 

      
 

    

 

00705510 

 
 

 

 



310 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Approval of Co-Sponsored 

Event Applications and Associated Resolutions 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CB-12

CB-12



ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL
Consent Agenda

Meeting of November 2, 2023

TO: City Council Chair and Members of City Council

FROM: Lynn Gordon, Parks and Recreation Manager

SUBJECT: Approval of Co-Sponsored Event Applications and Associated Resolutions
______________________________________________________________________________

EXPLANATION: City Council is being requested to approve Co-Sponsored Events Applications 
for FY2024. This approval is requested through the Consent Agenda pursuant to Resolution 2023-
143. City Council is also being requested to approve liquor requests for events taking place in 
FY2024 pursuant to Section 21-38(c) of the City Code. The applications have been reviewed by 
the Parks & Recreation Department’s Co-Sponsored Events Coordinator and staff.

COST/FUNDING/ASSESSMENT INFORMATION: There is no financial impact to the city. 
Co-sponsored events are billed for use of city equipment and staff time from the various supporting
departments.

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends City Council approve the resolution approving 20
events for FY2024, as well as the 10 resolutions for liquor requests.

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolutions
Spreadsheet of basic information for each application
Application packets for each event



Page 1 of 2 

Resolution No. 2023-________ 
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING EVENTS FOR  
CO-SPONSORSHIP BY THE CITY IN NAME ONLY FOR 
FY2024; AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE 
TO EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO 
EFFECTUATE THIS RESOLUTION; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
  WHEREAS, various entities have requested that the City co-sponsor their 
recreation and leisure events in name only for FY2024; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the City’s Co-Sponsored Events Coordinator has reviewed the 
requests in accordance with City Council Resolution No. 23-143 and has recommendations as to 
which events should be approved for co-sponsorship by the City in name only; and 
 
  WHEREAS, City Council has reviewed the recommendations and has determined 
which of these events to approve for co-sponsorship by the City in name only. 
 
  NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
St. Petersburg, Florida, that the following events for co-sponsorship by the City in name only are 
approved for FY2024: 
 
FY2024 
 

Event Name Non Profit Organization For-Profit Entity Event Dates 

St. Pete Tacos and Tequila FRIENDS OF THE PIER, INC. EVENT TREE LLC 05/11/24  
05/12/24 

St Pete Pride Month Kick Off ST. PETE PRIDE, INC.   06/01/24 

St Pete Pride LGBTQ+ Youth and 
Family Day ST. PETE PRIDE, INC.   06/08/24 

St Pete Pride Weekend ST. PETE PRIDE, INC.   
06/21/24 
06/22/24 
06/23/24 

SuperHero Fun Walk HEMOPHILA FOUNDATION OF 
GREATER FLORIDA, INC.   09/21/24 

Derby at the Pier 13 UGLY MEN FOUNDATION, INC.   05/04/24 

Spring Fest & Easter Egg Hunt FRIENDS OF THE PIER, INC. PIER EVENTS, LLC 03/30/24 

The Fourth FRIENDS OF THE PIER, INC. PIER EVENTS, LLC 07/04/24 

St. Pete Italian Fest TBD LUXE FASHION GROUP 
LLC 04/27/24 

"Good Stock Out of St. Pete" - 
Juneteenth Celebration T.A.B.L.E.S OF PURPOSE, INC.   06/16/24 



 

Page 2 of 2 

Event Name Non Profit Organization For-Profit Entity Event Dates 

PB&J Run DIRECTIONS FOR MENTAL HEALTH, 
INC.   09/21/24 

St. Pete Pier Run JUMP FOR KIDS, INC. ENDORFUN SPORTS, LLC. 07/03/24  
07/04/24 

Tampa Bay Caribbean Carnival 
TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO AMERICAN 
ASSOCIATION OF CENTRAL FLORIDA, 
INC. 

  07/13/24  
07/14/24 

Heroes Memorial 5K/10K Run HEROES OF THE ST. PETE POLICE 
AND FIRE RESCURE, INC   03/24/24 

St. Pete Pier LIVE - Oliver Tree FRIENDS OF THE PIER, INC. PIER EVENTS, LLC 12/02/23 

Mini Country Concert Series FRIENDS OF THE PIER, INC. PIER EVENTS, LLC 
05/31/24  
06/01/24 
06/02/24 

St. Pete Pier LIVE - Atmosphere & 
RJD2 FRIENDS OF THE PIER, INC. PIER EVENTS, LLC 01/06/24 

Saturday Morning Summer Market ST. PETERSBURG SATURDAY 
MORNING MARKET, INC.   

Saturdays in 
June - August 
2024 

Running For All Children JOHNS HOPKINS ALL CHILDREN'S 
HOSPITAL, INC.   09/28/24 

Baptisms at the Pier MISSION CITY CHURCH, INC.   05/19/24 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the approval of the events to be presented by 

For-Profit Entities is contingent upon the For-Profit Entities providing the City with evidence of 
partnership with a non-profit organization no later than forty-five (45) days prior to the first day 
of each For-Profit Entity’s co-sponsored event. 
 
  BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or his designee is authorized to 
execute all documents necessary to effectuate this Resolution. 
 
  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 
  
LEGAL:                                                       DEPARTMENT: __________________________ 
00704588 



Resolution No. 2023- _______ 
 

A RESOLUTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY CODE 
SECTION 21-38(C) EXEMPTING ST. PETE TACOS AND 
TEQUILA (VINOY PARK) FROM THE BEER AND WINE 
ONLY RESTRICTIONS IN CITY CODE SECTION 21-38(C) 
UPON THE ISSUANCE OF A PERMIT FOR ALCOHOLIC 
BEVERAGES TO BE SOLD, SERVED, OR DISPENSED AT 
THE VENUE (FOR ON PREMISES CONSUMPTION ONLY) 
DURING THE TIMES AND DATES OF THE EVENT AS SET 
FORTH HEREIN; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 

 WHEREAS, St. Pete Tacos and Tequila has been approved as a co-sponsored event; 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, the promoter of the event has requested, in accordance with Section 
21-38(c) of the City Code, that it be exempt from the beer and wine only restrictions set forth in 
City Code Section 21-38(c) on selling, serving, or dispensing alcoholic beverages upon the 
issuance of a permit for alcoholic beverages to be sold, served, or dispensed at the venue during 
the event (for on premises consumption only); and  
 
  WHEREAS, St. Pete Tacos and Tequila will take place on Saturday, May 11, 2024, 
between the hours of 12:00 pm – 8:30 pm, and Sunday, May 12, 2024, between the hours of 1:00 
pm – 8:30 pm in Vinoy Park. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. 
Petersburg, Florida that St. Pete Tacos and Tequila (Vinoy Park) is exempt from the beer and wine 
only restrictions in City Code Section 21-38(c) upon the issuance of a permit for alcoholic 
beverages to be sold, served, or dispensed at the venue (for on premises consumption only) during 
the times and dates of the event as set forth herein.  
 
 This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 
LEGAL:                                                         DEPARTMENT:_____________________________          
00704583 



Resolution No. 2023- _______ 
 

A RESOLUTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY CODE 
SECTION 21-38(C) EXEMPTING ST. PETE PRIDE LGBTQ+ 
YOUTH AND FAMILY DAY (NORTH STRAUB PARK) FROM 
THE BEER AND WINE ONLY RESTRICTIONS IN CITY CODE 
SECTION 21-38(C) UPON THE ISSUANCE OF A PERMIT FOR 
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES TO BE SOLD, SERVED, OR 
DISPENSED AT THE VENUE (FOR ON PREMISES 
CONSUMPTION ONLY) DURING THE TIMES AND DATES 
OF THE EVENT AS SET FORTH HEREIN; AND PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 

 WHEREAS, St Pete Pride LGBTQ+ Youth and Family Day has been approved as a 
co-sponsored event; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the promoter of the event has requested, in accordance with Section 
21-38(c) of the City Code, that it be exempt from the beer and wine only restrictions set forth in 
City Code Section 21-38(c) on selling, serving, or dispensing alcoholic beverages upon the 
issuance of a permit for alcoholic beverages to be sold, served, or dispensed at the venue during 
the event (for on premises consumption only); and  
 
  WHEREAS, St Pete Pride LGBTQ+ Youth and Family Day will take place on 
Saturday, June 8, 2024, between the hours of 10:00 am – 3:00 pm in North Straub Park. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. 
Petersburg, Florida that St Pete Pride LGBTQ+ Youth and Family Day (North Straub Park) is 
exempt from the beer and wine only restrictions in City Code Section 21-38(c) upon the issuance 
of a permit for alcoholic beverages to be sold, served, or dispensed at the venue (for on premises 
consumption only) during the times and dates of the event as set forth herein.  
 
 This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 
LEGAL:                                                         DEPARTMENT:_____________________________          
00704581 



Resolution No. 2023- _______ 
 

A RESOLUTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY CODE 
SECTION 21-38(C) EXEMPTING ST. PETE PRIDE WEEKEND 
(VINOY PARK, NORTH AND SOUTH STRAUB PARKS) 
FROM THE BEER AND WINE ONLY RESTRICTIONS IN CITY 
CODE SECTION 21-38(C) UPON THE ISSUANCE OF A 
PERMIT FOR ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES TO BE SOLD, 
SERVED, OR DISPENSED AT THE VENUE (FOR ON 
PREMISES CONSUMPTION ONLY) DURING THE TIMES 
AND DATES OF THE EVENT AS SET FORTH HEREIN; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 

 WHEREAS, St. Pete Pride Weekend has been approved as a co-sponsored event; 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, the promoter of the event has requested, in accordance with Section 
21-38(c) of the City Code, that it be exempt from the beer and wine only restrictions set forth in 
City Code Section 21-38(c) on selling, serving, or dispensing alcoholic beverages upon the 
issuance of a permit for alcoholic beverages to be sold, served, or dispensed at the venue during 
the event (for on premises consumption only); and  
 
  WHEREAS, St. Pete Pride Weekend will take place on Friday, June 21, 2024, and 
Saturday, June 22, 2024, between the hours of 12:00 pm – 10:00 pm in Vinoy Park, North and 
South Straub Parks. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. 
Petersburg, Florida that St. Pete Pride Weekend (Vinoy Park, North, and South Straub Parks) is 
exempt from the beer and wine only restrictions in City Code Section 21-38(c) upon the issuance 
of a permit for alcoholic beverages to be sold, served, or dispensed at the venue (for on premises 
consumption only) during the times and dates of the event as set forth herein.  
 
 This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 
LEGAL:                                                         DEPARTMENT:_____________________________          
00704582 



Resolution No. 2023- _______ 
 

A RESOLUTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY CODE 
SECTION 21-38(D) EXEMPTING DERBY AT THE PIER (SPA 
BEACH PARK) FROM THE BEER AND WINE ONLY 
RESTRICTIONS IN CITY CODE SECTION 21-38(D) UPON 
THE ISSUANCE OF A PERMIT FOR ALCOHOLIC 
BEVERAGES TO BE SOLD, SERVED, OR DISPENSED AT 
THE VENUE (FOR ON PREMISES CONSUMPTION ONLY) 
DURING THE TIMES AND DATES OF THE EVENT AS SET 
FORTH HEREIN; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 

 WHEREAS, Derby at the Pier has been approved as a co-sponsored event; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the promoter of the event has requested, in accordance with Section 
21-38(d) of the City Code, that it be exempt from the beer and wine only restrictions set forth in 
City Code Section 21-38(d) on selling, serving, or dispensing alcoholic beverages upon the 
issuance of a permit for alcoholic beverages to be sold, served, or dispensed at the venue during 
the event (for on premises consumption only); and  
 
  WHEREAS, Derby at the Pier will take place on Saturday, May 4, 2024, between 
the hours of 3:00 pm – 9:00 pm in Spa Beach Park. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. 
Petersburg, Florida that Derby at the Pier (Spa Beach Park) is exempt from the beer and wine only 
restrictions in City Code Section 21-38(d) upon the issuance of a permit for alcoholic beverages to 
be sold, served, or dispensed at the venue (for on premises consumption only) during the times and 
dates of the event as set forth herein.  
 
 This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 
LEGAL:                                                          DEPARTMENT:_____________________________          
00704578 



Resolution No. 2023- _______ 
 

A RESOLUTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY CODE 
SECTION 21-38(D) EXEMPTING SPRING FEST AND EASTER 
EGG HUNT (SPA BEACH PARK) FROM THE BEER AND 
WINE ONLY RESTRICTIONS IN CITY CODE SECTION 21-
38(D) UPON THE ISSUANCE OF A PERMIT FOR ALCOHOLIC 
BEVERAGES TO BE SOLD, SERVED, OR DISPENSED AT 
THE VENUE (FOR ON PREMISES CONSUMPTION ONLY) 
DURING THE TIMES AND DATES OF THE EVENT AS SET 
FORTH HEREIN; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 

 WHEREAS, Spring Fest & Easter Egg Hunt has been approved as a co-sponsored 
event; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the promoter of the event has requested, in accordance with Section 
21-38(d) of the City Code, that it be exempt from the beer and wine only restrictions set forth in 
City Code Section 21-38(d) on selling, serving, or dispensing alcoholic beverages upon the 
issuance of a permit for alcoholic beverages to be sold, served, or dispensed at the venue during 
the event (for on premises consumption only); and  
 
  WHEREAS, Spring Fest & Easter Egg Hunt will take place on Saturday, March 30, 
2024, between the hours of 11:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. in Spa Beach Park. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. 
Petersburg, Florida that Spring Fest & Easter Egg Hunt (Spa Beach Park) is exempt from the beer 
and wine only restrictions in City Code Section 21-38(d) upon the issuance of a permit for alcoholic 
beverages to be sold, served, or dispensed at the venue (for on premises consumption only) during 
the times and dates of the event as set forth herein.  
 
 This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 
LEGAL:                                                          DEPARTMENT:_____________________________          
00704580 



Resolution No. 2023- _______ 
 

A RESOLUTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY CODE 
SECTION 21-38(D) EXEMPTING THE FOURTH (SPA BEACH 
PARK) FROM THE BEER AND WINE ONLY RESTRICTIONS 
IN CITY CODE SECTION 21-38(D) UPON THE ISSUANCE OF 
A PERMIT FOR ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES TO BE SOLD, 
SERVED, OR DISPENSED AT THE VENUE (FOR ON 
PREMISES CONSUMPTION ONLY) DURING THE TIMES 
AND DATES OF THE EVENT AS SET FORTH HEREIN; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 

 WHEREAS, The Fourth has been approved as a co-sponsored event; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the promoter of the event has requested, in accordance with Section 
21-38(d) of the City Code, that it be exempt from the beer and wine only restrictions set forth in 
City Code Section 21-38(d) on selling, serving, or dispensing alcoholic beverages upon the 
issuance of a permit for alcoholic beverages to be sold, served, or dispensed at the venue during 
the event (for on premises consumption only); and  
 
  WHEREAS, The Fourth will take place on Thursday, July 4, 2024, between the 
hours of 4:00 pm – 10:00 pm in Spa Beach Park. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. 
Petersburg, Florida that The Fourth (Spa Beach Park) is exempt from the beer and wine only 
restrictions in City Code Section 21-38(d) upon the issuance of a permit for alcoholic beverages to 
be sold, served, or dispensed at the venue (for on premises consumption only) during the times and 
dates of the event as set forth herein.  
 
 This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 
LEGAL:                                                          DEPARTMENT:_____________________________          
00704587 



Resolution No. 2023- _______ 
 

A RESOLUTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY CODE 
SECTION 21-38(D) EXEMPTING ST. PETE PIER RUN (SPA 
BEACH PARK) FROM THE BEER AND WINE ONLY 
RESTRICTIONS IN CITY CODE SECTION 21-38(D) UPON 
THE ISSUANCE OF A PERMIT FOR ALCOHOLIC 
BEVERAGES TO BE SOLD, SERVED, OR DISPENSED AT 
THE VENUE (FOR ON PREMISES CONSUMPTION ONLY) 
DURING THE TIMES AND DATES OF THE EVENT AS SET 
FORTH HEREIN; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 

 WHEREAS, St. Pete Pier Run has been approved as a co-sponsored event; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the promoter of the event has requested, in accordance with Section 
21-38(d) of the City Code, that it be exempt from the beer and wine only restrictions set forth in 
City Code Section 21-38(d) on selling, serving, or dispensing alcoholic beverages upon the 
issuance of a permit for alcoholic beverages to be sold, served, or dispensed at the venue during 
the event (for on premises consumption only); and  
 
  WHEREAS, St. Pete Pier Run will take place on Wednesday, July 3, 2024, between 
the hours of 12:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m. and Thursday, July 4, 2024, between the hours of 6:00 a.m. – 
12:00 p.m. in Spa Beach Park. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. 
Petersburg, Florida that St. Pete Pier Run (Spa Beach Park) is exempt from the beer and wine only 
restrictions in City Code Section 21-38(d) upon the issuance of a permit for alcoholic beverages to 
be sold, served, or dispensed at the venue (for on premises consumption only) during the times and 
dates of the event as set forth herein.  
 
 This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 
LEGAL:                                                          DEPARTMENT:_____________________________          
00704586 



Resolution No. 2023- _______ 
 

A RESOLUTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY CODE 
SECTION 21-38(D) EXEMPTING ST. PETE PIER LIVE – 
OLIVER TREE (SPA BEACH PARK) FROM THE BEER AND 
WINE ONLY RESTRICTIONS IN CITY CODE SECTION 21-
38(D) UPON THE ISSUANCE OF A PERMIT FOR ALCOHOLIC 
BEVERAGES TO BE SOLD, SERVED, OR DISPENSED AT 
THE VENUE (FOR ON PREMISES CONSUMPTION ONLY) 
DURING THE TIMES AND DATES OF THE EVENT AS SET 
FORTH HEREIN; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 

 WHEREAS, St. Pete Pier LIVE - Oliver Tree has been approved as a co-sponsored 
event; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the promoter of the event has requested, in accordance with Section 
21-38(d) of the City Code, that it be exempt from the beer and wine only restrictions set forth in 
City Code Section 21-38(d) on selling, serving, or dispensing alcoholic beverages upon the 
issuance of a permit for alcoholic beverages to be sold, served, or dispensed at the venue during 
the event (for on premises consumption only); and  
 
  WHEREAS, St. Pete Pier LIVE - Oliver Tree will take place on Saturday, 
December 2, 2024, between the hours of 4:00 p.m. and 10:00 p.m. in Spa Beach Park. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. 
Petersburg, Florida that St. Pete Pier LIVE – Oliver Tree (Spa Beach Park) is exempt from the beer 
and wine only restrictions in City Code Section 21-38(d) upon the issuance of a permit for alcoholic 
beverages to be sold, served, or dispensed at the venue (for on premises consumption only) during 
the times and dates of the event as set forth herein.  
 
 This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 
LEGAL:                                                          DEPARTMENT:_____________________________          
00704585 



Resolution No. 2023- _______ 
 

A RESOLUTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY CODE 
SECTION 21-38(D) EXEMPTING MINI COUNTRY CONCERT 
SERIES (SPA BEACH PARK) FROM THE BEER AND WINE 
ONLY RESTRICTIONS IN CITY CODE SECTION 21-38(D) 
UPON THE ISSUANCE OF A PERMIT FOR ALCOHOLIC 
BEVERAGES TO BE SOLD, SERVED, OR DISPENSED AT 
THE VENUE (FOR ON PREMISES CONSUMPTION ONLY) 
DURING THE TIMES AND DATES OF THE EVENT AS SET 
FORTH HEREIN; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 

 WHEREAS, Mini Country Concert Series has been approved as a co-sponsored 
event; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the promoter of the event has requested, in accordance with Section 
21-38(d) of the City Code, that it be exempt from the beer and wine only restrictions set forth in 
City Code Section 21-38(d) on selling, serving, or dispensing alcoholic beverages upon the 
issuance of a permit for alcoholic beverages to be sold, served, or dispensed at the venue during 
the event (for on premises consumption only); and  
 
  WHEREAS, Mini Country Concert Series will take place on Friday, May 30, 2024, 
Saturday, May 31, 2024, and Sunday, June 1, 2024, between the hours of 4:00 pm – 10:00 pm in 
Spa Beach Park. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. 
Petersburg, Florida that Mini Country Concert Series (Spa Beach Park) is exempt from the beer 
and wine only restrictions in City Code Section 21-38(d) upon the issuance of a permit for alcoholic 
beverages to be sold, served, or dispensed at the venue (for on premises consumption only) during 
the times and dates of the event as set forth herein.  
 
 This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 
LEGAL:                                                          DEPARTMENT:_____________________________          
00704579 



Resolution No. 2023- _______ 
 

A RESOLUTION IN ACCORDANCE WITH CITY CODE 
SECTION 21-38(D) EXEMPTING ST. PETE PIER LIVE – 
ATMOSPHERE AND RJD2 (SPA BEACH PARK) FROM THE 
BEER AND WINE ONLY RESTRICTIONS IN CITY CODE 
SECTION 21-38(D) UPON THE ISSUANCE OF A PERMIT FOR 
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES TO BE SOLD, SERVED, OR 
DISPENSED AT THE VENUE (FOR ON PREMISES 
CONSUMPTION ONLY) DURING THE TIMES AND DATES 
OF THE EVENT AS SET FORTH HEREIN; AND PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 

 WHEREAS, St. Pete Pier LIVE - Atmosphere & RJD2 has been approved as a co-
sponsored event; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the promoter of the event has requested, in accordance with Section 
21-38(d) of the City Code, that it be exempt from the beer and wine only restrictions set forth in 
City Code Section 21-38(d) on selling, serving, or dispensing alcoholic beverages upon the 
issuance of a permit for alcoholic beverages to be sold, served, or dispensed at the venue during 
the event (for on premises consumption only); and  
 
  WHEREAS, St. Pete Pier LIVE - Atmosphere & RJD2 will take place on Saturday, 
January 6, 2024, between the hours of 4:00 p.m. and 10:00 p.m. in Spa Beach Park. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. 
Petersburg, Florida that St. Pete Pier LIVE - Atmosphere & RJD2 (Spa Beach Park) is exempt 
from the beer and wine only restrictions in City Code Section 21-38(d) upon the issuance of a 
permit for alcoholic beverages to be sold, served, or dispensed at the venue (for on premises 
consumption only) during the times and dates of the event as set forth herein.  
 
 This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 
LEGAL:                                                          DEPARTMENT:_____________________________          
00704584 



Event 
#

Event Name Non Profit Organization Profit Organization Event Date Times
Liquor 
Letter

Event Location Notes

68 St. Pete Tacos and Tequila FRIENDS OF THE PIER, INC. EVENT TREE LLC
05/11/24  
50/12/24

12pm - 1:30pm 
1pm - 8:30pm

YES Vinoy Park

69 St Pete Pride Month Kick Off ST. PETE PRIDE, INC. 06/01/24 7pm - 10pm NO Grand Central District

70
St Pete Pride LGBTQ+ Youth and 
Family Day

ST. PETE PRIDE, INC. 06/08/24 10am -3 pm YES North Straub Park

71 St Pete Pride Weekend ST. PETE PRIDE, INC.
06/21/24  
06/22/24 
06/23/24

5pm-10pm 2pm-
10pm 12pm-5pm

YES
Downtown Waterfront 
Parks

72 Super Hero Fun Walk
HEMOPHILA FOUNDATION OF 
GREATER FLORIDA, INC.

09/21/24 6am - 12pm NO Vinoy Park

73 Derby at the Pier 13 UGLY MEN FOUNDATION, INC. 05/04/24 3pm - 9pm YES Spa Beach Park

74 Spring Fest & Easter Egg Hunt FRIENDS OF THE PIER, INC. PIER EVENTS, LLC 03/30/24 11am - 6pm YES Spa Beach Park

75 The Fourth FRIENDS OF THE PIER, INC. PIER EVENTS, LLC 07/04/24 4pm - 10pm YES Spa Beach Park

76 St. Pete Italian Fest TBD
LUXE FASHION GROUP 
LLC

04/27/24 10am - 4pm NO Spa Beach Park New Event

77
"Good Stock Out of St. Pete" - 
Juneteenth Celebration

T.A.B.L.E.S OF PURPOSE, INC. 06/16/24 11am - 7pm NO Williams Park New Event

78 PB&J Run
DIRECTIONS FOR MENTAL HEALTH, 
INC.

09/21/24 6am - 11am NO Albert Whitted Park

79 St. Pete Pier Run JUMP FOR KIDS, INC.
ENDORFUN SPORTS, 
LLC.

07/03/24  
07/04/24

12pm - 8pm  6am - 
12pm

YES Spa Beach Park

80 Tampa Bay Caribbean Carnival
TRINIDAD AND TOBAGO AMERICAN 
ASSOCIATION OF CENTRAL FLORIDA, 
INC.

07/13/24  
07/14/24

3pm - 11pm 1pm - 
11pm

NO Albert Whitted Park New Event

81 Heroes Memorial 5K/10K Run
HEROES OF THE ST. PETE POLICE 
AND FIRE RESCURE, INC

03/24/24 9am - 12pm NO Central & 7th St. S.

82 St. Pete Pier LIVE - Oliver Tree FRIENDS OF THE PIER, INC. PIER EVENTS, LLC 12/02/23 4pm - 10pm YES Spa Beach Park New Event

84 Mini Country Concert Series FRIENDS OF THE PIER, INC. PIER EVENTS, LLC
05/31/24 
06/01/24 
06/02/24

4pm - 10pm 4pm - 
10pm 4pm - 10pm

YES Spa Beach Park New Event

85
St. Pete Pier LIVE - Atmosphere & 
RJD2

FRIENDS OF THE PIER, INC. PIER EVENTS, LLC 01/06/24 4pm - 10pm YES Spa Beach Park New Event

86 Saturday Morning Summer Market
ST. PETERSBURG SATURDAY 
MORNING MARKET, INC.

Saturdays in 
June - Aug

9am - 1pm NO Williams Park

87 Run For All Children
JOHNS HOPKINS ALL CHILDREN'S 
HOSPITAL, INC.

09/28/24 7am - 5pm NO
501 6th Ave S & Poynter 
Park

88 Baptisms at the Pier MISSION CITY CHURCH, INC. 05/19/24 4pm - 9pm NO Spa Bach Park New Event

City of St. Petersburg
Co-Sponsored Events Listing

FY2024



































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































582 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: A Resolution authorizing the 

Mayor or his designee to execute Task Order No. 21-04-FN/W(S) to the architect/engineering 

agreement dated July 15, 2021 between the City of St. Petersburg, Florida and Freese and Nichols, 

Inc. (“A/E”) for A/E to provide project management, data collection and review, site visits, a 

technical memorandum, and cost benefit analysis related to the SWWRF Climate Vulnerability 

Assessment Project in an amount not to exceed $137,978.89 (ECID Project No. 23153-100; Oracle 

No. 19677); and providing an effective date. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CB-14

CB-14



 

 
 

ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 
 

Consent Agenda 
 

Meeting of November 2, 2023 
 

 TO:          The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair and Members of City Council 
 

SUBJECT: A Resolution authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute Task Order No. 21-04-
FN/W(S) to the architect/engineering agreement dated July 15, 2021 between the City of St. Petersburg, 
Florida and Freese and Nichols, Inc. (“A/E”) for A/E to provide project management, data collection and 
review, site visits, a technical memorandum, and cost benefit analysis related to the SWWRF Climate 
Vulnerability Assessment Project in an amount not to exceed $137,978.89 (ECID Project No. 23153-100; 
Oracle No. 19677); and providing an effective date.  
 
EXPLANATION: The A/E will provide a Climate Vulnerability Assessment for the 20 MGD-rated 
Southwest Water Reclamation Facility (SWWRF) that will include evaluation of vulnerabilities and 
specific mitigations related to sea level rise (SLR) and storm surge on the SWWRF. The SWWRF is a 
coastal facility, approximately 6-ft above sea level, and due to its existing location SLR and storm surge 
could significantly impact the operation and long-term functionality of the facility. The implications of 
flooding impacts to the SWWRF include potential extensive risk to social stability, public health, and 
essential ecosystems. 
 
The purpose of these services is to provide a planning-level Technical Memorandum (TM) that will assess 
the vulnerability and impacts to existing SWWRF components to flooding and storm surge with multiple 
projected sea-level rise scenarios.  
 
Work will consist of identifying existing “as constructed” elevations from record drawings of the SWWRF, 
comparison of infrastructure elevations to sea-level rise and storm surge elevations, an in-depth analysis of 
multiple future SLR scenarios and associated impacts to existing facility components, identifying 
mitigation strategies and completing a cost-benefit analysis for the proposed mitigation measures. It is 
understood that the study will be used as a starting point to create an EPA Road to Resilience plan for the 
facility and the study will be used by the City to apply for available grant funding for resilience 
improvements recommended through the study at the facility. 
 
On July 15, 2021, the City of St. Petersburg, Florida and Freese and Nichols, Inc. (“A/E”) entered into an 
architect/engineering agreement for A/E to provide miscellaneous professional services for potable water, 
wastewater and reclaimed water projects. 

Task Order No. 21-04-FN/W(S) in the amount of $137,978.89 shall provide professional engineering 
services including but not limited to climate vulnerability assessment, adaptation and resiliency plans, and 
cost benefit analysis. Task Order includes a $7,500 allowance to be authorized if any unforeseen conditions 
are experienced while performing the work. 
 
Task Order No. 21-04-FN/W(S) includes the following phases and associated not to exceed costs 
respectively: 
 
 Project Management  $ 23,907.03  

 Data Collection/Review  $   8,572.98  



 

 
 

 Site Visit  $ 11,927.26  
 Technical Memorandum $ 68,768.60  
 Cost Benefit Analysis $ 17,303.02  
 Allowance  $   7,500.00      
 Total $137,978.89     
    

This SWWRF Climate Vulnerability Assessment will be used as a starting point to create an EPA Road to 
Resilience plan for the facility and the study will be used by the City to apply for available grant funding 
for resilience improvements recommended through the study at the facility. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Administration recommends authorizing the Mayor or his designee to 
execute Task Order No. 21-04-FN/W(S) to the architect/engineering agreement dated July 15, 2021 
between the City of St. Petersburg, Florida and Freese and Nichols, Inc. (“A/E”) for A/E to provide project 
management, data collection and review, site visits, a technical memorandum, and cost benefit analysis 
related to the SWWRF Climate Vulnerability Assessment Project in an amount not to exceed $137,978.89 
(ECID Project No. 23153-100; Oracle No. 19677); and providing an effective date. 
 
 
COST/FUNDING/ASSESSMENT INFORMATION: Funds have been previously appropriated in the 
Water Resources Capital Projects Fund (4003) WRF SW Climate Vulnerability Assessment FY23 Project 
(19677).  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Resolution  

    Task Order No. 21-04-FN/W(S) 
 

 



1 
 

RESOLUTION 2023-_____ 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR HIS 
DESIGNEE TO EXECUTE TASK ORDER NO. 21-04-FN/W(S) 
TO THE ARCHITECT/ENGINEERING AGREEMENT DATED 
JULY 15, 2021 BETWEEN THE CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG, 
FLORIDA AND FREESE AND NICHOLS, INC. (“A/E”) FOR 
A/E TO PROVIDE PROJECT MANAGEMENT, DATA 
COLLECTION AND REVIEW, SITE VISITS, A TECHNICAL 
MEMORANDUM, AND COST BENEFIT ANALYSIS 
RELATED TO THE SWWRF CLIMATE VULNERABILITY 
ASSESSMENT PROJECT IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 
$137,978.89 (ECID PROJECT NO. 23153-100; ORACLE NO. 
19677); AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City of St. Petersburg, Florida (“City”) and Freese and Nichols, Inc. 
(“A/E”) executed an architect/engineering agreement on July 15, 2021 for A/E to provide 
professional planning and study activities on a continuing basis related to miscellaneous Potable 
Water, Wastewater and Reclaimed Water Projects; and 

WHEREAS, Administration desires to issue Task Order No. 21-04-FN/W(S) for A/E to 
provide project management, data collection and review, site visits, a technical memorandum, and 
cost benefit analysis related to the SWWRF Climate Vulnerability Assessment Project in an 
amount not to exceed $137,978.89, which amount includes a $7,500 allowance. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. 
Petersburg, Florida that the Mayor or his designee is hereby authorized to execute Task Order No. 
21-04-FN/W(S) to the architect/engineering agreement dated July 15, 2021 between the City of 
St. Petersburg, Florida and Freese and Nichols, Inc. (“A/E”) for A/E to provide project 
management, data collection and review, site visits, a technical memorandum, and cost benefit 
analysis related to the SWWRF Climate Vulnerability Assessment Project in an amount not to 
exceed $137,978.89. 

This resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

LEGAL: DEPARTMENT: 

    
00705115 



MEMORANDUM 
 

  CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG 
 

Engineering and Capital Improvements Department 
 

 
DATE:  November 2, 2023 
 
TO:  The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair, and City Councilmembers 
 
FROM: Brejesh Prayman, P.E., Director 
  Engineering & Capital Improvements Department 
   
RE:  Consultant Selection Information  
  Firm:  Freese and Nichols, Inc. 
  Task Order No. 21-04-FN/W(S) in the amount of $137,978.89 
   
  
 
This memorandum is to provide information pursuant to City Council Policy and Procedures Manual, 
Chapter 3, Section I(F.) for agenda package information. 
 

1.  Summary of Reasons for Selection 
 
The project involves evaluation of vulnerabilities and specific mitigations related to sea level rise 
and storm surge on the Southwest Water Reclamation Facility (SWWRF). 
 
Freese and Nichols, Inc. has satisfactorily completed work under pervious task orders at SWWRF 
and is familiar with the City Standards. 
 
Freese and Nichols, Inc. has significant experience in the evaluation of climate vulnerability in 
other municipalities around the state of Florida. 
 
This is the fourth Task Order issued under the 2021 Master Agreement. 

 
 

2.  Transaction Report listing current work – See Attachment A 
 
 



Task Order NTP Authorized
No. Project No. Project Title Issued Amount

01 21078-111 Southwest Water Reclamation Facility Odor Assessment 10/01/21 132,816.23
Revision No. 1 (Allowance) 02/17/22 30,000.00

02 22102-111 SWWRF Influent Pump Station & Headworks Odor Control 08/05/22 39,465.85
Amendment No. 1 11/30/22 58,039.99
Revision No. 1 12/15/22 8,219.69
Amendment No. 2 09/05/23 260,669.06

03 23083-100 Lift Station 85 Site Improvements 04/06/23 139,092.18

04 23153-100 SWWRF Climate Vulnerability Assessment Pending

Total: 668,303.00

ATTACHMENT A

Transaction Report

A/E Agreement Effective - July 15, 2021
A/E Agreement Expiration - August 30, 2025

Freese & Nichols, Inc.
for

Miscellaneous Professional Services for Potable Water, Wastewater & Reclaimed Water Projects

Edited:  9/12/2023 Page 1 of 1



Task Order No. 21-04-FN/W(S) 
Page 1 of 7 

TASK ORDER NO. 21-04-FN/W(S) 
SWWRF CLIMATE VULNERABILITY ASSESSMENT 

POTABLE WATER, WASTEWATER AND RECLAIMED WATER PROJECTS  
CITY PROJECT NO. 23153-100 

 
This Task Order No. 21-04-FN/W(S) is made and entered into this ____ day of 
_______________, 2023, pursuant to the ARCHITECT/ENGINEERING AGREEMENT FOR 
MISCELLANEOUS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR CONSULTING SERVICES, POTABLE 
WATER, WASTEWATER AND RECLAIMED WATER PROJECTS dated July 15, 2021 
(“Agreement”) between Freese and Nichols, Inc. (“A/E”), and the City of St. Petersburg, Florida 
(“City”), and upon execution shall become a part of the Agreement. 
 
I. DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT 

 
The A/E will provide a Climate Vulnerability Assessment for the 20 MGD-rated Southwest 
Water Reclamation Facility (SWWRF), located at 3800 54th Ave S, St. Petersburg, FL 
33711, that will include evaluation of vulnerabilities and specific mitigations related to sea-
level rise (SLR) and storm surge on the SWWRF. The SWWRF is a coastal facility, 
approximately 6-ft above sea level, and due to its existing location SLR and storm surge 
could significantly impact the operation and long-term functionality of the facility. The 
implications of flooding impacts to the SWWRF include potential extensive risk to social 
stability, public health, and essential ecosystems. 
 
The purpose of these services is to provide a planning-level Technical Memorandum (TM) 
that will assess the vulnerability and impacts to existing SWWRF components to flooding 
and storm surge with multiple projected sea-level rise scenarios. Work will consist of 
identifying existing “as constructed” elevations from record drawings of the SWWRF, 
comparison of infrastructure elevations to sea-level rise and storm surge elevations, an in- 
depth analysis of multiple future SLR scenarios and associated impacts to existing facility 
components, identifying mitigation strategies and completing a cost-benefit analysis for the 
proposed mitigation measures. It is understood that the study will be used as a starting 
point to create an EPA Road to Resilience plan for the facility and the study will be used 
by the City to apply for available grant funding for resilience improvements recommended 
through the study at the facility. 

 
II. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

Task 1 - Project Management 
 
The A/E will prepare and submit monthly invoices to the City for payment. The A/E will 
also prepare and submit monthly status reports to the City with each invoice. Monthly 
status reports will comprise a one-page summary of the progress to date on the project, 
work completed during the prior month, work anticipated to be completed during the 
upcoming month, and discussion of any scope, schedule, or budget issues that may need 
to be resolved. The A/E will also maintain an Action Item Tracker and Decisions Made 
Tracker for all tasks under this scope of services. 

 



Task Order No. 21-04-FN/W(S) 
Page 2 of 7 

A/E will conduct a Kickoff/Project Objectives Meeting. The purpose of this meeting is to 
identify project team members, establish project communications protocols, confirm 
project goals and objectives, and to review the scope, schedule and budget. The meeting 
will also review City staff project objectives for facility hardening, and operational 
preferences. The A/E will prepare and distribute a Kickoff Meeting agenda prior to the 
meeting and prepare and distribute Kickoff Meeting minutes following the meeting. 

 
Task 2 - Data Collection/Review 
 
The A/E will coordinate with the City to obtain relevant available information that will be 
used to assist with development of the TM. Data required from the City may include, but 
not limited to, all available record drawings of the project site, site surveys, and any 
drawings of ongoing or planned construction at the project site. Record drawings should 
include the most recent improvements including the Biosolids to Energy Project. 

 
Task 3 - Site Visit 
 
The A/E will coordinate with the City to conduct a 2-day site visit, for 8 hours in duration, 
each day. The purpose of the site visits is to verify critical equipment elevations at the 
facility. Should equipment be identified during the field visit that does not exist on the 
City’s record drawings, it is understood that the A/E will make a field measurement and 
add equipment to the assessment with its field-measured elevation. The data for this 
update will come from previously completed record drawing data supplied to the City, it is 
understood that all elevations are tied to the NAVD88 datum and as a result further survey 
is not required for this assessment. 
 
Task 4 - Technical Memorandum - Climate Vulnerability Assessment/Adaptation 
and Resiliency Plan 
 
The A/E will provide a planning-level document that will assess the vulnerability of the 
City’s SWWRF to flooding and storm surge today and in the future due to the impacts of 
projected sea-level rise. The A/E will submit a draft version of the planning-level document 
Technical Memorandum (TM) for City review and a final version of the planning-level 
document TM to the City. 
 
The planning-level document will evaluate the impacts of SLR and storm surge on the 
facility today and out to the year 2050. The final planning-level document will include 
assessments at year 2023 (existing conditions scenario) and 2050. The assessment will 
use the EPA's "Adaptation Strategy Guide for Water Utilities" as a guideline for the 
evaluation.  
 
The evaluation will follow the first four steps of the five-step process laid out in the EPA 
"Adaptation Strategy Guide for Water Utilities" guideline for flooding and storm surge 
events only, as follows: 

 
 Understand projected impacts and challenges 
 Identify thresholds of failure or damage 



Task Order No. 21-04-FN/W(S) 
Page 3 of 7 

 Assess risks 
 Determine adaptation options 

 
Projected Mean Higher High-Water Levels (MHHW) using NOAA Intermediate High SLR 
curve for the St. Petersburg region will be utilized to determine MHHW, referenced to 
NAVD 88 for the analysis years 2023 and 2050 using this procedure. 
 
Storm surge depths for each scenario will be calculated for a Category 3 and 5 storm 
surges at MHHW tied to NAVD 88. The methodology used will be storm surge plus SLR 
elevations will be calculated by combining the surge height elevations from National 
Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration’s (NOAA) National Storm Surge Hazard maps 
with SLR projections developed from the USACE Sea Level Rise Calculator tool using 
NOAA 2017 projections near the City of St. Petersburg. SLR projections will be obtained 
for years 2023 and 2050 using NOAA’s “high” curve. These projections will then be 
superimposed onto the storm surge heights for Category 3 and 5 storms, per the Saffir 
Simpson Scale. A SLR scenario will also be developed for MHHW + NOAA Intermediate 
High using the same process for each time period evaluated. 

 
The planning-level document will also include the following: 

 
• Evaluate the SWWRF for vulnerability to flooding/storm surge based on the survey 

referenced to the NAVD88 with existing and projected MHHW elevations. Each 
evaluation will compare the current and projected MHHW and associated storm 
surge elevations for MHHW and then the surge associated with a Category 3 and 
5 storms. 

 
• 100-year floodplain elevation supplied by the CITY for year 2023 will also be 

included in 2023 evaluation. The elevation will be provided by the CITY referenced 
to NAVD 88. 

 
• Assess the vulnerability of equipment/structures essential for facility operation. 

The evaluation is intended to determine the vulnerability of the SWWRF to 
flooding due to sea-level rise and associated storm surge over the timeframes 
specified. 

 
• Based on thresholds of failure or damage identified, determine the vulnerability of 

each piece of essential equipment/structure to flooding. Essential 
equipment/structures will be determined at the kickoff meeting for the project and 
are defined as pieces of equipment/structures that will prevent SWWRF from 
performing its intended function if rendered inoperable. 

 
• Develop conceptual adaptation options for the SWWRF based on the analysis. 

The adaptation options will include a planning level "opinion of probable cost" or 
range of costs as appropriate for each resiliency/hardening option. 

 
TM (Draft) Submittal Review Meeting: The City shall have ten (10) days to review the TM 
(Draft) submittal. Following receipt of comments on draft deliverable from the City, A/E 



Task Order No. 21-04-FN/W(S) 
Page 4 of 7 

will coordinate with the City to discuss comments along with incorporating FNI Comment 
Response Form and revise draft documents to final, which will address comments as 
appropriate. After the review period, the A/E will conduct a TM (Draft) Review Meeting 
with the City. The A/E shall prepare and distribute a TM (Draft) Submittal Review Meeting 
agenda prior to the Review Meeting and prepare and distribute meeting minutes following 
the meeting. The A/E will also submit a comment response form to the City. The A/E will 
incorporate comments and submit an electronic copy of the TM (Final). 
 
Task 5 - Cost Benefit Analysis 
 
The goal of this task is to prepare a preliminary order of magnitude cost-benefit analysis 
to use for inclusion in future Grant Program applications for recommended resilience 
measures at SWWRF. 
 
The cost-benefit analysis will evaluate potential resilience/hardening measures at 
SWWRF for their ability to make the facility “climate resilient” based on the climate 
vulnerability assessment performed under this scope of services. The costs portion of the 
analysis will include order of magnitude costs for design, permitting, construction and 
maintenance of the selected project(s) that are recommended in the Technical 
Memorandum. It is understood that the costs that will be used for this assessment will be 
planning level, this is understood +/- 50% from actual future construction costs and will 
be completed with values for the equipment as they exist at the time of the evaluation. 
The baseline condition for each evaluated scenario will be a “do nothing” scenario in 
which costs will be estimated for the different scenarios evaluated with respect to the cost 
of repairing/restoring the SWWRF to operation after the evaluated event. 
 
Submit draft deliverables that will include Table of Costs and Benefits for various 
scenarios with complementary technical summary digital document in PDF of the cost 
benefit analysis. 
 
Following receipt of comments on draft deliverables from the City, A/E will coordinate with 
the CITY to discuss comments along with incorporating the City’s Comment Response 
Form and revise draft documents to address comments as appropriate. 

 
III. SCHEDULE 

 
Work under this Task Order shall begin no later than 10 days from Notice to Proceed (NTP). 
  

 Days 
Task 1 – Kick Off Meeting 10 days from NTP 
Task 2 – Data Collection 30 days from receipt of all requested data 
Task 3 – Site Visit 14 days from completion of Task 2 
Task 4 – Technical Memorandum (Draft) Submittal 60 days from completion of Task 3 
Task 4 – Technical Memorandum Comment 
Review Meeting 

14 days from TM (Draft) Submittal 

Task 4 – Technical Memorandum (Final) Submittal 30 days from TM Comment Review Meeting 
Task 5 – Cost Benefit Analysis (Draft) Submittal 30 days from TM Comment Review Meeting 



Task Order No. 21-04-FN/W(S) 
Page 5 of 7 

 Days 
Task 5 – Cost Benefit Analysis Comment Review 
Meeting 

14 days from Cost Benefit Analysis (Draft) 
Submittal 

Task 5 – Cost Benefit Analysis (Final) Submittal 14 days from Cost Benefit Analysis 
Comment Review Meeting 

 
IV. A/E'S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
The A/E will be responsible for the work specified to be the A/E’s responsibility in the Scope 
of Services above. 
 

V. CITY'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

1. Provide access to facilities and documentation listed in Scope of Services above, 
including survey information and “as built” record drawings. 

2. Provide relevant GIS information to complete vulnerability assessment. 
3. Provide CITY review comments associated with Task 4. 
 

VI. DELIVERABLES 
 
Task 1 – Monthly One-Page Reports 
Task 1 – Kickoff Meeting Agenda 
Task 1 – Kickoff Meeting Minutes 
Task 2 – Data Request 
Task 4 – TM (Draft) 
Task 4 – TM (Draft) Progress Review Meeting Agenda 
Task 4 – TM (Draft) Progress Review Meeting Minutes 
Task 4 – TM (Final) 
Task 5 – Cost Benefit Analysis Submittal (Draft) 
Task 5 – Cost Benefit Analysis (Draft) Progress Review Meeting Agenda 
Task 5 – Cost Benefit Analysis (Draft) Progress Review Meeting Minutes 
Task 5 – Cost Benefit Analysis Submittal (Final) 
 
All Tasks – Action Item Tracker, and Decisions Made Tracker 
 

VII. A/E'S COMPENSATION 
 
For Tasks 1 through 5, the City shall compensate the A/E the lump sum amount of 
$130,487.89.  
 
This Task Order establishes an allowance in the amount of $7,500.00 for additional 
services not identified in the Scope of Services.  Additional services may be performed only 
upon receipt of prior written authorization from the City and such authorization shall set 
forth the additional services to be provided by the A/E.  The cost for any additional services 
shall not exceed the amount of the allowance set forth in this Task Order. 
 
The total Task Order amount is $137,978.89, per Appendix A. 



Task Order No. 21-04-FN/W(S) 
Page 6 of 7 

 
 
VIII. PROJECT TEAM 

 
Freese and Nichols, Inc. 
 Thomas Cross, Professional 5 - Project Manager, Project Manager 
 Garrett Wilhelm, Professional 1 - Project Engineer  
 Craig Wells, Professional 5 - Project Engineer, Technical Lead 
 Tony Pevec, Professional 6 - Project Engineer 
 Robert Thompson, Professional 6 - Sr GIS 
 Silas Jordan, Professional 1 - GIS 
 Anthony Risko, Professional 5 - Project Engineer, Senior Advisor 
 John Rinacke, Professional 2 - Cost Estimator 
 Justin Smith, Corporate Project Support 2 - Accounting 

 
IX. MISCELLANEOUS 
 

In the event of a conflict between this Task Order and the Agreement, the Agreement shall 
prevail. 

  





AP
PE

N
D

IX
 A

W
or

k 
Ta

sk
 B

re
ak

do
w

n
Ci

ty
 o

f S
t. 

Pe
te

rs
bu

rg
 

SW
W

RF
 C

lim
at

e 
Vu

ln
er

ab
ili

ty
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t
Pr

oj
ec

t N
o.

 2
31

53
-1

00

I. 
M

an
po

w
er

 E
st

im
at

e:
  A

ll 
Ta

sk
s

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 5
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
 1

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 5
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
 6

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 3
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
 1

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 5
Pr

of
es

si
on

al
 2

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
Su

pp
or

t 2

90
.6

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
34

.0
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

99
.3

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
95

.2
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

48
.7

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
35

.3
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

97
.4

8
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
46

.2
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

35
.8

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
19

0.
71

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
71

.7
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
9.

23
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

20
0.

57
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
2.

53
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

74
.3

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

5.
19

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
97

.3
4

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

75
.3

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
28

1.
31

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

5.
82

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
30

8.
62

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
29

5.
85

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
15

1.
24

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

9.
70

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
30

2.
67

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
14

3.
58

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
11

1.
21

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  

1
27

6
6

20
4

4
20

1
6

94
23

,9
07

.0
3

$ 
   

   

2
2

30
8

8
0

0
0

0
0

48
8,

57
2.

98
$ 

   
   

  

3
2

16
16

16
0

0
0

0
0

50
11

,9
27

.2
6

$ 
   

   

4
12

16
2

88
0

40
90

0
36

0
42

8
68

,7
68

.6
0

$ 
   

   

5
6

64
24

0
0

0
0

10
0

10
4

17
,3

03
.0

2
$ 

   
   

49
27

8
14

2
44

44
94

20
47

6
72

4
13

0,
47

8.
89

$ 
   

II.
 F

ee
 C

al
cu

la
tio

n

Ta
sk

La
bo

r
Co

st
Ex

pe
ns

es
2

Su
bc

on
su

lta
nt

Se
rv

ic
es

M
ar

k-
up

 o
n

Su
bc

on
su

lta
nt

 
Se

rv
ic

es
3

To
ta

l C
os

t W
ith

ou
t 

Al
lo

w
an

ce

1
$2

3,
90

7.
03

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$2

3,
90

7.
03

2
$8

,5
72

.9
8

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$8

,5
72

.9
8

3
$1

1,
92

7.
26

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$1

1,
92

7.
26

4
$6

8,
76

8.
60

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$6

8,
76

8.
60

5
$1

7,
30

3.
02

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$1

7,
30

3.
02

To
ta

l
$1

30
,4

78
.8

9
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$1
30

,4
78

.8
9

III
.  

Fe
e 

Li
m

it
Lu

m
p 

Su
m

 C
os

t
$1

30
,4

78
.8

9
Al

lo
w

an
ce

4
$7

,5
00

.0
0

To
ta

l:
$1

37
,9

78
.8

9

IV
. N

ot
es

:
1.

  R
at

es
 a

nd
 M

ul
tip

ie
r p

er
 c

on
tr

ac
t.

2.
  I

nc
lu

de
s e

xp
en

se
s f

or
: m

ile
ag

e.
3.

  I
nc

lu
de

s 5
 p

er
ce

nt
 m

ar
ku

p 
of

 S
U

BC
O

N
SU

LT
AN

T 
(p

er
 c

on
tr

ac
t)

.
4.

  A
llo

w
an

ce
 to

 b
e 

us
ed

 o
nl

y 
up

on
 C

ity
's 

w
rit

te
n 

au
th

or
iza

tio
n.

Te
ch

ni
ca

l M
em

or
an

du
m

To
ta

ls

Co
st

 B
en

ef
it 

An
al

ys
is

Pr
oj

ec
t M

an
ag

em
en

t

Si
te

 V
isi

t

Da
ta

 C
ol

le
ct

io
n/

Re
vi

ew

La
bo

r 
Co

st

Di
re

ct
 L

ab
or

 R
at

es
 C

la
ss

ifi
ca

tio
ns

Bi
lli

ng
 R

at
es

1 
  

TA
SK

To
ta

l 
Ho

ur
s

M
ul

tip
lie

r 3
.1

05
Di

re
ct

 S
al

ar
y

Ta
sk

 O
rd

er
 N

o.
 2

1-
04

-F
N

/W
(S

)
Pa

ge
 1

 o
f 1



Page 1 of 1

-- City of St. Petersburg Authorization Request --

General Authorization

Request #

238733

Name: Johnson, Sarah B Request Date: 18-OCT-2023 Status: APPROVED

Authorization Request

Subject: Council - 11/2

Message: 23153-100 - Freese Nichols - SWWRF Climate - Task Order

Supporting
Documentation:

Freese Nichols - SWWRF Climate - Task Order - Final.pdf

Approver Completed By Response
Response

Date Type

0 Johnson, Sarah B SUBMITTED 18-OCT-2023

1 Prayman, Brejesh B Prayman, Brejesh B APPROVE 19-OCT-2023 User Defined 

2 McKee, Stacey Pevzner McKee, Stacey Pevzner APPROVE 19-OCT-2023 User Defined 

3 Tankersley, Claude Duval Tankersley, Claude Duval APPROVE 19-OCT-2023 User Defined 



598 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: A Resolution approving the 

First Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement between the City of St. Petersburg, Florida 

and Wright-Pierce, Inc. (“A/E”) dated June 21, 2023 to supplement the scope of services and modify 

the payment schedule and project schedule related to the CCTV Program Management Project; 

authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute the First Amendment; and providing an effective 

date. (ECID Project No. 22042-111; Oracle Project No. 19353) 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CB-15

CB-15



 
 

ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL 
 

Consent Agenda 
  

Meeting of November 2, 2023 
 
TO: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair, and Members of City Council 
 
SUBJECT:  A Resolution approving the First Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement between 
the City of St. Petersburg, Florida and Wright-Pierce, Inc. (“A/E”) dated June 21, 2023 to supplement the 
scope of services and modify the payment schedule and project schedule related to the CCTV Program 
Management Project; authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute the First Amendment; and providing 
an effective date. (ECID Project No. 22042-111; Oracle Project No. 19353) 
 
EXPLANATION: Under a Florida Department of Environmental Protection Consent Order (Third 
Amendment dated September 15, 2023), the City is required to complete an initial 5-year inspection of all 
of its gravity sewer lines and manhole via CCTV by June 12, 2024 and develop a program to continue 
inspections every ten years thereafter.   
 
On December 6, 2022, the City received two Statements of Qualifications and subsequently selected Wright 
Pierce, Inc. to complete the scope of work under the CCTV Program Management Project.  (“Project”).  
 
On June 15, 2023, City Council approved a Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) with Wright-
Pierce, Inc. as the most qualified firm to provide CCTV Program Management services for the Project. 
 
On June 21, 2023, the Professional Services Agreement between the City and Wright-Pierce, Inc. was 
executed in the amount of $1,506,440.07 for the A/E to provide Project Management and Meetings, 
Administer Project Plan, CCTV Contractor Management, 10-Year Plan Development, and Additional 
Services.     
 
This project was initially being administered by Water Resources Department. However, this Project is 
being shifted to ECID to manage and administer. 
 
 The City requested revisions to the scope to provide additional information on the services to be provided 
and to further delineate the scope of services between Wright-Pierce, Inc. and it subcontractor.     
 
This First Amendment to the Agreement is required to reassign $336,806.88 of funding within the 
Agreement to tasks previously approved. No new funds are being requested under this Amendment. 
 
The following services and associated not to exceed costs for this project are as follows:   
 

  Approved Authorized 

Agreement Project Management and 
Meetings $  112,177.81  $  112,177.81 

 Administer Project Plan $  288,850.16 $  288,850.16 

 
CCTV Contractor 
Management $  676,052.96  $  676,052.96 

 
10-Year Plan Development 
and Initial Implementation $  378,511.04  $  378,511.04 

 Additional Services  $    50,848.10 $    50,848.10 

 Total $1,506,440.07  $1,506,440.07 



 
 

    
 
Amendment No. 1 
(Re-allocation of funds) 

Project Management and 
Meetings $   41,713.76  

 Administer Project Plan $   28,415.30  

 CCTV Contractor 
Management $-336,806.88  

 10-Year Plan Development 
and Initial Implementation $ 175,918.56  

 Additional Services  90,759.26    
 Subtotal  $            0.00    

   
 Total  $1,506,440.07  

 
 
All work will be performed within the previously approved funding amount and no supplemental funding is 
required under this First Amendment; as such, there is no change in the contract price previously approved. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Administration recommends authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute 
the First Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement between the City of St. Petersburg, Florida 
and Wright-Pierce, Inc. (“A/E”) dated June 21, 2023 to supplement the scope of services and modify the 
payment schedule and project schedule related to the CCTV Program Management Project; authorizing the 
Mayor or his designee to execute the First Amendment; and providing an effective date. (ECID Project No. 
22042-111; Oracle Project No. 19353) 
 
COST/FUNDING INFORMATION: Funds have been previously appropriated in the Water Resources 
Capital Projects Fund (4003) SAN Condition Assess GM FY23Project (19353).  
 
ATTACHMENTS: Resolution 
   Attachment 1 to Appendix A 
   Attachment 1 to Appendix B 
   Attachment 1 to Appendix C 



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-____ 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO 
THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG, FLORIDA AND WRIGHT-
PIERCE, INC. (“A/E”) DATED JUNE 21, 2023 TO 
SUPPLEMENT THE SCOPE OF SERVICES AND MODIFY THE 
PAYMENT SCHEDULE AND PROJECT SCHEDULE 
RELATED TO THE CCTV PROGRAM MANAGEMENT 
PROJECT; AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE 
TO EXECUTE THE FIRST AMENDMENT; AND PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. (ECID PROJECT NO. 22042-111; 
ORACLE PROJECT NO. 19353) 

WHEREAS, the City of St. Petersburg, Florida (“City”) and Wright-Pierce, Inc. (“A/E”) 
entered into a Professional Services Agreement (“Agreement”) on June 21, 2023 for A/E to 
provide project management and meetings, administer a project plan, CCTV contractor 
management, 10-year plan development and initial implementation, and additional professional 
services for the CCTV Program Management (“Project”) in an amount not to exceed 
$1,506,440.07; and 

WHEREAS, Administration desires to amend the Agreement to supplement the scope of 
services and modify the payment schedule and project schedule for A/E to provide continued 
services for the project; and 

WHEREAS, payment to A/E will be from a reassignment of funding ($336,806.88) from 
tasks previously approved. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of St. Petersburg, 
Florida, that the First Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement between the City of St. 
Petersburg, Florida and Wright-Pierce, Inc. (“A/E”) dated June 21, 2023 to supplement the scope 
of services and modify the payment schedule and project schedule related to the CCTV Program 
Management Project is hereby approved. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or his designee is authorized to execute the 
First Amendment.  

This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption. 

LEGAL: DEPARTMENT: 

    
00705200 



ATTACHMENT 1 TO APPENDIX A - SCOPE OF SERVICES 
CCTV PROGRAM MANAGEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT  

CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG, FLORIDA 
PROJECT NO. 22042-111 

 
 

GENERAL DESCRIPTION 
 
The City of St. Petersburg ("City") selected Wright-Pierce, Inc. ("A/E") as the Architectural/ 
Engineering (A/E) firm for the consulting services of the CCTV Project Management and 
Development Project. The A/E team included Wade-Trim, Inc. (“Subconsultant”) as a 
subconsultant.  
 
The Scope of Services sets forth the services, activities, deliverables, and responsibilities that will 
be performed by the A/E and the Subconsultant and the Deliverables that will be provided by the 
A/E and the Subconsultant pursuant to the Agreement. The terms contained in this Scope of 
Services shall have the meanings set forth in the Agreement unless otherwise defined in the 
Scope of Services. 
 
The tasks set forth in this Scope of Services and the services, activities, responsibilities, and 
Deliverables that shall be performed or provided by A/E and Subconsultant in accordance with 
the Agreement are as follows: 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
TASK 1 PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND MEETINGS 
 
1.1 PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
 
The A/E will perform overall project management activities including contract administration, 
budget management, invoicing, developing monthly status reports to accompany invoices, 
scheduling of A/E staff, and contract related coordination activities with the City. 
 
The A/E and Subconsultant will compile and save all final deliverables including meeting agendas 
and meeting summaries to the City’s Designated Teams Channel (see Tasks/Subtasks and the 
Deliverable section of this Scope of Services for additional details). 
 
 
1.2 MEETINGS 
 
The A/E and Subconsultant will participate in the following Teams-enabled meetings. The 
Subconsultant will lead the meetings. For each meeting, the Subconsultant with the assistance of 
the A/E will prepare a meeting agenda and meeting summary. The Subconsultant will distribute 
meeting agendas and meeting summarizes via email and confirm final copies of each are saved 
to the Designated Teams Channel. 
 
During the Kickoff Meeting, expectations and roles for all parties will be discussed as defined in 
this scope. Subsequently, additional meetings to further clarify expectations and roles may be 
scheduled if needed.  
  
The Subconsultant, with assistance from the A/E, will develop an agenda template for the status 
meetings. The agenda template is envisioned to include the following: 
 

1. Burndown rates / project completion dates / charts. 



Appendix A – Scope of Services 
CCTV Program Management and Development  
Project No. 22042-111 
  

 2 

2. QA/QC checklists, tracking sheets, summary of issues completed by City staff, the 
Subconsultant, and the A/E. 

3. Discussion on available and needed resources and potential impacts to completion. 
4. Discussion on communication (i.e., is everyone getting what they need). 

 
 
Meeting Assumed Meeting Attendees, Quantity,  

Average Duration, and Frequency 
Kickoff Meeting Attendees: City, A/E, Subconsultant 

Quantity: One 
Duration: Up to 2 hours 
Frequency: Once 

Status Meeting Attendees: City, A/E, Subconsultant 
Quantity: Up to 26  
Duration: Up to 30 minutes (each) 
Frequency: Typically bi-weekly 

Additional Meetings Attendees: City, A/E, Subconsultant 
Quantity: Up to 12 
Duration: Up to 60 minutes (each) 
Frequency: Typically once a month  

 
TASK 2 ADMINISTER PROJECT PLAN 
 
2.1 ADMINISTER PROJECT PLAN 
 
The Subconsultant will lead the 1) creating a Project Plan and 2) management, coordination, and 
oversight of the City’s CCTV Inspection Program through completion of the Initial Phase. The 
work associated with creating a Project Plan is envisioned to include the following: 
   

1.  CCTV Program – Project Brief 
2.  CCTV Program – Project Organization & Function Map 
3.  Data Procession – Process Flow Map 
4.  Internal Inspection – Process Flow Map 
5.  External Inspections – Process Flow Map 
6. Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) 

 
The Subconsultant will lead creating, implementation and administration of the Project Plan which 
generally includes directing project resources inclusive of A/E staff, Subconsultant’s staff, City’s 
Water Resources Department (WRD) office staff, and City’s Wastewater Management (WWM) 
office staff. Data processing and reconciliation shall be an important factor in continued 
implementation of the Project Plan which shall be used by the Subconsultant, with assistance 
from the A/E, to monitor the Project, identify assets, and develop schedules for assets that need 
to be inspected. 
 
Additionally, the A/E and Subconsultant will perform the following activities as needed:  
 

1. A/E to maintain and manage the Master Database. A/E to QA/QC process for data intake, 
maintain data QA/QC checklists/tracker, and report out on database status at status 
meeting. 



Appendix A – Scope of Services 
CCTV Program Management and Development  
Project No. 22042-111 
  

 3 

2. A/E to maintain the ArcGIS Online map that spatial presents information contained in the 
Master Database. A/E to QA/QC process for data intake, maintain data QA/QC 
checklists/tracker, and report out on ArcGIS Online map at status meeting. 

3. Subconsultant to list activities to be performed by the A/E, Subconsultant, the City’s WRD 
office staff, the City’s WWM office staff, the Internal CCTV Inspection Team, the PSV, and 
the External CCTV Inspection Team 

4. A/E to develop completion schedules and burndown charts. 
5. Subconsultant to maintain a gap analysis, risk registry and risk response plan. 
6. Subconsultant to assess KPIs defined in the Project Plan.  

 
TASK 3 CCTV MANAGEMENT 
 
3.1 CCTV QUALITY ASSURANCE/QUALITY CONTROL MANAGEMENT 
 
The A/E and Subconsultant will develop QA/QC checklists and logs (e.g., error logs, corrective 
work order logs) for use by City staff, the A/E, the Subconsultant, and CCTV field crews. CCTV 
field crews are to complete the provided QA/QC checklist and log during performance of the CCTV 
inspections. City to complete the provided QA/QC checklist and log before exporting CCTV 
inspection databases for use by the A/E. The A/E will complete data intake QA/QC checklist and 
log. The City will transmit QA/QC checklists and logs completed by its staff and the CCTV field 
crews to the AE and Subconsultant. The Subconsultant will confirm that QA/QC checklists and 
logs are being completed and report on QA/QC items during Status Meetings. 
 
Based on the A/E’s review of CCTV inspection results, some inspection fields have a higher 
frequency of not being populated correctly. The QA/QC checklists developed  by A/E and 
subconsultant will incorporate the fields that have a higher frequency of not being populated 
correctly.   
 
3.2 MASTER DATABASE DELIVERY 
 
The A/E will develop and maintain a master database delivery and completion error log. The A/E 
will immediately report to the City and the Subconsultant any issues (e.g., an asset inspection 
does not appear complete) found in the CCTV databases provided by the City. The Subconsultant 
will also review log, confirm that City is addressing the apparent issues, and lead discussions at 
Status Meeting regarding which apparent issues are real issues and steps being taken by the City 
to resolve the real issues.  
 
Prior to the A/E uploading each master database delivery to the Designated Teams Channel, the 
A/E will complete a master database export QA/QC checklist. The master database export QA/QC 
checklist will be uploaded with the master database delivery. The master database that is PACP 
compliant will be uploaded at least once a quarter. Within two weeks of receipt of new data by 
A/E, AE will update the QA/QC’d data to the Consent Order Excel spreadsheet on the Teams 
site. The number of updates will be limited to no more than one every two weeks.     
 
TASK 4 10-YEAR PLAN DEVELOPMENT AND INITIAL IMPLEMENTATION 

 
4.1 10-YEAR PLAN DEVELOPMENT AND INITIAL IMPLEMENTATION 



Appendix A – Scope of Services 
CCTV Program Management and Development  
Project No. 22042-111 
  

 4 

 
The Subconsultant shall lead development and implementation of a 10-year Inspection Plan. The 
Subconsultant shall lead initial management, implementation, and coordination of the 10-year 
Inspection Plan. Responsibility for management, implementation, and coordination of the 10-year 
Inspection Plan will transition to City staff at an agreed upon time. After such time, the A/E and 
Subconsultant will provide support services to the City when requested. The 10-year Inspection 
Plan is envisioned to include: 
 

1. Updating the Project Plan developed under Task 2 for the 10-Year Inspection Plan. 
2. The procedures and techniques implemented to achieve the CO requirements. 
3. An assessment of alternate technologies for gravity main inspections beyond CCTV. 
4. Development of a protocol for prioritizing and scheduling basin inspections that considers 

both conditions and time. This will include development of the tool and techniques needed 
to accomplish this objective and example prioritization and scheduling for the first year of 
the 10-year Inspection Plan.  

5. Development of a protocol for performing a sewer system evaluation survey (SSES) and 
developing a rehabilitation plan. This will include development an example SSES and 
rehabilitation plan for a to be selected basin or subbasin. 

 
TASK 5 ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

 
5.1 ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
 
The A/E and Subconsultant may perform additional services through the Project duration 
necessary to comply with the Consent Order requirements, complete the Project on schedule, 
improve Project efficiency, and/or bridge gaps identified. These services may include, but are not 
limited, to the following:  
 

1. Training assistance.  
2. Reviewing existing and/or new CCTV videos and confirming if the videos have an 

appropriate NASSCO PACP certification. 
3. Reviewing and providing PACP certification for the videos that do not have PACP scoring.   
4. Assisting with correspondences and interactions with the FDEP and Suncoast 

Waterkeeper (SWK).  
5. Attending meeting with FDEP and SWK.  
6. Assisting with City with funding applications and securing funding.  
7. Assisting (e.g., preparation of documents, participating in meetings, etc.) with public 

outreach and/or City council meetings.  
8. Other associated work to complete the CO requirements and develop a self-sustaining 

inspection program. 
 
DELIVERABLES 
 
TASK 1 PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND MEETINGS 

• For each meeting, the Subconsultant with the assistance of the A/E will develop an agenda 
and meeting summary. The Subconsultant will distribute meeting agendas and meeting 



Appendix A – Scope of Services 
CCTV Program Management and Development  
Project No. 22042-111 
  

 5 

summarizes via email and confirm final copies of each are saved to the Designated Teams 
Channel. In addition, the AE and Subconsultant will save any previous deliverables and 
meeting agendas and summaries to the Designated Teams Channel. 

 
TASK 2 ADMINISTER PROJECT PLAN 

• The Subconsultant will save the Project Plan and its components to Designated Teams 
Channel. 

• The A/E will save QA/QC checklists/trackers that it completes to the Designated Teams 
Channel. 

• The Subconsultant will save QA/QC checklists/trackers that it completes to the Designated 
Teams Channel. 

• The Subconsultant will save the list of activities to be performed by each party, gap, 
analysis, risk registry, risk response plan, and KPIs to Designated Teams Channel. 
 

 
TASK 3 CCTV CONTRACTOR MANAGEMENT 

• The A/E will save QA/QC checklists and logs that it completes to the Designated Teams 
Channel. 

• The Subconsultant will save QA/QC checklists and logs that it completes to the 
Designated Teams Channel. 

• The Subconsultant will save completed QA/QC checklists and logs that it receive from the 
City to the Designated Teams Channel. 

• The A/E will save Master Database deliverables to the Designated Teams Channel. 
 
TASK 4 10-YEAR PLAN DEVELOPMENT AND INITIAL IMPLEMENTATION 

• The Subconsultant will save the updated Project Plan to the Designated Teams Channel. 
• The A/E will save QA/QC checklists and logs that it completes to the Designated Teams 

Channel. 
• The Subconsultant will save QA/QC checklists and logs that it completes to the 

Designated Teams Channel. 
• The A/E will save the protocol for prioritizing and scheduling basin inspections to the 

Designated Teams Channel. 
• The A/E will save the protocol for performing a SSES and developing a rehabilitation plan 

and the example SSES and rehabilitation plan to the Designated Teams Channel. 
• The Subconsultant will save completed QA/QC checklists and logs that it receive from the 

City to the Designated Teams Channel. 
 
TASK 5 ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

• The A/E will save items that it develops as part of this task to the Designated Teams 
Channel. 

• The Subconsultant will save items that it develops as part of this task to the Designated 
Teams Channel. 
 

PROJECT TEAM 
 
The key A/E Project team members include the following staff:  
 



Appendix A – Scope of Services 
CCTV Program Management and Development  
Project No. 22042-111 
  

 6 

• Steve Hallowell, Principal-in-Charge  
• Dennis Davis, Client Services Manager  
• Chris Baggett, Senior Project Manager 
• Laurie Perkins, QA/QC 
• Don McCullers,  QA/QC 
• Saheb Mansour-Rezaei, Lead Project Engineer 
• Ryan Cramer, Lead Project Engineer 
• Christian Stanley, Engineer Intern 
• Jonah Miller, GIS Analyst  
• Jackeline Amaya, GIS Technician 
• Robert Blais, Senior Field Service Technician  
• Cheryle DeVine, Senior Administrative Assistant 

 
Subconsultant: 
 

• Dennis Prevo, Senior Principal 
• Bill Harrington, Senior Professionals 
• Christopher High, Project Engineer VI 
• Elizabeth Rolla, Project Engineer V  
• Greg Stanley, Senior Professionals 
• Alejandro Solanilla, Engineer VI  
• Joe Dyer, Engineering Technician V  
• Lensey Casimir,  Engineering Technician IV 
• Catherine Cole, Engineering Technician III 
• Rhonda Busch, Project Aide IV 
• Melanie Phillips, Project Aide III  
• Katherine Kirby, Project Aide I 

 
   
 

-- End of Scope -- 



R
EV

IS
ED

 A
PP

EN
D

IX
 B

 - 
FE

E 
SC

H
ED

U
LE

 
C

C
TV

 P
R

O
G

RA
M

 M
A

NA
G

EM
EN

T 
A

N
D

 D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 
 

C
IT

Y 
O

F 
ST

. P
ET

ER
SB

U
R

G
, F

LO
R

ID
A

 
PR

O
JE

C
T 

N
O

. 2
20

42
-1

11
 

  Th
e 

C
ity

 s
ha

ll 
co

m
pe

ns
at

e 
th

e 
A/

E 
th

e 
am

ou
nt

 o
f $

1,
50

6,
44

0.
07

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

W
or

k 
Ta

sk
 B

re
ak

do
w

n:
 

 
Di

re
ct

 L
ab

or
 R

at
es

 
Cl

as
sif

ic
at

io
ns

 

Pr
in

ci
pa

l 
in

 
Ch

ar
ge

 

Sr
. 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

M
gr

 

Q
A/

Q
C 

En
gi

ne
er

 

Le
ad

 
Pr

oj
ec

t 
En

gi
ne

er
 

Pr
oj

ec
t 

En
gi

ne
er

 
En

gi
ne

er
 

In
te

rn
 

G
IS

 
An

al
ys

t 
G

IS
 

Te
ch

. 

Sr
. 

Ad
m

in
. 

As
si

st
. 

Sr
. F

ie
ld

 
Te

ch
. 

Fi
el

d 
Te

ch
. 

To
ta

l  
Ho

ur
s 

La
bo

r  
Co

st
 

Bi
lli

ng
 R

at
e 

 
$2

33
.3

1 
$2

40
.9

0 
$2

18
.7

9 
$1

95
.3

6 
$1

54
.1

1 
$1

14
.8

4 
$1

43
.2

2 
$1

06
.9

2 
$ 

93
.0

6 
$1

28
.7

0 
$ 

82
.5

0 
TA

SK
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

1 
PR

O
JE

CT
 

M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

AN
D 

M
EE

TI
N

GS
 

16
 

11
6 

41
 

5 
5 

43
 

0 
28

 
22

 
0 

 0 
27

6 
$ 

 5
2,

37
4.

30
 

2 
AD

M
IN

IS
TE

R 
PR

O
JE

CT
 P

LA
N

 
4 

22
4 

68
 

40
 

25
6 

15
6 

48
 

1,
00

8 
8 

0 
0 

1,
81

2 
$2

50
,3

48
.5

6 

3 
CC

TV
 

CO
N

TR
AC

TO
R 

M
AN

AG
EM

EN
T 

0 
48

 
16

 
80

 
0 

0 
0 

28
8 

0 
0 

0 
43

2 
$ 

 6
1,

48
5.

60
 

4 

10
-Y

EA
R 

PL
AN

 
DE

VE
LO

PM
EN

T 
AN

D 
IN

IT
IA

L 
IM

PL
EM

EN
TA

TI
O

N
 

4 
20

0 
14

0 
34

4 
24

0 
76

0 
24

 
61

6 
56

 
60

 
80

 
2,

52
4 

$3
60

,0
45

.8
4 

5 
AD

DI
TI

O
N

AL
 

SE
RV

IC
ES

 
2 

40
 

12
 

24
 

80
 

12
0 

24
 

32
0 

16
 

24
 

60
 

72
2 

$ 
 9

0,
70

5.
78

 

To
ta

l: 
26

 
62

8 
27

7 
49

3 
58

1 
1,

07
9 

96
 

2,
26

0 
10

2 
84

 
14

0 
5,

76
6 

$8
14

,9
60

.0
8 

  
 



II.
 F

ee
 C

al
cu

la
tio

n 
  

  
Ta

sk
 

La
bo

r C
os

t 
Ex

pe
ns

es
 

Su
bc

on
su

lta
nt

 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

To
ta

l C
os

t 

1 
$ 

 5
2,

37
4.

30
 

$5
00

.0
0 

$1
01

,0
17

.2
7 

$1
53

,8
91

.5
7 

2 
$2

50
,3

48
.5

6 
$5

,0
00

.0
0 

$6
1,

91
6.

90
 

$3
17

,2
65

.4
6 

3 
$ 

 6
1,

48
5.

60
 

$5
00

.0
0 

$2
77

,2
60

.4
8 

$3
39

,2
46

.0
8 

4 
$3

60
,0

45
.8

4 
$5

00
.0

0 
$1

93
,8

83
.7

6 
$5

54
,4

29
.6

0 
5 

$ 
 9

0,
70

5.
78

 
$5

02
.6

4 
$5

0,
39

8.
94

 
$1

41
,6

07
.3

6 
 

III
. F

ee
 L

im
it 

 
 

 
Lu

m
p 

Su
m

 C
os

t 
$1

,5
06

,4
40

.0
7 

Al
lo

w
an

ce
 

$0
.0

0 
 

To
ta

l F
ee

 
$1

,5
06

,4
40

.0
7  

 



REVISED APPENDIX C - SCHEDULE 
CCTV PROGRAM MANAGEMENT AND DEVELOPMENT 

CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG, FLORIDA 
PROJECT NO. 22042-111 

 
 
Task 1 Project Management and Meetings         Calendar Days/Week from NTP 

Task 1.1: Project Management               365 
Task 1.2: Meetings                 365 

 
Task 2 Administer Project Plan 
 
Task 2.1: Create Project Plan      30 
Task 2.1:  Administer Project Plan               365 

 
Task 3 CCTV Contractor Management 
 
Task 3.1: CCTV Quality Assurance/ 

    Quality Control Management    365 
Task 3.2: PACP Master Database Delivery    Every 12 weeks 
Task 3.2: Excel Master Database Delivery    Ongoing 
 
Task 4 10-Year Plan Development and Initial Implementation 
 
Task 4.1: 10-Year Plan Development and Initial Implementation 365 
 
Task 5 Additional Services 
 
Task 5.1: Additional Services      365 
 



Page 1 of 1

-- City of St. Petersburg Authorization Request --

General Authorization

Request #

238729

Name: Johnson, Sarah B Request Date: 18-OCT-2023 Status: APPROVED

Authorization Request

Subject: Council - 11/2

Message: 22042-111 - Wright Pierce - CCTV - Amendment No. 1

Supporting
Documentation:

Wright Pierce - CCTV - Amendment No. 1 - Final.pdf

Approver Completed By Response
Response

Date Type

0 Johnson, Sarah B SUBMITTED 18-OCT-2023

1 Prayman, Brejesh B Prayman, Brejesh B APPROVE 19-OCT-2023 User Defined 

2 McKee, Stacey Pevzner McKee, Stacey Pevzner APPROVE 19-OCT-2023 User Defined 

3 Tankersley, Claude Duval Tankersley, Claude Duval APPROVE 19-OCT-2023 User Defined 



613 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Housing. Land Use, & 

Transportation Committee Meeting Minutes (September 14, 2023) 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CB-16

CB-16



City of St. Petersburg 
Housing, Land Use, & Transportation Committee 

September 14, 2023 – 10:50AM 
Minutes 

 
Members: Chair Richie Floyd, Vice Chair Gina Driscoll, Council Member Brandi 

Gabbard, Council Member John Muhammad 
 

Alternate: Council Member Copley Gerdes 
 
Also present:  Council Member Ed Montanari, Robert Gerdes, City Administrator, Derek Kilborn, 
Urban Design and Historic Preservation Manager, Michael Dema, Assistant City Attorney.  

 
Support Staff: Bryan Casañas-Scarsella– City Council Legislative Aide 

 
1) Call to Order 

 
2) Approval of Agenda—Council Chair Gabbard moved approval; all voted unanimously. 

 
3) Approval of the August 10, 2023, Minutes—Council Chair Gabbard moved approval; all voted 

unanimously. 
 

4) New Business – September 14, 2023 
a) Commercial Corridors and SunRunner Corridor/Station Areas Land Use and Zoning 

Updates (Derek Kilborn) 
 
Mr. Kilborn discussed the many ways in which the community and stakeholders were 
engaged, including individual and neighborhood feedback, workshops and charettes. Mr. 
Kilborn then emphasized that specific recommendations on density, FARs or building 
heights were not on the agenda and that City Staff does support expanding multifamily and 
commercial uses into the industrial area along 22nd St. and increasing the FAR and density in 
the subject areas, as well as building heights in the appropriate locations.  
 
Mr. Kilborn then went over the several pieces of state legislation allow density bonuses 
under the existing rules without changing anything related to the City’s comprehensive plan 
or LDRs, such as the Live Local Act, which incentivizes the development of affordable 
housing, Florida Statute 403.892, which incentivizes the use of graywater, SB 250 “Natural 
Emergencies,” which prohibits local municipalities from adopting amendments to their 
comprehensive plans or LDRs, which are deemed more restrictive or burdensome, before 
October 1, 2024. He went over the State of Florida Statutes, Chapter 163, as well as the 
Countywide Plan Rules and the City’s Comprehensive Plan and LDRs. He briefly gave an 
overview of the Central Avenue Revitalization Plan from 2012, the SunRunner Rising 
Development Study, the City’s Complete Streets Plan, Deuce’s Live Action Plan, the Union 
Central Plan, and the St. Pete Vision 2050 Plan, the Target Employment and Industrial Land 
Study Update, the Grand Central District Master Plan, which is currently underway, and 
plans that have been privately submitted by stakeholders who have performed their own 
planning and placemaking studies. Mr. Kilborn said that the Planning and Development 
team has been working through all those existing plans and recommendations and trying to 
find the balance between all those different goals and objectives.  
 
 
 



The primary focus right now, he also explained, are the 22nd and 32nd St. areas. Within that, 
they have identified a study area. Mr. Kilborn then emphasized that the study considered an 
incremental approach starting at the station areas and moving out. He also displayed a map 
with the recommended boundary of changes that staff is proposing. This was established 
because it reflects the underlying future land use and zoning categories, he explained, and it 
is set up to use the existing activity center category so that they can proceed primarily with 
text amendments, and this will allow the process to move forward faster. He also highlighted 
that the new change at the countywide level referred to as the Target Employment Center-
Local was inspired by the Target Employment and Industrial Land Study, showing there can 
be more flexibility given to industrial areas. He then explained the northern boundary 
follows the Kenwood National Register District. Next, he displayed a stakeholder map for 
going beyond the boundaries recommended by City Staff.  
 
Mr. Kilborn explained that in the presentation they did include the other station areas, 
although the changes at those locations would be much more muted. He also provided an 
example of how the Natural Emergencies legislation could prevent changes that are needed 
in the western stations until October 1, 2024. Finally, Mr. Kilborn broke down the adoption 
process and schedule. The first is a text amendment to the Comprehensive Plan and that 
would run parallel to the second application, which is a LDR text amendment. With those in 
place, the zoning map amendment would then occur, allowing the expansion of uses along 
the Central Avenue corridor. He then displayed the proposed schedule in his presentation.  
 
Council Chair Gabbard commented that she would prefer to not to consider changes to 
density at this time in the Kenwood neighborhood where there has not been sufficient 
outreach, and she also asked about live-work opportunities for transient artists in the 
Warehouse Arts District. Mr. Kilborn replied that City Staff supports the idea of an artist-in-
residence short-term stay, but first wants to ensure that it would not in any way compromise 
or threaten the City's broader policy on short-term rentals. 
 
CM Driscoll emphasized maximizing opportunity along the Deuces corridor and asked why 
higher density would not be offered all the way to the interstate, pointing to the stakeholder 
group map. Mr. Kilborn emphasized that City Staff would be open to that and that tapering 
in that area would not be required as shown on the stakeholder map. Also, the Live Local 
Act would allow some taller building heights in this area. 
 
CM Driscoll asked Mr. Kilborn if this proposal for the 31st St. station area has the support 
from stakeholders north and south of Central Avenue. Mr. Kilborn underscored the feedback 
that came from the Kenwood Neighborhood during the NTM-1 process and that it was 
reflected in the proposed map boundary.  
 
Then, he went on to explain that because of what the underlying zoning and future land use 
categories are west of 31st St., there is an activity center land use category that does not 
require a map amendment. East of 31st St., he continued, then one starts to get into map 
amendments, which add additional layers to the process. So, by drawing the recommended 
boundary this way, it is being kept more confined to the already existing activity center 
category. Also, what is being discussed, reflects more closely what was already previously 
identified as an activity center location. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
CM Montanari said he liked the boundary that City Staff had put forward and agreed with 
his colleagues on Kenwood and wants to be sensitive to that neighborhood.  He then asked 
about the 22nd St. station area talked about the plan to mitigate displacement of current 
residents. Mr. Kilborn said he thought it was a statement reflecting a sensitivity to 
protecting neighborhood character in stable, established neighborhoods.  
 
Still referring to the 22nd St. station area slide, CM Montanari asked about the transitions to 
single-family homes within historic districts under the overall existing regulatory 
assessment. Mr. Kilborn explained that the neighborhoods within historic districts are not 
single-family but rather single-family with an Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) option. So, 
each parcel is already permitted two units. Some were just rezoned as part of the NTM-1 
application, which may allow up to two to four units, at 30 units per acre. Under normal 
planning procedures, one would try to step down and transition to the neighborhood, he 
explained, and one would have high density on Central Avenue, with medium density 
midrise type structures in the middle, and then one would move down to NTM-1/missing 
middle building typology, with maybe a duplex typology and then finally the single-family 
home typology. That would be like a best-case scenario, he explained. However, in this 
case, there is not a lot of room to transition. So, a harder edge may be required.  
 
CM Montanari then asked about the reduction of required minimum parking and parking 
maximums and if Mr. Kilborn saw a uniform parking overlay within the whole area, 
especially on the 22nd St. corridor. Mr. Kilborn said there would be considerations for 
reducing parking. The study, he explained, recommended reductions in parking minimums 
and does refer to setting a parking maximum, which is not something that the City has ever 
employed.  
 
CM Muhammad then asked about moving the map to accommodate the stakeholder input 
that was received how that may impact the timeline. Mr. Kilborn replied that there would be 
three months of public engagement.  
 
Committee Chair Floyd asked about what City Staff was seeking from the Committee and 
that the Committee was reaching somewhat of a consensus. Mr. Kilborn said he would like 
there to be consensus referring to the boundary that City Staff has put forward so as to 
adhere to the calendar that was prescribed in the presentation.  
 
Council Chair Gabbard asked Council Member Muhammad about the Palmetto Park 
Neighborhood and what his understanding of what they want is. Council Member 
Muhammad said the leadership of the Palmetto Park Neighborhood is supportive of the 
entire map and that the map does not go as far as they would like in terms of density and 
reducing parking minimums. Council Chair Gabbard asked about his feelings about waiting 
on a neighborhood plan knowing how long those take. Council Member Muhammad replied 
that if there is a way to strike a balance between having what the residents want, what the 
stakeholders want, and what the neighborhood is asking for, while continuing to move the 
timeline forward, he would be supportive. However, he said he would not want to hinder the 
process or slow it down. Mr. Kilborn added that it would probably add about three months 
to the process.  
 
 



Council Chair Gabbard asked about having a parallel process for having a conversation 
about the Palmetto Park area and the areas west of 34 St. Mr. Kilborn replied that they are 
really focused on staying within the boundary for the primary application but they have 
never suggested that that would be a static and final solution and that new areas might be 
considered over time and they thought that the best way to reflect the will of the 
neighborhoods was through the neighborhood planning process first.  

 
Speaking about the west side of 34th St., Mr. Kilborn explained that there is already existing 
commercial mixed-use zoning and that they are already proposing as part of this package, 
that the density and the FAR in the commercial mixed-use categories be increased. So, there 
will already be a baseline increase there on that point, and that there is the possibility of 
developing those sites under the Live Local Act now. At that location, they do have a higher 
building height across 34th St. that is within one mile. So, they do have some development 
benefit there now that goes beyond what the zoning allows, provided that the developers 
include the 40 percent affordable workforce housing units. 
 
A motion was made by Council Chair Gabbard for consideration to expand opportunities 
into Palmetto Park and the transition abutting Kenwood and on the west side of 34th St. from 
Central Avenue to 5th Avenue. Committee Chair Floyd said he hesitated to support the 
motion due to the there being parts that fall into the Kenwood National Historic District, and 
Council Chair Gabbard amended her motion accordingly. All voted in favor. 
 
CM Driscoll then asked about increasing the density in the southern part of the Warehouse 
Arts District. Mr. Kilborn said he understood her comment and will take it into 
consideration. Other committee members agreed.  
 
Council Chair Gabbard then made a motion to move forward with the proposed map from 
City and to move into the process that was recommended. All voted in favor.  
 

The meeting adjourned at 12:12PM.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



619 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Youth and Family Services 

Committee Meeting Minutes (June 8, 2023) 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CB-17

CB-17



 
City of St. Petersburg 

Youth and Family Services Committee 
June 8, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

City Hall, Room 100 

1 
 

Present: Committee Chair Deborah Figgs-Sanders, Committee Vice-Chair Richie Floyd, Council 
Member Copley Gerdes, Council Member John Muhammad, and Council Member Ed 
Montanari  

 
Absent: None 
 
Also Present: Assistant City Attorney Christina Boussias, Community and Neighborhood Affairs 
Administrator Amy Foster, Community and Neighborhood Affairs Administration Senior Operations 
Jess Riedel, Leisure Services Administrator Mike Jefferis, and Assistant City Clerk Patricia Beliveau 
 
Support Staff: Daphney Ivory – City Council Legislative Aide 
 
1. Call to Order – 1:45 PM 
 
2. Approval of Agenda – CM Floyd motioned for approval. All voted in favor. 

3. Approval of April 27, 2023, Minutes – CM Gerdes motioned for approval. All voted in favor. 

4. New Business – June 8, 2023 
 
Update on potential American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) investments related to Youth 
Development Grants and Youth Opportunity Grants – Amy Foster, Community and Neighborhood 
Affairs Administrator, Jess Riedel, Community and Neighborhood Affairs Administration Senior 
Operations 

 
A report regarding funding designated for Youth Development Grants, as well as a consideration 
for an out-of-cycle funding rollout utilizing the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds – Amy 
Foster, Community and Neighborhood Affairs Administrator, Jess Riedel, Community and 
Neighborhood Affairs Administration Senior Operations 

 
Community and Neighborhood Affairs Administration Senior Operations Jess Riedel gave a brief 
overview of Youth Opportunity Grants and Youth Development Grants pilot programs focused on those 
youth aging out of foster care and those that are not engaged in formal aftercare services. Ms. Riedel 
provided a summary of how the $700,000 budget would be distributed emphasizing the obligation and 
expenditure deadlines are December 31, 2024, and December 31, 2026. Ms. Riedel shared that the 
program design will include outreach and recruitment efforts, benefits counseling and mitigation, and 
benefits counseling at the onboarding phase. Participants will be given the option to make an informed 
decision at the beginning of the onboarding process on whether to proceed. The financial disbursement 
mechanism can vary, but we will ensure that aggregate data tracking is available for evaluation 
purposes. There will be a pre-vetted ecosystem available for participants seeking housing support or 
other benefits support to ensure they receive the necessary support they require. Ms. Riedel explained 
that 20% of youth who age out of foster care instantly become homeless, 37% are homeless by age 21, 
50% of the homeless population spent time in foster care, only 50% find employment by age 24, 60% of 



2 
 

child sex trafficking victims have had some history in the child welfare system, 80% of foster youth 
experienced significant mental health issues, 50% of youth will develop a substance dependence, less 
than 3% earn a college degree by age 21, 61% have a diploma or GED, 25% will be incarcerated within 
two years of aging out, and 90% of youth with five or more foster placements will enter the criminal 
justice system. Ms. Riedel continued with details from focus groups with former foster youth aged 18 to 
early 30s to get their feedback on the program in general and what they would need. Income each month 
to pay rent, bills, buy groceries, save up for a car, and childcare costs. Additionally, there are other pilots 
in the country, such as the Stanford Basic Income lab, which has 145 experiment sites, and guaranteed 
income. The US has different cities with different target populations. Data from Mayors for a 
Guaranteed Income showed that 39% spent their money on retailers and discount superstores, 27% at 
grocery stores, 9% on transportation costs, and 7% on housing and utilities, loan repayments, medical 
expenses, and tuition. Stockton, California Seed Program, a randomized controlled trial, saw an increase 
in full-time employment, increased ability to pay for unexpected expenses, emotional well-being, and 
more time and ability to spend with friends. Ms. Riedel explained that the next steps are to procure an 
organization to administer the program, bring the agreement to Council for approval in early 2024, start 
administering payments in late summer/early fall, and wrap up the program close-out evaluation by the 
end of 2025. 

 
Committee Vice-Chair Floyd questioned how many youths are aging out of foster care in St. Petersburg 
every year. Ms. Riedel responded that an estimated 100 children age out of foster care. Community and 
Neighborhood Affairs Administrator Amy Foster added that it is difficult to give an accurate number of 
children aging out of foster care but assures there will be enough youth to service. Council Member 
Floyd thanked the administration for presenting the program sharing that it is the exact group of people 
needed to address societal issues such as homelessness. 
 
Council Member Muhammad asked if the financial disbursement mechanism will adjust the amounts 
candidates receive. In response, Ms. Riedel stated it would be considered. 
 
Council Member Gerdes asked if employment requirements have been considered. Ms. Foster and 
Leisure Services Administrator Mike Jefferis shared that the administration is collaborating to develop 
a plan and hopes to bring that information forward soon.  
 
Council Member Gerdes and Committee Chair Figgs-Sanders both agreed that financial coaching be a 
requirement to participate in the program.  
 
Committee Chair Figgs-Sanders asked where would program referrals come from. Ms. Riedel 
explained there would be a lead agency taking on the project to help locate individuals for the program. 
Ms. Foster also added that an RFP or vendor would take on this project.  
 
Committee Chair Figgs-Sanders emphasized that there should be caution when it comes to Youth 
Opportunity Grants funding being diverted from other youth mentoring programs that assist those who 
may not be in foster care. She also suggested there should be a caution to not transition the additional 
dollars from the CRA to this program, as it would be difficult to disperse those funds. Mr. Jefferis stated 
that he is looking to hire a director in the education and youth opportunities department to ensure that 
citizens get full advantage of all ARPA dollars. Additionally, an additional $500,000 has been requested 
for youth development grants and literacy grants, which will be funded every year. There are significant 



3 
 

investments in the CRA that are ready to be utilized by programs for youth. Mr. Jefferis is confident that 
they can impact both groups in a significant way.  

 
Council Member Montanari shared his concerns about the program, and the costs associated and 
questioned if services would be offered to young adults who have aged out of the foster care system but 
are not engaged in formal aftercare services and asked what the formal aftercare services are. Ms. Riedel 
shared the various programs available to youth who have aged out, such as extended foster care, 
aftercare, and post-secondary education support services. The uptake rate of these programs is low, as 
many youths have spent years in the system and have no trust in it. Additionally, some youth may not be 
eligible for a program and want to engage in it, so it is important to broaden the options available to 
capture those smaller groups. Ms. Foster gave an example of a youth aging out of foster care who was 
eligible for a stipend but was unable to meet the required school hours to receive it from programs 
Council Member Montanari asked if an outside agency would be hired to run the program. Ms. Riedel 
and Ms. Foster responded by saying an outside Social Service agency with expertise would run the 
program.  
 
Committee Chair Figgs-Sanders asked if anything else was needed from the committee. In response, 
Ms. Foster explained that Council would have an opportunity to approve or disapprove later and Mr. 
Jefferis shared that the item was introduced in an effort to continue with the commitment to bringing 
ARPA concepts to Council early.  
 
 
 
 
 Committee Chair Figgs-Sanders adjourned the meeting at 2:39 PM. 
 
 



624 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: A resolution accepting a Mobile 

Command Center purchased by the City of Tampa for the City of St. Petersburg through federal 

grant funds from the Urban Areas Security Initiative; authorizing the Mayor or his designee to 

execute all documents necessary to effectuate this transaction; and providing an effective date. 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CB-18

CB-18



ST. PETERSBURG CITY COUNCIL
Consent Agenda

Meeting of November 2, 2023

TO: The Honorable Brandi Gabbard, Chair, and Members of City Council

SUBJECT: A resolution accepting a Mobile Command Center purchased by the City of Tampa
for the City of St. Petersburg through federal grant funds from the Urban Areas Security Initiative;
authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute all documents necessary to effectuate this
transaction; and providing an effective date.

EXPLANATION: The City of Tampa is the administrator of federal grant funds for the Urban
Areas Security Initiative in support of Homeland Security. As the administrator of such federal
grant funds, the City of Tampa issued Invitation to Bid No. 21012523 on January 6, 2023, soliciting
bids for a Mobile Command Center for the City of St. Petersburg’s Fire Rescue Department. Elite
Aluminum Corporation submitted a bid on January 17, 2023, and was awarded. On October 6,
2023, the City of Tampa passed Resolution 2023-938, approving the bid of Elite Aluminum
Corporation for the purchase of the Mobile Command Center for the City of St. Petersburg in the
total amount of $239,900. The City of Tampa has issued a purchase order and will issue full
payment to Elite Aluminum Corporation for the Mobile Command Center, and Elite Aluminum
Corporation will deliver the Mobile Command Center to the City of St. Petersburg, at no cost or
expense to the City of St. Petersburg. Delivery of the Mobile Command Center is anticipated to
occur 60 to 90 days after Tampa’s issuance of the purchase order.
The FORTS mobile command unit is essential to ensure continuity of effective operations during
special events and emergency/catastrophic events. The unit will have independent operational
functionality, to include radio transmissions and mobile IT capabilities.

RECOMMENDATION: Administration recommends City Council approve the resolution
accepting a Mobile Command Center purchased by the City of Tampa for the City of St. Petersburg
through federal grant funds from the Urban Areas Security Initiative; authorizing the Mayor or his
designee to execute all documents necessary to effectuate this transaction; and providing an
effective date.

COST/FUNDING/ASSESSMENT INFORMATION: The City of Tampa has issued a purchase
order and will issue full payment to Elite Aluminum Corporation for the Mobile Command Center,
and Elite Aluminum Corporation will deliver the Mobile Command Center to the City of St.
Petersburg, at no cost or expense to the City of St. Petersburg. Funding for maintenance and
upkeep of the Mobile Command Center has been previously appropriated in the General Fund
(0001), Fire Rescue Department, Operations Division (150-1497).

Page 1 of 2



ResolutionATTACHMENT:

Approvals:
Digll&tfy signed by Stacey

Stacey McKee Dat« 2051.101» HUM
WOO'Budget:Administration:

Page 2 of 2



Resolution No. 2023-
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A MOBILE COMMAND
CENTER PURCHASED BY THE CITY OF TAMPA FOR THE
CITY OF ST. PETERSBURG THROUGH FEDERAL GRANT
FUNDS FROM THE URBAN AREAS SECURITY INITIATIVE;
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR OR HIS DESIGNEE TO
EXECUTE ALL DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO
EFFECTUATE THIS TRANSACTION; AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the City of Tampa is the administrator of federal grant funds for the
Urban Areas Security Initiative in support of Homeland Security; and

WHEREAS, as the administrator of such federal grant funds, the City of Tampa
issued Invitation to Bid No. 21012523 on January 6, 2023, soliciting bids for a Mobile Command
Center for the City of St. Petersburg’s Fire Rescue Department; and

WHEREAS, Elite Aluminum Corporation submitted a bid on January 17, 2023,
and was awarded; and

WHEREAS, on October 6, 2023, the City of Tampa passed Resolution 2023-938,
approving the bid of Elite Aluminum Corporation for the purchase ofthe Mobile Command Center
for the City of St. Petersburg in the total amount of $239,900; and

WHEREAS, the City of Tampa has issued a purchase order and will issue full
payment to Elite Aluminum Corporation for the Mobile Command Center, and Elite Aluminum
Corporation will deliver the Mobile Command Center to the City of St. Petersburg, at no cost or
expense to the City of St. Petersburg; and

WHEREAS, delivery of the Mobile Command Center is anticipated to occur 60 to
90 days after Tampa’s issuance ofthe purchase order.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council ofthe City of St.
Petersburg, Florida, that the Mobile Command Center purchased by the City of Tampa for the City
of St. Petersburg through federal grant funds from the Urban Areas Security Initiative is hereby
accepted.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor or his designee is authorized to
execute all documents necessary to effectuate this transaction.

This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. \ ,

Jane E. Wallace gKSST,?,SiW DEPARTMENT:
,LEGAL:.

00705490



629 

 

 

The following page(s) contain the backup material for Agenda Item: Legislative Affairs and 

Intergovernmental Relations Committee Meeting Minutes (September 21, 2023) 

Please scroll down to view the backup material. 



CB-19

CB-19



 

1 
 

City of St. Petersburg 
Legislative Affairs and Intergovernmental Relations Committee 

September 21, 2023 Meeting Minutes 
City Hall, Room 100 

 
Present: Committee Chair Lisset Hanewicz, Committee Vice-Chair Ed Montanari, Council Member Gina 

Driscoll, and Council Chair Brandi Gabbard 
 
Absent: None 

Also Present: Council Vice-Chair Deborah Figgs-Sanders, Assistant City Attorney Jane Wallace, Mayor’s 
Chief of Staff Doyle Walsh, Government Affairs Director David Thompson, The Southern Group Partners 
Laura Boehmer (via ZOOM), Capitol Counsel Partner Robert Diamond (via ZOOM), and Deputy City Clerk 
Paul Traci 

Support Staff: Tricia Terry – City Council Legislative Aide 

1. Call to Order – 10:32AM 
2. Approval of Agenda – Council Chair Gabbard motioned for approval. All voted in favor. 
3. Approval of August 24, 2023 Minutes – CM Montanari motioned for approval. All voted in favor. 
4. New Business – September 21, 2023 

Current Status in Tallahassee – Laura Boehmer, The Southern Group  
 

Laura Boehmer started her review with the first week back in Tallahassee and the Speaker of the House 
race that designated Danny Perez as the incoming speaker.  She provided some of the policy issues for both the 
Senate and House, with focus being on a comprehensive healthcare package and infrastructure respectively.  
Ms. Boehmer indicated the forecasted budget is not as extensive as it has been, which will likely cause the 
legislature to be more cautious when it comes to appropriations. 
 

Council Chair (CC) Gabbard voiced some of her priorities for the upcoming session, including 
supporting flood mitigation bills being filed by Senator DiCeglie and Representative Cross, as well as 
supporting Senator Rouson’s Urban Agriculture Bill again.  
 

Chair Hanewicz asked if flood mitigation legislation is being discussed.  Ms. Boehmer indicated that the 
firm (The Southern Group) will be holding an insurance webinar on October 12th to cover some of the flood 
issues that may come up next session.    
 

CM Montanari gave an overview of the homes damaged from Hurricane Idalia flooding, and briefly 
spoke to his discussions with Senator DiCeglie to get some gap funding and tax relief for our residents.  He then 
inquired about the property insurance issue in the state and if we expect to have any changes soon.  Ms. 
Boehmer specified that she would double-check with leadership but did not believe that property insurance will 
be a focal point during next session.   

 
David Thompson discussed the tentative schedule for the City to gather and synthesize a unified 

legislative agenda for both the state and federal legislatures.  They will also be identifying appropriations to 
champion, specifically on water and infrastructure projects. 
 



 

2 
 

Current Status in Washington D.C. – Robert Diamond, Capitol Counsel, LLC 
 

Rob Diamond started with the Federal Fiscal budget expiring in 9 days, with a likely shutdown by the 
end of the month.  A resolution is being supported by the White House, Senate, and House leaders to extend the 
budget timeline anywhere from 30-90 days.   
 

Chair Hanewicz asked to clarify what impacts a federal government shut down will have locally.  Mr. 
Diamond indicated that emergency essential personnel will be identified and continue to work, but those 
employees will not be paid during that time.  Social Security and passport offices will be closed, effecting some 
travel.  NFIP is due to expire at the end of the month and will need to be reauthorized or extended, which could 
stop or slow the selling of policies past September1.  He expanded that he could share the agency-by-agency 
contingency plans that are in place in the event of a shutdown. 
 
2024 Federal Legislative Priorities 
 

David Thompson began by clarifying what will be included on the City’s Federal Legislative Agenda.  
Federal earmarks are not on this agenda but will be sent later before the March/April deadlines.  Additionally, 
specific bills were not listed since we are still quite early in the session. 
 

CM Montanari requested increased funding for FEMA Disaster Mitigation grant programs to elevate 
homes.  He indicated that he would follow up with Administration on 2 community project requests that he 
would like to submit for federal earmarks.  CM Montanari then stated three requests for changes to the NFIP, 
including an (1) adjustment to the CPI $250,000 limit on the coverage, as it will not cover most homes, (2) 
procedural changes to allow customers to be allowed to go back to NFIP if they leave, and (3) adjusting 
coverages for those who need to bring their home up to current code when doing repairs.  CM Montanari then 
listed two additional priorities, including funding for tree planting like Tampa’s $1 million program, and a 
request of $2 million for infrastructure improvements and charging stations for automated vehicles at the Albert 
Whitted Airport.   

 
Chair Hanewicz voiced her agreement with the tree planting request.  Mr. Thompson indicated that the 

City’s Tree Master Plan will put us in a good position to compete for that funding in the next cycle.  CM 
Driscoll asked if Tampa had a master plan in place to receive their federal earmark.  Mr. Diamond agreed that 
with our work on the master plan, we will meet the level of specificity for that grant opportunity. 
 

CC Gabbard expressed her agreement with CM Montanari to have more funding for the FEMA Hazard 
Mitigation grants, expanding that we need funding sooner and there needs to be more of it.  Additionally, she 
indicated that the reimbursement system does not work for most residents.  Chair Gabbard asked for this to 
be a standalone item on our list of priorities.  She asked for us to partner with other counties who use this 
program who also experience difficulties to help advocate for this change.  Rob Diamond indicated that we need 
to first reauthorize FEMA and then take congressional action to change the statute on funding. 
 

VC Figgs-Sanders inquired about the procedure to submit requests to our congressional representatives 
and if the City will we be re-requesting some of the unfunded projects from the last cycle.  Doyle Walsh 
indicated that it is entirely up to the congressperson to champion any projects.  Mr. Thompson expanded that 
each congressperson could submit up to 15 projects and that we will be doing intentional outreach to identify 
potential projects that meet the focus of our congresspeople.  VC Figgs-Sanders also voiced her support for 

 
1 NFIP - National Flood Insurance Program 



 

3 
 

pursuing federal funding for tree planting, but expressed concerns if it limited the homeowner’s choice of where 
to put the tree. 
 

VC Figgs-Sanders asked for clarity on the City’s legislative agenda process.  Mr. Thompson referred to 
meetings that each Councilperson had with Rob Diamond to discuss initial federal priorities, as well as 
developing a tracker for federal bills of interest.  Mr. Diamond stated that once the City has put together their 
legislative priorities, Capitol Counsel will then be able to tactically implement those priorities.  VC Figgs-
Sanders then asked for a timeline of the potential federal government shut down.  Mr. Diamond indicated that 
he could forward information as it comes in.  Chair Hanewicz asked to have open communication with our 
residents on any potential effects locally.  Mr. Walsh indicated that they will be working with Congresswoman 
Luna and Congresswoman Castor to have resources and assistance available if that comes to pass. 
 
 Mr. Diamond discussed the timeline and criteria for community project funding submissions and his 
belief that they will both be similar to last year.  Requests will most likely be due to the Appropriations 
Committee in February, giving the City the next 90 days or so to identify those requests to be submitted.  Ms. 
Boehmer added that the Florida Senate just released their budget forms yesterday and encouraged us to have our 
priorities submitted before the first day of session.  Additionally, Ms. Boehmer asked to have our appropriation 
requests for the Florida House filed by the second week of November.   
 

Mr. Walsh stated that Administration will work on finalizing changes to our legislative agenda regarding 
FEMA and trees.  He asked to have further discussions on the eVTOL infrastructure mentioned by CM 
Montanari in his priorities for Albert Whitted Airport.  The final draft of our federal legislative agenda will be 
provided at the October LAIR meeting.  Rob Diamond confirmed that we have time to finalize and submit 
before next year.   
 

Jane Wallace reminded the committee that if more than one CM is going to attend the October 12th 
insurance webinar, they will be bound by Sunshine Law. 

 
With no further business, Committee Chair Hanewicz adjourned the meeting at 11:22AM. 


	11/2/2023 Meeting
	Council Meeting
	Meeting Called to Order and Roll Call.
	Approval of Agenda with Additions and Deletions.
	Consent Agenda (see attached)
	Awards and Presentations
	Public Hearings and Quasi-Judicial Proceedings - 9:30 A.M.
	Public Hearings
	Confirming Preliminary Assessment for Building Securing Number LCA 1650
	E-1.docx (1 page)
	LCA 1650.pdf (11 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11


	Confirming Preliminary Assessment for Building Securing Number LCA 1651
	E-2.docx (1 page)
	LCA 1651.pdf (7 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7


	Confirming Preliminary Assessment for Building Securing SEC 1286
	E-3.docx (1 page)
	SEC 1286.pdf (5 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5


	Ordinance 561-H. Ordinance to Create Chapter 28 & Provide Tax Abatement for Certain Affordable Housing Projects Allowed through Senate Bill 102 (AKA Live Local Act)
	E-4.docx (1 page)
	Memo for Tax Abatement Ordinance_10_19_23.docx (1 page)
	00701873.pdf (7 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7

	Affordable Housing Local Tax Abatement 9 28 23.pdf (3 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3




	Reports
	Resolution Endorsing the Advantage Pinellas Housing Action Plan
	F-1.docx (1 page)
	2023-11-02 RF Advantage Pinellas Support.pdf (2 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2


	A resolution authorizing the Mayor, or his designee to execute (I) an agreement with the Board of Trustees of St. Petersburg College for the purchase of a property located at 7045 Burlington Avenue North for the contract price of $4,200,000; (II) execute an agreement with the Board of Trustees of St. Petersburg College to give Specific rights to the purchase of certain affordable housing units to be built on such property; (III) execute all other documents necessary to effectuate this transaction; (IV) pay for survey(s), inspections, environmental audit(s), title policy, and other acquisition/closing related costs, including the payment of state documentary stamps on the deed, all not to exceed $100,000; approving a transfer in the amount of $4,300,000 from the unappropriated balance of the Parking Revenue Fund (1021), to the Housing Capital Improvement Fund (3000); approving a supplemental appropriation in the amount of $4,300,000 from the increase in the unappropriated balance of the Housing Capital Improvement Fund (3000), resulting from the above transfer, to the St. Pete College Acquisition Project (20095); and providing an effective date.
	F-2.docx (1 page)
	CM 231102 St Petersburg College to City - 7045 Burlington Ave N (Memo and Resolution)_aef signed.pdf (6 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6


	Requesting permission to accept the awarded Florida Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services (FDACS) Division of Administration (Contract #29916) for tree planting in the Childs Park Neighborhood. The awarded grant total is $49,617 with a 1:1 match of $49,617 that will be funded through the Office of Sustainability and Resilience Urban Forestry Budget. The total Childs Park tree planting and maintenance project cost will be up to $100,000.
	F-3.docx (1 page)
	Consent_FDACS_Tree Nursery_11.2 Combined.pdf (28 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28


	A Resolution approving the plat of YMCA - Riviera, generally located at 501 62nd Avenue Northeast; setting forth conditions; and providing an effective date. (City File No.: DRC 22-20000013)
	F-4.docx (1 page)
	City File  22-20000013 v ADA Final.pdf (14 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14



	New Ordinances - (First Reading of Title and Setting of Public Hearing)
	Proposed text amendments to the City Code of Ordinances Chapter 16 (Land Development Regulations) and Chapter 17.5 (Housing Assistance) pertaining to an update to the existing alternative housing affordability site plan review process related to SB 102 known as the “Live Local Act”. (City File: LDR 2023-03 and Chapter 17.5 Amendments)
	G-1.docx (1 page)
	LDR 2023-03 and 17.5 Live Local CC 110223_final signed.pdf (20 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20



	New Business
	Respectfully requesting a referral to a Committee of the Whole meeting to be scheduled on November 9, 2023 a discussion regarding a potential straw poll on the Tampa Bay Rays stadium agreement, to be included on the March 19, 2024 presidential preference primary election ballots. (Councilmember Floyd)
	H-1.docx (1 page)
	2023-11-02 RF Rays Straw Poll.pdf (1 page)

	Respectfully requesting a joint Community Benefit Advisory Committee and City Council meeting at a Committee of the Whole for discussion on the Community Benefit Program (Vice-Chair Figgs-Sanders)
	H-2.docx (1 page)
	2023-10-20 DFS Referral to COW for joint CBAC and CC meeting.pdf (1 page)

	Respectfully requesting a referral to a Committee of the Whole no later than the end of the first quarter of 2024 for a discussion on flood mitigation strategies for the coastal high hazard and repetitive loss areas of our city. Topics to include current permitting process and requirements for infill residential development, current FEMA application & acceptance procedures for mitigation grants, exploration of methods to improve our Community Rating System (CRS) score to reduce the impact of rising flood insurance rates, and a discussion on funding a study examining the fiscal impact of climate informed zoning such as the study prepared by the Lincoln Institute of Land Policy attached. This conversation is relevant to a New Business Item approved in a City Council Meeting on July 12, 2018 to “explore options for, and provide a presentation on, creating a grant or incentive program for homeowner hurricane mitigation efforts in repetitive loss neighborhoods as determined by FEMA.” that is on the Health, Energy, Resilience, and Sustainability (HERS) Committee Referral List. (Chair Gabbard)
	H-3.docx (1 page)
	2023-11-02 BG - Referral to COW Repetitive Flooding.pdf (58 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30
	Page 31
	Page 32
	Page 33
	Page 34
	Page 35
	Page 36
	Page 37
	Page 38
	Page 39
	Page 40
	Page 41
	Page 42
	Page 43
	Page 44
	Page 45
	Page 46
	Page 47
	Page 48
	Page 49
	Page 50
	Page 51
	Page 52
	Page 53
	Page 54
	Page 55
	Page 56
	Page 57
	Page 58



	Council Committee Reports
	Legal
	Open Forum
	Adjournment

	Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA)
	Consent Agenda A
	(Procurement)
	Approving a blanket purchase agreement with Odyssey Manufacturing Co. for sodium hypochlorite supply services, for the Water Resources Department, for a total contract amount of $2,171,000.
	CA-1.docx (1 page)
	1. 885-40 Chemical Sodium Hypochlorite November 2 2023 - Consent Agenda (FInal).pdf (5 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5


	Accepting a proposal from Daniel Company, dba Daniel Mechanical LLC, a sole source supplier, for a Bio-trickling Filter and Carbon Adsorber Odor Control System, for the Southwest Water Reclamation Facility, for a total cost of $1,315,000.
	CA-2.docx (1 page)
	2. 890-84 Daniel Company's Odor Control System November 2 2023 - Consent Agenda (Final).pdf (3 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3


	Accepting Statements of Qualifications (SOQs) from CivilSurv Design Group, Inc., Colliers Engineering & Design, Inc., Hyatt Survey Services, Inc., Survtech Solutions, Inc., and T2 UES. Inc. for Consulting Services, Professional Surveying, for the Engineering and Capital Improvements Department, for a four-year contract.
	CA-3.docx (1 page)
	3. 906-10 Consulting Services, Professional Surveying - Consent Agenda (Final).pdf (8 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8


	Accepting a bid from Ajax Paving Industries of Florida LLC, for Citywide Annual Resurfacing, for the Engineering and Capital Improvements Department, in the amount of $5,049,379 (ECID Project No. 23003-130; Oracle No. 19196).
	CA-4.docx (1 page)
	4. 913-96 Citywide Annual Resurfacing FY23, November 2, 2023 - Consent Agenda (Final).pdf (4 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4


	Approving a three-year blanket purchase agreement with FirstOnsite Restoration, Inc dba Interstate Restoration and Paul Davis Restoration, Inc for as-needed disaster restoration services for the Pier.
	CA-5.docx (1 page)
	5. 962-72 Restoration Services Pier November 2 2023 - Consent Agenda (Final).pdf (4 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4


	Approving the renewal and an increase in allocation of a two-year blanket purchase agreement with Parkmobile LLC, for pay-by-connected-device parking services, for a total contract amount of $2,290,000.
	CA-6.docx (1 page)
	6. 968-62 Parking Meter Services, Novemeber 2, 2023 - Consent Agenda (Final).pdf (3 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3



	(City Development)
	(Community Enrichment)
	(Public Works)
	A Resolution accepting a guaranteed maximum price proposal dated June 26, 2023 in the amount of $613,682 from Archer Western Construction, LLC (“Archer Western”) for construction phase services for the Sanitation Building Fiber Optic Network Expansion Project; authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute all documents necessary to effectuate this transaction; and providing an effective date (ECID Project No. 22100-124; Oracle Project Nos. 19071, 17971).
	CA-7.docx (1 page)
	Archer Western - Sanitation Fiber - CMAN GMP - Final.pdf (6 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6



	(Appointments)
	(Miscellaneous)

	Consent Agenda B
	(Procurement)
	Approving a blanket purchase agreement with Allied Universal Corp. for sodium hydroxide, for the Water Resources Department, for a total contract amount of $350,000
	CB-1.docx (1 page)
	1. 885-40 Chemical Sodium Hydroxide  November 2, 2023 - Consent Agenda (Final).pdf (3 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3


	Approving the reinstatement and an increase in allocation for shuttle bus services, with SP Plus Corporation for the Municipal Pier District, in the amount of $56,050, for a total contract amount of $2,019,050.
	CB-2.docx (1 page)
	3. 962-17 Shuttle Bus Pier November 2 2023 - Consent Agenda (FInal).pdf (3 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3


	Approving the renewal and an increase in allocation of a contract purchase agreement with Econolite Control Products, Inc., a sole source supplier, for the purchase of traffic controllers for the Stormwater Traffic and Pavement Operations Department in the amount of $320,000.
	CB-3.docx (1 page)
	4. 968-82 Traffic Controls Cobalt Controllers, November 2, 2023 - Consent Agenda (Final).pdf (3 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3


	Approving the renewal a blanket purchase agreement with Portable Sanitation of Tampa, Inc. for the rental of portable toilets, in the amount of $40,000.
	CB-4.docx (1 page)
	5. 977-73 Portable Sanitation Units November 2, 2023 Consent Agenda (Final).pdf (3 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3


	Accepting a bid from Jantech Services, Inc for battery replacement services for the Police Department, in the amount of 265,148.16.
	CB-5.docx (1 page)
	5. 936-61 Uninterrupted Power Supply Battery Replacements - Consent Agenda (Final).pdf (3 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3



	(City Development)
	Authorizing the Mayor, or his designee, to execute a License Agreement with the Civil Air Patrol, a Congressionally chartered non-profit federal corporation and the civilian Auxiliary of the United States Air Force, for continued use of property to maintain a building and other ancillary improvements for its base operations within City-owned Albert Whitted Airport, for a period of three (3) years at an aggregate fee of $36.00; and providing an effective date. (Requires affirmative vote of at least six (6) members of City Council.) 
	CB-7.docx (1 page)
	Nov 2 - CM 231102 - 1 RE Civil Air Patrol @ Albert Whitted Airport L-6660 (2023-2026) 00703700 AF CB JC.pdf (4 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4


	Authorizing the Mayor, or his designee, to execute a First Amendment to the License Agreement with the Salvador Dali Museum, Inc., a Florida not-for-profit corporation, to continue the non-exclusive right to use up to fifty (50) numbered vehicular parking spaces in the overflow parking area at Albert Whitted Airport for an additional three (3) year term; and providing an effective date. 
	CB-8.docx (1 page)
	Nov 2 - CM 231102 - 2 RE 1st Amendment Salvador Dali Museum Inc. Employee Parking @ AWA (2023-2026) 00704505 AF CB JC.pdf (2 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2


	Authorizing the Mayor, or his designee, to execute License Agreement with the Childs Park Rattlers Youth Athletic Organization, Inc., a Florida not-for-profit corporation, for the use of the concession stand, equipment/storage, and press box/storage buildings within a portion of City-owned Childs Park Athletic Complex located at 601 – 45th Street South, St. Petersburg, for a period of three (3) years at an aggregate fee of $36.00; and waiving the reserve for replacement requirement of City Council Resolution No. 79-740A; and providing an effective date. (Requires affirmative vote of at least six (6) members of City Council.)
	CB-9.docx (1 page)
	Nov 2 - CM 231102 - 3 RE Childs Park Rattlers Youth Athletic Organization (2023-2026) L-2240 00704762 AF MJ JC.pdf (5 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5


	A Resolution to execute the first amendment to the agreement with Volkan Alkanoglu Design, LLC for two artistic sculptures for the Grand Central District Entryway Project to increase the total contract amount by $219,000, including a $38,000 contingency, for a total contract amount not to exceed $418,000.
	CB-10.docx (1 page)
	Nov 2 - Eco Dev - Volkan Alkanoglu.pdf (11 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11



	(Community Enrichment)
	Approving a resolution authorizing the Mayor or his designee to accept additional grant funds from the State of Florida Department of Health, Bureau of Childcare Food Programs (“Department”) in an amount not to exceed $14,625.96 as an additional reimbursement for the City of St. Petersburg 2023 Childcare Food Program for a total amount of $241,295.96; to execute a grant agreement and all other documents necessary to effectuate this transaction; and providing an effective date.
	CB-11.docx (1 page)
	Childcare-Food-Program-2023-increase-consent-agenda-executed.pdf (1 page)
	Childcare-Food-Program-2023-increase-resolution-executed.pdf (2 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2


	Approval of Co-Sponsored Event Applications and Associated Resolutions
	CB-12.docx (1 page)
	Clerks Packet - Nov 2nd Meeting - v2.pdf (270 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25
	Page 26
	Page 27
	Page 28
	Page 29
	Page 30
	Page 31
	Page 32
	Page 33
	Page 34
	Page 35
	Page 36
	Page 37
	Page 38
	Page 39
	Page 40
	Page 41
	Page 42
	Page 43
	Page 44
	Page 45
	Page 46
	Page 47
	Page 48
	Page 49
	Page 50
	Page 51
	Page 52
	Page 53
	Page 54
	Page 55
	Page 56
	Page 57
	Page 58
	Page 59
	Page 60
	Page 61
	Page 62
	Page 63
	Page 64
	Page 65
	Page 66
	Page 67
	Page 68
	Page 69
	Page 70
	Page 71
	Page 72
	Page 73
	Page 74
	Page 75
	Page 76
	Page 77
	Page 78
	Page 79
	Page 80
	Page 81
	Page 82
	Page 83
	Page 84
	Page 85
	Page 86
	Page 87
	Page 88
	Page 89
	Page 90
	Page 91
	Page 92
	Page 93
	Page 94
	Page 95
	Page 96
	Page 97
	Page 98
	Page 99
	Page 100
	Page 101
	Page 102
	Page 103
	Page 104
	Page 105
	Page 106
	Page 107
	Page 108
	Page 109
	Page 110
	Page 111
	Page 112
	Page 113
	Page 114
	Page 115
	Page 116
	Page 117
	Page 118
	Page 119
	Page 120
	Page 121
	Page 122
	Page 123
	Page 124
	Page 125
	Page 126
	Page 127
	Page 128
	Page 129
	Page 130
	Page 131
	Page 132
	Page 133
	Page 134
	Page 135
	Page 136
	Page 137
	Page 138
	Page 139
	Page 140
	Page 141
	Page 142
	Page 143
	Page 144
	Page 145
	Page 146
	Page 147
	Page 148
	Page 149
	Page 150
	Page 151
	Page 152
	Page 153
	Page 154
	Page 155
	Page 156
	Page 157
	Page 158
	Page 159
	Page 160
	Page 161
	Page 162
	Page 163
	Page 164
	Page 165
	Page 166
	Page 167
	Page 168
	Page 169
	Page 170
	Page 171
	Page 172
	Page 173
	Page 174
	Page 175
	Page 176
	Page 177
	Page 178
	Page 179
	Page 180
	Page 181
	Page 182
	Page 183
	Page 184
	Page 185
	Page 186
	Page 187
	Page 188
	Page 189
	Page 190
	Page 191
	Page 192
	Page 193
	Page 194
	Page 195
	Page 196
	Page 197
	Page 198
	Page 199
	Page 200
	Page 201
	Page 202
	Page 203
	Page 204
	Page 205
	Page 206
	Page 207
	Page 208
	Page 209
	Page 210
	Page 211
	Page 212
	Page 213
	Page 214
	Page 215
	Page 216
	Page 217
	Page 218
	Page 219
	Page 220
	Page 221
	Page 222
	Page 223
	Page 224
	Page 225
	Page 226
	Page 227
	Page 228
	Page 229
	Page 230
	Page 231
	Page 232
	Page 233
	Page 234
	Page 235
	Page 236
	Page 237
	Page 238
	Page 239
	Page 240
	Page 241
	Page 242
	Page 243
	Page 244
	Page 245
	Page 246
	Page 247
	Page 248
	Page 249
	Page 250
	Page 251
	Page 252
	Page 253
	Page 254
	Page 255
	Page 256
	Page 257
	Page 258
	Page 259
	Page 260
	Page 261
	Page 262
	Page 263
	Page 264
	Page 265
	Page 266
	Page 267
	Page 268
	Page 269
	Page 270



	(Public Works)
	A Resolution authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute Task Order No. 21-04-FN/W(S) to the architect/engineering agreement dated July 15, 2021 between the City of St. Petersburg, Florida and Freese and Nichols, Inc. (“A/E”) for A/E to provide project management, data collection and review, site visits, a technical memorandum, and cost benefit analysis related to the SWWRF Climate Vulnerability Assessment Project in an amount not to exceed $137,978.89 (ECID Project No. 23153-100; Oracle No. 19677); and providing an effective date.
	CB-14.docx (1 page)
	Freese Nichols - SWWRF Climate - Task Order - Final.pdf (14 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14


	A Resolution approving the First Amendment to the Professional Services Agreement between the City of St. Petersburg, Florida and Wright-Pierce, Inc. (“A/E”) dated June 21, 2023 to supplement the scope of services and modify the payment schedule and project schedule related to the CCTV Program Management Project; authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute the First Amendment; and providing an effective date. (ECID Project No. 22042-111; Oracle Project No. 19353)
	CB-15.docx (1 page)
	Wright Pierce - CCTV - Amendment No. 1 - Final.pdf (13 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13



	(Appointments)
	(Miscellaneous)
	Housing. Land Use, & Transportation Committee Meeting Minutes (September 14, 2023)
	CB-16.docx (1 page)
	2023-09-14 HLUT Minutes.pdf (4 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4


	Youth and Family Services Committee Meeting Minutes (June 8, 2023)
	CB-17.docx (1 page)
	2023-06-08 YFS Committee Meeting Minutes.pdf (3 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3


	A resolution accepting a Mobile Command Center purchased by the City of Tampa for the City of St. Petersburg through federal grant funds from the Urban Areas Security Initiative; authorizing the Mayor or his designee to execute all documents necessary to effectuate this transaction; and providing an effective date.
	CB-18.docx (1 page)
	UASI FORTS Unit - Council backup.pdf (3 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3


	Legislative Affairs and Intergovernmental Relations Committee Meeting Minutes (September 21, 2023)
	CB-19.docx (1 page)
	2023-09-21 - LAIR Minutes.pdf (3 pages)
	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3




	Meeting Agenda
	Housing, Land Use & Transportation Committee
	Public Services & Infrastructure Committee
	Budget, Finance & Taxation Committee
	City Council Meeting

	Board and Commission Vacancies

	Blank Page
	Blank Page



